2020 | City of Deming





Water Conservation Plan

Table of Contents

Авв	REVIATI	ONS AND ACRONYMS	. IV
Аск	NOWLE	DGEMENT	. IV
LIST	OF FIG	JRES	V
LIST	OF TAB	LES	V
EXE	CUTIV	E SUMMARY	1
1.	DATA (COLLECTION AND SYSTEM OVERVIEW	4
1.	1 P	URPOSE	. 4
	1.3.1	Мар	6
	1.3.2	WATER SUPPLY OVERVIEW	7
	1.3.3	DEMOGRAPHICS	11
	1.3.4	Housing	12
	1.3.5	TEMPERATURE AND PRECIPITATION	12
	1.3.6	REGIONAL WATER PLAN	14
	1.3.7	OTHER LOCAL CONDITIONS	15
2.	Asses	SING CITY OF DEMING'S WATER SUPPLIER PERFORMANCE	30
2.	.1 D	ATA RESULTS AND ANALYSIS, AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION (AWW)	A) WATER
Lo	oss Co	NTROL COMMITTEE (WLCC) FREE WATER AUDIT SOFTWARE© REPORTING WO	RKSHEET
	3	0	
	2.1.1	PERFORMANCE INDICATORS	31
	2.1.2	DATA VALIDITY SCORE	32
	2.1.3	PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION AND GRADING MATRIX	34
	2.1.4	LOSS CONTROL PLANNING	35
2.	2 D	ATA RESULTS AND ANALYSIS, GPCD CALCULATOR TABLE	35
	2.2.1	PERIOD OF STUDY	35
	2.2.2	AVERAGE SIZE OF HOUSEHOLD	36
	2.2.3	ANNUAL SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SFR) GALLONS PER CAPITA PER DAY (GPCD).	36
	2.2.4	MONTHLY SFR GPCD	37
	2.2.5	ESTIMATED SFR INDOOR WATER USE	38
	2.2.6	ESTIMATED SFR OUTDOOR WATER USE	38
	2.2.7	ANNUAL MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (MFR) GPCD	38
	2.2.8	ESTIMATED MFR INDOOR WATER USE	39
	2.2.9	ESTIMATED MFR OUTDOOR WATER USE	39
	2.2.10	MONTHLY MFR GPCD	39
	2.2.11	INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL, INSTITUTIONAL (ICI), AND OTHER METERED USES	39
	2.2.12	ANNUAL SYSTEM TOTAL GPCD	40
	2.2.13	MONTHLY SYSTEM TOTAL GPCD	41
3.	SETTIN	IG WATER CONSERVATION GOALS	42
3.	1 0	BJECTIVE	42

3.2	REASONS WHY THE CITY OF DEMING IS DEVELOPING A WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 42
3.3	IDENTIFY WATER CONSERVATION GOALS
3.4	PRIORITIZE GOALS
3.5	EVALUATE GOALS
3.6	REST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 44
3.6.	1 DESCRIBE BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMPS) CONSIDERED 44
3.6.	2 LIST BMPS SELECTED
4. PUB	LIC INVOLVEMENT, EDUCATION, OUTREACH
4.1	DESCRIBE PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT DURING THE PLANNING PROCESS
4.2	EDUCATION AND OUTREACH AFTER A PLAN IS ADOPTED
4.2.	1 DESCRIBE THE PUBLIC INFORMATION PROGRAM
4.2.	2 DESCRIBE OUTREACH PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
4.2.	3 DESCRIBE IN-SCHOOL EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMS
5. DEV	ELOPING A WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM
5.1	DESCRIBE CHALLENGES
5.2	PROGRAM COMPONENTS
5.2.	1 Program Title
5.2.	2 SUMMARY OF PROGRAM
5.2.	3 TARGETED USER
5.2.	4 SATURATION OF TARGET USER
5.2.	5 IMPLEMENTATION DATES60
5.2.	6 ANTICIPATED COST
5.2.	7 ANTICIPATED STAFFING
5.2.	8 FUNDING SOURCE
5.2.	9 ANTICIPATED RESULTS AND HOW THEY ALIGN WITH GOALS
5.2. 5.2	10 WHY THE PROGRAM WAS CHOSEN
5.2	12 How THE PROGRAM WILL BE IMPLEMENTED 65
5.2.	13 EXPLANATION OF TRACKING AND EVALUATION 67
5.2.	14 ANNUAL REPORTING AND UPDATES
5.3	DESCRIBE PROCESS OF PRIORITIZING PROJECTS
54	CURPENT AND PAST WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAMS 69
54	1 SUMMARY 69
5.4.	2 TIME FRAMES
5.4.	3 RESULTS
5.5	PROPOSED WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAMS
5.5. Gov	1 NARRATIVE DESCRIBING HOW SELECTED WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAMS MEET STATED
5.5.	2 OVERALL TIMELINE OF BMPS AS RELATED TO OBJECTIVES

5.5.3 ANTICIPATED / REPORTED RESULTS FOR THE ENTIRE WATER CONSERVATION PLAN	84
6. REFERENCES	85
APPENDIX A AWWA WATER AUDIT - 2019 CITY OF DEMING	A1
APPENDIX B COMPLETED GALLONS PER CAPITA PER DAY (GPCD) CALCULATOR	. B1
APPENDIX C CITY OF DEMING'S 40-YEAR WATER PLAN (2018)	. C1
APPENDIX D GROUNDWATER MODEL OF THE MIMBRES BASIN	. D1
APPENDIX E GUIDELINES FOR THE DEMING-COLUMBUS ADMINISTRATIVE AREA	E1
APPENDIX F 2009 WATER CONSERVATION PLAN (FROM 2009 40-YEAR WATER PLAN)	F1

Abbreviations and Acronyms

AFY	acre-feet per year
AMR	automated meter read
AutoCAD	Computer Aided Design
AWWA	American Water Works Association
BMPs	best management practices
CMA	critical management area
CMB	critical management block
CPA	Certified Public Accountant
DVS	data validity score
GIS	Geographical Information System
GPCD	gallons per capita per day
ILI	Infrastructure Leakage Index
ISC	Interstate Stream Commission
MFR	multi-family residential
MG/Yr	million gallons per year
MUWB	Mimbres Underground Water Basin
NMOSE	New Mexico Office of the State Engineer
PWS	public water suppliers
SFR	single-family residential
WCP	water conservation plan
WRCC	Western Regional Climate Center

Acknowledgement

Photos, including cover photo, courtesy of Santana Valentine.

List of Figures

Figure 1: City of Deming Recreational Lake	4
Figure 2: City of Deming Organizational Chart. Source: City of Deming website: www.cityofdeming.org.	5
Figure 3: City of Deming Location Reference Map	6
Figure 4: 3-million gallon ground level water tank	7
Figure 5: Map of City of Deming's Water Distribution System	8
Figure 6: One of Two 500,000-Gallon Elevated Storage Tanks. The second tank is pictured on the cove	r
of this document	9
Figure 7: Meter at access point for fill of the city's recreational lake	10
Figure 8: Leyendecker Plaza, City of Deming. Cultural artwork that incorporates water into the roots of t	he
community	11
Figure 9: Graph showing annual precipitation for the City of Deming 2001-2019	13
Figure 10: Hydrograph depicting the City of Deming's annual precipitation. WRCC data used 1920-2016	5.
	14
Figure 11: City of Deming Recreational Lake	17
Figure 12: Mimbres River	29
Figure 13: Graph of monthly SFR GPCD - City of Deming 2019	37
Figure 14: NMOSE GPCD - Annual - System Total GPCD Graph - City of Deming 2016-2019	40
Figure 15: NMOSE GPCD - Annual Analysis GPCD table and graph - City of Deming 2016-2019	40

List of Tables

Table 1: City of Deming Municipal Water Rights	8
Table 2: Distribution Lines by Size	10
Table 3: Distribution Lines by Type	10
Table 4: U.S. Census housing data for the City of Deming	12
Table 5: WRCC temperature and precipitation data for the City of Deming	13
Table 6: AWWA Water Audit Water Balance Table	30
Table 7: U.S. Census housing vacancy rate - City of Deming	36
Table 8: Annual SFR GPCD as	36
Table 9: Monthly SFR GPCD as presented in NMOSE Calculator - City of Deming 2016-2019	37
Table 10: Estimated SFR Indoor Water Use - City of Deming 2016-2019	38
Table 11: Estimated SFR Outdoor Water Use - City of Deming 2016-2019	38
Table 12: Monthly Industrial, Commercial, Institutional, and Other Metered Uses - City of Deming 2016-	•
2019	39
Table 13: Annual Industrial, Commercial, Institutional, and Other Metered Uses GPCD - City of Deming	ļ
2016-2019	39
Table 14: NMOSE Calculator - Monthly System Total GPCD - City of Deming 2016-2019	41
Table 15: Implementation Schedule for BMPs	60
Table 16: Anticipated Costs for BMP's	61
Table 17: Alignment of BMPs to Goals	63
Table 18: Timeline of BMPs	82

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City of Deming operates a water utility which supplies municipal water to nearly 15,000 residents. The city is in southwest New Mexico along interstate 10. The City relies solely on groundwater for its water source. The city averages less than 9-inches of rain annually, most of which comes during the monsoons in mid to late summer. It is imperative for the City of Deming to continuously improve on conservation efforts to ensure a sustainable water supply which promotes conservation of water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change.

As part of continuous improvements in water conservation, the City of Deming has conducted, and plans to continue conducting annually, the American Water Works Association's (AWWA) Water Audit and New Mexico Office of the State Engineer's (NMOSE) Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) Calculator. These tools enable the city to monitor and document water supply and demand characteristics which assists in making better informed management decisions related to water conservation. These tools not only provide a means for monitoring and documenting results, but also provides guidance for developing manageable goals and best management practices (BMPs) for continuing to improve water conservation efforts.

This document, the City of Deming's 2020 Water Conservation Plan (WCP) is broken down into five sections: Data Collection and Overview; Assessing City of Deming's Water Supplier Performance; Setting Water Conservation Goals; Public Involvement, Education, and Outreach; and Developing a Water Conservation Program.

The first section, "Data Collection and Overview", describes the City's environment which includes a description of why this document is needed; the team which will drive this plan; and local conditions such as location, water supply, demographics, housing, temperature and precipitation, water rights and city ordinances related to water conservation.

The second section, "Assessing City of Deming's Water Supply", digs into the data and results included in the 2019 AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator. These tools identify several operational and infrastructure improvements that can be made to increase the overall efficiency of the water system. The AWWA Water Audit identifies the City's water system as having a Data Validity Score (DVS) of 59 out of 100. This indicates that the city is at a loss control planning level III status. This means that the City's water utility has a base to work with as far as data collection is concerned; however, the city can improve the efficiency of their water utility by focusing on improving in this area. A level III public water supplier (PWS) can also begin setting goals for long-term water conservation programs. The NMOSE GPCD Calculator indicates that the residential GPCD is approximately 108 GPCD, but also indicates that the GPCD has been decreasing over the past four-years.

Section 3, "Setting Water Conservation Goals", describes the process for identifying, selecting, and prioritizing the City's objective, goals, and BMPs. The following is the city's objective for this WCP:

The City of Deming's objective for developing a water conservation plan is to increase the efficiency in the way we deliver water to the citizens of Deming. Increasing efficiency involves understanding all the dynamics of the water system which enables the City to reduce waste of water, engage the public in water saving practices, maintain a degree of infrastructure which proactively minimizes waste, and create a rate structure which covers the cost of the utility and promotes water conservation while keeping water rates as low as possible. In a broader sense, the City of Deming wants to operate its municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change.

The City has also identified five goals and prioritized them as follows:

- 1. Improve system management within 5 years as reflected in a DVS of 71 or better on the AWWA Water Audit which would raise the City to a loss control planning level 4 status.
- 2. Develop written policies and procedures related to water conservation best practices as identified as weaknesses within the AWWA Water Audit and review annually. These policies and procedures should be written and implemented within a year of this audit.
- 3. Reduce nonrevenue water by 65 MG/Yr by 2025.
- 4. Ensure water utility annual revenues cover annual operational expenses plus funding to cover inter-period equity costs estimated for asset and infrastructure replacement by 2025.
- 5. Reduce residential GPCD to a level below 80 GPCD within the next 15 years.

Several BMP's were identified. The City selected 23 of the BMPs identified as being important enough to be considered for this plan. Those 23 BMPs were prioritized as follows:

- 1. Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews
- 2. Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator
- 3. Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)
- 4. Meter Replacement Plan
- 5. Conservation Coordinator
- 6. Repair Known Leaks
- 7. Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects

- 8. Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp
- 9. Water Main GIS File Updated Routinely
- 10. Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)
- 11. Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly
- 12. Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly
- 13. Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited
- 14. Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly
- 15. Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated
- 16. Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees
- 17. Public Involvement Plan
- 18. Public Information/Outreach Plan
- 19. In-School Educational Program
- 20. Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances
- 21. Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices
- 22. Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes
- 23. Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau

The fourth section, "Public Involvement, Education, and Outreach", involves written plans for the City to get the public involved in the decision-making processes regarding water conservation. This section also discusses public outreach plans and a plan for the City to work with the Deming Public Schools for developing education opportunities for students to be indoctrinated in water conservation. The City does identify in the WCP that the focus of the first five-years of this plan is on making operational and infrastructure improvements while introducing public involvement, education, and outreach to develop a more long-term water conservation strategy.

The last section, "Developing a Water Conservation Program", brings the City's objective, goals and BMPs together with detailed descriptions for how the plan will be executed, tracked, documented, and reported.

A major component of this program involves continuous improvement in water conservation which requires the Planning Team to review what is working and what is not working periodically and adjust, as necessary. This process will also require public buy-in for water conservation for which the City will actively promote water conservation and actively pursue public input for water conservation initiatives. The focus of everything that the City of Deming does is on the citizens of this city and without an active WCP in place, the future of our citizens would be jeopardized. The State of New Mexico refers to water being the State's most valuable resource. We consider our citizens as being the City's most valuable resource, however without water, our citizens could not exist. A sustainable water resource will sustain a quality of life for our citizens long into the future.

1. Data Collection and System Overview

1.1 Purpose

The purpose of this document is to organize and implement a sustainable approach for ensuring that the City of Deming maximizes efficiencies and minimizes waste within the City of Deming's municipal water system.

The City of Deming has taken on several recent projects and have passes several ordinances with the intentions to conserve one of the City's most valuable resource. These projects include efforts to treat effluent from the City's wastewater treatment plant to acceptable standards to allow for reuse for a variety of purposes, extending treated effluent water lines to various parks and golf courses throughout the City for irrigation purposes, installation of artificial turf at ball fields, contracting treated effluent water to commercial industries for non-consumption purposes, the construction of a recreational lake, as seen in Figure 1 below, which is intended to eventually be supplied by treated re-use water, and projects to replace and repair aged infrastructure.

All these projects come at a cost to a community where the median per capita income levels are well below national and state averages. This document will assist the community in meeting the requirements to access state funding opportunities that might not otherwise be accessible.



FIGURE 1: CITY OF DEMING RECREATIONAL LAKE

1.2 Planning Team

The implementation and planning team for this document will consist of City of Deming staff members. City of Deming Staff members involved with implementing this plan consists of the Mayor, City Administrator, Public Works Director, Public Works Assistant, Community Services Director, City Engineer, City Treasurer, and Water/Wastewater Foreman.

The team consists of individuals with a diverse set of backgrounds with many years of experience in their related fields. The Public Works Director, City Engineer and Water/Wastewater Foreman all bring several years of experience managing water resources for the City of Deming and work closely with other government agencies to ensure the City complies with environmental and permitting requirements related to operating a water treatment facility. Figure 2, below, shows the City of Deming Organizational Chart as presented on the City of Deming website. The chart is not current, but it does give an idea for the structure of the positions and should be used as a guide to refer to positions, rather than the individual people who are in the position.



FIGURE 2: CITY OF DEMING ORGANIZATIONAL CHART. SOURCE: CITY OF DEMING WEBSITE: WWW.CITYOFDEMING.ORG

1.3 Local Conditions

1.3.1 Map

Deming is located in the southwestern part of New Mexico, 33 miles North of the Mexico border, a land of an ever-present sun and flowing desert rocks and cacti (City of Deming, 2010). The City of Deming is the county seat for Luna County, NM. The 2010 Decennial Census estimated the population of Deming to be 14,855 (US Department of Commerce, n.d.). The city is located along Interstate 10 approximately 100 miles east of the Arizona/New Mexico state line and approximately 100 miles west of the New Mexico/Texas state line. The City of Deming is located in a valley between the Florida Mountains to the southeast and Cooke's Range to the North (Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2018). The valley floor's elevation sits at about 4340 feet above sea level.



FIGURE 3: CITY OF DEMING LOCATION REFERENCE MAP

1.3.2 Water Supply Overview

The City of Deming's supply water source is comprised completely from groundwater sources from the Mimbres Underground Water Basin (MUWB). Refer to Appendix C, the City of Deming's 40-year Water Plan prepared by Daniel B Stephens & Associates Inc., Section 2 (Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2018), and Appendix D, Groundwater Model of the Mimbres Basin published by the NMOSE (Cuddy & Keyes, 2011), to get a very thorough and still relevant description of the water supply characteristics for the City of Deming.

The City of Deming currently has 20 wells for which they can divert water for municipal purposes. Some of these wells need repair or replacement. Figure 5 and Table 1, below, give a general description as to location and general characteristics of the water rights associated with the municipal wells.



FIGURE 4: 3-MILLION GALLON GROUND LEVEL WATER TANK



FIGURE 5: MAP OF CITY OF DEMING'S WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

	TABL	E 1. U		MING MUNICIPAL WA							
City of Deming - File/Well Breakdown - Jan 2020											
File Number City Name Acres Diversion Wells Pumping Restriction Meter Rqmt BU											
Municipal Rights											
M-00049	Bilbo Farm		185.60	M-00049-S	566.34	QTR	Pending				
			380.74	M-00109	566.34	QTR	Pending				
				M-00109-S	566.34	QTR					
	Brdecko Well			M-00127	380.74	QTR					
M-00208	Diaz Farm		216.64	M-00208	216.64	QTR	Pending				
M-00214	#14 Hervol Farm		176.00	M-00214	468.96	QTR	Pending				
			160.00	M-00214-S2 (Plugged?)	468.96	QTR	Pending				
			132.96				Pending				
M-00272-A	Peru Mill		159.20	M-00272	701.90	QTR	Pending				
			100.80	M-00273	701.90	QTR	Pending				
			441.90				Pending				
M-00299	#6		4415.00	M-299-S	1210.00	QTR	Pending				
	#5			M-299-S5	1210.00	QTR					
	#1			M-299-S6	1210.00	QTR					
No more than 4340	#2			M-299-S7	1210.00	QTR					
	#7			M-299-S8	1210.00	QTR					
	#10			M-299-S10	1210.00	QTR					
	#8			M-299-S11	1210.00	QTR					
	#3			M-299-S2	1210.00	QTR					
No More than 4415	#11			M-299-S4	1210.00	QTR					
	#9			M-299-S12	1210.00	QTR					
	#4			M-299-S15	1210.00	QTR					
	City Airbase Well			M-299-S9	50.00	QTR					
	Total		6368.84								

RIE 1. CITY OF DEMINIC MUNICIPAL WATER RIGHTS

The City of Deming is located within a critical management area (CMA) as determined by the NMOSE. See Appendix E – Guidelines for the Deming-Columbus Administrative Area (Office of the State Engineer - John R D`Antonio, 2011) for details concerning the administrative limitations for moving water rights around the City of Deming area. Because of the CMA determination, the movement of water rights in and out of critical management blocks (CMB) is very difficult. This has put constraints and defined where the City of Deming can draw its water from.

The City of Deming's initial well field consists of 12-wells that they can currently pump up to 4415 AFY of water for municipal purposes. These 12-wells are known by the NMOSE as the M-299 wells. Each well has been permitted to pump up to 1210 AFY of water, except for well M-299-S9 which is limited to pumping only 50 AFY. In addition to the restrictions just described, wells M-299-S, S5, S6, S7, S8, S10, and S11 are collectively restricted to pumping only up to 4340 AFY.

The City of Deming has been successful at purchasing irrigation water rights from nearby farms and converting those rights to municipal purposes. On a couple of occasions, the City has been able to transfer some of these rights to production wells closer to the City limits. The City of Deming has expanded their municipal purposes by adding four additional wells, known by the City as Bilbo Farm, to pump an additional 566.34 AFY of water, adding an additional well known by the City as Diaz Farm to pump an additional 216.64 AFY, adding an additional well known by the City as Well #14 to pump an additional 468.98 AFY, and adding two additional wells known by the City as Peru Mill to pump an additional 701.9 AFY. This brings the City's total municipal water right to 6368.84 AFY.

The City also owns several irrigation rights for which they intend to convert to municipal purposes when the City's demand increase. For the purposes of this report, the irrigation water rights are not discussed.

Figure 5 above, also gives an overview of the City's distribution system. The City has three storage tanks to serve the system – a 3 million-gallon ground level water tank (figure 4 above) and two 500,000-gallon elevated storage tanks (figure 6 right). There are approximately 150-miles of distribution lines. The tables below show the size and types of piping used. As seen in tables 2 and 3 below, there are approximately 0.15 miles of piping



FIGURE 6: ONE OF TWO 500,000-GALLON ELEVATED STORAGE TANKS. THE SECOND TANK IS PICTURED ON THE COVER OF THIS DOCUMENT.

where there is uncertainty as to what size the pipes are and 17.35 miles where the type of pipe is unknown. This information was extracted from the City's GIS project where all the distribution lines have been identified.

Distribution Lines By Size							
Diameter (in)	Length (Miles)						
UNK Total	0.15						
0.7 Total	0.02						
1 Total	2.08						
1.5 Total	0.16						
2 Total	7.48						
4 Total	7.62						
6 Total	74.17						
8 Total	14.05						
10 Total	13.23						
12 Total	30.50						
18 Total	0.08						
Grand Total	149.53						

TABLE 2: DISTRIBUTION LINES BY SIZE

TABLE 3: DISTRIBUTION LINES BY TYPE

Distribution Lines By Type								
Туре	Length (Miles)							
AC Total	37.38							
CI Total	25.26							
PTUB Total	1.87							
PVC Total	67.68							
UNK Total	17.35							
Grand Total	149.53							

The City has metered all production wells and meters are manually read monthly. Meter readings are submitted to the NMOSE quarterly. The distribution system is dated and in need of repairs frequently. The City has put forth an effort to document and track distribution leaks in order to identify problem areas and to prioritize areas to expend resources. City Council has recently approved a rate increase to help provide resources to maintain the water system.



FIGURE 7: METER AT ACCESS POINT FOR FILL OF THE CITY'S RECREATIONAL LAKE.

1.3.3 Demographics



FIGURE 8: LEYENDECKER PLAZA, CITY OF DEMING. CULTURAL ARTWORK THAT INCORPORATES WATER INTO THE ROOTS OF THE COMMUNITY.

The 2010 Census estimated the City of Deming population to be 14,855 people. The 2010: ACS 5-year Estimates Data Profile (DP05) helps break down some of the demographics of the City of Deming. Approximately 50.3% of the population is female while 49.7% are male. The median age of the population is 34.7 years old. 98% of the population identified as being a single race in the 2010 Census. Of that 98%, 90.3% identified as being White, 1.5% identified as being Black or African American, 0.9% identified as being American Indian or Alaskan Native, 0.3% identified as being Asian, and 2% identified as being some other race. Of the total population, 69.4% of the population identified as being Hispanic or Latino of which 63.8% identified as being Mexican (US Department of Commerce, n.d.).

Approximately 81.4% of the population reported speaking English "very well". 53.2% of the population reported that they speak Spanish. Only 35% of the population who indicated that they speak Spanish also reported that they do not speak English "very well". 15% of households reported that no one in their household speaks any English or do not speak it "very well" (US Department of Commerce, n.d.).

The 2018: ACS 5-Year Estimates Subject Tables (S1701) estimate 34.6% of the population is below the poverty level (US Department of Commerce, n.d.). The City of Deming/Luna County has been characterized for having very high unemployment rates compared to the rest of the state and nation. While the nation has been experiencing a current unemployment rate of about 4%, the unemployment rate for Luna County has recently ranged from 8% to 17% (New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions, 2020). The wide range of fluctuation is due to a significant seasonal work force.

As seen in the next section of this report, there are approximately 6,226 total housing units reported by the 2010 Census. This number appears to be somewhat inflated compared to the number of service connections that the City of Deming bills on a monthly basis. Billing reports show this to be closer to 4,500 units. Some of the difference may just be how this data is

reported on both sides. The City does not separate out multi-family residences in their billing procedures. If the City meters each apartment in a complex, those apartments get counted simply as residential. If the apartment complex has one meter for all apartments, the complex gets metered as commercial.

There are very few big water users on the City of Deming's distribution system. The biggest user would be Mizkan Foods who is a food canning and processing plant. The next big user would be the Deming Public Schools. These are the only two users currently that the City of Deming would consider "big users".

1.3.4 Housing

The 2010 US Census gives data on housing. The census webpage does give housing estimates on an annual basis; however, the estimates for housing fluctuate from year to year in an unrealistic manner. Therefore, the 2010 US Census data is used for this report (2010 US Census, 2010).

TABLE 4: U.S. CENSUS HOUSING DATA FOR THE CITY OF DEMING									
Subject	Number	Percent							
OCCUPANCY STATUS									
Total housing units	6,226	100.0							
Occupied housing units	5,582	89.7							
Vacant housing units	644	10.3							

QT-H1-Geography-Deming city, NewMexico: 2010 Census Summary File 1

1.3.5 Temperature and Precipitation

The climate in Deming is characterized by large ranges in annual temperature, with low humidity and a high evaporation rate (Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2018). Table 5, below, shows the annual average max temperature to be 76.5°F, while the annual average minimum temperatures to be 44.0°F. The table also shows the annual average precipitation to be 8.33 inches (Western Regional Climate Center, n.d.); most precipitation occurs during heavy thunderstorms from July through September (Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2018).

	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Annual
Average Max. Temperature (F)	56.80	61.70	68.70	76.90	85.30	94.90	95.00	92.50	86.10	77.80	65.30	57.20	76.50
Average Min. Temperature (F)	25.60	28.70	34.20	40.90	49.30	59.10	65.80	63.50	56.90	44.60	33.30	26.60	44.00
Average Total Precipitation (in.)	0.55	0.37	0.29	0.13	0.14	0.29	1.72	1.56	1.24	0.79	0.47	0.77	8.33
Average Total SnowFall (in.)	1.40	0.70	0.20	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.10	0.40	1.00	3.80

TABLE 5: WRCC TEMPERATURE AND PRECIPITATION DATA FOR THE CITY OF DEMING

Period of Record : 05/01/1920 to 06/10/2016 Station ID: DEMING MUNIAP, NEW MEXICO (292440)

Source: https://wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?nm2440

Table 5, above, utilizes all data recorded from weather station 292440 for a period between May 1st, 1920 to June 10th, 2016; however, significant data gaps exist. Figure 9, below, shows a graph of the annual precipitation but only includes a time period for years 2001 to 2019. There are several years of data missing for years prior to 2001. From the figure below one can see that annual precipitation for the past 19 years ranged from a low of approximately 4 inches of precipitation in 2012 to a high of 14 inches of precipitation in 2006. From 2001 through 2013 the City of Deming has experienced some significant shifts in precipitation from year to year. 2013 through 2019, the City's precipitation amounts seem to have been a little more consistent with the average annual rainfall of about 9 inches per year, maybe even slightly more.



FIGURE 9: GRAPH SHOWING ANNUAL PRECIPITATION FOR THE CITY OF DEMING 2001-2019.

Figure 10, on the next page, shows a hydrograph depicting average daily precipitation. Like Table 5 above, this average comes from all available data collected between May 1st, 1920 to June 10th, 2016. There are significant data gaps within the data set; however, this is the best available data found. The hydrograph shows that most of the precipitation experienced by the City of Deming occurs between June and October. This coincides with the summer monsoons mentioned previously in this section. The monsoons are associated with high temperatures, usually averaging between 95°F and 105°F, and high evaporation rates. Much of this precipitation is lost to evaporation.



2016.

1.3.6 Regional Water Plan

The City of Deming is in New Mexico's Region 4 – Southwest New Mexico Water Region. The Interstate Stream Commission (ISC) published a Southwest New Mexico Water Region Plan in 2017 (New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission, 2017). Much of the regional water plan focuses on places north of Deming; however, one component addressed under conservation is countywide GPCD goals. The City of Deming includes approximately half of Luna County's population.

The City of Deming is focusing on short-term conservation efforts in this initial plan but does have a goal to reduce residential GPCD and nonrevenue water. The City of Deming's system total GPCD is just under 300 GPCD. The regional water plan suggests that a county with a GPCD between 200 to 300 should try to reach a future goal of 150 GPCD. As previously

mentioned, the City has a goal to reduce residential GPCD, which will contribute to reducing systemwide GPCD. Future WCP goals may specifically target systemwide GPCD.

The regional water plan also promotes the use of the AWWA Water Audit software and NMOSE's GPCD Calculator. The City of Deming has incorporated those two tools into our future water conservation efforts by memorializing annual water audits using those tools as part of this WCP.

Another major component of the regional water plan is the use of reuse water. Many of the more recent projects that the City of Deming has pursued involve improvements to their reuse efforts and expanding the use of the reuse water. One example, the City has recently extended the city's reuse water lines to several parks throughout the city with plans to use reuse water for irrigation purposes in those parks. This WCP incorporates the City's desire to continue improving our reuse water operations through incorporating best management practices related to reuse water and tying them to the goals of the WCP.

The Public Works Director has been and will continue to be an active participant in the State's regional water planning processes. The City of Deming has taken active rolls in various regional processes and activities. Another issue discussed in the regional water plan is the importance to use Central Arizona Project water. An entity was created from regional water user organizations to spearhead the efforts to utilize 14,000 AFY of water authorized under the Arizona Water Settlement Act. The City of Deming has volunteered to be the entity's fiscal agent. This demonstrates the City of Deming's willingness and seriousness to engage in regional water planning efforts.

1.3.7 Other Local Conditions

This section tends to be reserved for water right information, for which has already been discussed in the water supply section. It is important to mention that the City of Deming works closely with the NMOSE to ensure the City's water rights remain in good standing. Failure to maintain a good standing status with the NMOSE jeopardizes the City's access to potential State grants and loans. This entails the City to comply with the conditions of approval associated with each of the permits approved by the NMOSE, such as submitting meter readings, filing Proof of Beneficial Use, ensuring well records are submitted when drilling new wells, submitting annual Block System filings, and requesting extensions of times when conditions of permits will not be met by the time granted by the NMOSE. In addition to NMOSE permitting conditions, the City of Deming must also be diligent at filing proper filings with other state and federal agencies related to water, such as discharge permit filings and water conservation fee assessments to the appropriate state and/or federal agencies.

In addition to groundwater supply, the City of Deming has been actively pursuing the use of reuse water treated at our wastewater plant. For more than 20-years the City has been treating wastewater to appropriate environmentally safe levels to reuse the water to irrigate landscape such as the municipal golf course. The City has recently extended our purple pipes to various parks within the City and soon plan to start irrigating those parks with reuse water. The City has also used the reuse water to irrigate non-consumptive use crops at City farms. In the early 2000's the City of Deming contracted with a local power plant to supply up to a million gallons of reuse water per day for cooling purposes for their gas turbine generators. The City continues to improve the wastewater treatment plant reuse water to higher standards to hopefully one day be to a level that could be safe for consumption. More information on the City's wastewater system and reuse plans can be seen in the City's 40-year Water Plan which is Appendix C of this document (Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc., 2018).

One current project that the City has taken on is the construction of a recreational lake located next to the City's amphitheater on the East side of town. The lake was recently filled with groundwater and a variety of fish species were introduced. Although there was some initial concern from the public about the use of the groundwater to fill the reservoir, there has been a tremendous amount of interest from residents in the project indicated by the number of residents seen on a daily basis fishing at the lake.



The concern of utilizing groundwater to fill the lake is only temporary. The City's intention of this lake is to use reuse water from the wastewater treatment plant to keep the lake full. The City still has some operational hurdles to get over to get the treated wastewater to acceptable safe levels for fish and consumption standards. In the long run, the lake is envisioned to be a storage tank for reuse water where additional treatment (aeration) before can occur returning the wastewater to treatment plant for additional treatment.

FIGURE 11: CITY OF DEMING RECREATIONAL LAKE

The City has also adopted several water conservation ordinances to minimize wasteful water practices which are listed below. These ordinances also address the use of water efficient fixtures and appliances, low water use landscaping, and efficient irrigation practices.

9-4-2: WATER METERS:

- A. Property Of City: All water meters installed by the public works department shall remain at all times the property of the city, and shall be maintained and repaired when rendered unserviceable through fair wear and tear, and renewed by the public works department; provided, that where repair or adjustment of any meter is rendered necessary by the act, neglect or carelessness of the owner or occupant of the premises, any expense caused to the department thereby shall be charged against and collected from the owner of the premises.
- B. Removal For Nonpayment; Reinstallation Fee: In the event that any water meter of the city is removed for nonpayment or delinquent water charges, the owner or occupant of the premises shall pay for the reinstallation of the water meter a minimum charge of one hundred dollars (\$100.00) prior to the installation thereof.
- C. Properties Under Separate Ownership: No one service shall provide water to properties under separate ownership.
- D. Bypass Restricted: No bypass or connection between the meter and the main shall be made, maintained, or permitted.
- E. Examination and Testing:
 - 1. Customer Request Test; Deposit: Any customer shall have the right to request that the meter through which water is being furnished be examined and tested by the public works department with the following amounts charged for the various sizes:
 - a. For testing a five-eighths inch (5/8") meter, ten dollars (\$10.00).
 - b. For testing a one-inch (1") meter, twenty dollars (\$20.00).
 - 2. Registering Overage: If on such an examination and test the meter shall be found to register over three percent (3%) more water than actually passes through it, another meter will be substituted therefor, and the fee charged in the application for a test shall be repaid to the person making the application.

- F. Failure to Register Correctly: Wherever a meter gets out of order and fails to register correctly, the consumer shall be charged with an average daily consumption as shown by the meter when in good working order and registering correctly.
- G. City Replacement of Meters: The city of Deming retains unto itself the right to replace any water meter, at any time, for any reason, at its sole discretion. (Ord. 1190, 7-13-2009)

9-4-3: WATER USER PROVISIONS:

- A. Approved Shutoff: Consumers shall install an approved shutoff inside the property line, at a location accessible in case of emergency.
- B. Check Valve: If in the judgment of the public works director, the placing of an approved check valve on the property side of a water meter of any consumer is considered necessary for the safety of the water system, such approved check valve shall be immediately installed, at the expense of the consumer, after due notice in writing shall have been given to the consumer by the public works director.
- C. Cross Connections: Water hookups to properties with private wells or other potential hazardous cross connections will not be allowed until the city plumbing inspector has certified that there exists a physical separation between the city water system and the hazard.
- D. Authority to Turn Water On or Off: It shall be unlawful for any person or entity, other than the authorized agents or employees of the public works department, to turn on or turn off water service. Water turned off by the city for delinquent bills, leaks or other reasons cannot be turned back on until the reason for turn off has been corrected and the turn on authorized by the public works department. If an unauthorized turn on is made, the meter and/or service will be removed, and all applicable penalties will be charged against the user.
- E. Water Turn Off for Repairs: The public works director may at any time order the water cut off from any premises connected with the waterworks system, without notice, for repairs, extensions, or other necessary purposes.
- F. Plumber Requirements: Whenever plumbers or other persons connecting service pipe to the property side of a meter may use the water for testing the pipes, they shall at all times shut off the water from unoccupied premises before leaving same, and leave meter box properly installed to full depth in the ground or sidewalk, with cover securely fastened to top of and square with top of box.
- G. Consumer Supplying Water To Others: It shall be unlawful for any consumer to supply water to any person other than to the occupant of the premises of said consumer, or to knowingly permit leaks or wastage of water, or for any person to tap, open or connect with any water main or pipe which forms a part of the waterworks system of the city. (Ord. 1190, 7-13-2009)

9-4-7: OUTDOOR WATER CONSERVATION:

A. Definition: For purposes of this section "irrigation" means the watering of turf, trees, shrubs, flowers, ornamental grasses, plants, native plant material or other vegetation through overhead spray heads, handheld hose, bubblers, drip emitters or other similar devices for delivering water.

The definitions contained in section $\underline{12-2-1}$ of this code are incorporated into this section by reference.

- B. Water Conservation Compliance: No person who uses water from the city of Deming water supply system shall make, cause, use or permit the use of water received from the city water supply system for residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, institutional, governmental or any other purposes in a manner contrary to any of the provisions of this section.
- C. Turf and Landscape Irrigation: The following mandatory water conservation measures shall apply to all customers of, or persons that use or receive water from the city water supply system:
 - All outdoor irrigation of turf, trees, shrubs, flowers, ornamental grasses, plants, native plant material or other vegetation on residential, industrial and commercial property with even numbered addresses may irrigate on Mondays, Wednesdays, and Fridays; and for odd numbered addresses, such vegetation may be irrigated only on Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Saturdays; and on Sundays, properties with either odd or even addresses may irrigate. Provisions of this subsection shall apply during the entire calendar year.
 - From April 1 through September 30 of each calendar year all outdoor irrigation of turf and other vegetation is prohibited between the hours of ten o'clock (10:00) A.M. and six o'clock (6:00) P.M.
 - 3. The city planning and zoning commission shall have the authority to review variance requests upon written application of any person and shall make a recommendation to the city council who shall make the final decision.
- D. Nonessential Water Use Restrictions: The following restrictions shall apply to all customers of, or persons who use or receive water from the city of Deming water supply system:
 - The washing of houses, or automobiles, trucks, trailers, recreational vehicles, boats, airplanes or any other type of mobile equipment shall be done only with a handheld bucket or pail, or a handheld hose equipped with a shutoff nozzle that completely shuts off the flow of water. This restriction does not apply to commercial car washes or a commercial service station. When used in this section, "bucket" or "pail" means a container holding five (5) gallons or less.
 - 2. After the effective date hereof, no building permit for a commercial car wash or service station shall be issued until the applicant for such permit provides to the city building inspector a certification that the car wash will use no more than fifty (50) gallons of water per vehicle washed or integrate a water reclamation system. Existing commercial car wash establishments that upgrade their facilities shall upgrade to the extent that the car wash will

use no more than fifty (50) gallons of water per vehicle washed or an integrated water reclamation system.

- E. Wasting Water Prohibited: The following uses of water are considered wasting water and are prohibited:
 - 1. Irrigating any vegetation, or otherwise using water from the city of Deming water supply system to permit or cause water to pond, or to flow, spray or otherwise move or be discharged from the premises of any person who receives water from the city of Deming to or upon any street, alley, gutter, ditch, drain or other public right of way.
 - 2. Failing to repair a leak in a system that delivers or discharges water within ten (10) working days of discovering or being informed of such leak.
 - 3. Washing of sidewalks, streets, driveways, parking lots, service station aprons, exteriors of homes or apartments, commercial or industrial buildings, government or institutional buildings, or any other impervious outdoor surface with a hose, or a pressure washer except in emergencies, or in construction preparation, or where such cleaning is mandated by federal, state or local law.
 - 4. In this section a "swimming pool" means any portable or permanent structure containing water twenty-four inches (24") in depth and containing one thousand one hundred twenty-two (1,122) gallons of water and intended for recreational purposes. All swimming pools constructed after the effective date hereof must be equipped with filtration, pumping and recirculation systems. It is unlawful to drain swimming pools into the street, alley, gutter, ditch, drain or any other public right of way. Swimming pools may be drained into the sanitary sewer system.
 - 5. The serving of drinking water in restaurants except upon request of the customer, excluding establishments that serve beer and alcohol.
- F. Variances and Permits: The following procedure shall apply for those persons seeking a variance from the provisions of this section:
 - 1. The planning and zoning commission shall review hardship or special cases of persons, groups, organizations, or corporations who cannot fully comply with the provisions of this section. The planning and zoning commission shall review written applications from persons, groups, organizations, and corporations who claim some hardship or special circumstances. The planning and zoning commission shall recommend approval to the city council of an application only for reasons of economic hardship or medical hardship, or if there is a legitimate public health or safety concern. An "economic hardship" is defined as a threat to an individual's or business' primary source of income. A "medical hardship" is defined as a situation where it is determined that a person's ill health or medical condition requires a dependency upon others to irrigate or water. Under no circumstances shall inconvenience or the potential for damages to landscaping be considered an economic hardship, which justifies a variance. The decision of the city council is final and binding. The prescribed fee

for such variance applications shall be twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) or as otherwise prescribed by the city council.

- A variance or permit granted by the city council expires under its own terms and conditions, but in no case shall a variance be granted, or a permit issued for a period greater than three (3) years. Any person issued a variance or permit shall provide proof of such variance or permit upon demand of any person authorized to enforce this section.
- G. Exceptions to Enforcement: The following shall constitute exceptions from compliance with the provisions of this section:
 - 1. The water is the result of natural events such as rain or snow.
 - 2. The flow of water is the result of temporary failures or malfunctions of the water system.
 - 3. The flow of water is the result of water used for firefighting purposes including the inspection and pressure testing of fire hydrants or the use of water for firefighting training activities.
 - 4. The use of water is required for the control of dust or the compaction of soil as may be required by law.
 - 5. The water is used to wash down areas where flammable or otherwise hazardous substances have been spilled and creates a dangerous situation.
 - 6. The water is used to prevent or abate public health, safety, or accident hazards when alternate methods are not available.
 - 7. The water is used for routine inspection or maintenance of the water supply system.
 - 8. The water is used to facilitate construction within public rights of way in accordance with the requirements of the city and good construction practices.
 - 9. The use of water is permitted under the terms of a variance or permit granted by the city council.
 - 10. The water is used for street sweeping, sewer maintenance or other established utility and public works practices.
 - 11. Watering contrary to the provisions of subsection C of this section may be permissible for one day only where application of chemicals requires immediate watering to preserve an existing lawn. In cases of commercial application, a receipt from a commercial lawn treatment company indicating the date of treatment, the address of the property treated, the name and address of the commercial contractor and the chemical treatment required shall constitute evidence that the owner or person responsible for the property is entitled to this exception. Where treatment with a noncommercial application of chemicals requires

immediate watering to preserve an existing lawn, the owner or person responsible for the property must contact the city code enforcement officer prior to application of the chemicals and provide evidence satisfactory to the code enforcement officer for approval of this exception.

- 12. Outdoor irrigation necessary for the establishment of newly seeded or sodded turf grass and landscaping in new residential and nonresidential developments.
- H. Water Emergency, Restriction Of Water Use: The city council, on the advice of the city administrator and the director of public works, may declare a water emergency in case of severe drought, any condition that interrupts the ability of the city to supply water such as loss of a major water transmission line, loss of or damage to the water treatment facility, or extended periods of high consumer demand, or where restriction on the use of water is necessary because of natural disaster, or war, or to protect the public health, safety and welfare, or to preserve the water supply. Where a water emergency is declared, the city council may restrict or prohibit, by resolution, any or all of the following uses, or any uses not specified, of water from the city water system:
 - 1. Irrigation of lawns, trees, shrubs, or any other outdoor vegetation.
 - 2. The washing of all motor vehicles and other equipment, except in commercial car wash facilities.
 - 3. The filling or refilling of, or addition of water to swimming pools.
 - 4. The issuance or granting of any variances to the provisions of this section.
 - 5. The operation of any ornamental fountain or other similar structure.
 - 6. Any other use deemed appropriate by the city council in the circumstances.
- I. Penalty: Any person violating any of the provisions of this section, shall be punished as provided in section <u>1-4-1</u> of this code, and a separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. (Ord. 1190, 7-13-2009)

11-1-5: INDOOR WATER CONSERVATION:

The following regulations shall apply to promote indoor water conservation:

- A. Definition: "Water conservation" means any beneficial reduction in water use or water loss.
- B. Indoor Plumbing Fixtures:
 - 1. All new residential buildings and all new nonresidential buildings, including all additions and renovations to existing residential and nonresidential buildings that involve either the

installation of new toilets or the replacement of existing toilets, shall install low flush toilets which use no more than 2.0 gallons per flush (gpf).

- 2. All new residential buildings and all new nonresidential buildings, including all additions and renovations to existing residential and nonresidential buildings that involve either the installation of new showerheads or the replacement of existing showerheads, shall install showerheads with a maximum flow rate that does not exceed 2.5 gallons per minute (gpm).
- 3. All new residential buildings and all new nonresidential buildings, including all additions and renovations to existing residential and nonresidential buildings that involve either the installation of new faucets or the replacement of existing faucets, shall install faucets with a maximum flow rate that does not exceed 1.5 gallons per minute (gpm).
- C. Indoor Appliances:
 - 1. It is recommended, but not mandatory that all new residential buildings and all new nonresidential buildings, including all additions and renovations to existing residential and nonresidential buildings that involve either the installation of new dishwashers or the replacement of existing dishwashers, to install low water use dishwashers which require no more than thirteen (13) gallons of water in the regular cycle and have a cycle adjustment that reduces the water used for small loads.
 - 2. It is recommended, but not mandatory that all new residential buildings and all new nonresidential buildings, including all additions and renovations to existing residential and nonresidential buildings that involve either the installation of new clothes washing machines or the replacement of existing clothes washing machines, to install low water use clothes washing machines which require no more than forty three (43) gallons of water in the regular cycle and no more than fifty three (53) gallons of water in the permanent press cycle, and have a cycle or water level adjustment that reduces the water used for small loads.
 - 3. It is recommended, but not mandatory that all new residential buildings and all new nonresidential buildings, to install a hot water recirculation system approved by Underwriters Laboratories or other similar, nationally accepted approval agency. Alternatively, a "demand water heater" system, installed centrally or at the point of use, may be used if such system is approved by Underwriters Laboratories, or other similar, nationally accepted approval agency.
- D. Outdoor Appliances:
 - 1. It is recommended, but not mandatory that all new residential buildings and all new nonresidential buildings, including all additions and renovations to existing residential and nonresidential buildings that involve either the installation of new evaporative coolers or the replacement of existing evaporative coolers, to install manufactured coolers with certified water conservative features.

E. Penalty: Any person violating any of the provisions of this section, shall be punished as provided in section <u>1-4-1</u> of this code, and a separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. (Ord. 1087, 6-14-2004)

11-1-6: WATER CONSERVATION; USE OF GRAY WATER:

The following regulations shall apply to the use of gray water for residential landscape purposes:

A. Definitions:

GRAY WATER: Untreated household wastewater that has not come in contact with toilet waste and includes wastewater from bathtubs, showers, washbasins, clothes washing machines and laundry tubs, but does not include wastewater from kitchen sinks or dishwashers or laundry water from the washing of material soiled with human excreta, such as diapers.

- B. Use of Gray Water for Residential Landscape Purposes:
 - 1. Under sections 74-6-2 and 74-6-4, New Mexico Statutes Annotated 1978, as amended, a resident, without a permit from the New Mexico environmental department, may apply less than two hundred fifty (250) gallons per day of private residential gray water originating from his/her residence for the resident's household gardening, composting or landscape irrigation if:
 - a. A constructed gray water distribution system provides for overflow into the sewage collection or on-site wastewater treatment and disposal system;
 - b. A gray water storage tank is covered to restrict access and to eliminate habitat for mosquitoes or other vectors;
 - c. A gray water system is sited outside of a floodway;
 - d. Gray water is vertically separated at least five feet (5') above the ground water table. Gray water shall not be applied within one hundred feet (100') of a domestic well or within two hundred feet (200') of a public water well;
 - e. Gray water pressure piping is clearly identified as a nonpotable water conduit;
 - f. Gray water is used on the site where it is generated and does not run off the property lines;
 - g. Gray water is applied in a manner that minimizes the potential for contact with people or domestic pets. Gray water application methods that reduce contact include drip irrigation, shallow piping systems, or mulch trenches;

- h. Ponding of gray water is prohibited and application of gray water must be managed to minimize standing water and to prevent saturation of the soil;
- i. Gray water is not sprayed;
- j. Gray water is not discharged to a watercourse. Discharge of gray water must be at least one hundred feet (100') from streams or lakes or twenty-five feet (25'), plus the depth of the arroyo, from an arroyo; and
- k. Gray water use within municipalities or counties complies with all applicable municipal or county ordinances enacted pursuant to chapter 3, article 53, New Mexico Statutes Annotated 1978.
- 2. A gray water system that is designed to discharge more than two hundred fifty (250) gallons per day from a private residence requires a permit from the New Mexico environment department.
- 3. Notwithstanding that a permit from the New Mexico environment department is not required in order to apply less than two hundred fifty (250) gallons per day of private water, any resident who wishes to apply less than two hundred fifty (250) gallons per day of private residential gray water, and who wishes to construct, install, or alter, or cause to be constructed, installed or altered any gray water system, shall first obtain a plumbing permit, from the construction industries division of the regulation and licensing department of the state of New Mexico, and such gray water system shall comply with all standards for gray water systems set out in appendix G of the uniform plumbing code, 1997 edition as adopted by the city of Deming, or such later editions, as may be adopted, from time to time, by the city of Deming. The installation of a gray water system shall be done or supervised by a licensed plumber, and such licensed plumber shall certify that such installation complies with the standards of the uniform building code.
- C. Penalty: Any person violating any of the provisions of this section, shall be punished as provided in section <u>1-4-1</u> of this code, and a separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. (Ord. 1087, 6-14-2004)

12-18-2: LANDSCAPE STANDARDS:

A. Purpose and Intent: These standards are intended to be applied throughout the city as specified in the subsections that follow. These standards are provided for the general health and welfare of the citizens of Deming through the conservation of water, reduction of air pollution, and public safety. The intent is to achieve a high quality of appearance, to assure design compatibility, to promote character and form, to promote water conservation, and to enhance the overall value of development to the community.

The conservation of water is deemed to be a key purpose to be achieved through the application of these landscape standards. The standards set out in this section are designed to encourage

the preservation of desirable native vegetation and the use of low water use and drought tolerant plant material.

- C. General Design Standards:
 - 1. Landscape Plans:
 - b. Land Devoted To Plant Material: The landscape plan shall clearly set out the area of a lot or block or other division of land that will be devoted to plant material, such as turf, that is not a low water use/drought tolerant plant according to the "Low Water Use/Drought Tolerant Plant List", published by the Arizona department of water resources-Tucson active management area (March 2002, or any later edition), and the plants listed for New Mexico climate area 3-south, in the publication entitled "The Enchanted Xeriscape" available from the office of the state engineer, New Mexico (no date specified, but most recent edition is to be used).
 - 2. Landscaping:
 - a. Water Conservation: All landscape plant material shall be low water use and drought tolerant except as specified in subsections D2, D3 and E2 of this section. The following documents will be used by the city of Deming as accepted guidelines for low water use/drought tolerant plants:
 - (1) "Low Water Use/Drought Tolerant Plant List", Arizona department of water resources-Tucson active management area, (March 2002 or any later editions).
 - (2) "The Enchanted Xeriscape, A Guide to Water-Wise Landscaping In New Mexico", office of the state engineer (no date specified, but most recent edition at time of application of the provisions in this section is to be used).
 - b. Prohibited Plants: The following plants are prohibited in all developments in the city of Deming:
 - (1) European olive trees, all fruiting varieties.
 - (2) Fruitless mulberry trees.
 - (3) Salt cedar.
 - (4) Any plant listed on the "New Mexico Noxious Weed List" (September 20, 1999, as amended from time to time), published by the New Mexico department of agriculture.

- 3. Turf: Turf areas are generally prohibited in public street medians and boulevards. Turf is prohibited in street landscape borders (subsections D5, E4 and F3 of this section), and in any required interior landscape border (subsections D6, E5 and F4 of this section). Turf is prohibited as a landscape material in all new commercial and industrial developments and in any commercial or industrial development where there is proposed an addition of twenty five percent (25%) or more in terms of gross floor area of buildings or structures, and/or building perimeter, including additions that increase the total number of required parking spaces by twenty five percent (25%) or more, either with a single addition or cumulative additions subsequent to the effective date hereof.
- 4. Irrigation:
 - a. Dependent upon the size and complexity of the proposed project and its potential impact on neighboring properties, an irrigation plan may be required along with any landscape plan, required in subsection C1 of this section. The irrigation plan may include, but shall not be limited to, such matters as:
 - (1) Type, size, and location of piping;
 - (2) Type, size, and location of irrigation heads;
 - (3) Type and location of backflow prevention devices, valves, and controllers;
 - (4) Source of irrigation water, whether potable or reclaimed; and
 - (5) Calculations demonstrating the matching of application rates with infiltration rates as required in subsection C4d of this section.
 - b. An automatic irrigation system is required for all planting areas.
 - c. All irrigation water shall be retained on site.
 - d. The design of irrigation systems and irrigation schedules shall attempt to match application rates with infiltration rates in order to minimize runoff and reduce evaporation.
 - e. Rain sensing and moisture sensing devices are encouraged.
- D. Landscape Design Standards for Single-Family and Two-family Dwelling Developments: All new single-family and/or two-family developments shall comply with the following standards:
 - 1. Plant Material: Each new single-family or two-family dwelling lot shall employ only low water use and drought tolerant plant material as specified in the guideline documents described in subsection C2a of this section.

- 2. Turf On Single- Or Two-Family Lot: Turf is permitted as a landscape material on any singlefamily or two-family lot, provided no more than fifty percent (50%) of the remaining lot area (excluding concreted areas), to a maximum of three thousand (3,000) square feet is planted in turf.
- 3. Turf On Common Areas: Where a common area (clubhouse, swimming pool or other recreational activities) is provided for use of all residents in a plan of subdivision, a maximum of fifteen percent (15%) of the area actually devoted to the common area may be in turf.
- 4. Purchaser Notification Of Landscape Requirements: The landscape plans and grading information specified in subsections C1a, C1b, and C1c of this section, and the irrigation plan specified in subsection C4 of this section are not required for individual lots in single-family and two-family developments; however, the owner or subdivider of land proposed for subdivision shall be required to include in any agreement of purchase and sale for any lot in the subdivision, a clause notifying the purchaser of the landscaping requirements of subsections D1 and D2 of this section.
- 5. Street Landscape Borders: Street landscape borders are required for all new subdivisions or for any replat of existing subdivisions. The following provisions shall apply:
 - a. Street landscape borders are required adjacent to urban principal arterial streets, or urban minor arterial streets or urban collector streets, as designated by the city of Deming for all single-family and/or two-family developments in all new plans of subdivision, and in existing plans of subdivision, where through an amendment to the subdivision plan and/or the zoning ordinance there is an increase in the number of dwelling units of twenty five percent (25%) or more, either with a single increase or a cumulative increase subsequent to the effective date hereof.
 - b. The street landscape border minimum width is ten feet (10') (see figure 2 of this section). The street landscape border is to be located on site and measured from the street property line. Covered parking canopies or other structural canopies shall not overhang into the street landscape border.
 - Within the street landscape border, deciduous or evergreen shade trees shall be provided in number equal to or greater than an average of one shade tree per fifty (50) lineal feet, on center, of the site frontage length along the street. See figure 2 of this section.
 - d. All plant material shall be low water use and drought tolerant and such material shall be taken from the guideline documents listed in subsection C2a of this section.
 - e. All shade trees shall be six (6) to eight feet (8') in height with a minimum trunk caliper of one inch (1"). Clustering of trees is allowed. Figure 2 of this section illustrates one possible clustering alternative.

- f. A minimum of two (2) shrubs per each required shade tree is recommended in the street landscape border.
- g. The street landscape border area shall contain a two-inch (2") layer of low water use and drought tolerant ground cover, or rock mulch, or both.
- h. Existing drought tolerant material within the street landscape border area may be used to fulfill the landscape requirements in accordance with the provisions of subsection C6 of this section.
- i. Street landscape borders shall be irrigated with drip irrigation only.
- 6. Interior Landscape Border: An interior landscape border may be required by the city along the outer perimeter of a subdivision. The width of such area shall be such that it maintains compatibility with existing adjacent area setbacks, and such that it provides adequate separation between different land uses. Where such an interior landscape border is required it shall comply with the requirements of subsections D5c through and including D5i of this section. Turf may be permitted in any interior landscape border.



FIGURE 12: MIMBRES RIVER. THE MIMBRES RIVER RUNS THROUGH DEMING; HOWEVER, IT ONLY FLOWS THROUGH DEMING FOR SHORT PERIODS OF TIME EVERY 2 OR 3 YEARS. THE MIMBRES RIVER IS THE MAIN SOURCE OF RECHARGE FOR THE MUWB.
2. Assessing City of Deming's Water Supplier Performance

2.1 Data Results and Analysis, American Water Works Association (AWWA) Water Loss Control Committee (WLCC) Free Water Audit Software© Reporting Worksheet

As described in New Mexico's Water Conservation Planning Guide for Public Water Suppliers, "A water audit provides a systematic method to organize water diversion data and track its path through the distribution system. A primary result of this analysis is "nonrevenue water," which is an estimation of water losses, theft, meter inaccuracies, and non-billed authorized consumption. The audit requires financial data to help value nonrevenue water." (New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, 2013). This section examines the results of the AWWA Water Audit performed for the City of Deming's 2019 calendar year. Table 6, below, shows the water balance sheet that summarizes the results of the AWWA Water Audit. Also note, all units of measurement in the water audit for water are in millions of gallons and the financial data is in US dollars.

		Table 6: AW	WA WATER AUDIT WAT	er Balance Table		
		AWWA Fre	ee Water Audit Software	: Water Balance	WAS v5.0	
				Americ: Copyright	an Water Works Association. © 2014, All Rights Reserved.	
	Wa	ater Audit Report for:	City of Deming / Water Department			
		Reporting Year:	2019	1/2019 - 12/2019		
		Data Validity Score:	59		1	
	Water Exported 0.000			Billed Water Exported		
			Billed Authorized Consumption	Billed Metered Consumption (water exported is removed) 845.629	Revenue Water	
Own Sources (Adiusted for known		Authorized Consumption	845.629	Billed Unmetered Consumption	845.629	
errors)		1,073.494		Unbilled Authorized Consumption	Unbilled Metered Consumption 211.649	Non-Revenue Water (NRW)
1,297.286			227.865	Unbilled Unmetered Consumption 16.216		
	Water Supplied		Apparent Losses	Unauthorized Consumption 3.243	451.657	
	1,297.286		38.057	Customer Metering Inaccuracies 32.699		
		Water Losses		Systematic Data Handling Errors 2.114		
Water Imported		223.792		Leakage on Transmission and/or Distribution Mains		
0.000			Real Losses 185.735	Not broken down Leakage and Overflows at Utility's Storage Tanks		
				Not broken down Leakage on Service Connections Not broken down		

CITY OF DEMING

2.1.1 Performance Indicators

a) Financial

The annual cost of apparent losses is \$7,785. Relative to the budget, this number is quite low; however, data used to determine this value has a high level of uncertainty. The City recently installed new meters to all users and installed a new automated meter read (AMR) system to allow for a higher level of accuracy. Previously the meters had to be manually read every month. Even though the City has deployed new technology to improve accuracy, the City continues to explore the functionality of the system to maximize the benefits that potentially could be created.

Also, the City currently does not have a consistent meter testing and replacement plan in place. The City's current practice involves only testing meters when they are suspect or if a water user requests for the meter to be tested. The lack of meter testing and meter replacement will be given attention later in this document.

The annual cost of real losses is estimated to be \$55,535. The water audit indicates that nonrevenue water accounts for 34.8% of total supplied water. Nearly half of this nonrevenue water is accounted for through metered city use, specifically the irrigation of city parks. The other half of this nonrevenue water is estimated with many unknown variables. The focus of this water conservation plan is to help identify and minimize these losses.

b) Operational Efficiency

The apparent losses per service connection per day is estimated to be 18.96 gallons per connection per day. This is derived from estimated percentages inputted for unauthorized consumption, customer metering inaccuracies, and systematic data handling errors. Percentages were defaulted in the program to calculate the inaccuracies for the items mentioned in the previous sentence: 0.25%, 3.0%, and 0.25%, respectively. The 0.25% values were defaulted due to insufficient data to determine a real value, and the 3.0% value was entered as a low guestimate due to recently installed new residential meters.

As noted in the Financial section, the City has recently installed new meters to all residential users and has installed an AMR system that eliminates the need for manual meter reads. This new technology is aimed at reducing meter read error and to gain other benefits such as better leak detection technologies. City personnel are still learning

about all the capabilities of this new system and hope that it can be used to help reduce apparent losses.

The City lacks procedures to document nonrevenue water. The City does document meter readings for much of the City's non-billed uses but lacks written procedures for all uses. The City knows that not all the City's non-billed uses are being reported which include some City buildings and fire hydrant uses. This makes it difficult to estimate water losses and to distinguish between apparent losses and real losses.

2.1.2 Data Validity Score

The overall DVS for the City of Deming is a 59 out of 100. This number seems to be very low; however, the City was objective and fair when grading each of the topics within the water audit. The grading ranged from a low of 2 to a high of 10. The City seems to have some good tools but lack procedure and documentation to ensure consistent and valid data collection.

"Volume from own sources" received a grade of 5. All the City's source water is metered. The City lacks a policy and procedure for testing and replacing supply meters on a consistent basis.

"Master Meter error adjustment" received a grade of 2. Meter readings are manually collected on paper monthly. Tank level elevations are monitored but not used to calculate volume from own sources. This is an area where the City might need to focus on to improve their DVS. A value -2% was used for the error adjustment and was an estimate based off the age of the meters.

"Billed Metered" received a grade of 7. All the City's billed usages are metered, and the City has recently installed an AMR system. The City lacks a meter testing and replacement plan, which prevents them from scoring higher than a 7 for this topic.

"Unbilled Metered" received a score of 5. Written policy and procedure for unbilled metered water does not exist. Most of the unbilled metered water is used on City parks and accurate manual readings are taken monthly. Other unbilled metered uses, such as for some municipal buildings, are not accounted for in the billing reports. Staff believe that these meters are being read and recorded, but not reported. A procedure should be written for how these accounts should be entered into the accounting system and included in the monthly billing reports.

"Unbilled Unmetered" received a score of 3. Unbilled consumption is pretty much a mystery. The City knows that losses to fire hydrants are not measured and accounted for, but as to what other losses might be is unknown. Losses due to known leaks are not estimated and reported. Lack of written policy and procedures for documenting unbilled unmetered water is the reason for such a low score.

"Unauthorized Consumption" received a score of 2. The default percentage of 0.25% was used for this category. A message indicates that if the default percentage is used, a default grade of 5 is given. This default grade of 5 was downgraded to a 2 because unauthorized consumption is somewhat of a mystery to the City of Deming. On occasion city personnel do discover instances where someone bypasses a meter or removes a meter. Appropriate actions are taken in accordance with city code to resolve the situation.

"Customer Metering Inaccuracies" received a score of 5. The City's lack of a meter testing and replacement policy and procedure prevents the City from being able to score this at anything above a 5.

"Systematic Data Handling Errors" received a score of 7. The City's accounting system generates reports to assist on identifying hi and low usage accounts. City staff should be reviewing these reports prior to running the billing process and correct any errors discovered. There were instances while reviewing data for the GPCD calculator that indicate that these reports might not be being looked at consistently. The policies and procedures are also not reviewed biannually.

"Length of Mains" received a grade of 4. The City does have a GIS shapefile that was created several years ago by a contractor. Although the City feels that the data in the shapefile is accurate, staff states that the shapefile has not been updated with recent changes. There is also a lack of written policy and procedures for how to document additions and deletions of water mains.

"Number of Active and Inactive Service Connections" received a grade of 5. City staff is confident with the accounting systems accounting of active service connections but lacks a report that indicates the total number of service connections and the number of inactive service connections. A value of 5500 total service connections has been entered. Data entered into the GPCD Calculator suggested that there are at least 4500 residential connections. 1000 connections were added to this to account for commercial and inactive accounts as an estimate. The City utility billing records were used to identify the number of active accounts. The billing records do not list inactive accounts. City staff was unsure for how to determine the number of inactive accounts. The 1000 connections added includes the number of active commercial connections listed in the billing (approximately 500 commercial connections) and an estimated 500 inactive connections. This is an area that the City will need to improve.

"Average Operating Pressure" received a grade of 3. City personnel could not answer yes to all the items listed to be graded as a 4. The City may need to look into how average system pressure is calculated and consider reviewing their current technology used to monitor system pressures.

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

"Total Annual Cost of Operating Water System" received a grade of 10. The City is confident in their financial management systems ability to record all pertinent water system operating costs. The City's financial statements are audited annually by an independent CPA.

"Customer Retail Unit Cost" received a grade of 9. A consistent and reliable rate structure is in place. Rate analyses are conducted routinely. The only reason city staff do not think this can be graded as a 10 is because someone knowledgeable in the M36 process does not review this. One other area that might need consideration is how the billing system categorizes uses. Currently there are only two major classes – residential and commercial. The customer retail unit cost seems to be too low. The City has recently implemented a rate increase that is not reflected in this audit.

"Variable Production Cost" received a grade of 5. Variable production cost is calculated by using power and chemical costs with no consideration of other potential costs as indicated by a grade of 6.

2.1.3 Priority Areas for Attention and Grading Matrix

The three priority areas for attention indicated in the AWWA Water Audit for the City of Deming include "Volume from Own Sources", "Unbilled Metered", and "Customer Metering Inaccuracies". Recommendations to improve these scores for each of these areas are listed below as given within the grading matrix of the water audit. Other recommendations are given in the grading matrix for the areas not listed as "priority areas" and will be considered later in the conservation plan.

Volume from Own Sources:

- a) Formalize annual meter accuracy testing for all source meters.
- b) Specify the frequency of testing.
- c) Complete the installation of meters on unmetered water production sources.
- d) Complete replacement of all obsolete/defective meters.

Unbilled Metered:

- *a)* Draft a new written policy regarding billing exemptions based upon consensus criteria allowing this occurrence.
- b) Assign resources to audit meter records and billing records to obtain census of unbilled metered accounts.
- *c)* Gradually include a greater number of these metered accounts to the routes for regular meter reading.

Customer Metering Inaccuracies:

- *a)* Standardize the procedures for meter recordkeeping within an electronic information system.
- b) Accelerate meter accuracy testing and meter replacements guided by testing results.

2.1.4 Loss Control Planning

Based on the results of the City of Deming's water audit DVS of 59, the Loss Control Planning section identifies the City of Deming as a Level III. This section helps identify what the City should be focusing on for improving conservation efforts. The following are the Functional Focus Areas identified in the water audit along with a description of what should be focused on for a Level III PWS.

- 1. Audit Data Collection: Establish/revise policies and procedures for data collection.
- 2. Short-Term Loss Control: Establish ongoing mechanisms for customer meter accuracy testing, active leakage control and infrastructure monitoring.
- 3. Long-Term Loss Control: Begin to assemble economic business case for long-term needs based upon improved data becoming available through the water audit process.
- 4. Target-Setting Establish long-term apparent and real loss reduction goals (+10-year horizon).
- 5. Benchmarking Preliminary comparisons can begin to rely upon the Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) for performance comparisons for real losses.

2.2 Data Results and Analysis, GPCD Calculator Table

2.2.1 Period of Study

The GPCD Calculator suggests that 7-years of data be inputted for this report and the Water Conservation Planning Guide suggests that 5-years of data be used for this section (Office of the State Engineer, 2013). After reviewing the City of Deming's available billing data, only four years of data appears to be complete. Although there appears to be some inaccuracies within some of the data, the data was entered as reported. The period of study for this report is for calendar years 2016 through 2019.

2.2.2 Average Size of Household

Table 7, below, shows data that was pulled from the US Census website giving 2010 household data for the City of Deming (2010 US Census, 2010). According to this data the average size of household for the City of Deming is estimated to be 2.56 people.

		MINO.	
US Census Table	Description		INPUT
DP-1	Profile of General Population and Housing Characteristics	Census Year	2010
Subject			
Relationship	In group quarters	Total	549
Housing Occupancy	Total housing units	Total	6,226
	Occupied housing units		5,582
	Vacant housing units		644
Households by Type	Average household size	Total	2.56

TABLE 7: U.S. CENSUS HOUSING VACANCY DATE - CITY OF DEMING

Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number of Housing Units

Vacancy Rate %	10.3%

2.2.3 Annual Single-Family Residential (SFR) Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD)

The City of Deming's billing system classifies user accounts as either residential or commercial. For the purposes of the WCP, residential usage will be referred to either as residential or SFR. The annual SFR GPCD is calculated to be 108.41 GPCD for the City of Deming in 2019. The GPCD calculator also indicates that the SFR GPCD has been declining each year from 2016 to 2019 as seen in Table 8, below.

P	TABLE 8: ANNUAL SFR GPCD AS PRESENTED IN NMOSE CALCULATOR							
	ANNU	AL SFR GPCD						
	2019	108.41						
	2018	111.61						
	2017	116.54						
	2016	129.94						

2.2.4 Monthly SFR GPCD

The Monthly SFR GPCD can be seen in Table 9 below.

TABLE 9: MONTHLY SFR GPCD AS PRESENTED IN NMOSE CALCULATOR - CITY OF DEMING 2016-2019

	SFR GPCD CALCULATION (Monthly)													
Year	JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC													
2019	61.80	81.76	68.17	102.13	130.93	162.99	158.29	138.86	150.41	87.70	96.38	61.93		
2018	80.09	82.20	80.62	118.22	161.01	120.12	161.05	143.48	133.15	103.76	84.40	68.92		
2017	109.32	72.18	74.42	123.54	127.09	154.82	168.71	128.79	140.18	126.29	93.59	77.09		
2016	94.10	92.03	98.60	147.86	136.42	166.98	200.82	166.99	172.49	95.82	109.00	77.06		

As seen in Figure 13 below, one can see that the highest GPCD values are experienced during the summer months when more outdoor use occurs, and the lows occur in the winter months.



FIGURE 13: GRAPH OF MONTHLY SFR GPCD - CITY OF DEMING 2019

2.2.5 Estimated SFR Indoor Water Use

Table 10, below, shows the estimated SFR indoor water GPCD by year. This was calculated by taking the average GPCD of the 3 lowest winter months. For 2019, the estimated SFR indoor use is estimated to be 68.49 GPCD.

ESTIMATED SFR GPCD INDOOR USE											
Year JAN FEB NOV DEC AVG 3 LOWES											
2019	61.80	81.76	96.38	61.93	68.49						
2018	80.09	82.20	84.40	68.92	77.07						
2017 109.32 72.18 93.59 77.09 80.95											
2016	94.10	92.03	109.00	77.06	87.73						

 TABLE 10: ESTIMATED SFR INDOOR WATER USE - CITY OF DEMING 2016-2019

2.2.6 Estimated SFR Outdoor Water Use

Table 11, below, shows the estimated SFR outdoor water GPCD by year. This was calculated by taking the annual SFR GPCD and subtracting out the calculated indoor use for each year. For 2019, the estimated SFR outdoor use is estimated to be 39.92 GPCD.

TABLE 11. ESTIMATED SER	OUTDOOR WATER USE -	CITY OF DEMING 2016-2019
	OULDOOK WATER OUL	

			ESTIMATED ANNUAL SFR
		ESTIMATED ANNUAL SFR	GPCD - OUTDOOR USE
	ANNUAL SFR GPCD	GPCD - INDOOR USE	(ANNUAL - INDOOR)
2019	108.41	68.49	39.92
2018	111.61	77.07	34.54
2017	116.54	80.95	35.59
2016	129.94	87.73	42.21

2.2.7 Annual Multi-Family Residential (MFR) GPCD

The City of Deming does not classify MFR within their utility billing accounting system. MFRs are classified as either residential (SFR) or commercial depending on whether individual residents are being metered separately (residential) or if the MFR facility has only one meter (commercial).

2.2.8 Estimated MFR Indoor Water Use

The City of Deming does not classify MFR within their utility billing accounting system. MFRs are classified as either residential (SFR) or commercial depending on whether individual residents are being metered separately (residential) or if the MFR facility has only one meter (commercial).

2.2.9 Estimated MFR Outdoor Water Use

The City of Deming does not classify MFR within their utility billing accounting system. MFRs are classified as either residential (SFR) or commercial depending on whether individual residents are being metered separately (residential) or if the MFR facility has only one meter (commercial).

2.2.10 Monthly MFR GPCD

The City of Deming does not classify MFR within their utility billing accounting system. MFRs are classified as either residential (SFR) or commercial depending on whether individual residents are being metered separately (residential) or if the MFR facility has only one meter (commercial).

2.2.11 Industrial, Commercial, Institutional (ICI), and Other Metered Uses

See Tables 12 and 13, below, for ICI and other metered uses consumption data.

	2010-2019											
ICI WATER CONSUMPTION (Gallons (US)												
Year	ar JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC											
2019	11,228,400	150,407,900	11,520,500	14,307,800	16,895,500	18,916,800	19,210,100	17,298,000	20,652,800	83,095,100	16,794,600	11,936,300
2018	15,455,300	15,308,674	16,423,500	17,389,800	17,964,200	20,232,500	493,592,100	17,942,300	17,591,600	16,968,900	14,869,500	12,405,300
2017	7 27,416,100 13,658,300 13,934,300 17,735,000 16,597,900 19,789,200 21,663,800 20,695,800 20,581,500 19,196,800 23,010,500 14,286,000											
2016	10,225,700	21,707,100	18,934,900	94,679,500	14,294,600	15,050,500	21,843,300	19,342,500	24,847,100	14,626,600	17,043,100	15,005,500

 TABLE 12: MONTHLY INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL, INSTITUTIONAL, AND OTHER METERED USES - CITY OF DEMING

 2016-2019

TABLE 13: ANNUAL INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL, INSTITUTIONAL, AND OTHER METERED USES GPCD - CITY OF

ICI GPCD							
2019	89.51						
2018	154.33						
2017	51.50						
2016	63.75						

2.2.12 Annual System Total GPCD

Figures 14 and 15, below, shows the annual system total GPCD as reported in the GPCD calculator. System total GPCD includes all uses of water as reported in the NMOSE GPCD Calculator.







FIGURE 15: NMOSE GPCD - ANNUAL ANALYSIS GPCD TABLE AND GRAPH - CITY OF DEMING 2016-2019

CITY OF DEMING

2.2.13 Monthly System Total GPCD

Table 14, below, shows the monthly system total GPCD. System total GPCD includes all uses of water as reported in the NMOSE GPCD Calculator.

	TABLE 14: NMOSE CALCULATOR - MONTHLY SYSTEM TOTAL GPCD - CITY OF DEMING 2016-2019												
	SYSTEM TOTAL GPCD (Monthly)												
Year	ar JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC												
2019	172.84	167.43	218.65	293.84	331.14	412.83	446.39	432.43	367.88	286.12	184.95	158.01	
2018	170.90	190.01	235.61	329.79	331.36	427.05	362.59	406.31	365.96	261.92	194.66	168.94	
2017	153.49	158.91	241.98	316.03	363.33	377.61	356.17	344.77	394.57	283.53	215.67	173.74	
2016	155.12	194.57	253.10	274.93	305.12	388.07	423.24	346.24	302.39	304.50	188.20	149.08	

3. Setting Water Conservation Goals

3.1 Objective

The City of Deming's objective for developing a water conservation plan is to increase the efficiency in the way we deliver water to the citizens of Deming. Increasing efficiency involves understanding all the dynamics of the water system which enables the City to reduce waste of water, engage the public in water saving practices, maintain a degree of infrastructure which proactively minimizes waste, and create a rate structure which covers the cost of the utility and promotes water conservation while keeping water rates as low as possible. In a broader sense, the City of Deming wants to operate its municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change.

3.2 Reasons why the City of Deming is Developing a Water Conservation Plan

A water conservation plan is a requirement of the NMOSE and certain state funding opportunities require a conservation plan be in place to be eligible. The City of Deming does recognize the benefits of developing a water conservation plan and desires to become better stewards of New Mexico's most valuable resource and operate in a manner that best serves the citizens of the City of Deming. Several issues have been brought to light that the City can improve on that will help conserve water, improve record keeping, and save the City money.

3.3 Identify Water Conservation Goals

Five goals are listed below that generalize what the City intends to accomplish in the short and long-term. These goals were developed keeping in mind the three priority areas of attention as indicated within the Water Audit. Each of these goals will require activities to be accomplished that relate directly to the volume of own sources, unbilled unmetered water, and customer metering inaccuracies.

- Improve system management within 5 years as reflected in a data validity score of 71 or better on the Water Audit which would raise the City to a Loss Control Planning Level 4 status.
- Reduce nonrevenue water by 65 MG/Yr by 2025.
- Ensure water utility revenues cover annual operational expenses plus funding to cover inter-period equity costs estimated for asset and infrastructure replacement by 2025.
- Reduce residential GPCD to a level below 80 GPCD within the next 15 years.
- Develop written policies and procedures related to water conservation best practices as identified as weaknesses within the Water Audit and review annually. These policies and

procedures should be written and implemented within the first two years of implementing this WCP.

3.4 Prioritize Goals

The biggest weaknesses observed when conducting the Water Audit are 1) testing and replacing meters and 2) the lack of written policies and procedures. Goals that directly involve improving on these two things were given a higher priority than others. Reducing nonrevenue water has also been identified as a high priority since it relates directly to waste and increased costs. The five goals have been prioritized as shown below, the lowest numbered goal having the highest priority.

- 1. Improve system management within 5 years as reflected in a data validity score of 71 or better on the Water Audit which would raise the City to a Loss Control Planning Level 4 status.
- Develop written policies and procedures related to water conservation best practices as identified as weaknesses within the Water Audit and review annually. These policies and procedures should be written and implemented within the first two years of implementing this WCP.
- 3. Reduce nonrevenue water by 65 MG/Yr by 2025.
- 4. Ensure water utility annual revenues cover annual operational expenses plus funding to cover inter-period equity costs estimated for asset and infrastructure replacement by 2025.
- 5. Reduce residential GPCD to a level below 80 GPCD within the next 15 years.

3.5 Evaluate Goals

Since the City's highest priority is to improve on their data validity score, the City will conduct the AWWA Water Audit on an annual basis. The year-to-year data validity score will give clear evidence as to whether the City is accomplishing activities that lead to a better score. The AWWA Water Audit grading criteria from year-to-year will be used as a measure for how well the City is doing with creating and implementing written policies and procedures. The AWWA Water Audit will be used to determine how the City is doing to reduce nonrevenue water.

A combination of the retail unit cost, variable production cost, annual rate analysis, and City of Deming's annual financial audit will be used to evaluate the City's ability to cover annual operating costs and inter-period equity costs estimated for asset and infrastructure replacement. The City will also utilize the NMOSE GPCD Calculator on an annual basis to monitor progress towards reducing annual residential GPCD.

The City will review and update the City Water Conservation Plan every five-years to ensure that progress is being made or has been met to achieve stated goals and to ensure listed goals

are still relevant. The five-year Water Conservation Plan update will give the City the opportunity to develop new goals and/or to adjust current goals that may not be making adequate progress.

3.6 Best Management Practices

3.6.1 Describe Best Management Practices (BMPs) Considered

The City of Deming has identified the following Best Management Practices to be considered:

- Conservation Coordinator
- Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)
- Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews
- Leak Detection
- Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)
- Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees
- Public Involvement Plan
- Public Information/Outreach Plan
- In-School Educational Program
- Automated Datalogging Equipment on Production Meters
- Meter Replacement Plan
- Routine Internal Auditing of Billing Records and Verified by third Party every 5-years.
- Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly
- Unbilled Unmetered Water Documented and Estimated on a Monthly Basis
- Unauthorized Consumption Documented and Estimated on a Monthly Basis and Code/Penalty Actions Strictly Enforced
- Water Main GIS/Auto CAD File Updated Routinely
- Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp
- Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly
- Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited
- Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly
- Repair Known Leaks
- Water Bill Inserts
- Selective End Use Audits
- Separate Billings by Single-Family Residential, Multi-Family Residential, and Commercial Users
- Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated
- Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances
- Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices
- Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes

CITY OF DEMING

- Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects
- Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator
- Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau

3.6.2 List BMPs Selected

The City of Deming selected the following BMP's based on their prioritized goals.

- 1. Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews
- 2. Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator
- 3. Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)
- 4. Meter Replacement Plan
- 5. Conservation Coordinator
- 6. Repair Known Leaks
- 7. Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects
- 8. Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp
- 9. Water Main GIS File Updated Routinely
- 10. Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)
- 11. Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly
- 12. Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly
- 13. Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited
- 14. Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly
- 15. Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated
- 16. Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees
- 17. Public Involvement Plan
- 18. Public Information/Outreach Plan
- 19. In-School Educational Program
- 20. Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances
- 21. Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices
- 22. Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes
- 23. Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau

4. Public Involvement, Education, Outreach

4.1 Describe Public Involvement During the Planning Process

The City of Deming does understand and value the importance of the public's input and involvement with all the City's processes. During this initial water conservation process, we have identified several practices that need to be worked on. Our current goals focus on short-term internal activities such as better bookkeeping, the writing of policies and procedures, and implementing meter testing, calibration, and maintenance plans. The City did not solicit public input on identifying these internal issues, rather they surfaced during the Water Audit process.

Moving forward, the City plans to develop a public information program. As our short-term goals are realized, we plan to solicit public input on ways the City can further reduce nonrevenue water. The Planning Team described in section 1.2 will periodically solicit input from the public on topics as described in the Public Information Program explained in section 4.2.1 below.

As described in the NMOSE Water Use and Conservation's publication titled "A Water Conservation Guide for Public Utilities", a "program takes thoughtful planning and conscience implementation" (New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, 2001). The City of Deming is initiating this WCP which will be reviewed and updated at a minimum of every five years. During the five-years following the adoption of the 2020 WCP, the City will solicit public input to develop a long-term strategy for conserving water. Public input opportunities may be made available at semi-annual water conservation meetings with the Planning Team that may be open to the public with opportunities for public input, through the use of public surveys and information sheets that may be mailed out as needed by the City as inserts with the monthly billings, through the use of social media outlets, and by setting up a water conservation email address and listing it on the City's website. Other key stakeholder involvement opportunities may be initiated by the Planning Team, as necessary.

4.2 Education and Outreach after a Plan is Adopted

4.2.1 Describe the Public Information Program

The following Public Information Plan is developed following the formatting in NMOSE's Water Conservation Guide for Public Utilities (New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, 2001).

Target Audience:Residential usage accounts for most of the water use consumed by the
City's water utility; therefore, the target audience for this program will
focus on residential users. The annual SFR GPCD has been identified as

being approximately 108 GPCD with outdoor use accounting for approximately 37% and indoor use accounting for approximately 63%. Therefore, the City shall focus on ways to reduce residential indoor use.

Program Activities: The City of Deming has several mediums for getting information out to the public. The following activities may be used by the City of Deming:

The Deming Headlight is the local newspaper that is used by the City of Deming to get out important information using news releases to its residents. Stories and important issues on water conservation can be published in the Deming Headlight to keep the public informed. The Deming Headlight also uses social media, such as Facebook and Twitter, to disseminate important stories and information.

The City utilizes bill stuffers to disseminate important information water users. Water quality reports is one example of a bill stuffer that the City currently gets out routinely. A summarized description of the WCP or water conservation information sheets can be included with monthly bills.

For any updates to the WCP, the City will hold a public meeting to present the updated WCP and provide a public input period.

The City of Deming will add a water conservation page to their website where documents such as the WCP can be linked to for public access. This page can also include water conservation information documents, long-term plans, and links to useful water conservation pages, such as the ones listed on the NMOSE website.

Social media can also be used by the City of Deming to promote water conservation by proving links to interesting current article and posts about water conservation. Social media can also be used to promote the City's efforts and long-term plans to a large sector of its water users at a minimal cost.

Program Support: The Planning Team described in section 1.2 is made up of all levels of management within the City of Deming. The City has developed several projects related to water conservation, such as reuse projects and the installation of an AMR system, that is driven by upper management. Upper management is fully supporting the efforts to put a WCP in place and to promote it to the public as detailed in this plan. Key upper management Planning Team members include the Mayor, City

Administrator, Public Works Director, Community Services Director, and the City Treasurer.

Staff and Funding Resources:

The Public Works Assistance is assigned the duties as the Conservation Coordinator. This position will be the lead contact for monitoring and reporting the progress of the WCP. This person will also coordinate the efforts and distribution of information to the public as described in this section of the WCP. The Public Works Assistance will have several resources, such as support from upper management and the diverse staff of the City, within the City to assist with the efforts needed to successfully implement this plan.

Funding resources will come from the Water and Wastewater budgets and outside funding sources. The Planning Team will evaluate and consider the different program activities, as described above, to best inform stakeholders about important information. The City Administrator, Public Works Director, and City Treasurer will evaluate the Water and Wastewater budget annually to determine a budget number for the Planning Team to work with for water conservation purposes, including Public Information Program efforts.

Track Program Efforts and Evaluate Results:

Policies and procedures will be developed to track program efforts and evaluate results. The policy will require the Conservation Coordinator to track activity used to inform or collect data from the public concerning water conservation efforts. The policy will require the Conservation Coordinator to monitor and track feedback from stakeholders. This can be the number of responses received from a survey, the number of emails received from the water conservation email address, number of visits to the water conservation webpage, social media activity, etc. This information shall be reported on a monthly basis as part of the City Council packet. A report shall be made and presented at each of the semi-annual Planning Team public meetings. Over time the effectiveness of the program can be evaluated, and improvements or modifications can be made based on the observations made.

4.2.2 Describe Outreach Program Activities

This topic was covered in section 4.2.1 as part of the Public Information Program but will be repeated here.

Program Activities: The City of Deming has several mediums for getting information out to the public. The following activities may be used by the City of Deming:

The Deming Headlight is the local newspaper that is used by the City of Deming to get out important information using news releases to its residents. Stories and important issues on water conservation can be published in the Deming Headlight to keep the public informed. The Deming Headlight also uses social media, such as Facebook and Twitter, to disseminate important stories and information.

The City utilizes bill stuffers to disseminate important information that can be printed on a page or two. Water quality reports is one example of a bill stuffer that the City currently routinely gets out. A summarized description of the WCP or water conservation information sheets can be included with monthly bills.

For any updates to the WCP, the City will hold a public meeting to present the updated WCP and provide a public input period.

The City of Deming will add a Water Conservation page to their website where documents such as the WCP can be linked to for public access. This page can also include water conservation information documents and links to useful water conservation pages, such as the ones listed on the NMOSE website.

Social media can also be used by the City of Deming to promote water conservation by proving links to interesting current article and posts about water conservation. Social media can also be used to promote the City's efforts and plan to a large sector of its water users at a minimal cost.

4.2.3 Describe In-School Educational Programs

The City of Deming will initiate working with the Deming Public School District to formulate an In-School Educational plan using the guide described in NMOSE's Water Conservation Guide for Public Utilities (New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, 2001).

- **Prepare an "Introduction to Water" Report.** The City will create a briefing paper for educators that describes the current and projected status of the local water supply and demand in the City's utility's service area. An important element of this paper will be an overview of the utility's conservation plan. An explanation of the value to the community of an in-school conservation program and description of the support the utility can provide to the educational system will be made. The City of Deming will show determination, enthusiasm, and commitment to gain support for the conservation initiative.
- **Contact the School System.** The City will contact the school board and the superintendent of education to schedule a meeting to solicit their support in establishing an in-school water conservation program. If support is obtained, the City will suggest a steering committee to be established. The roles of the steering committee will be defined.
- Announce the Water Conservation Initiative. Using various public media and school communication networks, the cooperative educational initiative will be announced. The City and School District will solicit participation on the steering committee from interested parties. Subsequent steps in this procedure will require the assistance of the steering committee.
- Assign Utility Personnel to the Program. Utility personnel who will develop and run the program will be determined. Office space and equipment needed to conduct the program will be identified and provided. Transportation for the program coordinator will be made available to visit schools during the formative and implementation phases of the project.
- Contact Schools to Determine Existing Conservation Activities. City staff, or steering committee, will contact schools and other agencies that work with children to determine what conservation activities, if any, are already underway.
- Review Conservation Materials. The City and the School District, or steering committee, will review existing conservation materials and select the most appropriate items for each grade level, or develop new materials as needed. An estimation of the quantity of selected items that will be required for the school system and a calculation of

the annual cost will be made. A list of resources within NMOSE's Water Conservation Guide for Public Utilities will be a starting point for identifying materials.

- Establish Evaluation Methods. A means of evaluating the students' understanding of the subject matter before and after the conservation lessons have been completed will be created. Results from student tests may be used to measure the effectiveness of the program and to identify deficiencies in the teaching materials and techniques that need to be corrected.
- Establish In-Service Training. A means of providing in-service conservation training for teachers and an estimate of the annual cost of providing such training will be determined.
- Determine Annual Budget. The costs of educational materials and teacher training to arrive at the total annual cost will be compiled. The purchase of educational materials and teacher training may be subsidized not only by our water utility but also by various state agencies, federal agencies, and private institutions. If financial resources fall short of the required funding, the City may prepare proposals to obtain grants from institutions such as community-minded businesses, federal and/or state government agencies, or private foundations.

5. Developing a Water Conservation Program

5.1 Describe Challenges

Since the City's highest priority goal is to increase the City's data validity score to or above a 71, which will get the City to a Water Loss Control Planning Level 4 status, many of the City's challenges will be financial and staffing related. The City implemented new water rates in February 2020. Our annual rate analysis and the AWWA water audit flagged that the retail costs of the water are less than the production costs. The need for the recent rate increase was driven by dwindling Water Fund cash balances covering the cost of the utility. The new rates are expected to get the utility balanced. Many of the activities that will be required to implement this water conservation program will cost money and increase demands on staffing. The additional resources that the WCP will require have not yet been considered in the City's budget.

The City has plenty of water rights secured to support an expanding population and/or increased economic uses; however, the challenge is that some of these water rights are located several miles out of the City limits and moving them closer to town is very difficult due to the City being located within a critical management area as determined by the NMOSE. The NMOSE has determined that increased water depletions within this critical management area will be detrimental. Water right moves into critical management areas are prohibited and water right movement within a critical management area are tightly regulated. Generally, only relatively small transfers are permitted to move within a critical management area. In addition to this, other water right owners within the critical management area have their own concerns regarding the protection of their water rights and have recently protested applications proposed to make such transfers. This places a higher importance on conserving water that is already within the City limits.

Another challenge for the City is that a recent study conducted on the water utility's infrastructure indicates that nearly all the water mains need replacement. The preliminary engineering report has estimated costs being far above what the City can afford. A plan is being put together to replace these lines over time; however, the funding strategy has not yet been developed or added to the City's budget. The Public Works Department has been tracking the location of leaks and prioritizing problem areas to focus the City's attention on. Just recently, the City has been awarded funding to begin replacing water mains in an area that the Public Works Department has identified as being one of the City's most needed areas for water main replacement. The funding awarded, which the City is very grateful for receiving, is not enough to fund the whole project, for which the City will continue to seek additional grant/loans funds.

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

The City of Deming is also known to be one of the most poverty-stricken cities in New Mexico. The residents are not supportive of rate increases. The current rate structure is a flat rate based on consumption. A different type of rate structure, such as an increasing block rate structure, would be difficult to gain support for. This type of change will take efforts within the public information and outreach activities of this program.

Being located within a desert with the only water source for the community being groundwater, the climate is always a concern. New Mexico has experienced severe drought conditions during the past couple of years. This past year, 2019, drought indicators have shown improvements, but more recently have started to trend back towards to increasing drought conditions. We have also been experiencing a pattern of increased temperatures which brings with it increased evapotranspiration rates. This has a direct effect on natures ability to recharge the aquifer that the City of Deming relies on for our water source.

Municipal water conservation efforts require a continuous improvement program. Since this is the City's first WCP using this method, several improvement opportunities have been identified. To view this as one long-term program that is written and implemented for several years to follow is unreasonable and would most likely have a high failure probability. Because of this, the City plans to review, update, and implement the plan every five years. The focus of this first plan is on more short-term improvements with long-term goals in mind. Several internal operational improvements have been identified and will be the initial focus of the City's plan. Other parts of the plan, such as public involvement, outreach plans, educational programs, and long-term water conservation plans, should not be rushed. The City of Deming has included these activities within this initial plan with the intention to define and implement the details of these activities over the next five years.

5.2 Program Components

5.2.1 Program Title

City of Deming Water Conservation Program

5.2.2 Summary of Program

This program is focused on the short-term. Twenty-three best management practices have been selected as being important considerations to work on. Some of these BMP's are internal management and operational in nature and will be implemented within the next five years.

Others will require public input or outside input for which the City plans to use the next fiveyears to gather that input and develop comprehensive goals for achieving the wants and needs related to water conservation from the data collected.

The primary goal of the City is to improve on the City's data validity score calculated in the AWWA Water Audit. The City of Deming's data validity score indicates that the City's water utility is at a Level 3 Water Loss Control measure. The Water Loss Control measure is an indicator that helps the water utility understand what they should focus on. A Level 1 and Level 2 water utility should focus on data collection and short-term loss control. Level 3 through Level 5 can start focusing on long-term loss control, target setting, and benchmarking. The City of Deming scored a 59 DVS, which is within the Level 3 range of 51-70. This indicates that there is still some issue with data collection and should focus on short-term loss control, however, should also start considering long-term loss control, target-setting, and benchmarking. This is the reasoning for the City of Deming's plan to develop this initial program into a five-year program focusing on internal management and operational best management practices while soliciting public input and educating the public on water conservation to better position the City to develop comprehensive target setting and benchmarking attributes toward long-term water conservation efforts. This would also be in-line with the City's short-term goal to achieve a DVS of 71 which will place the City in the Level 4 Loss Control measure.

The City of Deming has categorized the selected BMP's into four categories: Administrative, Operational, Financial, and Public Involvement. The first three categories represent the short-term BMP's that tend to have a high priority, while Public Involvement has a more long-term focus and are lower in priority but have been identified as being important for this next 5-year planning period. Below are descriptions of the BMP's within their respective category with their ranking listed.

Administrative:

(Ranked 1) Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews – Water Audit grading scores over several of the areas were limited due to lack of written policy and procedures and/or due to the policy and procedures lack of being routinely reviewed. Needed policies and procedures include, but are not limited to, meter testing and calibration, meter replacement plans, reporting of inactive accounts, auditing of inactive accounts, reporting of data for water audits and GPCD Calculator, identifying and reporting metered not billed accounts (City Buildings, etc.), identifying and estimating non-metered not billed usages such as fire hydrant uses, and water infrastructure mapping and data collection.

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

- (Ranked 2) Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator: To measure the success of this five-year plan, it will be imperative to complete the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD calculator on an annual basis. The Planning Team will meet in a public meeting semi-annually and, at a minimum of once annually, will review the results and ensure that the City is making progress towards achieving our goals.
- (Ranked 5) Conservation Coordinator: The Public Works Assistant will take on the duties as Conservation Coordinator. This duty will involve monitoring and tracking the conservation program efforts, scheduling the semi-annual meetings, creating agendas, and any other duties as assigned. The Public Works Director and HR Director will create duty descriptions and have them added to the Public Works Assistant's job description.
- (Ranked 8) Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp: The Public Works Director and City Engineer will develop a policy and procedure for mapping and collecting data on water main breaks.
- (Ranked 9) Water Main GIS/AutoCAD File Updated Routinely: The Public Works Director and City Engineer will develop a policy and procedure for maintaining additions and deletions to the City's GIS/AutoCAD file. Currently a GIS project exists, but additions and deletions are not routinely updated on the project.
- (Ranked 15) Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated: Appropriate staff will review and update, as needed, ordinances related to water conservation every two years.
- (Ranked 23) Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau: The Conservation Coordinator will submit a brief, couple of paragraphs, report to the NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau annually after the completion of the AWWA Water audit and NMOSE GPCD calculator. The report will generalize progress made to achieving goals. This report will demonstrate continued efforts by the City of Deming to conserve water.

Operational

(Ranked 3) Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side): The Water/Wastewater Foreman will develop and implement a policy and procedure, approved by the Public Works Director, to select a sample of meters, both source and demand side, to test and calibrate on an annual basis. Age, size, and location of meters should be considered and documented when testing and selected as part of the sample population. Separate procedures will be written for source and demand meters. Meter accuracy shall be within 2% and, when required, calibration and/or replacement procedures will be followed when meter accuracy exceeds specified limits. Meter testing results shall be documented and reported to the Public Works Director on an annual basis. This information will be entered into the annual water audit.

- (Ranked 4) *Meter Replacement Plan:* The Public Works Director and Water/Wastewater Foreman will develop a policy and procedure for systematically replacing aged meters.
- (Ranked 6) Repair Known Leaks: The Water Department shall repair, and document all known leaks when they are reported. This would have been ranked higher; however, this is already practiced by the Water Department. This is still important because failure to repair known leaks will have a significant impact on water loss and financial resources for the City of Deming.
- (Ranked 14) Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly: The Water/Wastewater Foreman shall develop and implement a policy and procedure for identifying and monitoring pressure zones and tank levels on a monthly basis. The method used to determine an average system pressure shall be clearly documented. The average system pressure and tank levels shall be reported to the Public Works Director on a monthly basis and entered into the water audit on an annual basis.

Financial

(Ranked 10) Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows): Treasurer and Utility Billing Manager will create and implement written policies and procedures that will reduce the amount of data errors that occur and are difficult to remove after billing runs. One example, a hi/low report should be ran prior to billing runs that identify accounts with unusually hi and unusually low usage amounts. The identified accounts should be field checked and corrected prior to billing being run for that cycle. Another consideration should be to re-classify residential users as single-family residential and multi-family residential, which is not currently being done. Other policies and procedures should be created to help minimize data errors.

- (Ranked 11) Unbilled Metered Accounts shall be Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly: Treasurer and Utility Billing Manager shall create and implement a policy and procedure for accounting and reporting for unbilled metered accounts. These are generally City buildings. These should also not be combined with park irrigation within reports. The unbilled metered accounts should be routinely inventoried and monitored. These numbers shall be included within the annual water audit.
- (Ranked 12) Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly: The Treasurer and Utility Billing Manager shall create a policy and procedure for tracking and reporting active and inactive utility accounts monthly. This data should be documented and reported monthly.
- (Ranked 13) Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited: The Treasurer, Utility Billing Manager, and Water/Wastewater Foreman shall create a policy and procedure for auditing inactive service connections routinely. The results of this audit shall be documented and reported routinely.
- (Ranked 16) Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees: Alternative rate structures should be explored. This item should also involve public input. The rate structure should incentivize water users to conserve water.

Public Involvement

- (Ranked 7) Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects: The City is currently working on expanding the City's water reuse efforts. The City shall continue working towards improving the quality of reuse water and explore additional uses the reuse water can be used for. Public involvement in this subject is crucial. The City needs to give assurance for the quality of the water and promote its use so that the public is comfortable with the use of reuse water. The City and the public will explore further incentives for home reuse projects.
- (Ranked 17) Public Involvement Plan: A Public Involvement Plan is included within this document. The Conservation Coordinator will be given the duties for ensuring the tasks described in the plan are being completed and implemented. Also as described above and below in other BMP's, public involvement will be necessary for numerous aspects of this WCP.
- (Ranked 18) **Public Information/Outreach Plan:** The Conservation Coordinator will be responsible for working with other City staff for identifying and distributing water conservation information to the public as well as

identifying interested stakeholders to assist in the planning process. Some of these duties may include organizing news releases, creating a webpage on the City's website, identifying online water conservation links, managing social media accounts, and identifying information for bill stuffers and/or handouts within City Hall. Public input shall be solicited as part of this BMP.

- (Ranked 19) In-School Educational Program: The Conservation Coordinator will be the lead on exploring the City's and Deming Public School District's interests in creating an In-School Educational Program. To initiate this, the Conservation Coordinator shall write up a proposal and meet with appropriate school officials to discuss the details as what is to be expected in a program. Public input shall be solicited as part of this BMP.
- (Ranked 20) **Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances:** A public input plan shall be created to explore ideas on how the City can promote water users use of water-efficient fixtures and appliances. After reviewing and evaluating public input, the City shall review existing code and consider if updates and/or new ordinances are needed. Other mechanisms for promoting the use of water-efficient fixtures and appliances may be considered.
- (Ranked 21) Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices: The City has regulated low water use landscaping through City Code. The City shall revisit these ordinances and evaluate what has worked. A public input plan shall be created to explore ideas on how the City can promote water users use of low-water-use landscaping and efficient irrigation practices. After reviewing and evaluating public input, the City shall consider adopting or updating code concerning low-wateruse landscaping and efficient irrigation systems.
- (Ranked 22) Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes: The City shall solicit input from the public, commercial water users, and industrial water users for recommendations on ways that can incentivize commercial and industrial water users to use water more efficiently. The City will also explore/research industry standards for similar businesses water use rates. Depending on the results of the research, a plan or ordinances can be implemented to incentivize the efficient use of water by commercial and industrial users.

5.2.3 Targeted User

Since this plan is focused on short-term goals to improve data collection and reporting efforts, many of the conservation measures are related directly to the City of Deming. The list below includes the targeted user followed by the rankings of the conservation measures associated with that user. Some of the conservation measures are listed for multiple targeted users.

City of Deming – 1 thru 16, and 23 Residential Users – 7, 20, and 21 Commercial and Industrial Users - 22 All Water Users – 15 thru 18, and 23 Students – 19

5.2.4 Saturation of Target User

Four target users have been identified: City of Deming, Residential Users, Commercial and Industrial Users, and Students. There is not a significant number of commercial and industrial big water users, so changes to policies focused on these users may not be as significant as change to residential users. Residential use makes up most of the water use within the City of Deming. Items identified as the City of Deming being the targeted user are related more to administrative improvements that would have an effect on the efficiency of the entire water system. Students is a very narrow focus group; however, if students are educated in water conservation, long-term water conservation efforts may be realized through indoctrinating water conservation values into the community.

5.2.5 Implementation Dates

TABLE 13: IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE FOR BINFS									
BMPs	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024				
Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews	Develop	Implement	Review	Continue	Review				
Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator	Perform	Perform	Perform	Perform	Perform				
Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Meter Replacement Plan		Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue				
Conservation Coordinator	Develop/Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Repair Known Leaks	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects	Continue	Public Input	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Water Main GIS File Updated Routinely	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)	Develop/Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue				
Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated	Continue	Review/Update	Continue	Review/Update	Continue				

TABLE 15: IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE FOR BMPs

CITY OF DEMING

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

TABLE 13 CONTINUED. IMPLEMENTATION DATES FOR DIVIES						
BMPs	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	
Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees		Public Input	Review	Continue	Review	
Public Involvement Plan	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue	
Public Information/Outreach Plan	Develop	Implement	Review	Implement Updates	Continue	
In-School Educational Program		Develop	Meet with School	Implement	Continue	
Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances		Public Input	Develop	Implement	Continue	
Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices		Public Input	Develop	Implement	Continue	
Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes		Public Input	Develop	Implement	Continue	
Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau:		Submit	Submit	Submit	Submit	

TABLE 15 CONTINUED: IMPLEMENTATION DATES FOR BMPS

5.2.6 Anticipated Cost

Table 16, below, shows the anticipated costs for each of the BMPs per year. Note that the City plans to utilize existing staffing to perform all the labor duties listed. The average additional cost to the city per year is approximately \$10,000. The labor cost amounts to the equivalent to about a 0.5 FTE.

TABLE 16:	ANTICIPATED	COSTS FO	r BMP's

BMPs	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024
Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only
Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only
Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)	\$1000 Labor Only	\$8000 + \$2000 Labor	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only
Meter Replacement Plan		\$1000 Labor Only	\$2500 + \$1500 Labor	\$2500 + \$1500 Labor	\$2500 + \$1500 Labor

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

TABLE 16 CONTI	NUED: ANTICIPATED	COSTS FOR	BMPs
----------------	-------------------	-----------	-------------

BMPs	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024
Conservation Coordinator	\$10,500 Labor Only	\$10,500 Labor Only	\$10,500 Labor Only	\$10,500 Labor Only	\$10,500 Labor Only
Repair Known Leaks	\$5000 + \$2000 Labor	\$5000 + \$2000 Labor	\$5000 + \$2000 Labor	\$5000 + \$2000 Labor	\$5000 + \$2000 Labor
Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects	Unknown - Fluctuates	Unknown - Fluctuates	Unknown - Fluctuates	Unknown - Fluctuates	Unknown - Fluctuates
Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only
Water Main GIS File Updated Routinely	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only
Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)	\$4000 Labor Only	\$4000 Labor Only	\$4000 Labor Only	\$4000 Labor Only	\$4000 Labor Only
Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly	\$1000 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only
Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly	\$1000 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only	\$200 Labor Only
Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only
Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly	\$1000 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only
Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated	\$0	\$1000 Labor Only	\$0	\$1000 Labor Only \$0	
Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees		\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$0	\$2000 Labor Only
Public Involvement Plan	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only
Public Information/Outreach Plan	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor
In-School Educational Program		\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 Labor Only	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor
Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances		\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor
Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices		\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor	\$1000 + \$1000 Labor
Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes		\$2000 Labor Only	\$2000 Labor Only	\$0	\$0
Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau:		\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only	\$500 Labor Only
Annual Totals	\$6000 + \$28500 Labor	\$14000 + \$38900 Labor	\$8500 + \$38400 Labor	\$11500 + \$33400 Labor	\$11500 + \$34400 Labor
5-Year Total	\$51500 + 173,600 Labor				

5.2.7 Anticipated Staffing

The City of Deming plans to use existing staff to perform the functions of the Water Conservation Program. As seen above in the anticipated cost section, the City anticipates that these additional duties will amount to 0.5 FTE. These duties will be split between several staff members.

The lion share of the duties will be placed on the Conservation Coordinator; however, a big chunk of the initial duties involves writing policy and procedures which will be written by the appropriate upper level manager. More specifically the Public Works Director, Treasurer, and City Engineer may be responsible for the content within each policy and procedure. The Conservation Coordinator, billing staff, meter readers, and water plant staff will incorporate the implementation duties from the policies and procedures into their normal day-to-day duties.

5.2.8 Funding Source

Funding will be allocated from the current Water Fund budget. For large projects, such as water main replacement and water reuse improvements, the City may leverage City assets and seek grants and loans. The City currently applies for federal grants and low interest loans as well as state grants and loans from sources such as Colonias funding, Water Trust Board Funding, etc.

5.2.9 Anticipated Results and How They Align with Goals

Table 17, below, shows how the BMPs align with the goals of this water conservation program.

		Goals (Ordered by Priority)				
BMPs	Anticipated Results	DVS >= 71	Policies & Procedures	Non-Revenue Water	Adequate Rates	GPCD
Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews	Clear written policies and procedures that will enable sustainable consistent gathering and organizing of data water audits.	Х	Х	X	Х	Х
Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator	Data set that will be used to monitor the City's water consumption which will be used to help set and modify conservation goals.	Х	Х	X		Х
Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)	Assurance that water is being accounted for accurately.	Х		X	Х	Х
Meter Replacement Plan	Maintaining operational and accurate inventory of in-use water meters proactively, rather than reactively.	Х		X	Х	Х
Conservation Coordinator	The ability to create a sustainable water conservation program with periodic progress reports.	Х	Х	X	Х	Х

TABLE 17: ALIGNMENT OF BMPS TO GOALS

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

		Goals (Ordered by Priority)				
BMPs	Anticipated Results	DVS >= 71	Policies & Procedures	Non-Revenue Water	Adequate Rates	GPCD
Repair Known Leaks	Maintain a water distribution system with minimal water loss.	Х		Х	Х	Х
Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects	Reduce the amount of groundwater pumping for municipal purposes. Conserve water rights.			X	Х	Х
Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp	Systematically identify problem areas where available resources should be spent for improvements.	Х		X	Х	Х
Water Main GIS File Updated Routinely	Maintain up-to-date and easily accessible inventory of water system infrastructure,	Х		X		Х
Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)	Reduce significant data errors in the billing system, which also affects water audit calculations.	Х	Х	X		Х
Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly	Identify all known metered water uses, including all City unbilled uses.	Х	Х			
Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly	Better accounting of total accounts which will allow the water utility more data to make more informed decisions.	Х	Х	X	Х	Х
Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited	The ability to identify accounts that should be billed that aren't. Direct connection to identifying non-revenue water.	Х		X	Х	Х
Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly	Better understanding of water system and the ability to identify system leaks more quickly.	Х		X		Х
Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated	Control undesirablemunicipal water inefficiencies.		Х			Х
Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees	Incentivize conservation practices that lead to lower GPCD.		X			Х
Public Involvement Plan	Expand, identify and gain support of a diverse collection of water conservation ideas to enhance the conservation program.		Х	X	Х	Х
Public Information/Outreach Plan	Inform the public of water conservation practices and City initiatives to conserve water.		X	X		Х
In-School Educational Program	Indoctrinate students in water conservation methods.		X	X		Х
Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances	Incentivize water conservation through the use of water-efficient fixtures and appliances.		X			Х
Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices	Incentivize water conservation through the use of low-water-use landscaping and efficient irrigation practices.		Х	Х		Х
Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes	Incentivize water conservation through efficient commercial and industrial water use practices.		Х			Х
Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau:	Build sustainable practices towards conserving water and to show NMOSE the City's dedication toward the WCP.		X		Х	

TABLE 17 CONTINUED: ALIGNMENT OF BMPS TO GOALS

5.2.10 Why the Program was Chosen

The City chose 23 of the BMPs identified. While 23 BMP's seems a little overwhelming, many of them are interrelated with other BMP's. The City also categorized the BMP's into four categories which helps identify who will be responsible for implementing and managing them.

This program was chosen primarily due to the results of the water audit. Several deficiencies were identified working through the water audit. The City scored in the Level 3 Loss Control level which means that they scored high enough to start considering long-term water conservation goals, but low enough that continued focus should be on data collection and reporting. Therefore, the focus of this program is on short-term improvements focused on improving internal operations of the water system.

5.2.11 Estimated Lifetime Impact of the Program

The impact of implementing this program shall provide better management of data for tracking the City's water usage. Within the initial target five-years of this program, the City's data management is expected to be relatively lean. This will enable tools that will be used to better manage non-revenue water and unaccounted-for water. The lifetime impact will include a more efficient water delivery system that will stretch the City's water rights to meet the demands of the City well into the future. The implementation of the selected BMPs should have an everlasting impact on the operations of the public water utility.

5.2.12 How the Program Will be Implemented

This program involves several City staff members for it to be successful. The Planning Team described in this program is made up of key positions that have the authority to take responsibility and delegate the tasks required in this program. The first step in implementing this program is to assemble the Planning Team to discuss a plan of action and delegate the different components of the program to the appropriate managers.

A key component of this Program is the need for written policies and procedures. The City feels that this component is so important that we have listed it as both a goal and a BMP. The focus of the first year will be on developing several written policies and then implementing them in the second year. These policies and procedures will straddle different departments within the City organization, such as the water utility, finance, engineering, etc. It is important that these policies and procedures are formalized in each of the department's day-to-day routines. Each of these policies shall also be documented in a Water Conservation manual maintained by the Conservation Coordinator.

CITY OF DEMING
CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

The Public Works Director shall immediately create and assign the Conservation Coordinator Duties to the Public Works Assistant. The Conservation Coordinator shall then organize the initial Planning Team meeting to develop a plan of action. Part of this meeting shall address the scheduling of semi-annual Planning Team public meetings.

Within the first year, policies and procedures should be formalized for the following BMPs (the Planning Team may add more to this list; however, the ones listed here are directly listed as prioritized BMPs of this program):

- AWWA Annual Water Audit Policy and Procedure (Public Works Director)
- Annual NMOSE GPCD Calculator Policy and Procedure (Public Works Director)
- Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration Policy and Procedure (Water/Wastewater Foreman)
- Meter Replacement Plan Policy and Procedure (Second Year to follow Meter Testing and Calibration Policy and Procedure) (Water/Wastewater Foreman)
- Leak Repair Policy and Procedure (Water/Wastewater Foreman)
- Water Leak Mapping Policy and Procedure (City Engineer)
- Water Main GIS Mapping Policy and Procedure (City Engineer)
- Billing Report Indicators Policy and Procedure (a system to identify errors <u>before</u> billing is run) (Treasurer/Utility Billing Manager)
- Unbilled-Metered Accounts Policy and Procedure (Treasurer/Utility Billing Manager)
- Active and Inactive Service Connections Reporting Policy and Procedure (Treasurer/Utility Billing Manager)
- Inactive Service Connections Audit Policy and Procedure (Treasurer/Utility Billing Manager)
- Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Reporting Policy and Procedures (Water/Wastewater Foreman)
- Public Involvement Plan Policy and Procedures (Conservation Coordinator)
- Public Information/Outreach Plan Policy and Procedures (Conservation Coordinator)
- In-School Educational Program Policy and Procedure (Second Year) (Conservation Coordinator)

As seen above, the first year is dedicated to getting policy and procedures written. The second year focuses on implementing those policies and procedures, reporting, and public involvement. The second year should really be all about gaining public support. This is when the City will start getting information out to the public about water conservation and to solicit public input on how the City can incentivize residential water conservation efforts. The third year's focus will shift a little towards water conservation education in the Deming Public Schools.

Each year involves new reporting measures which will enable the City to have a better outlook for our water system as well as for our water conservation efforts. The Conservation Coordinator will be responsible for collecting and memorializing these reports for future uses. The Conservation Coordinator shall also develop a semi-annual or annual (whatever the Planning Team feels enough) dashboard report which could be placed on the City's website or distributed by mail to the public. The Conservation Coordinator shall also produce an annual summary of progress made to the NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau. This will act as demonstrated commitment to adhering to the policy which should also help secure future funding opportunities which have a requirement for a water conservation program to be in place.

The Planning Team will meet twice a year in a public meeting to review progress and to adjust the plan of action as needed. This Water Conservation Program is meant to be a sustainable plan to conserve water indefinitely. The City plans to conduct a comprehensive review of this program every five years to re-evaluate goals and BMPs. The Planning Team reserves the right to renew this program for an additional five-years without change if the Planning Team feels that the goals and BMP's are still relevant and do not require change.

5.2.13 Explanation of Tracking and Evaluation

Tracking of the progress of the Program's goals will be documented and reported periodically. The Conservation Coordinator will be tasked with tracking the progress of the program and documenting it in a water conservation manual. The manual will include all pertinent information and documents generated for the City of Deming Water Conservation Program.

Progress will also be tracked using time series analysis by comparing AWWA Water audit and NMOSE GPCD calculator results from year-to-year. Annual reports will be created to inform the Planning Team, NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau, and the public of the Program's progress. Lastly, the Planning Team will periodically evaluate program goals and make adjustments to the program as needed to ensure adequate progress is being made to conserve municipal water and to ensure that the municipal water system is running in the most efficient and productive manner possible.

5.2.14 Annual Reporting and Updates

Annual reports will be produced to inform stakeholders of the progress made towards achieving the City's goals for this Program. As previously noted, the City will conduct the AWWA Water Audit and the NMOSE GPCD Calculator annually. The City's Conservation Coordinator will ensure that an annual report is generated. A brief overview of the City's progress will be reported to the NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau annually. Progress reports will be given at each of the semi-annual Planning Team public meetings. The City may also create a

dashboard report that can be distributed to the public annually. These reports may also be published on the City's website.

5.3 Describe Process of Prioritizing Projects

The process of conducting the AWWA Water Audit and the NMOSE GPCD Calculator identified several weaknesses with the operations of the City's water system operations. This led to our process for prioritizing the different conservation measures the City has included within this document. The number one concern for the City that kept preventing the City from grading AWWA Water Audit inputs higher and causing for an increased estimated water loss is lack of written policies and procedures. This was such an important realization that the City decided to prioritize the development of policies and procedures as the number one goal for the City. The City also listed and prioritized written policies and procedures as the City's highest prioritized BMP.

The M36 structure for developing a water conservation program is a very thorough and overwhelming process; however, the M36 process also gives direction for what public water utilities should focus on. Public water utilities who score in the Level 1 and Level 2 loss control planning levels are advised to focus on internal operations improvements while levels above 2 can focus on more long-term water conservation measures. The City of Deming did score in the Level 3 range; however, the City of Deming is on the lower end of the Level 3 score. Since there were many improvement opportunities identified from conducting the water audit, the City of Deming felt that the City needs to focus on short-term improvements while introducing long-term water conservation measures.

Several of the prioritized BMP's require an initial policy and procedure to be generated. Section 5.2.12 has a list of policies and procedures needing to be written. The priority of the first year of this program is to get these policies and procedures written and adopted. To keep from making this feel like an overwhelming process, the responsible person assigned to ensuring these policies and procedures get written have also been identified in section 5.2.12.

The second year has been identified as the year for implementing all these policies and procedures as well as a push for public involvement in the process. There will also be a higher emphasis on getting water conservation materials out to the public and to introduce them to the City's Water Conservation Plan. This is really the seed for long-term water conservation planning and development for the City of Deming.

Following years are devoted to increasing the efficiency of the City's water plant, collecting and organizing better data through the implementation of the adopted water conservation policies

and procedures, and developing long-term strategies for water conservation. Public involvement will help gain the support of our citizens and introduce new ideas for consideration.

As part of creating a long-term strategy the City will also begin reaching out to the public schools to develop an in-school water conservation program to start introducing students to water conservation practices. An in-school program, as well as public outreach, will give the City the opportunity to educate the public on the importance of water conservation and ways to conserve, such as using water-efficient fixtures and appliances, low water use irrigation practices, and water efficient commercial operations.

To summarize, the City prioritized based on the Loss Control Planning values described in the AWWA Water Audit. The City hopes that improved operations will have a significant impact on our AWWA Water Audit DVS score. Once we can get our operations lean, our focus will shift to long-term water conservation measures.

5.4 Current and Past Water Conservation Programs

5.4.1 Summary

A water conservation plan, included as Appendix F of this document, was included in the City of Deming 2009 40-Year Water Plan (Daniel B. Stevens & Associates, Inc., 2009). The 40-Year Water Plan was updated in 2018 and did not include a water conservation plan; however, the 2018 40-Year Water Plan did include an AWWA Water Audit and a NMOSE GPCD Calculator computation for 2016 included in its appendices.

The 2009 water conservation plan did not include a water audit. GPCD was calculated but not using the NMOSE Calculator. The plan suggested that the City of Deming was doing everything they could to conserve water. The goals of the plan focused on customer awareness and educating the public on the importance of water conservation.

The document explained all of the things the City had recently implemented to encourage water conservation, such as implementing new City ordinances, installing automated billing system, having a 10-year meter replacement program, installation of a SCADA system to minimize storage tank overflows, performing leak surveys every five years, and explaining the City's water reuse activity. Other than educating the public, the water conservation plan lacked actions that the City was going to take in the future to conserve water. The plan seemed to simply rely on the water users to conserve water. Also, many of the things mentioned in the policy are not still followed today, most likely due to lack of written policy and procedures.

The 2016 AWWA Water Audit, provided in the 2018 40-Year Water Plan, is comparable to the 2019 water audit performed in conjunction with this WCP. Many of the grades assigned are

similar. Water losses were significantly greater in the 2019 water audit; however, the water audit score increased from a 53 to a 59. It is difficult to see why the score increased. It appears that the score increased due to improvements in the financial section of the audit.

The 2016 and 2019 NMOSE GPCD calculations are somewhat comparable. The 2016 calculation only has the 2016 data entered. While performing the 2019 audit, only data from 2016 to present was identified as being complete. Comparing the 2016 data for both audits, even though some of the data was similar, some of the data was significantly different. Different data sources were used for inputting the data. This is reason enough to get a written policy and procedure in place to conduct these water audits annually. We cannot compare apples to oranges and expect to get useful and reliable results out of these audits. It is also worthy of noting that residential GPCD has declined over the past four years; however, system total GPCD has steadily increased.

5.4.2 Time Frames

A time frame was not included in the 2009 Water Conservation Plan. The plan just speculated that the GPCD would decrease as the public became more aware of the importance of water conservation and that the public's own initiative would lead to water conservation.

5.4.3 Results

Based on current results of the water audit and GPCD calculations, the intended results of the 2009 Water Conservation Plan did not materialize. This was most likely due to the lack of a plan to actively track and monitor the progress of the plan and to implement written policies and procedures.

5.5 Proposed Water Conservation Programs

5.5.1 Narrative Describing How Selected Water Conservation Programs Meet Stated Goals and Objectives

Below are the objectives, goals and selected BMPs identified in this document. Each of the selected BMPs includes a narrative for how they meet the stated objective and goals.

Objective: The City of Deming's objective for developing a water conservation plan is to increase the efficiency in the way we deliver water to the citizens of Deming. Increasing efficiency involves understanding all the dynamics of the water system which enables the City to reduce waste of water, engage the public in water saving practices, maintain a degree of infrastructure which proactively minimizes

waste, and create a rate structure which covers the cost of the utility and promotes water conservation while keeping water rates as low as possible. In a broader sense, the City of Deming wants to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change.

Goals:

- 1. Improve system management within 5 years as reflected in a data validity score of 71 or better on the Water Audit which would raise the City to a Loss Control Planning Level 4 status.
- Develop written policies and procedures related to water conservation best practices as identified as weaknesses within the Water Audit and review annually. These policies and procedures should be written and implemented within the first two years of implementing this WCP.
- 3. Reduce nonrevenue water by 65 MG/Yr by 2025.
- 4. Ensure water utility annual revenues cover annual operational expenses plus funding to cover inter-period equity costs estimated for asset and infrastructure replacement by 2025.
- 5. Reduce residential GPCD to a level below 80 GPCD within the next 15 years.

BMPs:

- 1. Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews:
 - Objective: Meets objective by promoting efficient and sustainable practices that will lead to better accounting, reduced leaks, manage costs for better rate settings, and promotes long-term water conservation.
 - Goals: Aligns with all 5 goals. The water audit score was significantly affected by lack of policies and procedures. This measure was so important that it was also identified as being goal number 2. The policies and procedures will reduce non-revenue water through better accounting of water usage, which includes policies that will lead to minimizing data errors and more accurate meter readings. Improved accuracy in data collection provides more accurate information for evaluating rates and rate structures.

- 2. Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator
 - Objective: Meets objective by promoting efficient and sustainable practices that will lead to better accounting, reduced leaks, manage costs for better rate settings, and promotes long-term water conservation.
 - Goals: Directly relates to determining the data validity score. The loss control measures and results of the water audit and GPCD calculator aid in developing and/or improving written policies and procedures. This measure also provides the tools for putting together a time-series analysis to track progress of non-revenue water and GPCD.
- 3. Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)
 - Objective: Meets objective by improving efficiencies, maintaining a degree of infrastructure, improved data collection, and provides a tool for improved water rates and rate structure analyses.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1,2,4 and 5. Improvement on this measure allows the City to grade water audit topics higher which will increase the data validity score, and provide more accurate data for writing/revising policy and procedures, accounting for non-revenue water and accounting for GPCD data.
- 4. Meter Replacement Plan
 - Objective: Meets objective by maintaining and increasing operational efficiencies as well as maintaining a degree of infrastructure. Meter replacement will also improve billing operations and increase efficiencies with rate analyses and rate structure analyses.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1,3,4 and 5. Improvement on this measure allows the City to grade water audit topics higher which will increase the data validity score, and provide more accurate data for writing/revising policy and

procedures, accounting for non-revenue water and accounting for GPCD data.

- 5. Conservation Coordinator
 - Objective: Meets objective by providing an individual who will be responsible for documenting, reporting, and ensuring the progress of the program is being made.
 - Goals: Aligns with all five of the goals because this person will be the go-to-person for ensuring that all the goals are being met.
- 6. Repair Known Leaks
 - Objective: Meets objective by maintaining and increasing operational efficiencies as well as maintaining a degree of infrastructure. Repairing known leaks reduces waste, reduces operational costs, and conserves water for future generations.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1,3,4 and 5. Improvement on this measure allows the City to grade water audit topics higher which will increase the data validity score, and provide more accurate data for writing/revising policy and procedures, accounting for non-revenue water and accounting for GPCD data. This measure will also reduce non-revenue water and decrease GPCD.
- 7. Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects
 - Objective: Meets objective by conserving water for future generations and minimizing water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 3, 4, and 5. Utilizing more reuse water can lead to a decrease in the use of groundwater pumping non-revenue water and GPCD numbers. The use of reuse water will also reduce the amount of supply water that gets

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

counted as billed-not metered water which can help minimize water rates.

- 8. Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp
 - Objective: Meets objective by maintaining a degree of infrastructure.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1, 3, 4, and 5. Written policy and implementation of mapping leaks will aid in increasing the data validity score, help reduce non-revenue water by identifying and repairing problem areas, creating a more accurate tool for determining infrastructure costs for budget which leads to better rate analyses, and reduce GPCD by identifying and replacing problem areas reducing waste.
- 9. Water Main GIS File Updated Routinely
 - Objective: Meets objective by maintaining a degree of infrastructure and creating tools needed to promote a sustainable infrastructure system to conserve and protect water for future generations.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1, 3, and 5. Written policy and implementation of maintaining a water main GIS file will aid in increasing the data validity score by improving infrastructure management, and help reduce non-revenue water and GPCD by having the capability to easily identify the location of water mains and shutoff points to minimize waste.

10. Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)

- Objective: Meets objective by increasing the efficiency in the way we deliver water to our customers by identifying errors in consumption data prior to billing, helps create a rate structure which covers the cost of the utility and promotes water conservation while keeping water rates as low as possible by improving the data used to determine the rate structure, and contributes to the operation of the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by identifying leaks and illegal uses early.
- Goals: Aligns with goals 1, 2, 3, and 5. Written policy and implementation of creating billing report indicators prior to billing will aid in increasing the data validity score by improving data used to calculate the data validity score, help reduce non-revenue water and GPCD through improved data collection processes and in identifying leaks and illegal uses, and aid in better data collection for rate structure and rate analyses.
- 11. Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly
 - Objective: Meets objective by increasing the efficiency of the water system which allows us to understand all the dynamics of the water system which enables the City to reduce waste of water and ensures conservation of water for the future.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1 and 2. This conservation measure limited the City's ability to grade items in the water audit higher. By entering the unbilled-metered accounts into the billing system will help the City account for these water uses better allowing them to grade items higher, which will lead to a higher data validity score. This measure will also require a policy and procedure to be created, which aligns with the City's goal to write and implement policies and procedures.

- 12. Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly
 - Objective: Meets objective by increasing the efficiency of the water system which allows us to understand all the dynamics of the water system which enables the City to reduce waste of water and ensures conservation of water for the future.
 - Goals: Aligns with all five goals. This conservation measure limited the City's ability to grade items in the water audit higher. By identifying and reporting active and inactive service connections monthly will enable the city to grade these items higher on the water audit, which will increase the City's data validity score. This measure will also require a policy and procedure to be created, which aligns with the City's goal to write and implement policies and procedures. This measure will also help identify possible illegal uses and leaks from inactive service connections easier, which can lead to reduced nonrevenue water and a lower GPCD. By minimizing theft and waste, water rate increases can be reduced.
- 13. Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited
 - Objective: Meets objective by increasing the efficiency of the water system which allows us to understand all the dynamics of the water system which enables the City to reduce waste of water and ensures conservation of water for the future.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1, 3, 4, and 5. This conservation measure limited the City's ability to grade items in the water audit higher. By identifying and auditing inactive service connections routinely will enable the city to grade these items higher on the water audit, which will increase the City's data validity score. This measure will also help identify possible illegal uses and leaks from inactive service connections easier, which can lead to reduced nonrevenue water and a lower GPCD. By minimizing theft and waste, water rate increases can be reduced.

- 14. Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly
 - Objective: Meets objective by increasing the efficiency of the water system which allows us to understand all the dynamics of the water system which enables the City to reduce waste of water and ensures conservation of water for the future.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 1, 3, and 5. This conservation measure limited the City's ability to grade items in the water audit higher. By identifying, monitoring, and reporting pressure zones and tank levels will enable the city to grade these items higher on the water audit, which will increase the City's data validity score. This measure will also help identify possible leaks sooner, which can lead to reduced nonrevenue water and a lower GPCD.
- 15. Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated
 - Objective: Meets objective by being one tool that can be used to engage the public in water saving practices. This measure also promotes water conservation which aids keeping water rates as low as possible. Ordinances helps enable the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 2 and 5. Reviewing and updating water conservation ordinances leads to increased public involvement to create better written policies and procedures for which the public is likely to support. These ordinances are aimed at conserving water which leads to lower GPCD.

16. Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees

- Objective: Meets objective by being one tool that can be used to engage the public in water saving practices. This measure also promotes water conservation which aids keeping water rates as low as possible. Conservation oriented rates and tap fees help enable the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change.
- Goals: Aligns with goals 2 and 5. Conservation oriented water rates incentivize water users from wasting water and using more water conservative practices, appliances, and fixtures. Conservation oriented rates are aimed at conserving water which leads to lower GPCD.

17. Public Involvement Plan

- Objective: Meets objective by engaging the public in water saving practices. This measure also enables the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by gaining the buy-in from the water users.
- Goals: Aligns with goals 2, 3, 4, and 5. Public involvement generates a diverse collection of ideas that can be used to improve and/or create policies and procedures while gaining the support from and educating water users. Educating water users and getting them involved in water conservation leads to a water conscious community which helps lower non-revenue water uses and lowers GPCD. Public involvement also garners support for alternative rate structures and conservation-oriented rate increases.

18. Public Information/Outreach Plan

- Objective: Meets objective by engaging the public in water saving practices. This measure also enables the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by gaining the buy-in from the water users.
- Goals: Aligns with goals 2, 3, and 5. Public information and outreach educates water users which can increase the quality of diverse ideas that can be used to improve and/or create policies and procedures while gaining the support from water users. Educating water users and getting them involved in water conservation leads to a water conscious community which helps lower non-revenue water uses and lowers GPCD.

19. In-School Educational Program

- Objective: Meets objective by engaging students in water saving practices. This measure also enables the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by indoctrinating students in water conservation practices.
- Goals: Aligns with goals 2, 3, and 5. Educating students creates future adults with a water conservation mindset that can be used to improve and/or create policies and procedures in a sustainable manner. Educating students and getting them involved in water conservation leads to a sustainable water conscious community which can continue to lower non-revenue water uses and lower GPCD.

- 20. Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances
 - Objective: Meets objective by engaging the public in water saving practices. This measure also enables the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by reducing the amount of water used through the use of water efficient fixtures and appliances.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 2, and 5. Policies and procedures focused on the creation of ordinances that promote the use of water-efficient fixtures and appliances lead to lower GPCD.
- 21. Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices
 - Objective: Meets objective by engaging the public in water saving practices. This measure also enables the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by reducing the amount of water used through the use of low-water-use landscaping and efficient irrigation practices.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 2, 3, and 5. Policies and procedures focused on the creation of ordinances that promote the use of water-efficient fixtures and appliances lead to lower non-revenue water and lower GPCD.

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

- 22. Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes
 - Objective: Meets objective by engaging commercial users in water saving practices. This measure also enables the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by reducing the amount of water used through the promotion of efficient commercial and industrial water use practices.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 2, 3, and 5. Policies and procedures focused on the creation of ordinances that promote the efficient use of commercial and industrial water use practices lead to lower GPCD.
- 23. Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau
 - Objective: Meets objective by demonstrating to the NMOSE the City's commitment to water conservation which aids in keeping water rates as low as possible by keeping as many funding opportunities available. Maintaining a good-standing with the NMOSE enables the City of Deming to operate the municipal water system in a manner that conserves water for future generations and minimizes water supply shortages due to droughts and climate change by demonstrating the City's efforts to conserve water and gain positive reports from the NMOSE which qualifies the City for various funding opportunities.
 - Goals: Aligns with goals 2 and 5. Policies and procedures focused on maintaining a positive relationship with the NMOSE leads to increased funding opportunities that can be utilized to create projects that ultimately lower GPCD, such as water reuse projects, infrastructure projects, water conservation planning, etc..

5.5.2 Overall Timeline of BMPs as Related to Objectives

Table 18, below, shows the general timeline for the BMPs, listed in section 5.5.1, as they have been related to the objectives of this plan.

	TROLE TO	J. THMEENTE OF L			
BMPs	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024
Written Policy and Procedure with Periodic Reviews	Develop	Implement	Review	Continue	Review
Annual Completion of the AWWA Water Audit and NMOSE GPCD Calculator	Perform	Perform	Perform	Perform	Perform
Annual Meter Testing and Meter Calibration (Source Side and Demand Side)	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Meter Replacement Plan		Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue
Conservation Coordinator	Develop/Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue
Repair Known Leaks	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue

TABLE 18: TIMELINE OF BMPS

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

	TREE TO CON		2 01 2111 0		
BMPs	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024
Continue Efforts for Utilizing Reuse Water and Incentives for Home Reuse Projects	Continue	Public Input	Continue	Continue	Continue
Water Leak Locations Mapped with Date Stamp	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Water Main GIS File Updated Routinely	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Billing Report Indicators Prior to Billing (Hi/Lows)	Develop/Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue	Continue
Unbilled Metered Accounts Included in Billing System and Reported Monthly	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Active and Inactive Service Connections Reported Monthly	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Inactive Service Connections Routinely Audited	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Pressure Zones and Tank Levels Identified and Monitored Regularly	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Water Conservation Ordinances Reviewed and Updated	Continue	Review/Update	Continue	Review/Update	Continue
Conservation Oriented Rates and Tap Fees		Public Input	Review	Continue	Review
Public Involvement Plan	Develop	Implement	Continue	Continue	Continue
Public Information/Outreach Plan	Develop	Implement	Review	Implement Updates	Continue
In-School Educational Program		Develop	Meet with School	Implement	Continue
Requirements for New Development and Initiatives for Existing Residents for Installing Water-Efficient Fixtures and Appliances		Public Input	Develop	Implement	Continue
Promotion of Low-Water-Use Landscaping and Efficient Irrigation Practices		Public Input	Develop	Implement	Continue
Requirements for Efficient Commercial and Industrial Water Use Processes		Public Input	Develop	Implement	Continue
Annual Report to NMOSE Water Use and Conservation Bureau:		Submit	Submit	Submit	Submit

TABLE 18 CONTINUED: TIMELINE OF BMPs

5.5.3 Anticipated / Reported Results for the Entire Water Conservation Plan

- Data Validity Score The City's primary goal is to reduce the water utility's data validity score to a score equal to or above 71 by 2025. This will show improvements in the City's operational capabilities and raise the City to a loss control level of "Level 4". A level 4 status indicates that the City's focus should shift towards a more long-term strategy for water conservation efforts.
- 2. Written Policies and Procedures The City of Deming expects to have comprehensive water conservation related policies and procedures written and implemented within the first two-years of adopting this plan. An initial list of policies to be written have been identified in this plan. These policies are expected to drive the efforts of achieving all the goals listed in this plan.
- 3. Non-Revenue Water over Time The city hopes to reduce the amount of non-revenue by 65 MG/Yr by 2025. This is expected to be accomplished by implementing several of the conservation measures listed in this plan. Things such as better accounting of billing data, meter testing, calibration, and replacement efforts, identifying and auditing inactive water accounts, and tracking and fixing leaks are expected to be measures that will make significant contributions at lowering non-revenue water, whether real or estimated. Regular annual water audits and GPCD calculations will track progress and can be used as a tool to modify ineffective components of the plan and/or initiate components that are being neglected.
- 4. Adequate Rates to Cover Current Operational and Inter-Period Equity Infrastructure Costs The City recently enacted new water rates. The City has had to dip into reserves to cover annual costs of the utility. The City desires to get rates to a level that covers all annual operational costs as well as build reserves to cover future infrastructure costs.
- 5. System Total GPCD over Time The one long-term goal included in this plan involves reducing residential GPCD to a level below 80 GPCD within the next 15 years. The focus of this plan revolves around the short-term period of the next 5-years; however, the City felt that it is important to start thinking long-term which will be the link towards public outreach and involvement, which will be the focus of the City's water conservation plan in 5-years from the adoption of this plan.

6. References

- 2010 US Census. (2010). Retrieved January 20, 2020, from American Fact Finder: https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?pid=DEC_10_SF1_ QTH1&prodType=table
- City of Deming. (2010, August 9). *About Deming New Mexico*. Retrieved February 5, 2020, from City of Deming, New Mexico: http://www.cityofdeming.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=50&Itemid=37
- Cuddy, A. S., & Keyes, E. (2011). Groundwater Model of the Mimbres Basin, Luna, Grant, Sierra, and Dona Ana Counties, New Mexico. New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, Hydrology Bureau. Santa Fe: New Mexico Office of the State Engineer. Retrieved February 2020, from file:///D:/WRM%20Program/Internship/City%20of%20Deming/Water%20Conservation%20Plan/S amples/Technical%20Report%2011-1.pdf
- Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. (2018). *City of Deming 40-Year Water Plan.* City of Deming. Deming, NM: City of Deming. Retrieved January 2020
- Daniel B. Stevens & Associates, Inc. (2009). *City of Deming's 40-Year Water Plan.* Deming: City of Deming.
- New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions. (2020, March 1). Labor Force & Unemployment. Retrieved March 1, 2020, from New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions: https://www.dws.state.nm.us/Researchers/Data/Labor-Force-Unemployment
- New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission. (2017). Southwest New Mexico Regional Water Plan. State of New Mexico, Interstate Stream Commission. Santa Fe: New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission. Retrieved March 2020, from https://www.ose.state.nm.us/Planning/documents/Reg4_SouthwestNewMexicoRegionalWaterPla n2017_March2017.pdf
- New Mexico Office of the State Engineer. (2001, March). A Water Conservation Guide for Public Utilities. State of New Mexico's Office of the State Engineer, Water Use and Conservation Bureau. Santa Fe: New Mexico Office of the State Engineer. Retrieved February 2020, from New Mexico Office of the State Engineer: https://www.ose.state.nm.us/WUC/PDF/nm-water-manual.pdf
- New Mexico Office of the State Engineer. (2013). New Mexico's Water Conservation Planning Guide for Public Water Suppliers. State of New Mexico, Office of the State Engineer. Santa Fe: Office of the State Engineer. Retrieved January 2020, from https://www.ose.state.nm.us/WUC/PDF/Planning%20Guide_Final_.pdf
- Office of the State Engineer John R D`Antonio. (2011). *Guidelines for the Deming-Columbus Administrative Area.* State of New Mexico, Office of the State Engineer. Santa Fe: Office of the State Engineer. Retrieved February 2020, from

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

file:///D:/WRM%20Program/Internship/City%20of%20Deming/Water%20Conservation%20Plan/S amples/Guidelines%20for%20the%20Deming%20Columbus%20Administrative%20Area%20(2).p df

- Office of the State Engineer. (2013). New Mexico's Water Conservation Planning Guide for Public Water Suppliers. State of New Mexico, Office of the State Engineer. Santa Fe: Office of the State Engineer. Retrieved February 2020, from https://www.ose.state.nm.us/WUC/PDF/Planning%20Guide_Final_.pdf
- US Department of Commerce. (n.d.). *Explore Census Data*. Retrieved February 2020, from United States Census Bureau: https://data.census.gov/cedsci/?q=population%20of%20Deming%20city,%20New%20Mexico
- Western Regional Climate Center. (n.d.). *Historical Climate Information: Weatern Regional Climate Center*. Retrieved April 2019, from Historical Climate Information: Weatern Regional Climate Center: https://wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?nm2440

Appendix A AWWA Water Audit – 2019 City of Deming



Instructions 1

Image: Construction of the sected of the
Image: Calculation of the calculation o
<form>between the web and between the web and betwe</form>
All volumes to be entered as: MLLION CALLONS (US) PER YEAR To select the correct data grading for each inpliest grade where the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it. Master Mater and Supply Eror Adjustments Value: Value: Value: Value: Unalled unstered: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value:
To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where the utility mests or secrets all circles and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments ATER SUPPLIED Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and all grades blow it. Master Meter and Supply Eror Adjustments Water imported: Image: Construction of the grade and
ATER SUPPLIED Comme Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J
Volume from own sources: ¹ / ₂
Water imported: 0 0.000 MGYY Water exported: 0 0.000 MGYY Enter regative % or value for under-registration Imported: 1,297.286 MGYY Enter regative %, or value for under-registration Imported: 2 7 845.629 MGYY Billed unmetered: 2 2 7 845.629 MGYY Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered: 2 2 0.000 MGYY Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered: 2 3 16.2.16 MGYY Outpilled under a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 1 1.073.494 MGYY MGYY Value: Val
Water Supplied Numerical Numerical<
WATER SUPPLIED: 1,297.286 MGYYr Enter positive % or value for over-registration JTHORIZED CONSUMPTION Billed metered: 0 0 0 0.000 MGYYr Billed unnetered: 1 0 0 0 0.000 MGYYr Unbilled metered: 1 0 0 0.000 MGYYr Value: for help using option Unbilled unnetered: 1 0 0 1.073.494 MGYYr Value: MGYYr Default option selected for Unbilled unnetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed 1.073.494 MGYYr Use buttons to select ATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized consumption: 1 2 1.073.494 MGYYr Use buttons to select WATYr Default option selected for unauthorized consumption: 1 3.243 MGYYr Use buttons to displayed Customer melering inaccuracies: 1 1 3.26.699 MGYr 0.006 WGYr Default option selected for systematic data handling errors: 1 2.02.609 MGYr 0.006 WGYr Befault option selected for Systematic data handling errors: 1 38.057
THORIZED CONSUMPTION Billed umetered: Billed umetered: Billed umetered: Consumption Billed umetered: Consumption Default option selected for Unbilled umetered: Customer metering inaccuracies: Customer metering inaccuracies: Systematic data handling errors: Systematic data handl
Billed metered: 2 2 7 845.629 MGYr Billed umetered: 2 2 3 1211649 MGYr Unbilled umetered: 2 2 3 1211649 MGYr Default option selected for Unbilled ummetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 2 1,073.494 MGYr Default option selected for Unbilled ummetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 2 3 3 22639 MGYr Default option selected for Unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 2 3 3 32639 MGYr Default option selected for Unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 2 3 32639 MGYr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 MGYr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 MGYr MGYr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 MGYr MGYr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYr MGYR MGYr MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR MGYR
Diele uninetereit 0 0 0.000 MGYr Unbilled unmetereit 0 0 15.216 MGYr Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed 0 0 0 AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 0 1,073.494 MGYr 0 0 0 ATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 223.792 MGYr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unbilled unmetered: 16.216 MGYr Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed
Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed I,073.494 MG/Yr ATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 223.792 MG/Yr parent Losses Unauthorized consumption) 223.792 MG/Yr Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Q286 WG/Yr Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: Q Q
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 1,073.494 MGWr Image: Consumption State and Consumption Supplied ATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 223.792 MGWr Image: Consumption Supplied Consumption Supplied Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Image: Consumption Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 0 5 32.693 MGWr Image: Consumption Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 0 5 32.693 MGWr Image: Consumption Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Image: Consumption Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Image: Consumption Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Image: Consumption Consumption Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Image: Consumption Consumption Consumption Consumption Consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Image: Consumption Consumptin Consumptin Consumption Consumption Consumption Consumpt
ATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 223.792 MG/Yr Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 2 3 32.699 MG/Yr Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 2 3 32.699 MG/Yr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Apparent Losses: 9 38.057 MG/Yr real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 9 185.735 MG/Yr WATER LOSSES: 223.792 MG/Yr N-REVENUE WATER NON-REVENUE WATER: 9 451.657 MG/Yr Yater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered Stere DATA
ATTER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 223.792 MGYr Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: Value: MGYr uparent Losses Unauthorized consumption: 2 3.243 MGYr MGYr Value: MGYr Default option selected for unauthorized consumption: 2 3 32.699 MGYr MGYr 0.26% MGYr MGYr Systematic data handling errors: 2 7 2.114 MGYr 0.26% MGYr MGYr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors: 2 7 2.114 MGYr 0.26% MGYr MGYr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors: 38.057 MGYr 0.26% MGYr MGYr al Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL) 2 185.735 MGYr MGYr 0.26% MGYr 0.26% MGYr 0.26% MGYr 0.26% 0.26% MGYr 0.26% MGYr 0.26% MGYr 0.26% 0.26% MGYr 0.26% 0.26% MGYr 0.26% 0.26% 0.26% MGYr 0.26% 0.26% </th
upparent Losses Unauthorized consumption: 3.243 MG/Yr Image: Consumption and consumptinted and consumption and consustin and consum
Unauthorized consumption: 2 2 3.243 MG/Yr 02% C MG/Yr Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies: 2 3 3.2699 MG/Yr Systematic data handling errors: 2 7 2.114 MG/Yr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Apparent Losses: 7 38.057 MG/Yr al Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL) Real Losses = Water Losses: 7 185.735 MG/Yr WATER Losses: 223.792 MG/Yr NoN-REVENUE WATER: 2 451.657 MG/Yr Vater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered System DATA
Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Customer metering inaccuracies:
Customer metering inaccuracies 2 5 326.99 MGWr 30% 0 MGWr Systematic data handling errors: 2 7 2.114 MGWr 0.2% 0 MGWr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors: 2 7 3.0% 0 MGWr 0.2% 0 MGWr Apparent Losses: 2 38.057 MGWr 0.2% 0 MGWr tal Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL) Real Losses - Apparent Losses: 2 185.735 MGWr 0 MGWr WATER LOSSES: 2 23.792 MGWr 0 0 0 0 Non-REVENUE WATER: 2 451.657 MGWr 0 0 0 Vater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered 5 5 451.657 MGWr 0 0
Systematic data handling errors: 2 16 7 2 2.114 MG/Yr 0.236 (O MG/Yr Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed Apparent Losses: 2 38.057 MG/Yr real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 2 185.735 MG/Yr WATER LOSSES: 223.792 MG/Yr N-REVENUE WATER NON-REVENUE WATER: 2 451.657 MG/Yr Vater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered Yater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered
Apparent Losses: 2 38.057 MG/Yr al Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL) Real Losses = Water Losses: 2 185.735 MG/Yr WATER LOSSES: 223.792 MG/Yr NON-REVENUE WATER: 2 451.657 MG/Yr Yater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered STEM DATA
Item 1 Item 1 Item 2 Item 2
al Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL) 2 185.735 MGYr Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 2 185.735 MGYr WATER LOSSES: 223.792 MGYr DN-REVENUE WATER: 2 451.657 MGYr Vater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: ? 185.735 MGYr WATER LOSSES: 223.792 MGYr NON-REVENUE WATER: ? 451.657 MGYr Vater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered ? 451.657 MGYr
WATER LOSSES: 223.792 MG/Yr DN-REVENUE WATER: 22 451.657 MG/Yr Vater Losses + Unbilled Unmetered 451.657 MG/Yr STEM DATA 23 451.657 MG/Yr
NN-REVENUE WATER 2 451.657 MGYr Vater Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered 2 451.657 MGYr STEM DATA 2 2 451.657 MGYr
NON-REVENUE WATER: 2 451.657 MG/Yr Vater Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered 'STEM DATA
Vater Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered STEM DATA
STEMDATA
Landback as a single set of the s
Number of active AND inactive service connections: • • • • 5 • 5,500
Service connection density: 9 37 conn /mile main
re customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? Ves
Average length of customer service line:
Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied
Average operating pressure: s 2 3 50.0 ps
Customer reliai unt cost anoled to Apparent Losses / 2 9 502 \$/100 allons (US)
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 📲 📧 5 \$299.00 \$Million galons 🗌 Use Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses
Retail costs are less than (or equal to) production costs; please review and correct if necessary
ATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:
*** YOUR SCORE IS: 59 out of 100 ***
A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is individed in the calculation of the Water Audi Data Validity Score
see on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:
1: volume from own sources
2: Unbilled metered
2: Unbilled metered 3: Customer metering inaccuracies

Reporting Worksheet 1



Performance Indicators 1

	AWWA Free Water Audit Software:	WAS v5.0
L	User Comments Copyright 2014, AIR (b)	ts Reserved
Use this works	sheet to add comments or notes to explain how an input value was calculated, or to document the sources of the information used.	
General Comment:		
Audit Item	Comment	
Volume from own sources.	Taken from Public Works Director's "Monthly Metered Amounts" spreadsheet.	
Vol. from own sources: Master meter error adjustment:	Meters are manually read. Data is not logged automatically into an electronic format. Testing is only done when there seems to be a need for testing. meter error was assigned by guesstimate. Went with a negative 2% because meters are dated.	A -2%
Water imported:	N/A	
Water imported: master meter error adjustment:	NA	
Water exported:	N/A	
Water exported: master meter error adjustment:	N/A	
Billed metered:	Took this from the GPCD worksheet by adding 2019 annual totals together from each of the appropriate usage types. The data in the GPCD workshee from utility billing cycle reports from the utility department. This field was ranked a seven. Met most of what was required to be ranked at an 8, but lack structured meter testing and replacement plan/procedures on a routine basis.	et came ∢s
Billed unmetered;	All billed water usage is metered and no estimated or fixed rate procedures are used to bill for usage.	
Unbilled metered:	Taken from Public Works Director "Monthly Metered Amounts" spreadsheet. A copy of that report is included in this excel workbook and can be access cliking on this link. A rating of 5 was assigned, and may be generously assigned, due to lack of written documentation and missing some unbilled meter information for municipal buildings.	sed by ered
Unbilled unmetered:	This amount is precalculated based on a 1.25% default of Supplied Water. This was rated a 3 because of lack of procedures for accounting for some unbilled unmetered water, such as fire hydrants and municipal buildings.	known

Comments 1

Audit Item	Comment
Unauthorized consumption:	Pre-Calculated in worksheet.
Customer metering inaccuracies:	All customer meters were recently replaced and are expected to be in great condition. A grading of 6 was given because there is no structured form of testing and replacing meters, except when a customer or city employee suspects that the meter might be reading incorrectly.
Systematic data handling errors:	A grade of 7 was given due to the city having a computerized accounting system that is subject to annual fiscal audits from an outside source. Did not give an 8 because lack of review of account activation and billing operations biannually.
Length of mains:	This amount was taken from GIS shp file for water lines provided by City Engineer. Public Works Director had given a number of 150.39, but I went with the GIS number because it is easily documented. This was graded at a 4 because the data is accurate; however, there are several unknowns listed in the GIS shp file concerning type of material and locations.
Number of active AND inactive service connections:	This is somewhat of a guess. The maximum number of active connections for the year was 5284 connections, as documented in billing cycle reports. Cannot find information for inactive connections. A grade of 6 was assigned because I think the City can say yes to everything described for that grade. Can't determine if City can say yes to any in grade 8.
Average length of customer service line:	This is ignored since meters are located at residential/commercial users' property lines.
Average operating pressure:	This was provided from the Public Works Director. Uncertain for how this average pressure is determined. A grade of 3 was assigned, but may need to be adjusted.
Total annual cost of operating water system:	Given by Treasurer. Graded a 10 because City meets all criteria.
Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses):	Used instructions from handout given at a Water Audit training that was provided by NMOSE Water Use and Conservation. Basically it is a weighted average of 2019 charges. This was rated a 9 because a person knowledgeable in the M36 methodology does not review every 5 years.
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses):	This was calculated based on procedure from handout described above. Basically it was derived by adding power and chemical costs together and then dividing by water supplied. The power and chemical costs were provided from Treasurer. The water supplied is from the water audit. A grade of 5 was assigned because other pertainent costs were not added to the power and chemical costs. A note popped up in the audit that "Retail costs are less than production costs". I think this is probably accurate and is the reason City Council has recentrally approved rate increases.

Comments 2

		AWWA Fre	e Water Audit Software	: Water Balance	
•				Ameri Copyright	an Water Works Association. © 2014, All Rights Reserved.
	Wa	ter Audit Report for:	City of Deming / Water Department		
		Reporting Year:	2019	1/2019 - 12/2019	
		Data Validity Score:	59		
	Water Exported 0.000			Billed Water Exported	
			Billed Authorized Consumption	Billed Metered Consumption (water exported is removed) 845.629	Revenue Water
Own Sources		Authorized Consumption	845.629	Billed Unmetered Consumption	845.629
(Adjusted for known errors)		1,073.494	Unbilled Authorized Consumption	Unbilled Metered Consumption 211.649	Non-Revenue Water (NRW)
1,297.286	Water Supplied 1,297.286		227.865	Unbilled Unmetered Consumption 16.216	
		d	Apparent Losses	Unauthorized Consumption 3.243	451.657
			38.057	Customer Metering Inaccuracies 32.699	
		Water Losses		Systematic Data Handling Errors 2.114	
Water Imported		223.792	Real Losses	Leakage on Transmission and/or Distribution Mains Not broken down Leakage and Overflows at Utility's Storage	
0.000			103./30	Tanks Not broken down Leakage on Service Connections Not broken down	

Water Balance 1



Dashboard 1

合	AWWA Free Water Audit Software: Grading Matrix Amenangementation (Country) Award (Country) Award (Country) Amenangementation (Country) Amenang												
	The	grading assigned to each au	iit component and the corresp	conding recomme	anded improvements and activ	ons are highlighted	I in yellow. Audit accuracy is like	ly to be improve	d by prioritizing those items sho	wn in red			
Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10		
Volume from own sources:	Select this grading only if the water utility purchase streports all of its water resources () is has no sources of its own)	Less than 25% of water production sources are matered, remaining sources are estimated. No requiar meter accuracy tetring or electronic calibration conducted.	25% - 50% of treated water production sources are metered, other sources estimated. No regular meter accuracy teting or electronic calibration conducted.	Conditions between 2 and 4	50% - 75% of freated water goductes sources are matered, offer sources setimated Oceasional mether accuracy fetting or electronic calibration conducted.	Conditions between 4 and 8	At least 75% of beated water production sources are metered, or at least 50% of the source flow in derived from metered source. Matter accuracy testing and/or electronic conducted annually. Lass than 25% of tested meteres are found outside of 15% accuracy.	Conditions between 6 and 8	100% of freated water production sources are midered, metter ac curacy leading and electronic calibration of method instrumentation is conducted annuals, less than 10% of meters are found outside of +f-8% accuracy	Conditions between 8 and 10	100% of treated water production sources are metered, meter accuracy testing and electronic calbration of electronic calbration of the electronic conducted servis annuals, with less than 10% found outlide of +1.9% accuracy. Procedures are reviewed by a third party knowledgeable in the M36 methodology.		
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Volume from own Sources" component		to qualify for 2. Organize and launch efforts to collect data for determining volume from own sources	to qualify for 4; Locate all water production sources field, launch meter accuracy testing begin to install meters on unmetere sources and replace any obsolete	ion maps and in the for existing meters, et water production litefective meters.	to quality for 1 Formalize annual méter accuracy meters; specify the frequency or instalation of maters on unmater sources and complete replacement meters.	Esting for all source resting Complete red water production of all obsolete/defective	to qualify for B. Conduct annual meter as curacy bettin related instrumentation on a meter regular basis. Complete project to in defective existing, meters as that entit population is metered. Regular or repla «J. 8% accuracy.	ng and calibration of installations on a stall new, or replace re production meter ce meters outside of	to sualify for 10 Maintain annual meter accuracy tee resisted instrumentation by a limeter replace meters sutside of +6.3% acc meter technology, pikel are or mor isnovalve maters in affering to su accuracy.	Ing and calibration of netaliations. Repair or uracy, investigate new e replacements with their improve meter	Comparison 10 Standardize metre ac coracy test frequency to semi-annual, or mene frequent, for all maters. Repair or replace meters outside of r4-3% accuracy. Continuals investigatelpiot improving metering technology.		
Volume from own sources master meter and supply error adjustment.	Select rvis only if the water utility fails to have meters on its sources of supply	Inventory information on meters and paper records of measured volumes exist our encomplete and/or in a very choice condition; data error cannot be determined	No adomatic datalogging of production valumes, daily existings are strahed on page rescored without any accountiality controls. Flows are entibuted arrows the walder databated arrows the material databated arrows the material databated arrows the rescale and arrows and their databated any when grossily existent data error occurs.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Production meter data is logged automatically in electronic Sornat and reviewed at lead on a monthly basis with necessary corrections implemented. "Volume form own ourcer's takations instructed estimate of daily changes in takinatorage activities. Meter data adjusted when gruss data errors occur, or accession innetr reding odems the necessary.	Conditions between 4 and 8	Houly production meter data logged automatically is neveleved on at least a weekly basis. Due is adjusted to corner; gross error when metericitalmentation equipment maturation is detected, andres accuracy better, Tandatorage facility deviation colonization groups and calculating a basienced "V ourser from own sourced" compared, and data (spin in the archived data area constation and east a weekly back area.	Conditions between 6 and 8	Confluence production meter data is legad adumnikanity is minimed such parameter sites, a data inscholente correct gross error tem detected meterinformwartalion equipment matarication andior results of meter accuracy tetra. Tarakidoroga facility elevation charges are automatically used in "Visitine tem own sources" tabulations and data gass in the archived data are corrected on a data basis.	Conditions between 8 and 18	Computational system: SCADA as- imitian automatically balances from tom all exercises and storager, results accountability controls ensure that all data gaps that occurs in the archited Tarvida are gaik ky detected and corrected. Regular calibrations between SCADA and sources meters ensures minimal data transfer error.		
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Master meter and supply error adjustment" component:		to number for 2 Devolve a plan for restructure recordisegning vettern to cabure al fore data, et a sociedure to review fore data en a date, basis to detet instrumation also de solding metter of metters and related instrumentation, maters and related instrumentation, and obtaining manufacturer Berature.	In qualifying of the second se	ment on production el instrumentation at de tank level data in omputerbad system, or spraedheat to rakring changes and rakring changes and rakring changes as to a monthe basis to d data gaps.	handback Refer computered data (Alektion of worked & last or in hordy production marks data hair or reviewed & last or in week bands a detrict great data and anonike and gas week bands a detrict gas data hair or reviewed in week and an et organization of lastice of them in the extra are implemented on a week bain.		Ensure that infine disk scattered and achieved on at Ensure that infine disk scattered and achieved and detected ensure house basis. A data is involved and detected ensure conseted each busines day. Tankidirage levels visitions are ensured in a calcular polyularian meter atals for gross ensure and baccuracy contineed by institu-		<u>Instantion of the Annual Annu</u>		Iomartan IS Modor miter innovation for development of more accesse and because expensive foxematers. Cambridge to paramotidate disease access, accurate water development and more accurate water and innovements better record takistorage levels and archite the water informations in dong waters. Keep current with DADA and dia management getern but ensure that archited data twel- maniged and error fine.		
Water Imported:	Select n/a if the water utility's supply is exclusively fram its own water resources (ho bulk purchased imported water)	Less than 25% of imported water sources are metered, remaining sources are estimated. No regular meter accuracy festing.	25% - 50% of imported water sources are metered, other sources estimated. No regular meter accuracy testing.	Conditions between 2 and 4	50% - 75% of imported water sources are mellered, other sources edmated. Occasional meter accuracy testing conducted.	Conditions between 4 and 5	All lead, 75% of imported water sources are matered, mater accuracy testing and/or electronic c albration of related instrumentation is conducted annually for all moter installations. Less than 25% of tested meters are found outside of +1-6% accuracy.	Conditions betweer 6 and 8	100% of imported water sources are metered, meter accuracy watchs and electoric classification of related instrumentition is conducted annually, less than 10% of meters are found subside of +6.6% accuracy	Conditions between 8 and 10	100% of imported water sources are imstered, meter ac uracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted semi- annually for all meter instatations, with less than 10% of accuracy tests found outsale of +8-3% accuracy		

Grading Matrix 1

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

Grading >>>	n/a.	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Improvements to allusi higher data grading for Water monitor Valvere empresent auchiefe alling the estim auchiefe alling the estim to the second to the second bio material in second to bio material and the meleng installation melenging tables done and the melenging that allong melenities called by the second to the second trading of the second to the mean of the second trading of the second to the mean of the second meters and the second means of the second mean		<u>to examine trans</u> posteriore tals valide pro scalare posteriore tals valide pro scalare contrar nagovernative tals and examine a set a catalo methodo barrello meta tal second methor al importe value sources.	To application of the second s		<u>In analytics</u> formatics encoded and the second of the second water orders, parameters to start legislar meter accesso feeling and calculates of the encode instrumentation of the second of the encode of the second of the second of the second of the encode of the second second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of		Example only a state of the second se		Laudéberd Constituent accurse Marta for fair invers an a sen- presaita das ayang and safatorio et al raise inconstituition. Repuis ou relativa moleculatio et a pro- more relationaria provincia moleculatio et a pro- more relationaria for inconstituition et al en anti- mate relationaria for inconstituition et al en anti- materia meter accurse.		Lowertain 10 Studiet2e metri accurate ted freguere for anni arraul, er nova constant calentario in antei Instrumentation an a servi anual Instrumentation an a servi anual Segui arraultation antei a servi anual Segui arraultation antei a servi anual Segui arraultation antei a servi anual Contructiv neet galabiliti incomo nodemg technology.
Water Imported master meter and supply amor adjustment	Select nin Kitte Imported water supply is unnetweet, with Imported water quantite actimated on the billing invoices set by the Septement is the purchasing Utility.	Investory Information on Insolited metrics and paper records of metrics and paper records of metabolism of the service and be candidate, data error cannot be determined. Workin agreement/of with water Exponency in agreement of the service and the service and a relation requires lenguage concerning motion metagement and boding.	No automatic distallogging of imported apply columns, daily mediage are concerned on paper tradings are concerned on paper control to confirm data accuracy and the alternate of entrest and data gase in recorded volumes. Within gase in recorded volumes. Within gase in recorded volumes, within paper and region and are concerned testing but avague on the dealer of these and who conducts the leading.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Incorted supply materies flow data is begind automatically in electranic terms and environment all the electranic monthly basis to the Expecter with electranic according to the electranic electranic according to the electranic basis of the electranic according to electranic a content data frain electranic according to the for- meter scalar gramments and robus for- meter scalar gramments and robus for- meter scalar professional data management.	Constitions between 4 and 8	House kinocited supply metered size is logical submittably & reviewed on at loss a device basis to the Experie. Data is adjusted to correct provide the second supply and the maturation is detected, end to correct fearms canfered by meter accuracy before, and cases to the excited data as deviced and corrected data and second and corrected data and second and corrected data and and and and corrected and and and and and corrected data and and and and corrected data and and and and corrected particulation the second and the partners of the second and the partners of the second and the	Conditions between 8 and 8	Continuous Imported supply materies Tex-data is togged suternationally. A revenue can business data by the importer. Data is applied to over- meterions and applied to over- meterions are addented and encoupage as debited and the encoupage as debited and and applied to a period by and addition to period by profile both the selling and the porchasing Ullipy.	Conditions between 8 and 10	Computerized system (ECADA) as smiss automatically no colds sets which is extremely first accountable by the Equicity. They accountable that occur in the archeel novel data set guické dentrefan estremel and construct. A reliaire data tasé sato contract ances and accountable and management accountable accountable management accountable accountable management accountable management accountable management accountable management accountable management accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountable accountabl
ingrevenentis to attain higher data grading for 4V atter inspected master mater and supply error substrated compensati		To available to 2: Develop 3 plats to reflective recordinguing where to capture a flow data, set a procedure to nonvee free data on a calve basets of data. Input error, Otaban more relate entimation acque setsing interes, and obtaining instructure interes and realided indominations interes and realided indominations interesting instructure iterature. Reverse the vortiles agreement behaves the saling and portharmang Utity.	Instal accorate databases Instal accorate databases papely maters. Set a procedure to its monthy basis to detect noise anone Lucanch discussion with the Espan terms of the vittlen agreements reput losting and data mesagement, be- necessary.	Example for all pointers that account on imported pointers that account on the data on a third basis object point information and data on a third basis object point information and data suc- tified account of the data of the data of the count of the data of the data of the information of the data of the data of the information of the data of the latter ac- induction;		Equatives a series of the seri		tered flow clata is ourly biairs. Al data is corrected each	<u>to quark for r1</u> conduct accountability checks to co supply noticed data is reviewed and data of the Espansis. Results of all m Exponsis and the guarbases of UNEs a regular index index guarbases of UNEs the written agreement before the se- utility, at least every fo	nim that all imported orrected each business then accuracy takes and or sharing between the status a schedule for intractual leaguage in ling and the parchesing a years.	to mentale 10 Konkon materia menodations for development of more accurate and less agrance ithorneats, work with the robucerneats, work with mater robucerneats, work with the open and mantain productive relations (see the within agreement current with dear and equival language that metal the engling media of all parties.
Water Exported	Select n/a if the water utility sells no built water to neight ong water to leight of the water tailets (no exported water callst)	Less than 25% of exported water subces are metered, remaining pources are ontimated. No regular mater accuracy testing.	25% - 50% of exponent water sources are metered; other sources estimated. No regular meter accuracy testing	Conditions between 2 and 4	50% - 75% of exported water sources are metered, ofner sources estimation. O co asional mintor accuracy testing conducted	Conditions between 4 and 8	At least 75% of exponded water sources are metered, meter accuracy lesting and/or electronic calibration conducted annualy. Loss than 25% of lested meters are found outside of +2.6% accuracy.	Candilions between 6 and 8	100% of exocrited water sources are metered, mater accuracy testing and electronic esiteration of related instrumentation is conducted annually, less than 10% of meters are found outside of +1-6% accuracy	Conditions between 8 and 10	100% of exported water sources are motored, motor accuracy testing and electrone caloration of related instrumentation is conducted servi- annually for al mater installations, with loss than 10% of accuracy testiformed outside of % 3% accuracy.
Instrumentation attain house this a particle of Water Executer Volumet comprenent: Unity Leady accession scient of the Leady accession scient of the Leady accession scient comprenent accession attain of the Leady accession attain of the Leady accession attain on the Leady accession attained accession attained accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession acc		lis could for 2 Releve Sub addre subs generaties to proceeding uits 5 uppear, of the operating the Sub address of the could new the Subset of the operating of the reptice dist or stature so needed	To part for 4 Locale all exotate when source on aware male accuracy hatra to ex- mencorractions and inpace obsole	n misjos ond in Beld, siting metiers, begin ngcoeted water Baldefoc the metions	<u>to nual fror</u> Formalte ensui mette acurary t saler meter. Cadrue i tratalizo a egotisti - costitutate de cossitutate de e	esting for all exposed meters on uninetered and replacement of refers.	Consider prace to wait new program Consider prace to wait new program con all apported waits for contextual consistence of the contextual Regar or replace meters possible of	acé defective, matera 5. Martfale Annual ed volter matera 4. DN accuracy.	<u>Nestan juniar terres de la constitución de la cons</u>	g for all motors. Require as cursely, line stiggles measurements with eve maternaise unkey.	Bindings in the source for Bindings material sources for becars, for all shows in the sources of becars, for all shows wongshall all manary. Continue wongshall all manary metering the hidday.

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Water exponent matter meller and suppy error adjustment:	Calact rvs only if the valie utility fails to have marters on its exponted supply interconnections.	Investory Mormolos en suported motors and paper records of incomplete and/or in a very druge candidian, diarer cannot be determined. Writtin agreemento; with the utility purchasing the verter are missing an vertitien in segue language occuming metter management and betting.	No actimistic datalogging of exported supply roturnes, calv exported supply roturnes, calv records without any accountability randosts is controlled accountability randosts is controlled accountability agains in sconded valumes. Without agreement requires melle eta curacy beings auti supple on the details of how and who conducts the feature.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Exported metered free data is baged automatically in electronic format and eventual fault on a matrixly back, with necessary correctors represented. It was exporting the valent water and the entrops are deleted. A concern data bat exite for this process to protect bath the utility exporting the valent and the purchasing URL, writin agreement outs and clearly data meanment and clear for the sourcement protect and data sourcement and clear for mean exponences.	Conditions between 4 and 6	How you have the second duark method duar is logged advanced and a method on at long a week back by the utility earling the week. Data is adjusted to concert grows enrawise mail ancients is detected, and to concert there are funded motion and earlier them and the second and the second back as detected and concerts dual to in index of a long earlier dual to an index of the second dual to an index of the second addition to the purchase of Utility.	Canetitions between 6 and 8	Continuous expantes supply metered Tex-data is exped automatically & the second second second second second second second second second second second bala is adjusted to carried grain second second second second second second second second second second second second second Arr data ensistication and we retro and correction as cable second and correction as cable second particle balance second second second second Units and the participants of the Units and the participants of the	Conditions between 8 and 10	Compatible system (SCADA ar ambo adomitically records data ambo adomitically records data by the dath y ethics (aspective) the water. That accords as gain that occurs in this at three flows data and online data shall need and contract management ar revised by the sater (STM) and acching (STM) and and accord and acching (STM) and accord and and and contract management ar revised by the sater score every the yakes.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for YV attar exposite i mader mater and supply component:		to enable for 2. Develop a plan for reductore recordings a plan for reductore recordings of a procedure to social fore data on a call by balls to detect input errors. O balar more relative information advertised resident by conclusion plant meeting meters by conclusion plant meeting meters by conclusion and a final meeting of the social advector within agreement balance the within generation the social social social to be a social to be a social social to be a social to be a social plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to be a social to be a social to be a plant to be a social to b	In an air on a Install submote detaileighte squ tupply meters. Set a procedure to monthe basis to detect gross amou Launch discussion with the surch received entral of the within agreem accuracy testing and data menager ag more sary	smaril an unpartied evenes this data on a a laise and data genes ang utilises to jornity nita-regarding microsoft ent), revise the terms	<u>Bi quality for</u> Prefire computer lead on a collecton hours' exported study mether diverse bast on a weekly bast to detect a and gape. Make necessary core errors on a weekly	and archive to include data that is reviewed at cetto data anomales closis to enverantize basis.	<u>IC audit for 3</u> Encure that all experted methods activities on all least on touch that, and emeridable gaps are corrected o	dala is collected and Al data is revenued ech businiste day.	<u>to quality for 10</u> Conduct accountiality, reflects to re- maining their data is mensional and re- day to the utility sating the water. Sinching before the utility and the Establish as at hashing for a megatar rave contract-balance the utility and the subscript before the utility and the subscript before the utility and the subscript before a strength of the satisfier subscript before a strength of the satisfier subscript before a strength of the satisfier	nfirm that all exported enclude such business feaults of all ministra- though be available for purchesing. UNIX our hesing. UNIX agreements with the eavy fixe years.	to mentale 10 Konton metar manadams for devicement of more ac units and less part test by the second second second metar residences in second second part test by the second second second part test by the second second second part second second second second part second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second secon
					AUTHORIZED CO	ONSUMPTION					
Office anytories	n'a tot applicable). Salect ve onvi filte etto cutome action ble cutome action ble for event action a fut or face the vetures entered must be zero.	Less than 50% of customers with within 5 and billing if on mean methods and billing if on mean exist for the matche of the customer opputition	Al local Site of costoneers with a bank state of time for more transfer fait with block of the more marks fait with block of the site of the off local black of the site of the site of the black of the site of the site of the conservation is estimated. Linear banks or explorement: Black of the markshare explorement. Black of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement. Black of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement. Black of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement. Black of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the markshare explorement is a site of the	Conditions between 3 and 4	At least 75% of eucloneers with solutions based, billing from make encoding accounts, billing from make maning accounts, billing from make encoding a constructive with a cleant of the maker and account and encoding accounts and account and reactory with regist of customer makers, grint way maker maker reactory with regist of customer makers, grint way maker makers reactory account of the account of the makers and the account of the makers and the account of the account of the account of the customer makers are septised only conducted.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Altisant 00% of calibrems with volume based biting them mater hasts, could be added biting them mater index, could be added by the second set bits of the second set bits outside the second set bits outside the second set bits outside the second set bits outside the second set and them realistic second set index of the second set of second set bits of the second set and an end second set of anomal solfing of summery solidies constantial bits of second set of anomal solfing of summers anomal solfing of summers and anomal solfing of summers anomal solfing of summers and anomal solfing of summers and anomal solfing of summers anomal solfing of summers and anomal solfing of summers and anomal solfing of summers anomal solfing of summers anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anomal anom	Canations between 6 and 9	Al load 37% of codewere with with values band bling them refers used and start of the second start methods and the second start of the nuclear second start of the second black relation (1996) in Alorent Methods Relating (1996)	Conditions between Bland 10	A late DPA of customer even with variant later black their miner reader outs later than the later black their miner reader later than the later black their second later later than the later black the later later black that and later black the later black that and later black that later black that and later black that and later black that and later black that later black that and later black that black that later black that and later black that black that later black that black that black that black that later black that black that black that black that black that later black that blac
Ingresiments to allow Higher past grading for filled Mellend Consumption component:	If this is take fed factors and the coatern meter population is unreleased, consider adaptation of new party to write the customer population and upon metered volumes.	In public tar.) Conduct interdigations on tails on customer retraints in Subget appropriate number models. Interdigate values approximate values alturates.	Purchase and statistics: Purchase and statistics of the states with Catalog meter information denye states of motives of motives of states pulling system.	metered accounts er reeding success, meter read-vals to re. T.ed. a meteral stat computerzed	Example local Positivas are inder antes ou arretines a scoreta Elemente filite a titing and exaction accordence work more inder planent. Sound notific accordence work more metry planent. Sound notific accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accordence accorden		<u>I caulté rue</u> Partose de India destant unerdend a courte. El Autorem regione por por cel tar de la techno 19%, pallo de Autorem (entre estate de la techno 19%), pallo de Autored Natera (entre alcune) de la techno conjete partor a certe avança de la techno conjete la techno de la techno conjete recola se cela partore a ser avança estate autore al techno entre de la techno entre for partor autore al techno entre for partore		Lanaktiers Automati Keen Faange (Aktio y Antonieni automatis Launch Automati Keen Faange (Aktio y Antonieni Keisene) sacara taka y taka ya katio ya katio ya katio ya automati keisene ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya automati keisene ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya contak keisene ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya katio ya		Io martain 10 Continue annual internativity data actorta; no thru a physical by a like at very here years. Containe man that account of the contained actors and account of the contained account of the contained at the same show and the contained at the same for contained at the same show and the contained at the same for contained at the Martine for the same show and the here of the same show and the market on the same show and the market on the same show and the market on the same show and the same show and the same show and the same show and the same show and the same show and the same show and th

Grading Matrix 3

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
B led unretaret.	Detect Infa if it is the policy of the value utility to connectors and if has been confirmed by detailed autoring that all customers de indiced to be avaker molecula- no indestiturally unmetered ecounts exist	Water Life yook y deel por each potencementry at a factor to deal being anyober to deal to calculate the second second and the second second second of an each of the second second of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second seco	Wale alth volley design eache caderer naturing. Main Sed Ne billig is englisse. Dame relades billig is englisse. Dame relades billig alter anglese. Dame relades bill alter of billight of the gradman bill alter of billight of the gradman billight of the set of the set at relative relative size billight of starting registers are used to the startist relates as used to the startist relates as used to the set of the set of the set at relative size of the set of the set of the set billing divider cade.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Water uffer polity <u>other</u> meaning metering and volume band balang or general intervent participation of exemptions are a tack of flexible provide the second balance of the second balance account balance of the second balance of the second balance of the volume feed by exemption of the second unmetered by exemptions are and annual enterpresent second balance annual enterpresent second balance annual enterpresent second and annual enterpresent second and annual enterpresent second and annual enterpresent second and annual enterpresent second accounts.	Constitions between 4 and 6	Waternöfer solkry <u>dess</u> regime metering wir oberen sond störig bei entablikkel entergeliste sent för a perförd af kanotets such at mankalom societariste anternörer som enterförd societariste anternörer som enternörer annanz dessungetan bes är unterkeller indikular under sollt att som enterpör- nderbaal ummetered accounts.	Caretilions between 6 and 9	Wate stilly policy <u>may</u> replan- matering and values barne bangers as categories accounts (however, lists as a categories account) environ that SN at their a count and months and the state of the state counters are an and an and account season and a state increases and accounts are as a account season and a account season a	Conditions between 8 and 10	Water stills policy <u>deer</u> majore metering and states based bit tipper at sutterma accessing table to the top of bits of counts are considered and statistical constraints and the state based of the state of the state of the basis of counts of the state of the second via device states and methods.
Improvements to altain higher gata grading or f Billed Ummetered Consumption component:		In outsite tar.2 Condect research and evaluate collocet and an evaluate parky to require metering of the custome population, benefit gravity reducing a release and the standing and the metering preject is standing water meters in small sample of customer soccusts and periodically and the the meters or disologies the water consumers or disologies the water consumers or disologies the water sever dup periods.	<u>Institution of a network of the an</u> implements networked with public metalenis, custo for expany bail incluse servanis different metaler tran- diska for excent mesalement of uptions. Available site with access means to obtain outsite rotating customer motor relati	requiring customer metering study to which will provide Ut scale matering afficulties to demonstration wolumes. Begin aton	<u>to push</u> for a Refine policy and procedures to impr participation for all out obdy even universe or appression. So celly most requirements to install sufficient mote the number of unmeteres	one customar mitlering ist accounts. A esign onds to identify email- ring needs and funding reeds and funding of a significant reduce d accounts	based to install customer maters on Pearls to install customer maters on Pearls metering policy and proceeding accounts, installenge mancealing policy accounts, implement proceedings accounts implement proceedings accounts installenge accounts on the maters.	a full scale basis, as for ansure that all as, are designated for as Tarda-25-acc east colours a realised ing few unrealered stateson.	to quality for 11 Continue customer meter installation ands, who a goal to minimize unmate the efforts the relativation meters of the second second second second valuer contained	throughout this service red accounts. Bucklin access affrectible, and or otherwise measure on	to martain 10 Continue to infine addination methods for unmetered consumation and exober means is a catalitir interfine accounts as is economically feasible accounts as is economically feasible.
Unbilled meterod:	selectrica if all billing- exempt consumption is unmittend.	Billing practices everyal certain accounts such as manufacture works and a sublish count of unbitled mattered accounts is unrelatable Matter upkepa and matter rating an these accounts is area and not considered a poort. Cust be poor not enterelated and matter rating and these accounts is as and not considered a poort. But is on an accounts a point greet matter.	Dring practices exercicle etails accounts, such as munifield builengs to us of us callend, dated writen directives exist to justify this accounts of unified ecount of unified materiel accounts is unified materiel accounts is unified materies accounts is callend materies accounts is callend materies accounts is callend in a superimeter accounts is a simulation of accounts is a simulation based upon approximation per number of accounts and suppring accounts of same material so.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Defed written procedures permit biling anomption for specific popertays, but are user that regarding critical other types of eccounties Helder raciding a join inter polary and is sporade. Consumption is quantified than maker readings where evaluation The total number of unoiling, immaker ad account must be estimated abory oth consumption volumes.	Conditions between 4 and 8	Wattern politiker regisering kating semantations best bit atternet, and month on a guestionable. Haldwing and mover reacting for month bit buildings in reliabilit but grounds for object and and interest accounts of granified directly formulation is quantified directly formulation and granified directly formulation is demonstrated. Water comparation is granified directly formulation comparations and accounts of the scenario seation account of the scenario seation and account of the scenario seation accounts of the scenario seation account of the scenario seation account account of the scenario seation account of the scenario seation account of the scenario seation account of the scenario scenario seation account of the scenario scenario scenario seation account of the scenario scenario s	Canditions between 8 and 9	Vortimin and/o derinities the lighteriol of courts granted a time prevention. Contoner mean management and meter realing as considered according proteiles, but meter meding as considered a list all analysis and the second second and analysis the annual votes and, they need a reliable consult of such accounts a reliable consult of such accounts mode.	Conditions between B and 10	Classive of the policy literative is a litera- of an account policy literative acrossible, of the manufacture is literative acrossible accounts is a reformant. Occurrent moter management and in refer reading for these accounts given is not refere accounts of the the accounts in accounts mediae.
Ingrevenerds to etter higher dele grading for "Unbliet Metered Consumption" companient:		to eastfr for 2 Reasons the water utility's policy aboving certain accounts to be granted a silling esemption. Oran billing esemption, with clear billing esemption, with clear child be esemption, with clear child be esemption and the silling with the interaction accounts to a runneer of sure accounts to a runner.	Isourably for a Review hotore, writen directives an advoreg or earned accounts to be bit outline of a writen policy for biting chicks and grants an exemption, with the same the accounts to a rem hierasang the output of reading an excounts at least any excounts at least any	d policy documents g-eserrept. Draft an emptions, identify in a goal of iceping mum. Compiler inders en unbilled ually.	a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a		eter accurscy besting, ig activities for unbilled ring as billed accounts rocoas to ensume that ed and provided to the onese.	<u>to mercian 10</u> Pressess the tellifys shorephy in allowing any vater uses to go "universe". The possible to meter and fall all accounts, even if the free charged far water comanges to the start accounts mercins that vaster consumption is tracted and water waits them planchergiseles a detected and mitinbeel.			
Unblind unmaterial		Extent of unbilled, unnelsed consumption is an invited to antilethropicities and poor monthkeaping. Thad consumption is quantitied based apon a purely subjective admissia.	Clear extent of unbited, unmetered censoryston is unbited, unmetered outputser of events are randomy obscutnette é each year, confirming extense et é aux construction, but whout suffx ient documentation to quantify an accurre étamilie of the answer volume consumed.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Extend of unaited, unmetered consumption is partially intervent, and procedures exists of occurrent exists of entry such as a formula is used to particit the consumption from such exercise partici- ruming nuclistical by pipes afformers, multiplied by number of events).	Default value of 1.25% of system input volume is employed	Coherent policies exist for some forms of united, unmetered consumption but dhens avail toome valuation. Resistmible records eping for the annual volumes to be quarted tools are guestimated.	Conditions between 6 and 8	Clear pokers and good reconfidencemps with first some uses (ore valet avail a periodic telling) the transmission of telling and telling the transmission of telling and telling the transmission of telling and telling apartitied use scheduler of telling (the recently motified to the telling) of the transmission of telling and the telling and telling and telling (the telling and telling) and telling the telling and telling and telling telling and telling and telling and telling and telling and telling telling and telling and telling and telling and telling and telling telling and telling and telling and telling and telling and telling telling and telling and telling and telling and telling and telling and telling telling and telling and te	Conditions between 8 and 10	Clear policies with to identify permitted use of water in unbilled, unmattered fission, with the latestion of minimizing the type of consumption. Good and consumption against the formulae (free survey) and the particular formulae (free survey) and the particular value at they, entities to menter of eventig or use of temporary meters.

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Ingensements to attain higher data grading for "Unbled Unmatared Consumptor" component:		b. autility for 2 Unite the accepted default value of 1.2% of the values of easier space as an expected means to gain a reasonable quartification of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the their uses stated and unmetered new state uses the state of the state state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the sta	<u>In quarter for 5</u> Uters accepted default-value of 1, water supplied as in expedient relational guintific and Execute the documentation of ex- bisitioned. Next even using proport fine departments, contractions to a under volume negatiments for wate	5% of the volume of means to gain a of this use, rest: that have been contain the hydrasts- contain the head or from the hydrasts).	Is acutate for 4 Utile accepted default value of 1.25% of the culture of water supplied as an exception fermion to all such rars. The is particularly opportunits for water utilities who are within percents, and should forcus on other comparently since the volume of unbilled, unmattered consumption is stavak a relatively maid quarkety component, and their large quarks, component, and their large quarks to remove the	to cusally the B or greater Finaltee policy and begin to conduct field checks to better such trained force at two-conduct and testis and trained and testis and the sub- and testis and great volume of such use is suspected.	Is oxatis for 2 Assess water utility policy and poic unreletend usages. For example, e exists and pareful are issued to true person autistic of the utility. Create w us and advantation of the high personnet. Use same approach for di unmetered water usa	adures for various mure that a policy of the hydrady for the contract within procedures for not by water uptions of unbilled, ge	<u>to oually for 11</u> Refine written polo-odures to ensure ummettend water are oversene by pa poc as managed by water old by pert bo determine 15 man at files au auto to determine 15 man at files au auto converted to billed and/or m	had all uses of unbilled, structured permitting onnel. Reassess policy have value in bling elected status.	Iomatrian 10 control to the point of control control to the second second second to norther of allowate uses of valuer in unbilled and unmettered dashing Any uses that can beauty be consolid block and method second second methods.
					APPARENT	LOSSES					
Unauthorized consumption:		Eatent of unauthorited consumption is unknown due to unclear policies and poor recordiverging. Tobi unauthorited consumption is gueestimated.	Unauthorized consumption is a known occurrence, but its elevent is a mystery. These are necesarement to discurrent observed events, but periodic field report capture some of these occurrences. Total unauthoreate commention is approximated from this limited data	conditions between 2 and 4	Procedures exist to document some unauthorized consumption such as observed unsultivated fire instant parmings. Use translate ta quartify this coopuration (fire anning multicles by its device), multipled by sumber of events).	Default value of 0.25% of volume of water supplied is employed	Coherent policies exist for some forms of unauthorized consumption (more than simply file hydrant mesuse) but others away to chose evaluation. Reasonable surveillance and that dia under the policy. Yournes quantified by inference from these records:	Conditions between 6 and 8	Clear policies and good auditable recordingening mit for certain revents (inc. tampentry with wider methers), aligad beyasses of cutomer meters), but ofter occurrence have finded oversight. Total consumption is a commandation of volumes from formulae (there is dysocial floory) and subjective eithanes of aucordinmed consumption.	Conditions between 8 and 10	Clear policies exist to identify all known unachroted uses of water. Staff and procedures exist to provide enforcement of pok ies and edect volations. Each occurrence is necorole and quartified via formative phono tablow or emiliar retholds. All necords and calculations thould exist in a form that can be audited by a third party.
hyproximite to attain hypra- data podro ter Vinautorece Consumption ⁴ component		<u>to audit to 5</u> Use ac epided difficat of 0.25% of volume of valar spatial features are considered meter uses are considered meter uses are considered meter of the spatial meter of the spatial meter of the spatial meter of the spatial process are used as an of the bydiant openingial	La subtraction de la construction de la constructio	ystem leput volume uit wäker uses are c: unauthorited fre 3	to quality for 5 United to created defaulty suggests to 20% or created defaulty suggests and a suggest suggest suggests of the endowed suggest suggests of the suggest stages of the water sudding process.	Lo cualty for 8 or <u>intesting</u> Finance parkey updates to clean of the international of the con- that are summarized from those usages: the fail or conditioner usages mentione international failed to conditioner usages Financial of the top- doon audi already values of such use is suspected.	<u>to crash for E</u> Assess ward ratific poleratio form (a crasme or and account of annum- control of the second of the second control of the second of the second waters proceeding of the second waters proceeding of the second account of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of the second of th	ure that all known option are outlassed, resorted. Create documentation of consurgtion as they	<u>Leavent to 10</u> Refers within procedure and asign afforts sets out fundy occesses of manufact consumption. Explore inter- tions and the set of the set of the set of the set affort and the set out unadhered consumption.		Environmentaria Destructiones de international protectiones de international that abbor entrotes encorrange unadabtecter consumption de constructiones de la constru- ation de la constructiones atomicantes de la constructiones atomi
Container metering heaccuracter:	select vita only if the entire cutterner population is unmettered. In such as the volume enterned most be zero.	Container noteing wind, als with intergrants and experiments of meters, is meter recent on meters, is meter second or popular for any title of relationed and popular any title of relation det . Meterson any title of relation det . Meterson any title of relation det . Meterson populare meterson histocharge agentational meter histocharge agentational	Pour receivinging and index presign it incorporation for water that management in the same abute staff and funding resource to appraint it spreams in considering appraint is spream to considering and approximate the same term and approximate the same term management is spream to approximate management is spream to approximat	Conditions between 2 and 4	Reliable exceedings paints, packet and enables in presences at a reliable. The am replaced have a recursory lasting is croaked at annually for a start annual of annual paint annual than 1% of investory). A lender than 1% of investory. A lender than 1% of investory. A lender than 1% of investory in the investor and the investor investor and the start of the investor investor and of the investor investor and office the investor investor investor office the investor investor investor investor office the investor investor investor investor office the investor investor investor investor investor investor office the investor investor investor investor investor investor investor office the investor investo	Conditions between 4 and 6	A validate advictorie recordinaria po position de reviers e visat, 17 e enter population de reviers e visat, 17 e enter population holdes a net ce fran registre with support la course; Positie, Doi returner a gevene de course; Positie, Doi returner registrement course; Positie, Doi refuelte registrement course; Positie, Doi refuelte registrement course; Inscrutery votere is gound de curso ante de	Conditions between 6 and 8	Organs meter replacement and accuser stellar events holds upper stellar stellar stellar meters of reprogram and determined stellar stellar for various types of meters.	Ongoing meter replacement and accurace yisting result on highly accurate cutomer matter based on audity rest. This heating is conducted on samples of meters of a throughput to other audity accurate of throughput to those meters.	Open model of all John Collement meters and a follow as a monitorum meter number, account numericitation, kay, as and meter exercises, and and an another meter exercises and an another meter exercises and an another meter account of the collement meter population. New metering lot holdbox volume for the collemen meter population. New metering lot holdbox and an and an another and an another population. New metering lot holdbox methodotop:

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Customer meter inaccuracy valume" component;	If nha is selected because the customer meter population is unmédient, consider establishing a new policy to meter the customer population and upon metered volumes.	to usuality for 2 Oather available met er purchase records. Conduct lesting on a small number of meters balaved be the most inaccurate. Review staffing available of the metering poop and of the metering poop and of the metering products to better organize meter management.	In guals for 4 Implement a retable record skeping imiter hildories, preferably using Spickally hilded by, or part of the Out or Customer thormation given accuracy testing to a larger gi	aystern for customer electronic methods atomer Billing System n. Expand meter oup of meters.	<u>to positiv for 6</u> Standardize the procedure for mate an election bioformation spectra biotomety finding and results.	i r recordlooping within Accelerate meter rents guided by testing	to asset for E Espand annual meta annual meta statuticiale application and courses for signals and number of poor performing	ting to evaluate a fer makesimodels o replace statistic ally meters each year.	Lo curatify for 3 Contrave of drifts for manage meter population with initiality significant number of meters such year and analyze tet results in an angiong manner to serve as a basis for a larged math replacement strategies with the server valume throughput.	to auxility for 10 Continue efforts to manage meter pipulation with reliable necordicesping, meter testing and replacement. Evolusite new meter types and install one or more types in 5-10 customer accounts with improving metering technology.	In matching of heaters sector and registered as sufficiently meter development of users of the development of new metering tachinology and obscincted Memory development of new metering tachinology and obscincted Memory appointunities for grader as cursey in metering of weak flow and management of customer consumption data.
Systematic Data Handling Emorie	Note: all water ut Blies incur some amount of this error. Even in water utilities with unmetered customer populations and fixed rate bling, errors occur in annual bling abulations. Enter a positive value for the volume and select a grading.	Policies and procedures for activation of new customer water billing accounts we reque and lock accountability. Billing data is markatived on paper records which are not well expanded. Na audeting is conducted to contimibility data homosper efficiency. An exclose resultine billing due to lack of billing process oversight.	Policy and procedures for activition of new customer accounts and oversight of billing records exists for metal-accounts and account of the instrument of policy of the account database. Only periodic undiructured to confirm billing data handing efficiency. The volume of unbilled water due to billing lapses is a guess.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Paiky and procedures for new account activation and oversight of information account of the information of the continuous of the one of the one of the other other other other other other other other other other other other other information of the other other other information of the other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other other	Conditions between 4 and 6	Policy and procedures for new accessit activation and oversight of billing operations is adopting and interpret of the second second activity of resorting available. Any different alting any distance of the other activity of the second activity of the second second second activity resonable accurate quantification of compared activity and second billing later error conducted annually. Resonable accurate quantification of compared by accurate quantification of compared by the second second second activity later error conducted annually.	Conditions between 8 and 8	New account activation and billing operations policy and proceedures are reviewed all and att biominuity. Computered billing system housing data and system functionality. Checks are consulted studied by they and enginate race consumption to an experiment functionality. Checks are consulted attraction by and enginate and consulted studied conducted with hird party audit conducted with hird party audit conducted with hird party audit conducted with hird party audit billing basiss. Consumption to billing billing basiss. Consumption to billing bibling basis. Consumption to billing bibling basis. Consumption to bibling bibling basis. Consumption to bibling bibling basis. Construction to bibling bibling basis. Constr	Conditions between 8 and 10	Sound wellan policy and procedures enter for new sciourd admitches are oversight of calcimer billing operations. Reast computered billing entering weight with hunchcoards under a management of the science of the science of the science of the method are and a science of the handling entering weight and science handling entering are conducted in walk one every three years, ensuing consumption testing in the science of the weight are weight these years, ensuing consumption testing and deleted as it occurs.
Imprevements to attain higher data grading for "Systematic Data Handing Ford volume" component:		bio quality for 2 Draft written policy and procedures for activating new valee bing accounts and overnight of bing operations. Investigate and budget for computered customer bing register. Conduct initial auti of billing reccida by frave-tutaring the basic business processes of the customer accountibiling function	to quark for 4 Finate written policy and process new biling acc ounts and overall monagement. Interferent a compar- elystem. Conduct initials audit of bilis this process.	res for activation of billing operations reced customer billing ng records as part of	to quality for 8 Refine new account activation an procedures and ensure consisten- needed range billings. Ungrade or resilica cualito needed functionality - ensures that bill corrupt the value of consumption internal anneal audit p	Before many county for a transmission of the second secon		nt activation process e reporting capatility alloe regular auditing allog arror. Plan for nast once every five	to qualify for 10 Close petry/procedure toopholes the accounts to go unbilled, or data ha Fenare thak Ulling system spots are reported every billing cycle. Ensure party audits are conducted at lead o	allow some cuttomer nding errors to exit. utilized, analyzed and that internal and third nice every three years.	to maintain 10 Stay abread of customer information management developments and innovailans. Multiple developments of and infegrate technology to ensure that customer endpet information is wel- mentioned and encortalgoese are at an economic minimum.
					SYSTEM	DATA	r				r
Length of mains:		Poorty assembles and maintained paper ar-built records of ealthing weder main vialabitors makes sccurate deterministion of system pipe langth impossible. Length of mains is guesstimated.	Paper records in poor or uncertain condition (no annuel tracking of installedons 8 abandonments). Poor procedures to ensure that we water mains installed by developer are accurately documented.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Sound written policy and procedures east for documenting new valer main installishins, but gaps in management result in a uncertain degree of error in tabulation of mains length.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Bound wittlen policy and procedures exist for permitting and commissioning new water mans. Highly accurate pager receives with regular field validation, or electronic recents and asset management system in good condition. Includes system backup.	Conditions between 6 and 8	Sound written policy and procedures exist for permitting and commissioning new water mans. Bestration: recordiseping sixth as a Geographical information System (DIG) and asset management system are used to store and manage data	Conditions between 8 and 10	Bound written policy exists for managing water mains extensions and replacements. Geographic Information System (OHB) data and asset management data asset georee and random field validation proves truth of databases. Records of annual field validations. Records of annual field validation should be available for review.
ingenvennents to attain higher data gradng for "Length of Water Mahn" companent		to supply for 2 Assign personnel to investory current as but records and compare with customer barry enter to very burble to the pipelines. Assemble policy document deards permiting and document datan of water main matalations by the dility and building developent, biedding space in document and the data space building developent, biedding space building developent, biedding space building developent, biedding space discumentation of new water main instalations.	In quark for 4 Complete investory of paper re- indiablors for soveral years prior to polocitation of the soveral years and documenting new water ma	ords of water main b audit year. Review misistoning and in installation.	<u>to coatri for 6</u> Il halte updesimptorementa procedare 10 genetary come della procesa della pendago prior la sudi year, comet avi e	o witten pokey and isstoring new main records for five years nors or antisecns.	Lazer have the total of the set o	number of locations, r as a Geographic as justified. Develop dures.	<u>to autific for 10</u> Link Okographic Information Syst management databases, conouct, for Recard field welf kalden informatio	em (018) and asset to verification of data en al least annually	to maintain 10 Contrave with stand areated and and readom feel value of the stand areated and completeness address causey of the ayold m.

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	6	6	7	8	9	10
Number of active ANID inactive service connections		Vegue permitting (of new sonice connections) colory and our agéer reconfisiencie of coutomer connectorisatings result in suspact determination of the number of service connections, which might in 15% in error from actual count.	Deneral permitting palicy exists turt paper records, princedural pape, and wake overlaght result in quasitionals told for number of connectons, which many vary 5-10% of actual count.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Wittim a court activation policy and procedures exit, but with some gas in performance and swreight Comparterist information management system is being and the second state of the second paper records wears a second state of networks connection instatistions a utanaforments; but court can be up to 6% in error from actual table.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Written new account activation and overatibiling polities and procedures and adoptate and procedures proficially. Consultant of information manupartiest operating and information manupartiest operating and information manupartiest operating activation manupartiest operating test content of unance of service connections in balaved to be no mean than 3%.	Conctions between 8 and 8	P sizies and procedures for new eccount activation and overall simplify per-fitnes are witten, well-Structured managed computence information management section assists and noutine, periodit office checks and minimal refinan antifica and conductod Counts of connections are no more than 2% in error.	Conditions between 8 and 10	Bound within polcy and will managine and audited processing within a management of amria connection possiulton. Corporations of the management management is stem. Customer Birry Southern (DI) shortworks agree mail validation protects full of distances. Cound of connections records as being in amonia lens than 1% of the entre population.
Insrovements to attain higher data grading for "Number of Active and inactive Gentice Connections" component	Note: The number of Service Connections does <u>not</u> include fire hydrauf leadslines connecting the hydraut to the water main	to qualify for 2: Draft new policy and procedures for new account activation and oronal billing operations. Research and collect paper records of institutions & obsridonments for several years prior to audit year.	<u>to quality for 4</u> Refine policy and proc durate for me and overail billing operations. Rese recordsceping watern Courtowner Customer Billing System's to impos format far service connu-	w account activation arch computenzed formation System or we documentation actions	to multifier 1 Rothe procedures instance constance with new account activation and overall talking policy to addetism new service connections or discommission existing connections. Insprove processitis include all todats for all least the years potn to autifyesi.		23 auth for 0: Farmatce regular rever of new account activation and overal Ming operations policies and procedures. Launch random find totals of limited normal in fact atoms Develop reparts and auditing mechanisms for computenzed information management system.		In malify for 10 Cote any procedural opphides his allow installations to go instrumental. Unic computative differentiation management system with Geographic Information System (10) and formaties (indicinetion and information system) acting processes. Documentation of new or decommensioned service connections encounters size all weeks of chick is and balances.		<u>to mentaen 10</u> Continue offi standardization and random/fiele/valdation to inprave knowledge of system.
Here if subtractions of the second se	Note: If clustomer water	Orabligs 1-1 apply if calciner properties are unintered, if calciner indexes and and are kalled inside the calciner building permises, or The value (ub) yours and is reported to the testes encire oraeled on pring from the valuer main to the customer building. In any of these cases the values of the customer building the calciner building the calciner building permises, or the value (ub) yours and is reported to use (the wall or building to the customer building the calciner building the calciner building the calciner building the value of the customer building the calciner building the value of the customer building the calciner building the value of the customer building the calciner building the value of the customer building the calciner building the value of the value of the customer internation particular building the the value of th								Ether of two conditions can be met for	
	meters are to class outputs of the caloriner building needs to the caloriner economics of the caloriner economics of the caloriner economics of the caloriner action statute insulfilling and the reporting Vier statute and vier s	Vague polery witten to defeo the demension of valer colts owner witten servers connection pprog. Out to operange programs and the server of the server of the top and programs of the programs of the server of the programs of the server of the location and the server of the location and the server of the location and makes the server of location and makes and the server of the university location of many such stops.	Palary requires that the routh stop serves so the oblivation point between valid rule routh so that between valid rule routh so that created on parts. The parts from the softwarms that has contract to the softwarms that has been done to the routh routh softward by the caliform. Outh softward by the caliform - Outh softward by the measured in the hold.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Good policy requires that the cub- data parents as the definition point activation and allo constants and activation control of the instru- cedent of the instrument generally instants arounded inno- menant with activation and the mean second decommend. The mean second decommendation and activation of the detection the activation of the detection paper recurstle of lineae accuracy.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Citian settion polity vester to software utility concerning and concerning the con- one for and analogue or basis set-forward and a page or basis setting and the concerning and the setting and the concerning and concerning any page of the concerning page of the concerning and concerning any page of the concerning concerning any page of the concerning concerning any page of the concerning concerning any page of the concerning and concerning any page of the concerning and concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the concerning any page of the conce	Canditions between 8 and 8	Clearly working raises attentions the the location of cars takes and moders, which are impart to Lacon installators. Account of other united to all the control of the strategies of the field choices to earther to call one of monther in the callones in takes and monther in the callones into paral monther into the callones into paral monther into the callones into the location monther into the callones into the location monther into the callones into the location monther into the loc	Conditione between 8 and 10	a) Cuttom and a rather eliter costs of cuttoms building and the sub- sciences and the sub- relation of the sub- relation of the sub- relation of the sub- relation of the sub- sciences pages, a sub- sciences and the sub- relative sub- sciences and sub- relative sub- relative sub- field sub- sciences and sub- difficit sub- sciences and sub- difficit sub- sciences and sub- sciences and sub- sciences and sub- sciences and sub- difficit sub- sciences and sub- scie
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Anrage Langth of Customer Bavkie Line" s emponent:		to confirm for 2: Resourch and other to point records of service the installations. Inspect second alters in the field using open bonkton to booth out object. Obtain the kergits of this errol sample of connections in this mannet.	In mails for 3 formals and community disposition detection without an even of the second second second participation of a varial second second second second participation of a varial second second second second second participation second second second second second participation second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second s		<u>to qualify for E</u> Establish otherent possestime to sensure that policy for cube site, index establishes and documentation is firstword. Oan consensus within the vade site for the establishment of a consultablish information menagement system.		to a sufficient of the standard of include region, the any via source of the standard of include region, the any via source of the standard of the standard of the standard of the process to conduct teld checks of a imited number of locations.		In analytic for 10 Link customer information reanagement system and Geographic information System (Sigk, standardze process for freq verification of data.		to mantum 10 Continue with standardz atlan and randemine validation to imprese Invalidage at service connector configurations and customer mater locations
Arenge operating pressure.		Available records are accordy accordinate and ministration of spacer characteristics and water characteristics and water characteristics and water candidness. Average aressure a productional devices and water from costel loopstoches in race. There can be according to the and pressure abute candidation protein pressure abute candidation protein pressure abute candidation protein protection status and and ratified components the watery of the everage pressure calculation.	Linited Skinsky roanizolog of attention junying at data i and water statement junying at data i and water state restore at data i and water provide the state of the state provide state at the state of the prostant containing and water the prostant containing water the prostant containing water the prostant containing water the prostant containing water prostant containing water gater is prostant contain in ground gater is prostant contain in the gater is prostant contain in the	Conditions between 12 and 4	Effective assessment carterist paperate different persona zaizer, moeinteilt wistern calculation zoize the wistern calculation zoize the diverse red discretistication of the Market diverse red discretistication of the Market metotorog of the distribution settern in galanesses data discretistication proteins of a pathweld by abaption discloselyses of the Market Discretistication of a pathweld by a discloselyses of the Market Discretistication of the Market Discretistication of the Market torographic and a discretistication of the of disc.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Reliable pressure controls assured solid clarations controls assured in counters that bench pressure and the solid claration of the solid manking of the difficulties optimized based between the solid claration presses control and solid program of the hydrolid water based based optimized to associate dispession of the solid vector based and the solid solid claration of the presses control and the solid program of the solid solid claration of the presses control and the solid claration of the solid solid claration of the solid the solid claration of the solid the solid claration of the solid the solid claration of the solid claration of the solid the solid claration of the solid claration of the solid claration of the solid the solid the solid claration of the solid claration of the solid the solid the solid the solid the solid the solid the solid the solid	Canditions between 5 and 3	Well-rearged, discrete pressure torescence with parameter pressure server the survey of the survey of the server the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey and called calls, and survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the electron survey of the survey of the survey of the electron survey of the survey of the survey of the electron survey of the survey of the survey of the electron survey of the survey of the survey of the electron survey of the survey of the survey of the electron survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of the survey of	Cenditions between 8 and 10	Well-managed pressure detrictations, BCADA System and hydraulic model with bare way ancies pressure data strateging the value of the factors with the strateging of the strateging of the strateging calculated fram detender, which was reported on an annual basis as a minimum.

Grading Matrix 7
Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
improvements to attain higher data gracing for "Average Operating Pressure" component:		to ousificitor.2 Employ pressure quaring andler detalogging equipment to ottain pressure measurements fram free hydronts. Loc als a countie tocographic and public solutions in order to contrin ground elevations. Results have data sheets to find oursp pressurethave characteristics	Exception for 4 Formation a procedure for to subgrid distance and procedure for to during version optime events of comparison optime events of processing optime events of processing optime optime optime data from these efforts available to average pretour	se pressure lather pressure data h as low pressure nes, identity fauty ing valvos, attuide Wels and pressure enerate estamonte	to sual to the Ergand the use of artisours gas exaptment to gather existence of trapsounciative and of dates, based or anter. Unlead and processing and component of the second trapsource of the second second second second of the second second second second of the second second second ensure process configures pressure process existent from those ashing wide average pres	ujingki Hilopging resoure data at a on prosoure zonas or povidats to determine are zone or district o persoure roducing to boundary vakels to zones. Use expanded sito penerato system- sure.	to quite for 3 Instal a Supervey Control and Data System, or ankier reaction enotifier splan paramters and centrol spe- cationston checked for instaumer accuracy. Datain accurate toograp pressue data gameed for ndia extensive, relixols data for pre-	Acquisition (SCADA) g system, to monitor rations, Set regular stori to here data sico data and utilize surveys to provide surve averaging	to quality for 1 Annually, obtain a citatra-Mds aven the systautic model of the distributo calabitative of the mass-overheats beliens and confirmed in compariso data.) ge preseure value from in gudern that has been the water distriction is with SCAD4 System	<u>to near set in the constraint of the constraint of the distribution referm and constant inling in this SCADA System for real- time pressure and calibration, and averaging</u>

Grading Matrix 8

Grading >>>	nía	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
					COST D	ATA					
Total annual cott of operating weder system:		Incomplete paper records and lack of there is eccounting documentation on many operating functions makes calculation of water system operating costs a pure guessimula	Reasonably maintained, but incomplete, page or electronic accounting provides data to retinue the major partinu of water system operating closs.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place. However, gaps in data are known to exist, periodic internet reviews are conducted but not a structured financial audit.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Poliable electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place, with all perthent water system coeraling costs functed. Data audided periodicale by utility personnel, but not a Cettified Public Accountiset (CPA).	Canditions between 6 and 9	Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost ace surpting system in place, with all partment water system operating costs tracked. Date autited at least annually by stille personnel, and al beat once every three years by third- party CPA.	Conditions between 8 and 10	Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place, with all perthentivester system sperating roots tracked. Data audited annually by utility personnel and annually also by bird-party CPA.
Improvements to altain higher date grading for "Total Annual Cest of Operating the Water System" component		to qualify for 2; G after available recently, institute new financial acc suiting procedures to regularly collect and audit basic cost data of most important operations functions.	le quality for 4 Implement an electronic cost ac structured eccording to eccounting stilles	ounling system, stendarda for water	to qualify for 5 Establish process for periodic interna operating costs; (derrify; cost data procedures for tracking these o	l audit of water system a geps end instate utstanding costs	Lo quality for 0: Standardize the process to conduct in on an annual basis. A manual for CP records at least once every t	outine financial audit A sudd of financial free years	to qualify for 10 Standardze the process to conduct audit by a CPA on an an	L a three-party financial nual basis	to mentain 10 Mantain program, stay alreast of expenses subject to ensure cost changes and tong-term cost trend, and budget/text costs practicely
Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses)	Customer population ummstered, and re-rolly a fixed fire is charged for consumption.	Antiquized, cumbersome witter role structure is ceed, with periodic listoric amendments brait ver- poordy documented and impermented, resculting in classes of customers bang billed inconsident being rate lowy offles significantly from the publisher water rate efforcture, but a lock if aucting leveres the cogress of enror instremniate.	Dated, combersome water rate structure, not akknow enroline consistently in actual biling operations. The actual composite biling rate is known to differ from the guidante actual estimate of the degree of error is orderminal, allowing a composite biling rate to be quantified.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Disajot-forward water rate shut how In user, built not updaled in solven in years. Billing operations (Habby employ the rate shut how. The composite billing all is derived how a single customer class such as neglisching the effect of different rates from waying customer classes.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Clearly writen, up to date water rate structure is in force and is applied reliarly in billing operations. Comparison of the structure characteristic rate of the structure characteristic rate of the structure in each rate block.	Candhons between 8 and 8	Effective water rate structure is in force and is explice reliably in alling operations. Composite outcome rate is deterrated using a weighted awarge composite consumption rate, which includes reliafed tail commercial, industrial, industrial and the reliable outcomercial classes within the water rate allocation.	Conditons between B end 10	Current, effective voter rele structure is In torie and applied releasion in billing operations. The rate structure and calc ustoms of competitive rate – which includes analeshid, commercial, incuting instances (C), and other memory of a third calculation memory of a third calculation incution and the structure of the incution of the structure of the structure of the structure of the incution of the structure of the s
Improvementate atlain higher data grading far "Customer Retail Unit Cest" component		to qualify far 2) Formalize the process to implement water rates, including a secure documentation procedure. Create a current, formal water roate document and gain approval from all statesholders.	<u>to quality for 4</u> Review the water rate structure and needed. Assuss billing operations to billing operations to apporte s structure	updateformalize as a misum that actual stablished water rate	to estably for 5° Evaluate volume of voter used in each usage block by read-antial users. Nutly volumes by fill rate structure.	Laurch effort to fully media the sustainer, population and, charter rates based, upon water volumes	<u>to qualify for B</u> Evaluate volume of valier used in eas classifications of users. M littley ro stracture.	h utsige block by all lumes by full rate	<u>to qualify for 11</u> Concurt a periodit third-party audi urage block by all classifications of u by full rate struct.	of water used in each sers. Multiply volumes are.	to maintain 10 Keep water rate structure current in addressing the water utility's recense needs. Update the cat usdan of the costomer unit hat as new rate costomer unit hat as new rate components, rusdomer classe, or other components are modified.
Variable production c ost (applied to Real Loopea):	Note if the water utility purchases/repicts is entre water supply, then entre the unit auchase cost of the bulk-vater supply in the Reporting Worksheet with a grading of 10	Incomplete ager records and lack of documentation on primary operating functions releast to paver and transmit costs must importable primarities a cast a sure guessitmate.	Researcheby mandaired, out noomplets, ager er alectrone accounting provides data for longiffe accounting provides data for longiffe datmate the baar longifactures (barnet of a set and calculate variable production cost).	Conditions between 2 and 4	Electionic, housiny-standard cost accounting sedam is place. Becarie reliable takeds and allow socurad weighted exclusion if and switchin preduction costs based on these box inputs and svater insorted justicabae costs of a pack balls, all costs are audited internaty on a periodic basis.	Consilions between 4 and 6	Debails etc brais, industry-standard contaccurative system in place with all antiment wave volumes consultan- costs traves of performance and water important such as a costs of appricably such as to bable, readed manual standard in the unit and the performance and the standard manual standard in the unit water performance and a standard in the supplement. The units of the standard in the list annuality writing personsel.	Carvellions between 6 and 8	Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost accurations preferin in place, with samable processor and water imported purchase of applicable costs tarkied. The data is subted at least annually by utility amounted, and it least one electronic and it least one electronic and methodologic.	Conditions between 9 and 10	Ether of two concisions can be not to ablain a genera of 10. (1) Their park CPA autor of a pertinent production and water monotes purchase of reprinted water and a built monotes in an annua bails. C2. Water supple is estimaly purchased as built monoted water, and not purchase of themes as the value perdication cont.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Variable Production Cost" component		to custify far 2; O after available recercle, institute new precedures to requirily collect and such base cost data and important operations functions.	<u>to qualify for it</u> Implement an electronic cest ac structured according to accounting stribes	ounting system, standards for water	In quality for E Formalitie process for regular hitem Costs. Assess whether a dolfload c management, equipment wear, imp apparation) should be included to representative variable pro-	al audite of production sits (liability, residuals iending infrestructure o calculate a more duction cost.	<u>Lo multify for 3</u> Farmalize the sec ourfing process to components (power, treatmend as a companents (abstut, restouted e manag to conduct audits by a knowledgeabl once every three yes	include direct cost val as indirect cost ement, etc.) Arrange e third-party at least ins.	Lo qualfe for 11 Standardze the process to conduc audit by a CPA an an an	i a third-party financial nual basis	to mentain 10 Mantain program, stay abreast of expenses uskject to emate coal changes and budgetback costs proactively

Grading Matrix 9



Service Connection Diagram 1

	AWWA Free Water Audit Software: WAS V5 0
	Definitions Copyright @ 2014. All Rights Reserved.
Item Name	Description
Apparent Losses Find	= unauthorized consumption + customer metering inaccuracies + systematic data handling errors Apparent Losses include all types of inaccuracies associated with customer metering (worn meters as well as improperly sized meters or wrong type of meter for the water usage profile) as well as systematic data handling errors (meter reading, billing, archiving and reporting), plus unauthorized consumption (theft or illegal use). NOTE: Over-estimation of Apparent Losses results in under-estimation of Real Losses. Under-estimation of Apparent Losses results in over-estimation of Real Losses.
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION Find	billed water exported + billed metered + billed unmetered + unbilled metered + unbilled unmetered consumption The volume of metered and/or unmetered water taken by registered customers, the water utility's own uses, and uses of others who are implicitly or explicitly authorized to do so by the water utility; for residential, commercial, industrial and public-minded purposes. Typical retail customers' consumption is tabulated usually from established customer accounts as billed metered consumption, or - for unmetered customers - billed unmetered consumption. These types of consumption, along with billed water exported, provide revenue potential for the water utility. Be certain to tabulate the water exported volume as a separate component and do not "double-count" it by including in the billed metered consumption component as well as the water exported component. Unbilled authorized consumption occurs typically in non-account uses, including water for fire fighting and training, flushing of water mains and sewers, street cleaning, watering of municipal gardens, public fountains, or similar public-minded uses. Occasionally these uses may be metered and billed (or charged a flat
	feel, but usually they are unmetered and unbilled. In the latter case, the immediate of the vace and the latter case is the vace and the vace and the vace and the latter case is the vace and the latter case is the vace and th
View Service Connection Diagram	This is the average length of customer service line, Lp, that is owned and maintained by the customer; from the point of ownership transfer to the customer water meter, or building line (if unmetered). The quantity is one of the data inputs for the calculation of Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL), which serves as the denominator of the performance indicator: Infrastructure Leakage Index (IL). The value of Lp is multiplied by the number of customer service connections to obtain a total length of customer owned piping in the system. The purpose of this parameter is to account for the unmetered service line infrastructure that is the responsibility of the customer for arranging repairs of leaks that occur on their lines. In many cases leak repairs arranged by customers take longer to be executed than leak repairs arranged by the water utility on utility-maintained piping. Leaks run longer - and lose more water - on customer- owned service piping, than utility owned piping.
Average length of customer service line	If the customer water meter exists near the ownership transfer point (usually the curb stop located between the water main and the customer premises) this distance is zero because the meter and transfer point are the same. This is the often encountered configuration of customer water meters located in an underground meter box or "pit" outside of the customer's building. The Free Water Audit Software asks a "Yes/No" question about the meter at this location. If the auditor selects "Yes" then this distance is set to zero and the data grading score for this component is set to 10.
Find	If water meters are typically located inside the customer premise/building, or properties are unmetered, it is up to the water auditor to estimate a system-wide average Lp length based upon the various customer land parcel sizes and building locations in the service area. Lp will be a shorter length in areas of high density housing, and a longer length in areas of low density housing and varied commercial and industrial buildings. General parcel demographics should be employed to obtain a composite average Lp length for the entire system.
	Refer to the "Service Connection Diagram" worksheet for a depiction of the service line/metering configurations that typically exist in water utilities. This worksheet gives guidance on the determination of the Average Length, Lp, for each configuration.
Average operating pressure Find	This is the average pressure in the distribution system that is the subject of the water audit. Many water utilities have a calibrated hydraulic model of their water distribution system. For these utilities, the hydraulic model can be utilized to obtain a very accurate quantity of average pressure. In the absence of a hydraulic model, the average pressure may be approximated by obtaining readings of static water pressure from a representative sample of fire hydrauts or other system access points evenly located across the system. A weighted average of the pressure can be assembled; but be sure to take into account the elevation of the fire hydrants, which typically exist several feet higher than the level of buried water pipelines. If the water utility is compiling the water audit for the first time, the average pressure can be approximated, but with a low data grading. In subsequent years of auditing, effort should be made to improve the accuracy of the average pressure quantity. This will then qualify the value for a higher data grading.
Billed Authorized Consumption	All consumption that is billed and authorized by the utility. This may include both metered and unmetered consumption. See "Authorized Consumption" for more information.
Billed metered consumption Find	All metered consumption which is billed to retail customers, including all groups of customers such as domestic, commercial, industrial or institutional. It does NOT include water supplied to neighboring utilities (water exported) which is metered and billed. Be sure to subtract any consumption for exported water sales that may be included in threse billing roles. Water supplied as exports to neighboring water utilities should be included only in the Water Exported component. The metered consumption data can be taken directly from billing records for the water audit period. The accuracy of yearly metered consumption data can be refined by including an adjustment to account for customer meter reading lag time since not all customer meters are read on the same day of the meter reading period. However additional analysis is necessary to determine the lag time adjustment value, which may or may not be significant.
Billed unmetered consumption Find	All billed consumption which is calculated based on estimates or norms from water usage sites that have been determined by utility policy to be left unmetered. This is typically a very small component in systems that maintain a policy to meter their customer population. However, this quantity can be the key consumption component in utilities that have not adopted a universal metering policy. This component should NOT include any water that is supplied to neighboring utilities (water exported) which is unmetered but billed. Water supplied as exports to neighboring water utilities should be included only in the Water Exported component.

Definitions 1

ltem Name	Description
Customer metering inaccuracies Find	Apparent water losses caused by the collective under-registration of customer water meters. Many customer water meters gradually wear as large cumulative volumes of water are passed through them over time. This causes the meters to under-register the flow of water. This occurrence is common with smaller residential meters of sizes 56/inch and 3/4 inch after they have registered very large cumulative volumes of water, which generally occurs only after periods of years. For meters sized 1-inch and larger - typical of multi-unit residential, commercial and industrial accounts - meter under-registration can occur from wear or from the improper application of the meter; i.e. installing the wrong type of meter or the wrong size of meter, for the flow pattern (profile) of the consumer. For instance, many larger meters have reduced accuracy at low flows. If an oversized meter is installed, most of the time the routine flow will occur in the low flow range of the meter, and a significant portion of it may not be registered. It is important to properly select and install all meters, but particularly large customer meters, size 1-inch and larger. The auditor has two options for entering data for this component of the audit. The auditor can enter a percentage under-registration (typically an estimated value), this will apply the selected percentage to the two categories of metered consumption to determine the volume of water not recorded due to customer meter inaccuracy. Note that this percentage to the two categories of metered components. Alternatively, if the auditor has substantial data from meter testing activities, he or she can calculate their own loss volumes, and this volume may be entered directly. Note that a value of zero will be accepted but an alert will appear asking if the customer population is unmetered. Since all metered systems have some degree of inaccuracy, a positive value should be entered. A value of zero in this component is valid only if the water utility does not meter its populatio
Customer retail unit cost Find	The Customer Retail Unit Cost represents the charge that customers pay for water service. This unit cost is applied routinely to the components of Apparent Loss, since these losses represent water reaching customers but not (fully) paid for. Since most water utilities have a rate structure that includes a variety of different costs based upon class of customer, a weighted average of individual costs and number of customer accounts in each class can be calculated to determine a single composite cost that should be entered into this cell. Finally, the weighted average cost should also include additional charges for sewer, storm water or biosolids processing, <u>but only if</u> these charges are based upon the volume of potable water consumed. For water utilities in regions with limited water resources and a questionable ability to meet the drinking water demands in the future, the Customer Retail Unit Cost might also be applied to value the Real Losses; instead of applying the Variable Production Cost to Real Losses. In this way, it is assumed that every unit volume of leakage reduced by leakage management activities will be sold to a customer. Note: the Free Water Audit Software allows the user to select the units that are charged to customers (either \$/1,000 gallons, \$/hundred cubic feet, or \$/1,000 litres) and automatically converts these units to the units that appear in the "WATER SUPPLIED" box. The monetary units are United States dollars, \$.
Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) Find	The ratio of the Current Annual Real Losses (Real Losses) to the Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL). The ILI is a highly effective performance indicator for comparing (benchmarking) the performance of utilities in operational management of real losses.
Length of mains	Length of all pipelines (except service connections) in the system starting from the point of system input metering (for example at the outlet of the treatment plant). It is also recommended to include in this measure the total length of fire hydrant lead pipe. Hydrant lead pipe is the pipe branching from the water main to the fire hydrant leads are typically of a sufficiently large size that is more representative of a pipeline than a service connection. The average length of hydrant leads aros the entrie system can be assumed if not known, and multiplied by the number of fire hydrants in the system, which can also be assumed if not known, and multiplied by the number of fire hydrants in the system, which can also be assumed if not known, and multiplied by the number of fire hydrants) / 5,280 ft/mile] car the total pipeline length, miles) + [{(average fire hydrant lead length, fit > (number of fire hydrants) / 5,280 ft/mile] or Length of Mains, kilometres = (total pipeline length, kilometres) + [{(average fire hydrant lead length, metres) × (number of fire hydrants) / 1,000 metres/kilometre]
NON-REVENUE WATER Find	= Apparent Losses + Real Losses + Unbilled Metered Consumption + Unbilled Unmetered Consumption. This is water which does not provide revenue potential to the utility.
Number of <u>active</u> <u>AND inactive</u> service connections Find	Number of customer service connections, extending from the water main to supply water to a customer. Please note that this includes the actual number of distinct piping connections, including fire connections, whether active or inactive. This may differ substantially from the number of customers (or number of accounts). Note: this number does not include the pipeline leads to fire hydrants - the total length of piping supplying fire hydrants should be included in the "Length of mains" parameter.
Real Losses Find	Physical water losses from the pressurized system (water mains and customer service connections) and the utility's storage tanks, up to the point of customer consumption. In metered systems this is the customer meter, in unmetered situations this is the first point of consumption (stop tap/tap) within the property. The annual volume lost through all types of leaks, breaks and overflows depends on frequencies, flow rates, and average duration of individual leaks, breaks and overflows.
Revenue Water	Those components of System Input Volume that are billed and have the potential to produce revenue.
Service Connection Density Find	=number of customer service connections / length of mains

Definitions 2

ltem Name	Description
	Apparent losses caused by accounting omissions, errant computer programming, gaps in policy, procedure, and permitting/activation of new accounts; and any type of data lapse that results in under-stated customer water consumption in summary billing reports.
	Systematic Data Handling Errors result in a direct loss of revenue potential. Water utilities can find "lost" revenue by keying on this component.
	Utilities typically measure water consumption registered by water meters at customer premises. The meter should be read routinely (ex: monthly) and the data transferred to the Customer Billing System, which generates and sends a bill to the customer. Data Transfer Errors result in the consumption value being less than the actual consumption, creating an apparent loss. Such error might occur from illegible and mis-recorded hand-written readings compiled by meter readers, inputting an incorrect meter register unit conversion factor in the automatic meter reading equipment, or a variety of similar errors.
Systematic data handling errors	Apparent losses also occur from Data Analysis Errors in the archival and data reporting processes of the Customer Billing System. Inaccurate estimates used for accounts that fail to produce a meter reading are a common source of error. Billing adjustments may award customers a rightful monetary credit, but do so by creating a negative value of consumption, thus under-stating the actual consumption. Account activation lapses may allow new buildings to use water for months without meter readings and billing. Poor permitting and construction inspection practices can result in a new building lacking a billing account, a water meter and meter reading; i.e., the customer is unknown to the utility's billing system.
Find	Close auditing of the permitting, metering, meter reading, billing and reporting processes of the water consumption data trail can uncover data management gaps that create volumes of systematic data handling error. Utilities should routinely analyze customer billing records to detect data anomalies and quantify these losses. For example, a billing account that registers zero consumption for two or more billing cycles should be checked to explain why usage has seemingly halted. Given the revenue loss impacts of these losses, water utilities are well-justified in providing continuous oversight and timely correction of data transfer errors & data handling errors.
	If the water auditor has not yet gathered detailed data or assessment of systematic data handling error, it is recommended that the auditor apply the default value of 0.25% of the Billed Authorized Consumption volume. However, if the auditor has investigated the billing system and its controls, and has well validated data that indicates the volume from systematic data handling error is substantially higher or lower than that generated by the default value, then the auditor should enter a quantity that was derived from the utility investigations and select an appropriate grading. Note: negative values are not allowed for this audit component. If the auditor enters zero for this component then a grading of 1 will be automatically assigned.
Total annual cost of operating the water system Find	These costs include those for operations, maintenance and any annually incurred costs for long-term upkeep of the drinking water supply and distribution system. It should include the costs of day-to-day upkeep and long-term financing such as repayment of capital bonds for infrastructure expansion or improvement. Typical costs include employee salaries and benefits, materials, equipment, insurance, fees, administrative costs and all other costs that exist to sustain the drinking water supply. Depending upon water utility accounting procedures or regulatory agency requirements, it may be appropriate to include depreciation in the total of this cost. This cost should not include any costs to operate wastewater, biosolids or other systems outside of drinking water.
Unauthorized consumption Find	Includes water illegally withdrawn from fire hydrants, illegal connections, bypasses to customer consumption meters, or tampering with metering or meter reading equipment; as well as any other ways to receive water while thwarting the water utility's ability to collect revenue for the water. Unauthorized consumption results in uncaptured revenue and creates an error that understates customer consumption. In most water utilities this volume is low and, if the water auditor has not yet gathered detailed data for these loss occurrences, and has well validated data that indicates the volume of water supplied. However, if the auditor has investigated unauthorized occurrences, and has well validated data that indicates the volume from unauthorized consumption is substantially higher or lower than that generated by the default value, then the auditor should enter a quantity that was derived from the utility investigations. Note that a value of zero will not be accepted since all water utilities have some volume of unauthorized consumption occurring in their system. Note: if the auditor selects the default value for unauthorized consumption, a data grading of 5 is automatically assigned, but not displayed on the Reporting Worksheet.
	IIARI (nallons(nav)=(5,411 m + 0,15N) + 7,51 c) ∨D
Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL) Find	where: Lm = length of mains (miles or kilometres) Nc = number of customer service connections Lp = the average distance of customer service connection piping (feet or metres) (see the Worksheet "Service Connection Diagram" for guidance on deterring the value of Lp) Lc = total length of customer service connection piping (miles or km) Lc = total length of customer service connection piping (miles or km) Lc = total length of customer service connection piping (miles or km) Lc = Nc X Lp (miles or kilometres) P = Pressure (psi or metres) The UARL is a theoretical reference value representing the technical low limit of leakage that could be achieved if all of today's best technology could be successfully applied. It is a key variable in the calculation of the Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI). Striving to reduce system leakage to a level close to the UARL is usually not needed unless the water supply is unusually expensive, scarce or both. NOTE: The UARL calculation has not yet been proven as fully valid for very small, or low pressure water distribution systems. If, in gallons per day: (Lm x 32) + Nc < 3000 or P < 355pi in littres per day; (Lm x 20) + Nc < 3000 or P < 256m then the calculated UARL value may not be valid. The software does not display a value of UARL or ILI if either of these conditions is true.

Definitions 3

Item Name	Description				
Unbilled Authorized Consumption	All consumption that is unbilled, but still authorized by the utility. This includes Unbilled Metered Consumption + Unbilled Unmetered Consumption. See "Authorized Consumption" for more information. For Unbilled Unmetered Consumption, the Free Water Audit Software provides the auditor the option to select a default value if they have not audited unmetered activities in detail. The default calculates a volume that is 1.25% of the Water Supplied volume. If the auditor has carefully audited the various unbilled, unmetered, authorized uses of water, and has established reliable estimates of this collective volume, then he or she may enter the volume directly for this component, and not use the default value.				
Unbilled metered consumption Find	Metered consumption which is authorized by the water utility, but, for any reason, is <u>deemed by utility policy</u> to be unbilled. This might for example include metered water consumed by the utility itself in treatment or distribution operations, or metered water provided to civic institutions free of charge. It does <u>not</u> include water supplied to neighboring utilities (water exported) which may be metered but not billed.				
Unbilled unmetered consumption Find	Any kind of Authorized Consumption which is neither billed or metered. This component typically includes water used in activities such as fire fighting, flushing of water mains and sewers, street cleaning, fire flow tests conducted by the water utility, etc. In most water utilities it is a small component which is very often substantially overestimated. It does NOT include water supplied to neighboring utilities (water exported) which is unmetered and unbilled – an unlikely case. This component has many sub-components of water use which are often tedious to identify and quartify. Because of this, and the fact that it is usually a small portion of the water supplied, it is recommended that the auditor apply the default value, which is 1.25% of the Water Supplied volume. Select the default percentage to enter this value. If the water utility <u>has</u> carefully audited the unbilled, unmetered activities occurring in the system, and has well validated data that gives a value substantially higher or lower than the default volume, then the auditor should enter their own volume. However the default approach is recommended for most water utilities. Note that a value of zero is not permitted, since all water utilities have some volume of water in this component occurring in their system.				
Units and Conversions	The user may develop an audit based on one of three unit selections: 1) Million Callons (US) 2) Megalitres (Thousand Cubic Metres) 3) Acre-feet Once this selection has been made in the instructions sheet, all calculations are made on the basis of the chosen units. Should the user wish to make additional conversions, a unit converter is provided below (use drop down menus to select units from the yellow unit boxes): Enter Units: Convert From 1 Million Gallons (US) = <u>3.06888329 Acre-feet</u> (conversion factor = 3.06888328973723)				
Use of Option Buttons	To use the default percent value choose this button To enter a value choose this button and enter the value in the cell to the right Pent Value: 125% • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •				
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses) Find	The cost to produce and supply the next unit of water (e.g., \$/million gallons). This cost is determined by calculating the summed unit costs for ground and surface water treatment and all power used for pumping from the source to the customer. It may also include other miscellaneous unit costs that apply to the production of drinking water. It should also include the unit cost of bulk water purchased as an import if applicable. It is common to apply this unit cost to the volume of Real Losses. However, if water resources are strained and the ability to meet future drinking water demands is in question, then the water auditor can be justified in applying the Customer Retail Rate to the Real Loss volume, rather than applying the Variable Production Cost. The Free Water Audit Software applies the Variable Production costs to Real Losses by default. However, the auditor has the option on the Reporting Worksheet to select the Customer Retail Cost as the basis for the Real Loss cost evaluation if the auditor determines that this is warranted.				
Volume from own sources Find	The volume of water withdrawn (abstracted) from water resources (rivers, lakes, streams, wells, etc) controlled by the water utility, and then treated for potable water distribution. Most water audits are compiled for utility retail water distribution systems, so this volume should reflect the amount of <u>treated</u> drinking water that entered the distribution system. Often the volume of water measured at the effluent of the treatment works is slightly less than the volume measured at the raw water source, since some of the water is used in the treatment process. Thus, it is useful if flows are metered at the effluent of the treatment works. If metering exists only at the raw water source, an adjustment for water used in the treatment process should be included to account for water consumed in treatment operations such as filter backwashing, basin flushing and cleaning, etc. If the audit is conducted for a wholesale water agency that sells untreated water, then this quantity reflects the measure of the raw water, typically metered at the source.				

Definitions 4

lte	em Name	Description
Volur sour mete error	me from own rces: Master er and supply r adjustment Find	An estimate or measure of the degree of inaccuracy that exists in the master (production) meters measuring the annual Volume from own Sources, and any error in the data trail that exists to collect, store and report the summary production data. This adjustment is a weighted average number that represents the collective error for all master meters for all days of the audit year and any errors identified in the data trail. Meter error can occur in different ways. A meter or meters may be inaccurate by under-registering flow (did not capture all the flow), or by over-registering flow (overstated the actual flow). Data error can occur due to data gaps caused by temporary outages of the meter or related instrumentation. All water utilities encounter some degree of inaccuracy in master meters and data errors in archival systems are common; thus a value of zero should <u>not</u> be entered. Enter a negative percentage or value for metered data under-registration; or, enter a positive percentage or value for metered data over-registration.
Wat	ter exported	The Water Exported volume is the bulk water conveyed and sold by the water utility to neighboring water systems that exists outside of their service area. Typically this water is metered at the custody transfer point of interconnection between the two water utilities. Usually the meter(s) are owned by the water utility that is selling the water: i.e. the exporter. If the water utility who is compiling the annual water audit sells bulk water in this manner, they are an exporter of water. Note: The Water Exported volume is sold to wholesale customers who are typically charged a wholesale rate that is different than retail rates charged to the retail customers existing within the service area. Many state regulatory agencies require that the Water Exported volume be reported to them as a quantity separate and distinct from the retail customer billed consumption. For these reasons - and others - the Water Exported volume is always quantified separately from Billed Authorized Consumption in the standard water audit. Be certain not to "double-court" this quantity by including it in both the Water Exported box and the Billed Metered Consumption box of the water audit Reporting Worksheet. This volume should be included only in the Water Exported box.
Wate Maste su ac	ter exported: ter meter and upply error djustment Find	An estimate or measure of the volume in which the Water Exported volume is incorrect. This adjustment is a weighted average that represents the collective error for all of the metered and archived exported flow for all days of the audit year. Meter error can occur in different ways. A meter may be inaccurate by under-registering flow (did not capture all the flow), or by over-registering flow (overstated the actual flow). Error in the metered, archived data can also occur due to data gaps caused by temporary outages of the meter or related instrumentation. All water utilities encounter some degree of error in their metered data, particularly if meters are aged and infrequently tested. Occasional errors also occur in the archived data. Thus, a value of zero should <u>not</u> be entered. Enter a negative percentage or value for metered data under-registration; or enter a positive percentage or value for metered data our-registration. The relater utility selling the water - then the results of this testing can be used to help quantify the meter error adjustment. Corrections to data gaps or other errors found in the archived data should also be included as a portion of this meter error adjustment.
Wat	ter imported Find	The Water Imported volume is the bulk water purchased to become part of the Water Supplied volume. Typically this is water purchased from a neighboring water utility or regional water authority, and is metered at the custody transfer point of interconnection between the two water utilities. Usually the meter(s) are owned by the water supplier selling the water to the utility conducting the water audit. The water supplier selling the bulk water usually charges the receiving utility based upon a wholesale water rate.
Wate Maste su ac	er imported: ter meter and upply error djustment Find	An estimate or measure of the volume in which the Water Imported volume is incorrect. This adjustment is a weighted average that represents the collective error for all of the metered and archived imported flow for all days of the audit year. Meter error can occur in different ways. A meter may be inaccurate by under-registering flow (did not capture all the flow), or by over-registering flow (overstated the actual flow). Error in the metered, archived data can also occur due to data gaps caused by temporary outages of the meter or related instrumentation. All water utilities encounter some level of meter inaccuracy, particularly if meters are aged and infrequently tested. Occasional errors also occur in the archived metered data. Thus, a value of zero should <u>not</u> be entered. Enter a negative percentage or value for metered data under-registration; or, enter a positive percentage or value for metered data order-registration; or, enter a positive percentage or value for metered data order-registration; and meter accuracy testing is conducted on the meter(s) - which is usually conducted by the water utility selling the water - then the results of this testing can be used to help quantify the meter error adjustment.
WAT	Find	= apparent losses + real losses Water Losses are the difference between Water Supplied and Authorized Consumption. Water losses can be considered as a total volume for the whole system, or for partial systems such as transmission systems, pressure zones or district metered areas (DMA); if one of these configurations are the basis of the water audit.

Definitions 5

Vater Audit Report for: Reporting Year: Data Validity Score: Level I (0-25) haudting and loss control metering deficiencies	City of Deming / Water Depar 2019 1/2019 - 12/2019 59 Water Loss Con Water Loss Con Uter Loss Con Vater / Level II (26-50) Analyze business process for customer metering and billing functions and water suppy operations. Identify data gaps.	tment atrol Planning Guid Audit Data Validity Level Level III (51-70) Establish/revise policies and procedures for data collection	Je / Score Level IV (71-90) Refine data collection practices and establish as routine business process	Level V (91-100) Annual water audit is a reliable gauge of year-to-year water
Level I (0-25) h auditing and loss control m; address production metering deficiencies	Water Loss Con Water / Level II (26-50) Analyze business process for customer metering and billing functions and water supply operations. Identify data gaps.	Audit Data Validity Level Level III (51-70)	Level IV (71-90) Refine data collection practices and establish as routine business process	Level V (91-100) Annual water audit is a reliable gauge of year-to-year water
Level I (0-25) h auditing and loss control m; address production netering deficiencies	Water / Level II (26-50) Analyze business process for customer metering and billing functions and water supply operations. Identify data gaps.	Audit Data Validity Level Level III (51-70) Establish/revise policies and procedures for data collection	/ Score Level IV (71-90) Refine data collection practices and establish as routine business moreess	Level V (91-100) Annual water audit is a reliabli gauge of year-to-year water
Level I (0-25) h auditing and loss control im; address production netering deficiencies	Level II (26-50) Analyze business process for customer metering and billing functions and water supply operations. Identify data gaps.	Level III (51-70) Establish/revise policies and procedures for data collection	Level IV (71-90) Refine data collection practices and establish as routine business process	Level V (91-100) Annual water audit is a reliabl gauge of year-to-year water
h auditing and loss control m; address production netering deficiencies	Analyze business process for customer metering and billing functions and water supply operations. Identify data gaps.	Establish/revise policies and procedures for data collection	Refine data collection practices and establish as routine business	Annual water audit is a reliabl gauge of year-to-year water
			hincess	efficiency standing
arch information on leak action programs. Begin arting analysis of customer billing system	Conduct loss assessment investigations on a sample portion of the system: customer meter testing, leak survey, unauthorized consumption, etc.	Establish ongoing mechanisms for customer meter accuracy testing, active leakage control and infrastructure monitoring	Refine, enhance or expand ongoing programs based upon economic justification	Stay abreast of improvements metering, meter reading, billin leakage management and infrastructure rehabilitation
	Begin to assess long-term needs requiring large expenditure: customer meter replacement, water main replacement program, new customer billing system or Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) system.	Begin to assemble economic business case for long-term needs based upon improved data becoming available through the water audit process.	Conduct detailed planning, budgeting and launch of comprehensive improvements for metering, billing or infrastructure management	Continue incremental improvements in short-term ar long-term loss control interventions
		Establish long-term apparent and real loss reduction goals (+10 year horizon)	Establish mid-range (5 year horizon) apparent and real loss reduction goals	Evaluate and refine loss contr goals on a yearly basis
		Preliminary Comparisons - can begin to rely upon the Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) for performance comparisons for real losses (see below table)	Performance Benchmarking - IL1 is meaningful in comparing real loss standing	Identify Best Practices/Best i class - the ILI is very reliable a real loss performance indicat for best in class service
	ction programs. Begin tring analysis of customer billing system	Eton programs. Begin ing analysis of customer billing system portion of the system: customer metre testing leak survey, unauthorized consumption, etc. Begin to assess long-term needs requiring large expenditure: customer meter replacement program, new customer billing system or Automatic Neter Reading (AMR) system. For validity scores of 50 or below, the shaded blocks s	cition programs. Begin ring analysis of customer billing system portion of the system: customer methods in the stating leak survey; unauthorized consumption, etc. for customer meter page control and infrastructure monitoring Begin to assess long-term needs requiring large expenditure: water main replacement, water unain replacement program. Begin to assess long-term needs begin to assess long-term meter customer meter replacement, water audit process. Begin to assess long-term meter billing system or Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) Establish long-term apparent and real loss reduction goals (+10 year horizon) Stablish long-term apparent and real loss reduction goals (+10 year horizon) For validity scores of 50 or below, the shaded blocks should not be focus areas until 1 Preliminary Comparisons - can begin to rely upon the Infrastructure leakage heads. (UI) for performance comparisons for real loss reduction goals (+10 year horizon)	Life or porgames. Begin ring analysis of sustomer billing system portion of the system: customer manufacture in the system. customer portion of the system: customer manufacture testing leak survey, unauthorized consumption, etc. for customer meter accuracy and infrastructure monitoring ongoing programs based upon economic justification Begin to assess long-term meds requiring large expenditure: customer meter registement, water main replacement program. new customer meter registem or Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) system. Begin to assess long-term meds requiring large expenditure: becoming available though the weter audit process. Conduct detailed planning, budgeting and launch of comprehensive improvements for meter data based upon improved data becoming available through the weter audit process. Conduct detailed planning, budgeting and launch of meter audit process. Establish long-term apparent and real loss reduction goals (+10) year horizon) Establish mid-range (5 year horizon) apparent and real loss reduction goals (+10) is meaningful in comparing real loss standing For validity scores of 50 or below, the shaded blocks should not be focus areas until better data validity is achieved.

Loss Control Planning 1

11

III F

	0						
	General Gui (without doing a full eco	nomic analysis of leakage control	options)				
Target ILI Range	Financial Considerations	Operational Considerations	Water Resources Considerations				
1.0 - 3.0	Water resources are costly to develop or purchase; ability to increase revenues via water rates is greatly limited because of regulation or low ratepayer affordability.	Operating with system leakage above this level would require expansion of existing infrastructure and/or additional water resources to meet the demand.	Available resources are greatly limited and are very difficult and/or environmentally unsound to develop.				
>3.0 -5.0	Water resources can be developed or purchased at reasonable expense; periodic water rate increases can be feasibly imposed and are tolerated by the customer population.	Existing water supply infrastructure capability is sufficient to meet long-term demand as long as reasonable leakage management controls are in place.	Water resources are believed to be sufficient to meet long-term needs, but demand manageme interventions (leakage management, water conservation) are included in the long-term				
>5.0 - 8.0	Cost to purchase or obtain/treat water is low, as are rates charged to customers.	Superior reliability, capacity and integrity of the water supply infrastructure make it relatively immune to supply shortages.	Water resources are plentiful, reliable, and eas extracted.				
Greater than 8.0	Although operational and financial considerations m as a resource. Setting a target level greater than 8	hay allow a long-term ILI greater than 8.0, such a le .0 - other than as an incremental goal to a smaller k	vel of leakage is not an effective utilization of wa ong-term target - is discouraged.				
Less than 1.0	If the calculated infrastructure Leakage index (ILI) value for your system is 1.0 or less, two possibilities exist. a) you are maintaining your leakage at low levels in a class with the top worldwide performers in leakage control. b) A portion of your data may be flawed, causing your losses to be greatly understated. This is likely if you calculate a low ILI value but do not employ extensive leakage control practices in your operations. In such cases it is potential to validate the data by performing field measurements to confirm the accuracy of production and customer meters, or to identify any other potential sources of error in the data.						

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

Loss Control Planning 2

Al <u>Exampl</u>	WWA Free Wate	er Audit Softv ed and Valida	ware: <u>ted Audits</u>	
Example 1a: Million Gallons: Example 1b: Million Performance Indic	Gallons: ators		Example 2a: Megalitres: Reporting Worksheet	Example 2b: Megalitres: Reporting Worksheet
Example Audit 1a:	WWA Free Wate <u>Reporting</u>	er Audit Softw <u>Worksheet</u>	rare:	WAS v5.0 American Water Works Association. Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved.
Click to access definition Water Audit Report for: Click to add a comment Reporting Year:	City of Asheville (01 2013 7/20	-11-010) 012 - 6/2013	e nlease estimate a value. Indica	te your confidence in the accuracy of
the input data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down All volum	list to the left of the input nes to be entered as:	cell. Hover the mouse	over the cell to obtain a descripti	on of the grades
To select the correct data grading for each input the utility meets or exceeds <u>all</u> criteria f WATER SUPPLIED	, determine the highest or that grade and all gra <	t grade where ades below it. Enter grading in co	Master lumn 'E' and 'J'> F	r Meter Error Adjustments Pont: Value:
Volume from own sources: Water imported Water exported water support	+ 2 7 + 2 r/a + ? r/a	7,352.880 MG/r 0.000 MG/r 0.000 MG/r	r + ? 3 r + ? r + ? Enter	
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION		7,007.430 199/1	I Enter	Click here:
Billed metered Billed unmetered Unbilled metered Unbilled unmetered Unbilled Unmetered Unbilled Unmetered Volume entit	+ ? 8 + ? n/a + ? 7 + ? 8 ered is greater than the	4,782.250 MGA 0.000 MGA 27.757 MGA 157.790 MGA recommended defa	r r F r III value	for help using option buttons below tent: Value: 157.790 MG/Yr
		4,967.797 MGA	r	percentage of water supplied OR value
Apparent Losses Unauthorized consumption Default option selected for unauthorized con Cuslomer metering inaccuracies: Systematic data handling errors: Default option selected for Systematic da Apparent Losses:	sumption - a grading + 2 7 + 2 5 ta handling errors - a	17.669 MGA of 5 is applied but 111.220 MGA 11.956 MGA grading of 5 is app 140.844 MGA	r prot displayed r r lisplayed lied but not displayed r	tent: ↓ Value: 0.25% ● ○
Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL) Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses:	2	1,958.789 MGA	'n	
WATER LOSSES:		2,099.633 MGA	ŕr	
NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered	?	2,285.180 MG/r	ŕ	
Length of mains: Number of <u>active AND inactive</u> service connections: Service connection density:	+ 2 4 + 2 7 2	1,236.5 miles 55,256 45 conn	/mile main	
Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or property line? <u>Average</u> length of customer service line: Average length of customer service line has been i Average operating pressure:	+ ? set to zero and a data + ? 4	Yes grading score of 1 145.3 psi	(length of service line, <u>beyon</u> boundary, that is the respons 0 has been applied	d the property sibility of the utility)
COST DATA Total annual cost of operating water system: Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses):	+ 7 10 + 7 10 + 7 6	\$33,630,676 \$/Yee \$3.22 \$/10 \$335.94 \$/Mil	ar 0 cubic feet (ccf) ion gallons Use Oustomer Re	tail Unit Cost to value real losses
WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:				
A weichted scale for the components of comp	** YOUR SCORE IS: 7	2 out of 100 ***	n of the Water Audit Data Validity S	icone
A way the scale for the components of the c	g the following component	istenda en el concultano IS	n on no mano nuon Data valioliy s	
	AWWA Free Water	Audit Software v5.	0	Example Audits 1



Example Audits 2

Example Audit Za:	AWWA Free Water Audit Soft <u>Reporting Worksheet</u>	WAPE: American Water Works Association. Copyright @2014, All Rights Reserved.							
Click to access definition Water Aud Click to add a comment Rej	t Report for: The City of Calgary oorting Year: 2013 1/2013 12/2013								
Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used, if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value, indicate your confidence in the accuracy of the input data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades All volumes to be entered as: NEG ALITEES CHILDES CHILD									
To select the correct data analized for each input determine the indext and where									
the utility meets or exceeds all oriteristic that grades and all grades below it. Master Meter Error Adjustments									
WATER SUPPLIED	< Enter grading in c	olumn 'E' and 'J'> Pcnt: Value:							
Volume from	own sources + 7 7 174,324.000 ML	Mr + 7 7 1.00% 👻 🔾ML/Yr							
W	ater exported: + 7 7 8,190,131 ML	∩r + 7 • 00% ⊕ ⊖ ML/r							
		Enter negative % or value for under-registration							
WATER	R SUPPLIED: 164,488.979 ML	Mr Enter positive % or value for over-registration							
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION		Click here:							
E	iilled metered: + 7 6 125,111.268 ML.	Mr for help using option buttons below							
Bill	illed metered: + 7 7 166.157 ML.	nr Nr Pont: Value:							
Unbilk	d unmetered: 💶 💈 6 1,444.000 ML.	Yr 🛛 🚺 🔅 🕸 1,444.000 ML/Yr							
		•							
AUTHORIZED CO	ISUMPTION: 7 130,224.811 ML.	Mr Use buttons to select Primercentage of water supplied							
WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Cons	umption) 34,264.168 ML.	Mr							
Apparent Losses	consumption + 7	Pont: Value:							
Default option selected for upau	thorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but	t not displayed							
Customer metering	inaccuracies + 7 6 1 265 429 MI								
Systematic data ha	ndling errors + 7 312.778 ML	0.25% ⊕ ⊂ ML/r							
Default option selected for S	stematic data handling errors - a grading of 5 is ap	oplied but not displayed							
Арра	rent Losses: 1,989.429 ML	Mr -							
Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)									
Real Losses = Mater Losses - Anna	rent Losses 32 274 739 M	0/#							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa	rent Losses: 7 32,274.739 ML.	n#							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT	Image: Second system Image: Se	ν ή							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER NON-REVENUE WATER	rent Losses: 2 32,274.739 ML ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML UE WATED: 2 35,874,325 M	N#							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER NON-REVEN = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Ummetered	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML.	hr hr							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA	Image: Second	ht ht							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER NON-REVEN = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Let	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ngth of mains: 4 7 8 4,945.0 klo	ሳተ ሳተ 							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Number of <u>active AND inactive</u> service Oversite is every	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 35,874.325 ML. righ of mains: 4 7 8 4,945.0 Null righ of mains: 4 7 8 312,075 312,075	hr							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER NON-REVENUE = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Let Number of active AND inactive service Service conner	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 35,874.325 ML. ngth of mains 4,945.0 ML. connections 9 312,075 ction density: 9 63 corr	hri hri meters m <i>A</i> km main							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Urmatered SYSTEM DATA Lee Number of <u>active AND inactive</u> service Service conned Are customer meters typically located at the curbstop or	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ngth of mains: 7 8 4,945.0 ML. connections: 7 8 312,075 oct on density: 63 property line? Nb Nb Nb	ht ht meters n.Am main (length of service line, <u>beyond</u> the property							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Ummetered SYSTEM DATA Lee Number of active AND inactive service conne Are customer meters typically located at the curbistop or <u>Average</u> length of customer	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: ? 35,874.325 ML. ngth of mains: ? 8 4,945.0 ML. ngth of mains: ? 8 312,075 S0 or connections: ? 8 312,075 63 or property line? r 8 12.0 m m	ht ht meters n.Am main (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property tres boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility)							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered SYSTEM DATA Lee Number of active AND inactive service Service comment Are customer meters typically located at the curbsop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Average length of customer	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. right of mains: 4 7 8 312,075 connections: 4 7 8 312,075 ML. oroperty line? 7 8 120 me me r service line: 7 8 120 me me	ht ht meters m.Am m.an (length of service line, <u>beyond</u> the property tree boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (head)							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER Yotar Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Les Number of active AND inactive service Service conne Are customer meters typically located at the curbsop or <u>Average</u> length of custome Average opera	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ngth of mains: • 7 8 4,945.0 ML. ngth of mains: • 7 8 312,075 ML. oction density: • 7 8 12,075 So corrections property line? • • 12.0 m et ing pressure: • 7 8 1.20 m et ing pressure: • 7 8 5.0.8 m et ing pressure: • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • <td< td=""><td>Nf meters m.Am main (ength of service line, <u>bewond</u> the property res boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head)</td></td<>	Nf meters m.Am main (ength of service line, <u>bewond</u> the property res boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head)							
Real Losses - Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVEN = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Unmetered SYSTEM DATA SYSTEM DATA Number of active AND inactive service Service conne Are customer meters typically located at the curbop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Average opera COST DATA	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 35,874.325 ML. ugh of mains 2 8 4,945.0 connections 2 8 312,075 ottom density: 2 63 oc property line? rs ervice line: 7 8 120 ing pressure: + 7 8 50.8 me	ht ht meters n.Am main (ength of service line, <u>beyond</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head)							
Real Losses - Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVEN = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Urmetered System Data	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. uge water system 7 8 4,945.0 ML. standard 7 8 4,945.0 ML. uge water system 7 8 4,945.0 ML.	ht ht meters n.Am main (length of service line, <u>beyond</u> the property res boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head)							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Le Number of <u>active AND inactive</u> service Service connection Are customer meters typically located at the curbistop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Average opera COST DATA Total annual cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appi	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ugh of mains: + 7 8 4,945.0 ML. ormections: + 7 8 312,075 oc connections: + 7 8 312,075 oc ction density: 7 63 oc or rservice line: + 7 8 50.8 me ting pressure: + 7 8 50.8 me water system: + 7 9 \$169,973,759 pr/r rrent Losses): + 7 9 \$2,35 \$7	ht ht meters mAm main dength of senice line, <u>beyond</u> the property tres boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head) ear 000 litres							
WAT WAT NON-REVEN WATER NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered SYSTEM DATA Lee Number of active AND inactive service Service connel Aver customer meters typically loc ated at the curbstop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Average length of customer COST DATA Total annual cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appy Variable production cost (applied to	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ngth of mains: 9 7 8 312,075 ocomections: 9 8 312,075 63 ocometions or property line? 7 8 12.0 m e uing pressure: 9 \$109,973,759 \$// water system: 7 9 \$109,973,759 \$// Prent Losses): 7 9 \$120,973,759 \$// Preal Losses): 7 9 \$129,73,759 \$//	Mrt Mrt meters m.Am main (length of service line, <u>beword</u> the property tres boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (read)							
WAT WAT NON-REVEN WATER NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Urmetered System DATA Les Number of active AND Inactive service Service conne Average length of custome Average length of custome Average opera COST DATA Total annual cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appy Variable production cost (applied to apple)	Image: Second system Image: Se	Nrt Mrt meters m.Am m.ain 							
WAT NON-REVENUE WATER = Water Losses + Unbilled Metered + Urbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Let Number of active AND inactive service Service conne Are customer meters typically located at the curbiscip or Average length of custome Average opera COST DATA Total annual cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appi Variable production cost (applied to Appi WATER AUDIT DATA VAL DITY SCORE: WATER AUDIT DATA VAL DITY SCORE:	Image: Section of the sectio	Nrt meters m.Ammain (ength of service line, <u>beword</u> the property tree (beught of service line, <u>beword</u> the property tree (head) ear 000 litres legalitre Clube Gustomer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses							
WAT NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Let Number of active AND inactive service Service conne Are customer meters ly pically loc ated at the curbistop or Average length of custome Average l	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. uge water system: 7 8 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 7 8 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 7 8 312,075 Score oth density: 2 63 oright Score Score rs ervice line: 7 8 1.0 me me uing pressure: 9 8 50.8 me Score Score<	NY NY meters n.Am main (ength of service line, <u>beyond</u> the property res boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head) ear 000 litres legalitre VLke Gustomer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses							
Real Losses = Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Ummetered SYSTEM DATA Let Number of active AND inactive service Service connel Are customer meters ly pically loc ated at the curbstop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Average length of customer Average length of customer Average log customer retail unit cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appy Variable production cost (appi Variable production cost (applied to Ap	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ugh of mains 2 8 4,945.0 ML. orgenty file? 8 312,075 Go connections 63 connections r service line: 7 8 12.0 me uing pressure: 9 \$169,973.759 \$77 water system 7 9 \$169,973.759 \$77 read Losses): + 7 9 \$77.354 \$4	ht ht meters n.Am main (length of service line, <u>bewond</u> the property tres (bead) tres (head) ar 000 litres legalitre ⊡Use Gustomer Retail Unit Gost to value real losses							
Real Losses - Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered SYSTEM DATA Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered SYSTEM DATA Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered SYSTEM DATA Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered SYSTEM DATA Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered SYSTEM DATA Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered Service conne Aver des lattice ourbistop or <u>Average</u> length of custome Average length of custome Average length of custome COST DATA Total annual cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apple Variable production cost (applied to WATER AUDIT DATA VAL DITY SCORE: A weighted scale for the comp	rent Losses: 2 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ugh of mains: 4 7 8 312,075 origh of mains: 4 7 8 312,075 oction density: 7 8 312,075 63 or service line: 7 8 50.8 me ing pressure: 7 8 50.8 me water system: 7 9 \$169,973,759 \$17 rrent Losses): 7 9 \$73,54 \$ML	htr htr meters mAm main (length of senice line, <u>beyond</u> the property tres (length of senice line, <u>beyond</u> the property tres (head) tres (head) ear 000 litres legalitre ⊡Like Gustomer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses ion of the Water Audit Data Validity Score							
WAT NON-REVEN = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Urmetered = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Urbilled Urmetered SYSTEM DATA Lest Number of active AND inactive service Are customer meters typically located at the curbistop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Are customer meters typically located at the curbistop or <u>Average</u> length of customer COST DATA Total annual cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to App Variable production cost (applied to App Variable production cost (applied to MATER AUDIT DATA VAL DITY SCORE: Aweighted scale for the comp PRORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION;	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 35,874.325 ML. uigh of mains: 2 5 4,945.0 Mil. oright of mains: 7 8 312,075 Sor reservice line: 7 8 50.8 me water system: 7 9 \$169,973,759 Sor rend Losses): 7 9 \$2,358 \$47 Real Losses): 7 9 \$73,54 \$	Mrt meters m.Am main (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property line) tree (length of service line) boundary, that setting the property line) tree (length of service line) boundary, that setting the property line) tree (length of service line) boundary, that setting the property line) tree (length of service line) tree (length of service line) tree (lengtho se							
Real Losses - Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Unmetered SYSTEM DATA Let Number of active AND Inactive service Service conne Are customer meters ly pically located at the curbiscip or <u>Average</u> length of custome Average length of custome Average opera COST DATA Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appi Variable production cost (applied to Appi Variable production cost (applied to Appi RUDIT DATA VAL DITY SCORE: Average for ATTENTION: Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improv	Image: second	NY							
WAT NON-REVEN = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Urmetered System DATA = Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Urmetered System DATA Let Number of active AND inactive service conne Are customer meters ly pically located at the curbstop or Average length of customer Are customer meters ly pically located at the curbstop or Average length of customer COST DATA Customer retail unit cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appy Variable production cost (applied to Appy Variable production cost (applied to Appy Variable production cost (applied to Customer retail unit cost (applied to Customer retail unit cost (applied to Appy Variable production cost (applied to App Variable product	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 8 4,945.0 ML. uge waters: 7 8 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 7 8 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 7 8 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 7 8 312,075 Gord otion density: 7 8 312,075 Gord property line? No 12.0 me 12.0 me uing pressure: 7 8 50.8 me 9 \$23.55 \$7 water system: 7 9 \$169,973,759 \$77 \$75 \$77 rent Losses): 4 7 9 \$169,973,759 \$77 \$73.54 \$40 water system: 7 9 \$73.54 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40 \$40<	ht ht meters n.Am main (length of senice line, <u>beyond</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head) ear 000 litres legalitre ☑Like Customer Retail Unit Cost to value real losses ion of the Water Audit Data Validity Score							
Water Losses - Appa WAT NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered System Data Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered System Data Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered System Data Lesses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered Service conne Service conne Average length of custope or <u>Average</u> length of custope or <u>Average</u> length of custope or <u>Average</u> length of custome COST DATA Total annual cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apply Variable production cost (applied to Variable production cost (applied to PUD RITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION: Based on the information provided, audt accuracy can be improv L'Obume from con cources 2: Billed metered	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 7 35,874.325 ML. ugh of mains: 2 8 4,945.0 ML. open of mains: 2 8 4,945.0 ML. open of mains: 2 8 4,945.0 ML. open of mains: 2 8 312,075 Mc. connections: 2 8 312,075 Go consection density: 63 property line? 10 me 12.0 me 12.0 me ing pressure: 9 8 50.8 me 9 \$73.56 \$M. water system: 2 9 \$169,973,759 \$M. \$M. \$M. rent Losses): 7 9 \$73.56 \$M. rent Losses): 7 9 \$73.56 \$M. onents of consumption and water loss is included in the calculat ad by addressing the following components: addressing the following components:	ht ht meters mAm main tres (length of service line, <u>beuond</u> the property boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (head) ear 000 litres legallite ⊡Lke Gustomer Retail Unit Gost to value real losses ion of the Water Audit Data Validity Score							
WAT WAT NON-REVEN Water Losses + Unbilled Matered + Unbilled Umstered System DATA Les Number of active AND Inactive service Service conne Are customer meters typically located at the curbistop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Average opera COST DATA Cost meters typically located at the curbistop or <u>Average</u> length of customer Average opera Customer retail unit cost of operating Customer retail unit cost (applied to App Variable production cost (applied to App Variable production cost (applied to to applied to active active active active active active active A weighted scale for the comp PRIDENTY AREAS FOR ATTENTION: Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improv 1: Volume from own sources 2: Bille meter ed 3: Customer metering inaccuracies	rent Losses: 32,274.739 ML. ER LOSSES: 34,264.168 ML. UE WATER: 35,874.325 ML. uight of mains: 2 5 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 2 5 4,945.0 ML. uight of mains: 2 5 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 2 5 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 2 5 4,945.0 ML. oright of mains: 2 5 4,945.0 ML. otion density: 7 8 312,075 Mr. otion density: 7 8 12.0 me iling pressure: 7 8 50.0 me water system 7 9 \$169,973,759 \$7. rent Losses): 7 9 \$2,35 \$7. rent Losses): 7 9 \$2,35 \$7. oright of consumption and water loss is induded in the calculat addvessing the following componen	Mrt meters m.Am main (length of service line, <u>bound</u> the property to boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tree (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) trees (length of service line, boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility) tres (length							

Example Audits 3

Example Aud	Lit also AWWA Fre	e Water Audit Soft	tware:	WAS v5.0
Example Aud	System Attribute	s and Performanc	<u>e Indicators</u>	American Water Works Association Copyright © 2014, All Rights Reserved
	Water Audit Report for The City o	f Calmany		
	Reporting Year: 2013	1/2013 - 12/2013		
			72 out of 400 ***	
System Attributes:	TOOR WATER ADDITE	ATAVALDITI SCORE IS	. 12 00:01 100	
		Apparent Losses: 📃	1,969.429 ML/Yr	
		+ Real Losses:	32,274.739 ML/Yr	
	=	Water Losses:	34, 264. 168 ML/Yr	
	? Unavoidable Annu	al Real Losses (UARL): 📒	8,015.57 ML/Yr	
	Annual c	ost of Apparent Losses: 📒	\$4,675,159	
	Ann	ual cost of Real Losses: 📒	\$75,845,637 Valued at	Customer Retail Unit Cost
			Return to Repo	ting Worksheet to change this assumption
Performance Indicators:	-	-		
Financial:	Non-revenue water as percent by vol	ume of Water Supplied:	21.8%	
	Non-revenue water as percent by co	ist of operating system:	49.6% Real Losses	valued at Customer Retail Unit Cost
r	Apparent Laccas per cap		17.17 litro-/connect	ianldov
	Real Lesses per sen	tice connection per day.	292 24 litres/connect	ion/dov
Operational Efficiency:	Real Lusses per sen	enoth of main per day.	200.04 Intes/ connect	urray
-	Peel Lesses non service connection per device	engin of main per day .	E EO litera lean no et	ia utalan daa
L . r	ceal cosses per service connection per day per	meter (nead) pressure.	5.56 intres/ connect	onidayim
	From Above, Real Losses = Current Annu	al Real Losses (CARL): 📘	32,274.74 ML/y ear	
	Infrastructure Leakage In	dex (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:	4.03	
* This performance indicator applica	fer outcome with a law convice connection doe	nity of loss than 20 service.	connections // lametre of nineline	
mis performance mulcator applies	tor systems with a low service connection der	sity of less undit 20 selfiller	connections/silonnette ut pipeline	

Example Audits 4

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

*	www.awwa.org	AWWA Free Water Audit Software: <u>Acknowledgements</u>	WAS American Water Works Associat Copyright © 2014; All Rights Reserv
AWWA W	/ater Audit Software Versio	n 5.0 Developed by the Water Loss Control Committee Association August, 2014	of the American Water Works
This software current editi	is intended to serve as a basic to ion of the AWWA M36 Publicatio "botto	ool to compile a preliminary, or "top-down", water audit. It is reco n, Water Audits and Loss Control Programs, for detailed guidance m-up", water audit using the same water audit methodology.	mmended that users also refer to the e on compiling a comprehensive, or
DEVELOPED BY	Andrew Chastain-Howley, PG*, Will J. Jernigan, P.E. Cavanau George Kunkel, P.E. Philadely Alain Lalonde, P.Eng. Master Raiph Y. McCord, P.E. Louisv, David A. Sayers Delaware Riv Brian M. Skeens, P.E. CH2M I Reinhard Sturm Water Systen John H. Van Arsdel M.E. Simp	MCSM. Black & Veatch gh & Associates, P.A. hia Water Department Weter Canada Inc. lie Water Company er Basin Commission HLL s Optimization, Inc. son Company, Inc.	
<u>REFERENCES:</u>	- Alegre, H., Hirner, W., Bapt Best Practice' Series, 2000. - Kunkel, G. et al, 2003. Wat Control. Journal AWWA, 95: - AWWA Water Audits and Lo - Service Connection Diagram	sta, J. and Parena, R. Performance Indicators for Water Supply S ISBN 1 900222 272 er Loss Control Committee Report: Applying Worldwide Best Mar 8:65 ss Control Programs, M36 Publication, 3 rd Edition, 2009 ns courtesy of Ronnie McKenzie, WRP Pty Ltd.	Services. IWA Publishing 'Manual of nagement Practices in Water Loss

Acknowledgements 1

1

Version:	Release Date:	Number of Worksheets:	Key Features and Developments
v1	2005/ 2006	5	The AWWA Water Audit Software was piloted in 2005 (v1.0 beta). The early versions (1 x) of the software restricted data entry to units of Million Gallons per year. For each entry into the audit, users identified whether the input was measured or estimated.
v2	2006	5	The most significant enhancement in v2 of the software was to allow the user to choose the volumetric units to be used in the audi Million Gallons or Thousand Cubic Metres (megalitres) per year. Two financial performance indicators were added to provide feedback to the user on the cost of Real and Apparent losses.
v3	2007	7	In v3, the option to report volumetric units in acre-feet was added. Another new feature in v3 was the inclusion of default values fo two water audit components (unbilled unmetered and unauthorized consumption). v3 also included two examples of completed audits in units of million galons and Megaitters. Several checks were added into v3 to provide instant feedback to the user on common data entry problems, in order to help the user complete an accurate water audit.
v4 - v4.2	2010	10	V4 (and versions 4 x) of the software included a new approach to data grading. The simple "estimated" or "measured" approach was replaced with a more granular scale (typically 1-10) that reflected descriptions of utility practices and served to describe the confidence and accuracy of the input data. Each input value had a corresponding scale fully described in the Grading Matrix tab. The Grading Matrix also showed the actions required to move to a higher grading score. Grading descriptions were available on the Reporting Worksheet via a pop-up box next to each water audit input. A water audit data validity score is generated (max = 100) and priority areas for attention (to improve audit accuracy) are identified, once a user completes the requied data grading. A service connection diagram was also added to help users understand the impact of customer service line configurations on water losses and how this information should be entered into the water audit software. An acknoweldgements section was also added. Minor bug fixes resulted in the release of versions 4.1 and 4.2. A French language version was also made available for v4.2.
v5	2014	12	In v5, changes were made to the way Water Supplied information is entered into software, with each major component having a corresponding Master Meter Error Adjustment entry (and data grading requirement). This required changes to the data validity score calculation; v5 of the software uses a weighting system that is, in part, proportional to the volume of input components. The Grading Matrix was updated to reflect the new audit inputs and also to include clarifications and additions to the scale description. The appearance of the software was updated in v5 to make the software more user-friendly and several new features were adder to provide more feedback to the user. Notably, a dashboard tab has been added to provide more visual feedback on the water audit results and associated costs of Non-Revenue Water. A comments sheet was added to allow the user to track notes, comments and to clic sources used.

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

Acknowledgements 2

Appendix B Completed Gallons Per Capita Per Day (GPCD) Calculator

Interstate Stream Commission	NMOSE GPCD CALCULATOR
This spreadsheet-based GPCD calcul worksheets. Sheets can be accessed u It should	Release Date: August 2015 ator is designed to help quantify and track water uses associated with water distribution systems. The spreadsheet contains several separate sing the tabs towards the bottom of the screer, or by clicking the buttons on the left below. Descriptions of each sheet are also given below. d be noted that all the recorded data should be from actual metered results and should not include any estimates.
THE FOLLOWING KEY APPLIES THROUGHOUT:	Value to be entered by user Dropdown box, pick from list Look for the following boxes that provide addition Value calculated based on input data Instructions MMD No longer available for input
Please begin by prov	viding the following information, then proceed through each sheet:
NAME OF CITY OR UTILITY:	City of Deming new rexide
REPORTING YEARS:	Enter the most recent 2019 Data can be entered back to: 2013
NAME OF CONTACT PERSON:	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: jmassengill@cityofdeming.org TELEPHONE: 575-546-8848
SELECT THE REPORTING UNIT	rs FOR VOLUME DATA: Gallons (US) For unit converter click here:
Instructions & Utility	This sheet
<u>Census Data</u>	Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website
Single-Family	Single-Family residential gallons and population
Multi-Family	Multi-Family residential gallons and population
ICI & Other Metered	Other data including Commercial, Industrial and Institutional [1.3] and Other metered [1.4] categories
Reuse	Data related to water reuse projects
Total Diverted	Total Production and Diverted Water
Reported Data	The calculated data graphical review of most common performance indicators
Annual Performance	The calculated data graphical review of annual performance indicators
Nonthly Performance	The calculated data graphical review of monthly performance indicators
Definitions	Use this sheet to understand terms used in the audit process All parties reserve the right to validate the data recorded in this document. This does not bind the OSE or the Utility to the results. It is a tool used for planning purposes.
	estions or comments regarding the software please contact us at: <u>waternm@state.nm.us</u>

CITY OF DEMING

1



Appendix B



NMOSE GPCD Calculator v2.02



	City of Deming											
Instructions	1				MON	THLYD	ATA					
										2019	TO	2013
WATER CONSUM	PTION (Gallons (US))										
1	JAN	FEB	MAR	APR	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC
2019	11,228,400	150,407,900	11,620,600	14,307,800	16,895,500	18,916,800	19,210,100	17,298,000	20,652,800	83,095,100	16,794,600	11,936,3
2018	15,455,300	15,308,674	16,423,500	17,389,800	17,964,200	20,232,500	493,592,100	17,942,300	17,591,600	16,968,900	14,869,500	12,405
2017	27,416,100	13,658,300	13,934,300	17,735,000	16,597,900	19,769,200	21,663,800	20,695,800	20,581,500	19,196,800	23,010,500	14,286,
2016	10 225 700	21 707 100	18 934 900	94 679 500	14 294 600	15 050 500	21 042 200	19 242 500	24 847 100	14 626 600	17 049 100	15 005
	10,820,000	21,101,100	10,001,000	01,010,000	14,234,000	10,000,000	21,040,000	10,042,000	21,011,100	14,020,000	17,043,100	19,000,
2015	10,820,100	21,101,100	10,00 1,000	01,010,000	19,239,000	10,000,000	21,040,000	10,042,000	21,011,100	14,020,000	17,043,100	10,000,
2015 2014 2013	10,210,100	21,101,100	10,001,000		19,239,000	10,000,000	21,010,000	13,042,000	11011.00	14,020,000	17,043,100	10,000
2015 2014 2013 ILE 6.2 IER METERED (G	Salions (US)) JAN	FEB.	MAR	APR	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC
2015 2014 2013 ILE 5.2 IER METERED (G 7 2019 2018	alions (US)) JAN	FEB	MAR	APR	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	0CT	NOV	DEC
2015 2014 2013 ILE 5.2 IER METERED (G 7 2019 2016 2017	alions (US)) JAN	PEB	MAR	APR	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC
2015 2014 2013 3LE 5.2 IER METERED (G 7 2019 2018 2018 2017 2018	alions (US)) JAN	PEB	MAR	APR	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC
2015 2014 2013 ILE 5.2 IER METERED (G 2019 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017	Selions (US)) UAN	FEB	MAR	APR	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC
2015 2014 2013 BLE 5.2 IER METERED (G 7 2019 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018	salions (US)) JAN	FEB	MAR	APR	MAY	NUL	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC
2015 2014 2013 BLE 5.2 HER METERED (S 7 2019 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2013 2014	alions (US))	FEB	MAR	APR	MAY	NUL	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC
2015 2014 2014 2013 1LE 5.2 2019 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017	ialions (US))	FEB	MAR	APR	MAY	JUN	JUL	AUG	SEP	OCT	NOV	DEC

ANNUA	L DATA	
TABLE 5.3	TABLE 5.4	TABLE 0.0
ICI ANNUAL	ICI GPCD	ICI ANNUAL
CONSUMPTION		CALCOLATED
	89.51	392,263,800
-	154.33	676,143,674
	63.76	228,060,200
	N/A	NA
	N/A	N/A
	N/A	N/A
TABLE 5.6	TABLE 5.7	TABLE 5.8
CONSUMPTION	METERED GROD	CALCULATED
GONDONE TRON	MCTERED OF OD	NA
	N/A	N/A
	N/A	N/A
2 S	N/A	N/A

NMOSE GPCD Calculator v2.02

Appendix B



Appendix **B**













		GPCD v2.0 © Back to instructions
Item Name		Description
Active Connections		All active Single Family Residential connections within the utility. Connections that are not occupied or show zero activity are not counted in this category.
Annual Multi-Family Residential GPCD Calculation	Find	The MFR GFCD is Annual MF Calculation (4.6) divided by the annual MFR Population (4.9) .
Annual Single Family Residential GPCD Calculation	Find	The SFR GPCD is Annual SFR Calculation $(3,7)$ divided by the annual SFR Population average $(3,13)$.
Billed Water Consumption (Multi-Family Residential)	Find	This is the total billed consumption for Multi-Family Residential uses only. Provide the amount of water used (gallons) for multi-family residential connections by month in Table 4.1, or by year in Table 4.5. If multi-family residential is not available as a separate category, provide an explanation in the Comments Box and include usage in the Industrial, Commercial and Institutional Table 5.1 or Other Metered Table 5.2 on Sheet results.
Billed Water Consumption (Single-Family Residential)	Find	This is the total billed consumption for Single-Family residential uses only.
Calculated Growth Rate	Find	The calculated growth rate is a calculation developed to normalize the data to the growth in the utility. The growth is determined by evaluating the percentage change in the number of connections within the utility on an annual basis, provided in Table 3.9 Average Connections Calculated. If there are no more than one years' data, then this will not be calculated. This Table is for the utilities use in checking the growth percentage calculated against their own estimates. It is also used in Table 4.8 Number of (Multi-Family) Units if only the current number of multi-family units can be
Census Data	Find	The Gensus data is used to standardize the calculation of population by utilizing numbers of popule par household. It also records information on the vacancy rate within each city which enables calculation of the number of households actually being used. There is a link to a pdf document in Definitions showing the user how to find and record the relevant data.
Converter	Find	The user may develop a GPCD Analysis based on one of two input unit selections: 1) Gallons (US) 2) Cubic feet Please select the units from the instructions worksheet. An interactive unit converter is also provided below. Input volume in first box below and select units to be converted. 1 Gallons (US) = 0.134 Cubic Feet
Exported Water	Find	Enter all water exported from the system. This will include any pass-through arrangements or wholesale contracts to other drinking water suppliers, where the reporting utility is the water rights permit holder.
SPCD		Gallons per capita per day (GPCD) is a method utilized internationally to measure water use by drinking water suppliers. It is most commonly used to describe historical and current water uses, providing a baseline of water use that is not as susceptible to changes in population. GPCD is also used for planning purposes, allowing estimates of future demand requirements based on localized population projections. More sophisticated planning efforts utilize GPCD to determine conservation potential, track the results of program implementation, and calculate projections based on conservation adjusted GPCD.
General Information		The white boxes are data entry cells and are used for inputting data. All other cells except dropdown menus (purple boxes) are protected for the user's benefit to stop any overwriting of formulas and calculated cells. The green boxes are values that have been calculated based on inputs.
Graphing Results	Find	Datasets will automatically be graphed when using the graphing data tools in both the Annual and Monthly Performance worksheets. For example, choosing the year and the use sector from the purple dropdown boxes will allow these variables to be graphed.
Imported Water	Find	Enter all water imported from other systems. This will include any retail contracts with other drinking water suppliers where this utility purchases water from another utility and is not the permit holder.
Inactive and Zero Connections	Find	The inactive and zero connections are recorded in Table 3.3 so that unused single family residential connections will be removed from the calculation of single family population when Total Units is chosen from the drop down list in Table 3.

1

1

Industrial, Commercial and Institutional (IC	Find	restaurants, shopping malls, and institutional customers such as schools, universities and prisons.
Multi-Family Residential Connections	Find	A multifamily unit is living units in an apartment complex, duplexes, triplexes, trailer parks, and condo or town houses that have multiple units serviced by a single connection. They are not counted in the single-family residential category.
Multi-Family Residential Population	Find	Multi-family population is calculated from number of MFR units in the Annual Unit Calculation (4.8) minus Vacant MFR Connections (4.10). That number is then multiplied by Average Size of Occupied Housing Units from the US Census (2.1).
Non-Revenue Water		Non-revenue water is all the water the utility diverts and/or produces, but does not get paid for. Non-revenue water includes apparent losses such as meter inaccuracies, theft, and darabase errors, real losses such as leaks. It also includes unbilled authorized uses such as fire-fighting. Line flushing and disinfection. The Calculator does not provide data entry for unmetered billed water. This might include bulk sales or monthly fees not based on usage. The non-revenue water in the Calculator includes all water that is not metered.
Other Metered	Find	All categories of billed metered use that is not otherwise classified in SFR, MFR or ICI. This provides the user the opportunity to track alternative categories. Examples included irrigation only, stand pipes, and fire hydrant/construction meters. Everything not included in SFR, MFR, ICI or Other will end up in non-revenue water.
Reuse	Find	Reuse, or Recycled water is former wastewater (sewage) that has been treated to remove solids and certain impurities and remmed by a water supplier. In most locations, it is only intended to be used for nonpotable uses, such as irrigation, and dust control. This date is not included in any other calculation. It is provided as a tracking tool for the user.
Single Family Residential Connections	Find	SFR Connection is a stand alone or independently metered housing unit. The number used in the Calculator can be Total Connections or Active Connections only.
Single Family Residential Population	Find	Single Family Population (3.13) is calculated from number of active connections times size of average household (3.12). It can be calculated monthly or annually depending on the data provided. If Total Connections is chosen (3.2), then inactive connections are subtracted prior to multiplying by size of average household (3.12). If Active Connections is chosen (3.2), then number of connections are multiplied by size of average household (3.12) without any subtractions.
Size of Average Household	Find	This Table is determined from the US Census data in Table 2.1, Sheet 2. This data is used to determine a total single-family population and total multi-family population for both the monthly and annual data (Tables 3.4 and 3.13, Tables 4.3 and 4.9 respectively).
Total Connections		All active and inactive Single Family Residential connections within the utility.
System Total GPCD	Find	The System Total GPCD is calculated by dividing the quantity of Total Water Diverted (plus imports minus exports) by the System Total Population
Total Population	Find	The Total Population estimate is the sum of the single-family population + multi-family population + group quarters population.
Vacant Single-Pamily Residential Connections	Find	This is a calculated field using either i) the average of the monthly vacant SFR connections, if monthly data are available or ii) an estimated value based on the Census data vacancy rate multiplied by the number of Total SFR connections. When Total Connections is chosen in Table 3.2, vacant single family residential connections are subtracted from Total Connections prior to calculating a population (based on household size) and a single family GPCD.

How to find the data required for Census section

NMOSE GPCD Calculator v2.02

2

Appendix B



NMOSE GPCD Calculator v2.02

3

Antres 🕘 http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/DutasetHainPageServlet7_ds_name=DEC_2000_S1_UA_program=DECA_lang=en Cocycle (C+census 2000 👻 Go + Ø 👸 + 🟠 Bookmarks+ 🚱 3993 blocked 🗇 Check + 🔨 AutoLink + 🗋 AutoLink + 🖉 AutoLink + 🖉 AutoLink +	
	y ⊇ Go G Settings+
U.S. Census Bureau	
American FactFinder	
Design (See)	
FACT DIET DECEMBAL LOS DIEY I DISCREDUCIDE	
INCORE Census 2000 1550 (cances	
Other Revusives	
ADUIT INF DATA enforce United Status III primary purpose is to provide the population counts that determine how seath is the U.S. <u>ITCF - 41 FRD</u> House of Representatives are apportioned, runs, Conservation of the U.S. Co	
OVLA 2015 OPERATING	4
Continued/Flowersy + Described Contract Planetic Biology Commented Servery + Described Contract + Described Anti-Servery + Described Anti-Server Viet IVE	
Estimates O Estimates Annual Van Franzia	
Borreys Colored Set Sammary free types if you be the set of the se	
MAD 1. Consus 2000 Summary His 2 (SF 2) 100-Percent Data Reference 2000	
ECIT A AND Provalence and huming cherechnologia levelsh for new retrievel Assis halter these Assis halter these Assis halter these	
List at takes	
Click on [Detailed tables]	
Sack - " File Erit View Favorites Jack Help	
Addrew @http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/DTGeoSearchByListServlet7ds name=DEC 2000 SF1 U& lang=en& ts=217515022328	v 🔂 60
Gorger Cr-census 2000 / Go ♦ Ø Ø + 🏠 Bookmarks- 💀 3993 blocked 🍄 Check - 🔨 AutoLink - 🖉 AutoLink - 🖉 AutoLink - 🖉 AutoLink - 🖉 Census 🖗	3 2000 Settings+
American FactFinder Main Search Feedback FAQs Obecony NetMap Relp	
Select Geography You are here: User + Out Sets + Cala Sets with Decades Tables + Geography + Tables + Results	
Canada 2000 Summary He 1 (SH 1) 100 Recent Data, Detailed Tabled	
Choole & selection method Int mume search mode eco within eco	
Show at concretely hores 1 @ Room Concretely	
Select a geographic type Neton	
Select one or more geographic areas and click 'Add'	
(BRAN) CORA	
Add Y	
Add v	
Cannot geography addresses Connect geography addresses Upunkted statis for next than 7,000 escrepting area used to be united to be unit	
Add w) Connet polycelyb solutions	
Add w Connect property websites <	
Click on the dropdown boxes and	
Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Image: Second program by weak-lows Ima	
Image: Solution Image: Solution Image: Solution of the solution of t	
Click on the droptown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a	area
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] Select Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below	area
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Pare] When "Select a State" box appears Select Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Add this to the base box as shown below	area
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [New Mexico] Select Clow Mexico] Select Clow Mexico] Select At this to the base box as shown below	area
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (New Mexico] Select (Cographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Antercart Failer - Microsoft Internet Explane Select 3: Else Edit Yow Fgworks Tools Help Tools Help Select 3: Dools Help	arca
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] Select [Plac	arca -217516149203 ■ j sand tor Ø
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] Select [Place] When "Select a state" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a state" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a state" box appears Select [Place] Select [Place] Selec	217516119203 ₩ 🚱 Send Tov 🖉
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [New Mexico] Select [New Mexico] Select Coographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below American Farfreder - Menodif Internet Explane Date - Now Favories Tools Help Mine - Minor Minor Consus.gov/servict/DiffeosioarchByLit/ServictIds_name=DfC_7000_5f1_UB_kang=enk_fs: Consult Consults Gov/servict/DiffeosioarchByLit/ServictIds_name=DfC_7000_5f1_UB_kang=enk_fs: Consult Consults Gov/servictIdffood Consults Consul	arca -217516149203 ₩ 🕞 Send to~ 🖉
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select Place[] When "Select a State" box appears Select Place[] When "Select a State" box appears Select (New Mexico] Select (Sew Mexico] Select Cographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Autorian frader - Marcoall Internet Explane Select Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Autorian frader - Marcoall Internet Explane Select Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Select Geography Description Geography Maretican FactFinder & Marcoall Internet Explane Maretican FactFinder & Marcoall Internet FactFinder & Jourge Selected & the closest description Description Geography Maretican FactFinder & Marcoall Internet FactFinder & Jourge Selected & Closest Marcoall Internet Description Geography Maretican FactFinder & Description FactFinder Table * Company * Mark Marcoall Description Geography Maretican FactFinder & Description FactFinder Table * Company * Mark Mark Description Geography Description Geography Desc	arca -217516149203 ₩ 🖝 Send to~ 🖉
Cooke Cooke Place Select Cooke Place Select Cooke Place Select Cooke Place Select Place	area -217516149203 # Send to- Ø
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] Select Geographic state and the state of the	arca -217516149203 i i → send to~ ∅
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (New Mexico) Select Clower Mexico) Select Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Interview of the second	area -217516149203 ₩ → Send to~ Ø
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (New Mexico) Select (Sew	arca -217516119203 ₩ 🔶 Send to- 🖉
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] Select Ceographic Team from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Select Ceographic Team from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Select Ceographic Team from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Select Ceographic Team from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Select Ceography	area -217516149203 # 🕞 Send to~ 🖉
	arca -217516149203 # → send to- Ø
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select [Place] When "Select a State" box appears Select (New Mexico] Select Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Intercart Future - Mericol Internet Explane Muse for the form of the form formed to the form Muse (Sect 1998) When "Select a State" box appears Select Geographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Intercart Future - Mericol Internet Explane Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base (Sect 2000 61 Ukb kong onk to the base Muse (Sect 2	area -217516149203 ₩ 🖝 Send tor 🖉
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select Place[] When "Select a State" box appears Select (New Mexico] Select (New Mexico] Select (Sew Mexico]	arca -217516149203 ≇ ∲ send to- ∅
Ide to the dropdown boxes and Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (Cocycaphic areas from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Select (Cocycaphic areas and State (Cocycaphic areas and click 'Add' Select Cocycaphic areas and click 'Add' Select a state Select a state	arca
Interface Performance Per	arca -217516149203 i i ≽ send to~ ∅
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select Place When "Select a State" box appears Select Rewise] Select Rewise] Select Clow Mexicol Select Clow Mexicol Select Company of the Select State" box appears Select Clow Mexicol Select Clow Mexicol Select Company of the Select State" box appears Select Clow Mexicol Select Clow Mexicol Select Clow Mexicol Select Company of the Select State" box appears Select Clow Mexicol Select Clow Mexicol	arca -217516149203 # 🕒 Send tov 🖉
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select Place[] When "Select a State" box appears Select (New Mexico] Select (New Mexico] Select (Coographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service of Add this to the base box as shown below Intercart Terretor Mexicol Select (New Mexico	arca -217516149203 ** 🕒 send tor 🖉
Ide to be a set of the set o	area -217516140202
Click on the dropdown boxes and Select (Place) When "Select a State" box appears Select (Place) Select Coographic area from drop down list that is the closest description of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Therefore - Merical Internet Explane Select Rescription of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Therefore - Merical Internet Explane Select Rescription of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Therefore - Merical Internet Explane Select Rescription of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Therefore - Merical Internet Explane Select Rescription of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Therefore - Merical Internet Explane Select Rescription of your service a Add this to the base box as shown below Select Rescription Select Rescription of the first Holds Select Rescription Select Rescripti	arca -217516149203 ₩ → send to- Ø

CITY OF DEMING

4

	Click [Next]	
<complex-block></complex-block>	American FactEnder - Microsoft Internet Explorer	-)(2
<complex-block></complex-block>	Back The Luk Mark Luk Luk </td <td></td>	
<complex-block></complex-block>	Coogle Covensus 2000 💌 Go 🛷 🐯 🔹 🏠 Bookmarks× 🕲 3993 blocked 🦃 Check × 🔨 AutoLink × 🐩 AutoFill 🎍 Send tov 🤌 🔩 census 🔩 2000	Setting
<complex-block></complex-block>	Amorican FactFinde	
<complex-block></complex-block>	lect Tables were here: Main + Bala Sala + Bala Sala with Datafed Tablas + Gasarabhy + Tables + Results	
	Census 2000 Summary Fiel ((SF 1) 100-Percent Data, Detailed Tables Chouse a table selection method	
<pre>intermediate intermediate intermediate</pre>	by subject by keyword show all tables	
<complex-block></complex-block>	Select one or more tables and click 'Add' H11F, Total Population in Occupied Hearing Units by Tenuxe (Some Other Race Alone Householder) H11G, Total 'Population in Occupied Hearing Units by Tenuxe (Two or More Races Householder)	
	HTH Tratel Projublicion in Occupied Housing Units by Levie (Helpsonic or Latino Householder) HTT Tratel Projublicion in Occupied Housing Units by Terrue (White Annual Not Heipsonic or Latino Householder) Hitz, Henrage Household Eric of Occupied Housing Units by Terrue Hitz, Henrage Household Eric of Occupied Housing Units by Terrue	
	H125 Average Household Stel of Coccupied Houring United Therman (Minor Moner Householder) H126 Average Household Stel of Coccupied Houring United Therma (AMI Alone Householder) SQR - Some Other Race H122, Average Household Stel of Coccupied Houring United Therma (AMI Alone Householder) H122, Average Household Stel of Coccupied Houring United Therma (AMI Alone Householder)	
<form></form>	H12E. Average Household Size of Occupied Housing Unite by Tenure (HHPI Alone Householder) . What's this?	
<form></form>	Current table tweetports	
<pre>image image i</pre>	P27 Group Quarter Rechtlich by Group Quarter Type H3 Gen group, Watti Houling Watti H12: Average Housefuld Size of Occurre Housing Units by Tensie	
Terms and a second s	Remove	
Addees pays, and pairs to be been been by highlighting the mut the field fails and the second of the	Show Realt >	
<form></form>		
Creating and reprise show in the base box cleck [Show Result]	Add boxes P37, H3, and H12 to the base box by highlighting them and then click [Add]	
	Once all the tables show in the base box click [Show Result]	
	Dataled Tables - American EartForder - Microsoft Internet Evolver	
<form><pre>Number of the system of</pre></form>	Back * " [Be full View Favorites Tools Help	
<form></form>	🚧 http://factfinder.census.gov/servlet/DTTable?_bm=y&-context=dt&-ds_name=DEC_2000_SF1_U&-mt_name=DEC_2000_SF1_U&-mt_name=DEC_20 00gle C+census 2000 📉 60 4 🚿 🚱 + 😰 Bookmarks+ 🐉 3993 blocked 🏷 Check + 🔨 AutoLink + 🐚 AutoFill 💩 Send to+ 🥔 🖳 census 🖳 2000	300_\$F1_U_H003& ⊻ 🛃 © Settin
<pre>bill compare the set of the</pre>	U.S. Census Bureau Amorican FactFinder Main Search Feedback FAGe Glossary Site Map Help	
In the function of the functio	tailed Tables u are here: Mais + Data Sets + Data Sets with Detailed Tables + Decourably + Tables + Results	
The Proceeding of Statistication (Proceeding of Statistication (Proceding of Statistication (Use the back above to change your results	
Instance consummer language and an an and an	up gamma 2000 Burmmary File 1 (3F 1) 100 Percent Data Tel For information on confidentiativ onstaction, nonsampling error, definitions, and court corrections see	
with the instance of the instan	v/factfoder.census.auv/hometen/lataostes/esus11u.htm Hew Mesico at 98.307	
Amount of mathematic content and and a model of the state of the	etifutionatixed population 19,178 Correctional institutione 10,040 Nursing homes 8,810	
<pre>index terms t</pre>	Other institutions 1,428 Other institutions 1,428 College domittions (includes college quarters off campus) 7,921	
And Level COCIDENCIAL CITATURE 11.1. Level menors. Level and a sufficient	Mildary quarters 1,827 Dear-nonvisituitional group quarters 7,381 Consus Bureau	
COUCHANCY STATUS [3]. UNiverse. Housing units 15 or function to community function in the status statustatu	2000 2000	
a ber formaling in der Beinneg zuber Beinneger und eine Beinneger eine Beinneger und eine Beinneger eine Be	OCCUPANCY STATUS [3] - Universe: Housing units	
Tar Marken Baren	a Set: Census 2000. Summary File 1 (SF. 1) 100-Percent Data TE: For information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, definitions, and count corrections see	
And a conservation of the second seco	United Transformer Construction and Advector Markaus TLL INF Rever Measure at 720,579	
AVERAGE HOUSEHHULD BIZE OF OCCUPIED HOUSEHGUINTS DV TENDRE [3] Universe. Terms of the second and the second secon	Consume 07, 971 ann 102,000 . Consue Dureau uma 2000	
AVERAGE HOUSE HOUSE HOUSE HOUSE OF OCCUPIED HOUSEHOUSE HOUSE		
a for a function of the functi	2. AVERAGE HOUSEHOLD SIZE OF OCCUPIED HOUSING UNITS BY TENURE [3] - Universe.	
in the definition of the state	unite mounty units Set: Census 2000 Summary File 1 (SF 1) 100-Percent Data	
Transfer results to spreadsheet END Beginning of Exercises	underfeite status en demotistrationen et unter-	💣 Internet
END Beginning of Baction	Transfer results to spreadsheet	
<u>Section</u>	END <u>Beginning of</u>	
	Section	

CITY OF DEMING

5

Appendix C City of Deming's 40-year Water Plan (2018)

City of Deming 40-Year Water Plan



December 28, 2018
Table of Contents

Section	on Page
1. In	troduction1
2. De	eming Water System
3. W 3. 3. 3.	ater Supply
4. W 4. 4. 4. 4. 4.	ater Demand251 Current Water Demand / Water Audit.254.1.1 Water Demand by Sector254.1.2 Water Audit.282 Water Use Trends333 Analysis of Top Users394 Reuse 3955 Future Water Use Projections424.5.1 Population Growth424.5.2 Population Growth Projections for the City of Deming454.5.3 Future Water Demand47
5. W 5. 5. 5. 5.	ater Rights 50 1 Current Legal Framework 51 2 Existing Permits 51 3 Future Water Rights Needs 52 4 Water Use and Conservation 58
6. W 6. 6. 6. 6. Refer	ater Supply Priorities and Strategies 60 1 Water System 60 2 Water Supply and Quality 61 3 Future Water Demand 62 4 Water Rights 63 ences 65

i



List of Figures

Figure	Page
1-1	Location Map2
3-1	Geology of Region6
3-2	Basin Fill Thickness, Mimbres Basin8
3-3	City Wells11
3-4	City Wells, Monitor Wells, and Aquifer Thickness12
3-5	Depths of Wells Near Deming15
3-6	Deming Drinking Water Quality, 2008-201717
3-7	Potential Sources of Contamination19
4-1	Billed Water Use by Sector in 201627
4-2	AWWA Water Audit Format
4-3	Revenue and Non-Revenue Water Use in 2016
4-4	Non-Revenue Water in 2016
4-5	Monthly Water Use in 2016
4-6	Unbilled Water Use by Sector in 2016 and 2017
4-7	Winter vs. Summer Water Use in 2016
4-8	Per Capita Use by Sector in 2016
4-9	Monthly Reuse Water Use in 201641
4-10	Historical and Projected Future Population
4-11	Population Projections
4-12	Projected Water Demand

ii



List of Tables

Table	Page
3-1	Active Wells
3-2	Change in Water Levels in USGS-Monitored Wells near Deming
3-3	Active Leaking Petroleum Sites Within City of Deming Municipal Boundaries
3-4	Active Superfund Sites in Deming
4-1	City of Deming Metered Water Use by Sector in 2016
4-2	Deming AWWA Water Audit Results, 2016
4-3	Calculated Increase in Summer Water Use
4-4	City of Deming Monthly and Annual Residential Per Capita Water Use for 201637
4-5	City of Deming Top Water Users in 2016
4-6	City of Deming Reuse Water, 2016
4-7	Historical Population and Growth Rates for Deming43
4-8	Projected Annual Growth Rate City of Deming
4-9	Projected Population City of Deming
4-10	Current Water Demand by Sector City of Deming
4-11	Projected Water Demand City of Deming
5-1	City of Deming: Municipal Use Water Rights
5-2	City of Deming Irrigation Water Rights

List of Appendices

iii

Appendix

- A 2016 AWWA Audit
- B GPCD Calculator



1. Introduction

The City of Deming (City), located in Luna County in southwestern New Mexico (Figure 1-1), retained the services of Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc. (DBS&A) to prepare this 40-year water development plan. The plan includes future water demand projections to ascertain the amount of water the City will need to meet projected demand over the 40-year planning period.

This 40-year water development plan addresses key regulatory requirements regarding water rights (NMSA 72-5-28(C)):

- Section 72-1-9 (B) of the New Mexico Water Code allows covered entities such as the City of Deming to legally appropriate and preserve water that they cannot currently use but will need in the future to meet projected water requirements for the service area.
- Municipalities are specifically exempt from forfeiture of unused water rights if those rights have been appropriated for the implementation of a water development plan or for preservation of water supplies (NMSA 72-12-8 (F)).

Thus, by preparing the water development plan—which documents existing demand, projects future demand, and identifies the water rights needed to meet demand—the City can acquire and retain water rights to meet future needs without putting them to immediate beneficial use. The City of Deming prepared a 40-year water plan in 1997, and in 2009 the City retained DBS&A to update the 1997 plan. To further facilitate long-range water resource planning for the City of Deming, the City again retained DBS&A to update the 2009 plan to account for current conditions.

This water development plan provides information on the City of Deming's water system (Section 2), water supply (Section 3), current and projected demand demonstrating the need for water rights (Section 4), and currently held water rights and legal constraints to water supply (Section 5). The long-term strategy, including a discussion of conservation, to address the water needs of the City is presented in Section 6.





2. Deming Water System

The City of Deming is located in Luna County, New Mexico (Figure 1-1) and is the county seat and largest population center, with a population of about 14,000. Originally a settlement known as Mimbres Junction, Deming was founded in 1881. Deming was later incorporated in 1902. U.S. Army Camp Cody was established in Deming in 1916 during the First World War. In 1942 the Deming Army Airfield was established with over 12,000 bombardier cadets graduating between 1942 and 1946 when it was closed. Interstate 10 came to town in 1964, resulting in additional growth.

The predominant land use in Deming is single family residential (SFR), with the majority of SFR lying south of the railroad tracks/I-10 corridor (City of Deming, 2017). Other land uses identified are multi-family residential, mobile home park, agricultural, parks/open space, commercial, governmental/institutional, industrial, utility, and vacant land. The City is generally growing to the southeast. Country Club Estates is the largest residential development, comprising a 300-lot senior community in the southern part of the City.

Commercial development generally occurs in the downtown area, along Golf Avenue, Pine Street, and Silver Avenue, and includes retail, restaurant, office, auto sales and repair, gas stations, hotels, and RV parks.

Institutional development includes Deming Public Schools, Deming Municipal Airport, Mimbres Memorial Hospital, churches, and the courthouse. Industrial development includes the Deming Industrial Park, located south of the Deming Municipal Airport which includes hangars, and the Peru Mill Industrial Park

The City of Deming water system relies entirely on groundwater from the Mimbres Basin for its municipal water supply. The Deming well field has 12 active wells. The majority of these wells provide potable water services to the residents of the City, and the remaining wells (not currently connected to/or isolated from the distribution system) provide irrigation service to the City's golf course, cemeteries, and municipal parks. The City has multiple wells that are leased out to nearby farms.



The City's water storage and distribution system includes two 500,000-gallon elevated storage tanks, one 3,000,000-gallon ground-level storage tank, and 140 miles of distribution pipeline of various materials, ranging in diameter from 4 to 18 inches (DBS&A, 2017). There is only one pressure zone in Deming, as there are minimal changes in elevation in the area. Accordingly, the City experiences no pressure problems in the system. System capacity averages 7,500 gpm with a peak capacity of 10.8 million gallons per day (mgd). Winter use averages 2 mgd.

A Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) completed in 2017 (DBS&A, 2017) noted system deficiencies related to aging infrastructure, and recommended upgrades to address deficiencies and to improve storage to support future growth.

The current City of Deming wastewater treatment plant was built in 1982 and is located 3 miles east-southeast of the City center. The design capacity for the plant is 3 mgd. The wastewater treatment plant treats approximately 1.4 million gallons of wastewater per day (City of Deming 2017).

The City reuses treated wastewater effluent, thereby lowering the demand on the potable water system, particularly in months of high demand. The City reuses treated wastewater effluent at three locations: a storage pond for the Luna Energy power plant, the golf course, and farmland located near the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) (SMA, 2013). In the future, the City plans to also reuse effluent at a planned multi-sport complex. The City wants to build a recreation area and fishing pond fed by treated effluent. The City owns a separate reuse line from the WWTP to the golf course pond. Additional information including volumes of water reused is provided in Section 4.

The treated effluent is distributed from the WWTP to the farm and golf course through approximately 15,000 linear feet of 10-inch PVC reuse line. A 6-inch distribution pipeline from the booster pumps at the golf course to the cemetery exists but is not yet in use. The cemetery is currently irrigated from a dedicated well, but there are plans to irrigate with treated wastewater effluent in the future (City of Deming, 2013).



3. Water Supply

This section discusses the water resources in the vicinity of the City of Deming, including the sources of water, available water supply, reasonable projections of future availability, and current and anticipated future water quality. Water availability is defined in this section in the hydrologic rather than legal sense; availability of water from a water rights perspective is discussed in Section 4.

Sections 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 describe the geography and climate, groundwater, and surface water resources, respectively. Section 3.4 describes the quality of area groundwater, which is the current source of the City's supply.

3.1 Groundwater

The City of Deming is located within the Mimbres Groundwater Basin (Figure 3-1), which provides the only water source for the City of Deming (Longworth et al., 2013). The State Engineer's administratively defined limits for the declared Mimbres Groundwater Basin (Section 5) encompass parts of Grant, Sierra, Doña Ana, and Luna Counties.

3.1.1 Geography and Climate

The City of Deming is located in a valley between the Florida Mountains to the southeast and Cooke's Range to the north. Maximum elevations in these ranges are 7,295 feet above mean sea level (ft msl) at Florida Peak and 8,408 ft msl at Cooke's Peak (City of Deming, 2017).

The climate in Deming is characterized by large ranges in annual temperature, with low humidity and a high evaporation rate. Average total annual precipitation in Deming was 9.35 inches for the period of 1914 through 2005 (WRCC, 2018); most precipitation occurs as heavy thunderstorms during July through September.

The City of Deming and the Mimbres Basin are located within the Mexican Highland Section of the Basin and Range province. The Basin and Range province is the result of extensional





geotectonics that have occurred over the last 25 million years and is characterized by northsouth trending mountain ranges separated by basins that have been partially filled with sediment eroded from the mountains. The mountains are comprised of bedrock and encompass approximately 20 percent of the Basin and Range province in New Mexico (Hawley et al., 2000). Basin fill includes several units of Quaternary alluvial and lacustrine deposits, as well as the Tertiary Gila Group. Within the Basin and Range province, the basin fill contains most of the readily available (i.e., economically viable) groundwater resources. The water table is generally within 200 feet of ground surface within the basin fill, aquifers are moderately to highly permeable, and the water is of good quality.

The Mimbres Basin is bounded on the north and west by the Continental Divide and on the east by the Lower Rio Grande Basin in Doña Ana County; to the south it extends into Mexico (Figure 3-2 [JSAI, 2006, Figure D7]). The overall province-scale geology of the Mimbres Basin is relatively complex (Figure 3-1); however, the geology that affects groundwater occurrence is limited mostly to near-surface basin fill. Intrabasin-scale structures divide the Mimbres Basin into seven different sub-basins that contain the vast majority of groundwater (Hawley et al., 2000):

- Upper Mimbres Sub-basin
- San Vicente Sub-basin
- Dwyer Sub-basin
- Florida Sub-basin
- Deming Sub-basin
- Hermanas Sub-basin
- Columbus Sub-basin

In the seven identified sub-basins, groundwater occurs primarily within basin fill materials comprised of Quaternary alluvium and the Tertiary Gila Group. Basaltic volcanics interbedded with basin fill can be locally important aquifers, mostly in the Upper Mimbres, Columbus, and San Vicente sub-basins. The thickness of the Mimbres Basin fill is 2,000 to 5,000 feet although productive water-bearing zones generally occur only in the upper 600 to 1,000 feet (Land, 2016). Figure 3-2 shows that the basin fill near Deming is several thousand feet thick.

Appendix C

CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN





The Mimbres Basin system contains unconfined, semiconfined, and confined aquifers, depending on location. Inter-sub-basin hydrologic interactions are not well understood, but the general groundwater flow direction is from the northern highlands toward the U.S.-Mexico border. Pre-development discharge across the border, from the U.S. into Mexico, is estimated to have been 6,500 acre-feet per year (ac-ft/yr) (Hanson et al., 1994). Recharge from precipitation is estimated to be no more than 2 percent of the precipitation that falls across the area (Hawley et al., 2000).

Specific capacity data compiled by Hanson et al. (1994) for 278 wells completed in the basin fill indicate that the aquifer is highly productive but that the productivity of the aquifer decreases with depth. In general, specific capacities are between 13 and 17 gallons per minute per foot (gpm/ft) in wells completed within 330 feet of ground surface, between 8 and 12 gpm/ft in wells completed between 330 and 660 feet below ground surface (ft bgs), and between 7 and 9 gpm/ft in wells completed below 660 ft bgs. Transmissivities range from 75 to 375,000 gallons per day per foot (gpd/ft) (10 to 50,100 square feet per day [ft²/d]), but the lower end of this range may reflect poor test conditions rather than actual aquifer characteristics (Hawley et al., 2000). Data from aquifer tests in City wells indicate that the transmissivities of wells in the Deming well field are very high, ranging from 11,250 gpd/ft (1,500 ft²/d) to 120,000 gpd/ft (16,000 ft²/d) (Johnson et al., 2002).

An analysis of groundwater level changes (Rhinehart et al., 2015) indicated that while variability does occur, large water level declines south and southwest of Deming were evident in the 1970s and continued into the 1980s and 1990s. In the 1990s two large zones of water level decline were observed north of Deming. By the 2000s water levels were declining in all directions surrounding Deming. Water level declines near Deming are further discussed in Section 3.1.2.

Analysis of available water quality data indicated that additional brackish water resources may be present at depth in the southern Mimbres Basin, but those have not yet been sufficiently investigated (Land, 2015).

9

3.1.2 Deming Well Field and Water Level Trends

The Deming well field has 12 active wells and is located in the vicinity of some of the deepest basin fill deposits (over 4,200 feet) found in the Mimbres Basin (DBS&A, 2017; Johnson et al., 2002). Figure 3-3 shows the location of the wells within the City of Deming, and Table 3-1 lists the construction details of the wells. Most of the wells are about 500 feet deep with a depth to water of about 150 feet.

City Well No.	City Well Name	NMOSE Well ID	Capacity (gpm)	Year Drilled
1	Water Plant	M-299-S-6	480	1977
2	North Zinc	M-299-S-7	450	1966
3 ^a	Poplar	M-299-S-2	450	1966
4 ^a	Donaldson	M-299-S-15	500	1968
5	Martin	M-299-S-5	420	1950
6	South Iron	M-299-S	400	1954
7	Boy Scout	M-299-S-8	400	1966
8	Fairgrounds	M-299-S-11	300	1985
9	Ash/Grand	M-299-S-12	700	1980
10	SWIG	M-299-S-10	540	1960
11	Florida	M-299-S-4	530	1963
12 ^a	Cemetery	M-299-S-13	350	1951
14	Luchsinger	M-214	300	1972
15	Peru	M-271	590	1961
17	Bilbo	M-49 M-109 M-127	1,080	1978
18 ^a	Keeler	M-290	750	1976

Table 3-1. Active W	ell	s
---------------------	-----	---

^a Well not currently used for public water supply

NMOSE = Office of the State Engineer gpm = Gallons per minute

The USGS has eight monitor wells within 4 miles of Deming (Figure 3-4), with water level data starting in 1940. Water levels in these USGS-monitored wells have decreased at an average rate of 0.63 feet per year (ft/yr) (Table 3-2).







		Change in Water Level			
		Period o	f Record	Amount ^a	Average
Aquifer	Well ID	Dates	No. of Years	(feet)	Rate (ft/yr)
Alluvial	321145107473201	1958-1997	39	-36.20	
	321304107425801	1954-2002	48	-37.90	
	321352107493901	1939-2007	68	-35.56	
	321434107483402	1961-2012	51	-13.96	0.00
	321513107425701	1942-2002	60	-48.59	-0.63
	321553107485701	1940-2012	72	-48.08	
	321607107392301	1931-2002	71	-46.02	
	321648107385201	1950-2002	52	-22.53	

Table 3-2. Change in Water Levels in USGS-Monitored Wells near Deming

Source: USGS, 2018

^a Negative numbers signify a drop in water levels.

ft/yr = Feet per year

Groundwater flow models developed by the New Mexico Office of the State Engineer (NMOSE) predict much greater water level decline rates than those observed in the USGS monitor wells. The NMOSE drawdown estimates for 2020, 2040, and 2060 from the models indicate that the water table will decline on average approximately 1.75 ft/yr between 2000 and 2060 (Johnson et al., 2002). The NMOSE report concludes that estimated demand will exceed existing capacity of the Deming well field by the year 2015 and that Deming will therefore need to drill more wells to meet future demands. However, the NMOSE models simulated a higher rate of production than is currently predicted for future demand by the City of Deming: whereas the NMOSE model simulated well production of 16,442 ac-ft/yr in 2060, this planning document predicts a demand between 4,200 and 6,400 in 2060.

The Southwest New Mexico Regional Water Plan (NMISC/NMOSE, 2017) evaluated potential declines in groundwater resources based on model-predicted drawdown in a heavily stressed section within the area covered by the NMOSE Mimbres Basin model (Cuddy and Keyes, 2011). Decline in the Deming area was selected, as it was the maximum decline predicted by the model. Heavily stressed areas represent the locations most likely to be impacted in the future. While there is uncertainty in predicting the amount of drawdown, the plan recognized that there will be reductions in supply and that continued pumping at 2010 levels will not be likely without

Distant D

Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc.

relocating wells to new sources of supply away from heavily stressed areas, subject to the NMOSE permitting process. Using this approach, the supply in a normal (i.e., no drought) year during decade 2060 for the Mimbres Basin in Luna County was calculated to be 14 percent less than the 2010 supply, reduced from 40,200 ac-ft/yr to 34,400 ac-ft/yr (NMISC/NMOSE, 2017).

Water levels in the vicinity of Deming are also impacted by local irrigation wells. Most of the wells in the vicinity of Deming are less than 500 feet deep (Figure 3-5). Longworth et al. (2013) reports that in 2010, 24,800 acres were irrigated in the Mimbres Basin within Luna County, diverting more than 33,000 ac-ft/yr from the aquifer.

3.2 Surface Water

The City of Deming is located within the Mimbres River surface water basin. The Mimbres River is not a direct source of water supply for the City of Deming. The only perennial stream reach in the basin is part of the Mimbres River, which drains the Cooke's Range in the north and whose entire flow either evaporates, is transpired by plants, or recharges the Mimbres Basin. The Mimbres River is perennial only in its upper reaches; it is ephemeral below the USGS stream gage located at Faywood in northern Luna County, and surface water flow occurs in the Deming area (just north of Deming) only during periods of heavy rainfall. Mimbres River headwaters are located in Grant County, and the full river basin includes parts of Grant, Sierra, Doña Ana, and Luna Counties. The Mimbres River Basin is a closed basin, indicating that no surface water flows out from the basin.

3.3 Water Quality

Current and potential uses of Deming's water resources require that the groundwater be protected from contamination. Sources of contamination are of two types: (1) point sources, originating from a single location, or (2) nonpoint sources, originating over a more widespread or unspecified location. Additionally, there can be water quality issues due to naturally occurring constituents in the groundwater. Naturally occurring and anthropogenic contamination in Deming's city supply wells is discussed in Section 3.3.1. Point and nonpoint contamination sources in and near Deming are reviewed in Sections 3.3.2 and 3.3.3, respectively.





3.3.1 Deming Drinking Water Quality

Deming production wells withdraw water from the Quaternary alluvium and Tertiary Gila Group in the Mimbres Groundwater Basin (Section 3.1.1). Hawley et al. (2000) indicated that the water quality of the alluvium in the vicinity of Deming was excellent, with total dissolved solids (TDS) values less than 250 milligrams per liter (mg/L) (aesthetic standard is 1,000 mg/L) and sulfate less than 25 mg/L (aesthetic standard is 600 mg/L)]). According to Hanson et al. (1994), however, groundwater quality concerns existed during the mid-1990s due to septic tanks and salinity in the area north of Deming. Those concerns were partially addressed by connecting that area to the County sewer system, but salinity is still present.

In addition, as discussed in Section 3.3.2.3, operations at Highway 549 Solvents, an active Superfund site 4 miles east of town, were suspected of contaminating groundwater with chlorinated solvents (NMWQCC, 2002). This site was investigated under the Superfund program, but due to its rural setting and the low population density, it did not meet the criteria for remedial action under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA). The New Mexico Environment Department (NMED) continues to monitor the area to determine if site conditions change such that additional action under CERCLA is warranted.

Water quality sample results are available from NMED Drinking Water Bureau (DWB) for New Mexico water systems, and data available for the Deming Municipal System were reviewed. A review of Deming contaminant analytical data indicates that water quality is good and water quality standard exceedances are rare. New Mexico Environmental Public Health Tracking data for the Deming Municipal Water System over the period 2008-2017 indicates recent improvements for several contaminant analytes (Figure 3-6). However, salinity of groundwater near Deming is expected to increase as the depth to groundwater increases, so Deming could face water quality issues in the future if groundwater levels decline.

Arsenic, an inorganic constituent that occurs naturally in groundwater, may be of particular concern to Deming in the future, due to a reduction in the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) arsenic maximum contaminant level (MCL)—down to 10 micrograms per liter (μ g/L) (0.010 mg/L)—that became effective in January 2006. The mean concentration of arsenic

Appendix C





decreased from 4.41 μ g/L in 2008, 2009, and 2010, to 3.59 μ g/L in 2011, and to 1.25 μ g/L in 2012 and 2013, but it was again higher in 2015, 2016, and 2017 (Figure 3-6). The 2009 40-Year Water Plan noted that Well 16 was the only well where the arsenic concentration had exceeded the new drinking water quality standard (the standard for fluoride had also been exceeded in this well). Well 16, which was an old irrigation well purchased as part of a water right transaction, was never connected to the City system and had since been abandoned.

The City of Deming has a source water protection plan to ensure the future safety of its water supply.

3.3.2 Point Sources of Groundwater Contamination

In 2002, the New Mexico Water Quality Control Commission (NMWQCC) reported the following statewide frequency of groundwater impacts from various point sources:

•	Underground (fuel) storage tanks (USTs)	58.5 percent
•	Oil and gas	13.7 percent
•	Miscellaneous industry	10.1 percent
•	Centralized sewage works	4.5 percent
•	Mining	3.7 percent
•	Aboveground (fuel) storage tanks/pipelines	3.4 percent
•	Dairies and meat packing	2.8 percent
•	Landfills	0.8 percent
•	Unknown/other	2.5 percent

Figure 3-7 shows potential sources of contamination within Deming city limits. These include:

- 9 aboveground storage tank (AST) sites
- 20 underground storage tank (UST) sites
- 9 leaking LUST sites
- 2 voluntary remediation program (VRP) sites
- 6 active groundwater discharge permits



Danie

Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc.

There are currently no abatement sites, animal feeding operations, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), or active gas wells in Deming.

3.3.2.1 Underground Storage Tanks

Leaking USTs are one of the most significant point source contaminant threats to groundwater. As of July 12, 2018, NMED was reporting 12 active leaking USTs in the Deming area (Table 3-3), 9 of which are located within city limits (Figure 3-7) with the other 3 to the west along I-10. Active cases include those in the pre-investigation, investigation, cleanup, and monitoring phases (NMED PSTB, 2018). These UST facilities all pose possible risk to the environment, but are not currently being investigated by the NMED.

Table 3-3. Active Leaking Petroleum Sites Withi	n City of Deming Municipal Boundaries
-------------------------------------------------	---------------------------------------

Release Name	RID	FID	Address	Status
Sun Mart 681	4600	51556	2319 E Motel Dr	Investigation, Responsible Party
Cano's Restaurant	4654	54744	1200 W Pine	Cleanup, Responsible Party
Savoy Truck Stop	3060	9762	14150 Highway 418 SW	Cleanup, Responsible Party
Savoy Truck Stop	4073	9762	14150 Highway 418 SW	Investigation, Responsible Party
Save Gas - No3	4089	27658	1312 W Pine	Cleanup, Responsible Party
On Sale Tire Co	3042	27082	101 W Pine St	Cleanup, Responsible Party
Deming Bulk Plant	4559	30038	2701 E Pine	Cleanup, Responsible Party
SAV-O-MAT C	3521	30493	321 W Pine St	Investigation, Responsible Party
TRIANGLE TRUCK STOP	3401	31200	1300 W Pine	Cleanup, Responsible Party
GONZALES SELF SERVE	2014	31494	422 W Pine	Cleanup, Responsible Party
Stuckeys Deming	2966	1843	15 Miles W of Deming ON I-10	Cleanup, Responsible Party
Snappy-Mart #258	2892	1805	306 E Pine	Investigation, Responsible Party

Source: NMED PSTB, 2018

RID = Release ID FID = Facility ID

3.3.2.2 Groundwater Discharge Plans

The NMED Ground Water Quality Bureau (GWQB) regulates facilities with wastewater discharges that have a potential to impact groundwater quality. These facilities must comply with the NMWQCC regulations and obtain approval of a discharge plan, which provides for measures needed to prevent and detect groundwater contamination. In particular, NMWQCC regulations require cleanup of groundwater contamination detected under discharge plan



monitoring requirements, as any contamination discharged by these facilities affects the quantity and availability of the water supply. A variety of facilities fall under the discharge plan requirements, including sewage dischargers, dairies, food processors, sludge and septage disposal, and other industries.

As of 2018, six facilities with active discharge plans (NMED GWQB, 2018) were present in the Deming area (Figure 3-7). Four of the discharge locations are part of the City's WWTP. The other two facilities include the Ben Archer Health Center and the Luna Energy Facility. Details indicating the status of these discharge plans, waste type, and treatment for individual permittees can be obtained from the NMED web site (http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/gwb/ New_Pages/docs_policy/web_dp_list.xls).

3.3.2.3 Superfund Sites

CERCLA was enacted by the U.S. Congress on December 11, 1980. This law created the Superfund program to respond directly to releases or threatened releases of hazardous substances that may endanger public health or the environment. The EPA prepares a National Priorities List (NPL) that identifies, through a hazard ranking system, which Superfund sites warrant remedial action. Currently, no sites within Deming are included on the NPL (Table 3-4). Two Superfund sites in Deming are active (Figure 3-7); four more are archived (U.S. EPA, 2018a).

EPA ID	Site Name	City	NPL Status
NM0000605167	Highway 549 Solvents	Deming	Not listed
NMD097119986	Peru Hill Mill	Deming	Not listed

Table 3-4. Active Superfund Sites in Deming

Source: U.S. EPA, 2018a

EPA = U.S. Environmental Protection Agency NPL = National Priorities List

Contamination at the Highway 549 Solvents site, located east of Deming near the junction of U.S. Highway 549 and State Road 377, was initially discovered in 1997 by a New Mexico Department of Health (DOH) water quality assessment of wells in southern New Mexico. Low levels of 1,1-dichloroethene (1,1-DCE) and 1,1,1-trichloroethane (1,1,1-TCA) were detected in samples collected from private domestic wells located approximately 2 miles east of the City.



NMED confirmed the results of the DOH investigation in 1998 and continued the investigation, sampling 41 drinking water wells. This investigation detected 1,1,1-TCA and 1,1-DCE in 11 of the sampled wells, 2 of which were found to be contaminated at concentrations exceeding the NMWQCC standards and federal MCL. Deming's water supply line was extended to serve those properties, and the domestic wells were abandoned (City of Deming, 2009). NMED's investigation under Superfund found that the site did not warrant listing on the NPL, due to the rural setting and its low population density. The site is listed as requiring no further remedial action (U.S. EPA, 2018b).

3.3.2.4 Landfills

Landfills used for disposal of municipal and industrial solid waste can contain a variety of potential contaminants that may impact groundwater quality. Landfills operated since 1989 are regulated under the New Mexico Solid Waste Management Regulations. Many small landfills throughout New Mexico closed before 1989 in order to avoid more stringent final closure requirements implemented in 1989.

The Butterfield Trail Regional Landfill is located 15 miles west of Deming, and it accepts contaminated soil, in addition to municipal solid waste and auto and truck tires. A waste transfer station is located on the east side of town. The Butterfield Trail Regional Landfill uses a liner to protect groundwater quality, and groundwater monitoring is being conducted.

3.3.2.5 Hazardous Waste

NMED provides regulatory oversight and management of hazardous waste in New Mexico under the federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976. RCRA delegated authority to the U.S. EPA to control hazardous waste, including the generation, transportation, treatment, storage, and disposal of hazardous waste. Under RCRA, the NMED Hazardous Waste Bureau (HWB) provides regulatory oversight and technical guidance to hazardous waste generators and to treatment, storage, and disposal facilities in New Mexico. The objective of the HWB is to ensure protection of human health and the environment and to ensure that hazardous wastes are handled and disposed of and/or treated properly. No permitted hazardous waste facilities are located in the vicinity of Deming.



3.3.1 Nonpoint Sources of Groundwater Contamination

Nonpoint source pollution of groundwater is caused by widely dispersed sources of pollutants that often reach groundwater as the result of precipitation carrying pollutants from the land into sources of water. The principal contaminants contributed from this type of pollutant source are nutrients, sediments, toxic substances, organic matter, salts, metals, and petroleum and its byproducts.

A primary water quality concern in New Mexico is shallow groundwater contamination due to septic systems (NMED, 2016), because they are generally spread throughout rural and urban areas, are considered a nonpoint source. Most of the serious septic system impacts occur where groundwater is shallow. In these areas, septic system discharges can percolate rapidly to the underlying aquifer and increase concentrations of:

- Total dissolved solids (TDS)
- Iron, manganese, and sulfides (anoxic contamination)
- Nitrate
- Potentially toxic organic chemicals
- Bacteria, viruses, and parasites (microbiological contamination)

Collectively, septic systems and other on-site domestic wastewater disposal constitute the single largest known source of groundwater contamination in New Mexico (NMED, 2016). Many of these occurrences are in the shallow water table areas.

Protection of shallow groundwater quality in populous areas plays an important role in maintaining the available water resources in these areas. The NMED Liquid Waste (Septic Tank) Program regulates on-site disposal of liquid wastes, including septic tanks, under the Liquid Waste Disposal and Treatment Regulations, 20.7.3 NMAC (NMED, 2018a). A list of permitted liquid waste systems in and around Deming can be found on the NMED Liquid Waste (Septic Tank) Program web site (http://www.nmenv.state.nm.us/fod/LiquidWaste). More than 1,300 permitted septic tanks are present in and around Deming.



Other nonpoint sources of pollution include those associated with agriculture. The application of agricultural chemicals, such as pesticides and fertilizers, has led to contamination of groundwater at various locations in New Mexico with trace concentrations of various pesticides and nitrate (NMED, 2016).



4. Water Demand

This section discusses current and projected water demand that is supplied or anticipated to be supplied by the City of Deming water system.

4.1 Current Water Demand / Water Audit

In order to accurately evaluate current water demand, it is important to evaluate system efficiencies as well as metered and billed production. DBS&A used production and billing meter records to prepare a water audit of Deming water use during 2016 (Sections 4.1.1 and 4.1.2).

4.1.1 Water Demand by Sector

To analyze the City's metered water use, the accounts were divided into four demand sectors:

- *Residential:* Includes treated water sales to homes and trailers (residential per capita water use trends are discussed in Section 4.2).
- Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional: Includes treated water sales to local industry and businesses such as hotels, restaurants, and other commercial establishments including apartments and trailer parks, and to schools.
- Bulk: Includes metered use for temporary construction purposes.
- Route 98 (Golf Course and Cemetery): Includes unbilled metered water use for irrigation at City of Deming outdoor facilities.

The amount of water metered by month during 2016 for each of these sectors is provided in Table 4-1. The breakdown of billed water by demand sector in 2016 is provided in Figure 4-1, which shows that the residential sector used the majority of water in 2016 (58 percent).



Table 4-1. City of Deming Metered Water Use by Sector in 2016

	Metered Water Use (gallons)							
Month	Residential	Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional	Bulk	Total Billed	Route 98 *	Total		
January	29,844,200	23,113,000	0	52,957,200	1,368,597	54,325,797		
February	27,235,600	21,090,800	0	48,326,400	1,368,597	49,694,997		
March	32,893,900	20,481,700	0	53,375,600	1,368,597	54,744,197		
April	48,821,600	30,007,800	0	78,829,400	1,368,597	80,197,997		
May	46,096,200	28,822,400	0	74,918,600	1,368,597	76,287,197		
June	55,616,100	29,508,800	384,600	85,509,500	47,184,451	132,693,951		
July	60,435,400	33,983,900	0	94,419,300	43,956,232	138,375,532		
August	58,789,100	36,785,500	76,400	95,651,000	19,555,692	115,206,692		
September	58,257,100	50,693,800	77,500	109,028,400	16,403,380	125,431,780		
October	33,540,000	41,046,200	34,900	74,621,100	12,986,643	87,607,743		
November	37,280,400	35,954,900	294,800	73,530,100	12,717,811	86,247,911		
December	27,587,800	23,028,600	242,736	50,859,136	8,967,000	59,826,136		
Total (gallons)	516,397,400	374,517,400	1,110,936	892,025,736	168,614,194	1,060,639,930		
Total (acre-feet)	1,584.5	1,149.2	3.4	2,737.1	517.4	3,254.5		

26





4.1.2 Water Audit

The American Water Works Association (AWWA) water audit balance format is illustrated in Figure 4-2. Appendix A contains a printout of the completed AWWA water audit spreadsheet for 2016, along with the grading matrix tables. Table 4-2 compares the results of the 2016 audit to the North American dataset of validated water audit data for utilities with less than 50,000 connections.

ltem	North American Dataset (2011 average)	City of Deming 2016
Non-revenue water (% by volume)	24.1	22.3
Non-revenue water (% by cost)	9.3	4.6
Apparent losses (gallons per connection per day)	10.38	7.82
Real losses (gallons per connection per day)	58.71	30.85
Customer retail unit cost (\$/1,000 gallons)	5.09	2.35
Variable production cost (\$/1,000 gallons)	0.98	0.41
Infrastructure leakage index	3.51	2.31
Water audit data validity score	70.44	53

Table 4-2. Deming AWWA Water Audit Results, 2016

When considering an audit of water use data, it is important to evaluate the accuracy of the data, which for Deming is collected through production and customer water meters. Meter error is most accurately estimated by performing system-specific field surveys. Annual meter accuracy and calibration surveys are not routinely conducted by the City. Production meters were replaced in 2012 and again 2017; therefore, error for the production meters has been estimated at 1 percent. Accuracy surveys for the customer meters are not routinely conducted; customer meter error has been estimated at 1 percent. Database errors were estimated at 0.25 percent for this analysis.





Because the production meter error, customer meter error, and database error were estimated for the audit, the values presented in Table 4-2 and Appendix A for total potential real water loss and total non-revenue water are also estimates. The AWWA water audit balance methodology includes estimates for real water losses, such as leaks, and for unaccounted-for water, such as water use that is not metered. In Deming there is authorized unbilled unmetered consumption that affects the water audit balance (estimated at 1.25 percent) and potentially unauthorized consumption (estimated at 0.25 percent).

Figure 4-3 shows the breakdown between revenue and non-revenue water for the City in 2016. Revenue water consists of billed water by demand sector (residential, industrial, commercial, institutional, and bulk sales) within the City of Deming. Non-revenue categories include total authorized unbilled metered use, total authorized unbilled unmetered use, total apparent losses (estimated customer meter error), and total potential real water loss (calculated by subtracting authorized consumption and apparent losses from adjusted production). A breakout for each of the non-revenue categories in 2016 is shown in Figure 4-4.

Several public works and water utility operations are part of the unbilled authorized use:

- City landscape irrigation
- Hydrant flushing
- Main line flushing or dead end line flushing
- · Flushing and disinfection of water lines
- · Other public works construction activities
- Street sweeping
- Cleaning the sanitary sewer system

Whether metered or unmetered, these activities contribute to the volume of non-revenue water. Further analysis of water use practices and data will allow the City to quantify these different types of water use.







4.2 Water Use Trends

Billed monthly water use by sector for 2016 is illustrated on Figure 4-5, which demonstrates that residential water use is typically highest during the summer months, while industrial, commercial, and institutional water use is typically highest during the fall months, likely due to the chili harvest. Figure 4-6 shows unbilled monthly water use during 2016 and 2017. Data for January through May 2016 are the same value, possibly due to a meter or database error; therefore data for 2017 was obtained to conduct the seasonal analysis.

The increase in summer water use was calculated by subtracting the mean billed winter water use (January, February, and December) from the mean billed summer water use (June, July, and August) for each demand sector (Table 4-3). The largest increase in summer water use occurs in the residential sector Figure 4-7. The difference is traditionally attributed to outdoor uses such as irrigation and evaporative coolers.

	Metered Water Use Average, 2016 (gallons)				
2		Industrial,			
		Commercial,			
Season	Residential	Institutional	Bulk	Route 98 ^a	Total
Winter mean	28,222,533	22,410,800	80,912	3,460,426	54,174,671
Summer mean	58,280,200	33,426,067	153,667	20,994,581	112,854,515
Increase in summer water use (gallons)	30,057,667	11,015,267	72,755	17,534,156	58,679,844
Increase in summer water use (acre-feet)	92.23	33.80	0.22	53.80	180.05

Table 4-3. Calculated Increase in Summer Water Use

^a Amounts based on 2017 monthly data.

The NMOSE has developed a GPCD (gallons per capita per day) calculation methodology to standardize per capita water use calculations in New Mexico. These values provide a baseline of water use that is not as susceptible to changes in population and can be used to evaluate water conservation potential and to track conservation programs' implementation results (NMOSE, 2015). The user inputs population, household size, and occupancy data from the most recent U.S. Census, as well as system-specific monthly data for as many as seven years at a time, and the GPCD calculator returns per capita values for several categories (NMOSE, 2015). The NMOSE GPCD calculator can be easily updated as more data become available, providing water suppliers with comparisons in per capita use over time.
Appendix C



CITY OF DEMING

C39







The GPCD calculator was used to calculate the City's per capita use for 2016 (Appendix B). Figure 4-8 shows the annual overall system per capita use by sector for the City of Deming during 2016. The GPCD calculator was also used to calculate the City's per capita use on a monthly basis for 2016. The 2016 monthly residential per capita values are shown in Table 4-4.

Month	System Per Capita Residential Use ^a (gallons per day)
January	82
February	83
March	90
April	138
May	126
June	156
July	166
August	161
September	166
October	92
November	106
December	76
Annual Average	120

Table 4-4.	City of	Deming	g Monthly	and	Annual
Residen	tial Per	Capita	Water Us	e for	2016

^a Results derived using data in the NMOSE GPCD calculator (Appendix B; NMOSE, 2015).

Another simple method of calculating annual per capita use is to divide the total water produced by the population served. This method provides a good estimate of the relative magnitude of the per capita use when all of the monthly data needed for the NMOSE GPCD calculator are not available. Based on the estimated population in Deming during 2016 of 14,488 individuals, the City of Deming residential per capita demand averaged 98 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) during 2016. The average per capita demand for all sectors of water use was 236 gpcd during 2016.





4.3 Analysis of Top Users

Evaluation of the largest water users can help the City target conservation efforts where they will have the greatest impact. In 2016, six accounts were billed for more than 4 million gallons of water each (Table 4-5), accounting for over 21 percent of the total billed metered water use.

Customer Name	2016 Billed Total	Identified Water Line Area
Customer Name	(galions)	Identified Water Ose Area
Mizkan America, Inc.	125,849,700	Border Foods Plant
Mizkan America, Inc.	29,269,800	Border Foods Plant (use during September through December)
Mizkan America, Inc.	19,337,700	Border Foods Plant
Luna County Detention Center	6,989,000	Jail facility
Kingdom of the Sun	4,567,400	Retirement center
Quality Inn	4,364,500	Hotel
Total	190,378,100	$\ \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} \ _{L^{\infty}}^{2} = \frac{1}{2} \left\ \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} + \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} + \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} + \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} + \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} - \hat{\boldsymbol{x}}_{i}^{T} + \hat$

Table 4-5. City of Deming Top Water Users in 2016

The top three accounts combined include almost 175 million gallons for water delivered to the Border Foods Plant (Table 4-5).

4.4 Reuse

The City reuses treated wastewater effluent, thereby lowering the demand on the potable water system, particularly in months of high demand. As discussed in Section 2, the City currently uses reuse water at three locations: a storage pond for the Luna Energy power plant, the golf course, and farmland located near the WWTP (SMA, 2013). Monthly reuse water volumes for 2016 are provided in Table 4-6 and shown on Figure 4-9.

The largest wastewater effluent consumer would be Luna Energy if they used their contractual amount of 1 million gallons per day (mgd) of treated effluent. The 570-megawatt Luna Energy plant is located northwest of Deming and provides an annual schedule of proposed reuse water consumption to the City.



	1	Reuse Water (g	allons)		
Month	Luna Energy	City Farm	Golf Course	Total	Luna Energy Current Storage
January	6,560,000	28,427,000	0	34,987,000	22,513,000
February	10,440,000	19,008,000	0	29,448,000	24,565,000
March	8,280,000	15,769,000	0	24,049,000	28,159,000
April	4,680,000	10,612,000	4,206,000	19,498,000	28,159,000
May	5,184,000	32,170,000	15,385,000	52,739,000	22,975,000
June	6,840,000	33,625,000	3,706,000	44,171,000	16,135,000
July	2,520,000	25,907,000	0	28,427,000	13,615,000
August	6,800,000	28,514,000	0	35,314,000	7,135,000
September	6,120,000	6,831,000	1,786,000	14,737,000	17,236,000
October	4,320,000	14,364,000	4,238,000	22,922,000	12,916,000
November	576,000	39,969,000	4,692,000	45,237,000	28,409,000
December	0	8,825,000	4,138,000	12,963,000	28,409,000
Total (gallons)	62,320,000	264,021,000	38,151,000	364,492,000	250,226,000

40

Table 4-6. City of Deming Reuse Water, 2016





In the future, the City plans to reuse effluent at a planned multi-sport complex. The City wants to build a recreation area and fishing pond fed by treated effluent. The cemetery is currently irrigated from a dedicated well, but there are plans to irrigate with treated wastewater effluent in the future.

4.5 Future Water Use Projections

Future demand for water from the City of Deming water system will be driven in large part by population growth and demand for water services. Future water use by the City will include:

- Continued service for existing uses, including residences, businesses, schools, and other commercial uses, and water for parks and other outdoor landscaping.
- Expansion to serve new residents, businesses, or other users coming into the area.

There is uncertainty regarding estimates of future use, which are dependent on population growth in the area (Sections 4.5.1 and 4.5.2) as well as on policy decisions yet to be made regarding expansion of the system to serve new customers. Therefore, DBS&A has developed a range of potential future water use projections as described in Section 4.5.3.

4.5.1 Population Growth

As part of the process of developing the population forecasts for this plan, DBS&A and Poster Enterprises evaluated past population growth rates and recent population projections and conducted interviews with local government and economic development and planning organizations in the Deming and Luna County area.

Deming has generally experienced steady population growth historically. Between the 2000 census and 2010 census, the City grew by 5.24 percent (Table 4-7). The U.S. Census Bureau (2018) reported that 14,855 people lived in Deming in 2010 and listed 5,582 occupied and 644 unoccupied housing units. Since 2010, the population has decreased slightly to 14,488 people (World Population Review, 2017).



-			
		Percentage	Annual Growth
		Change	Rate
Year	Population	(%)	(%)
1900	1,100	—	_
1920	3,212	192.00	5.50
1930	3,377	5.14	0.50
1940	3,608	6.84	0.66
1950	5,672	57.21	4.63
1960	6,764	19.25	1.78
1970	8,343	23.34	2.12
1980	9,964	19.43	1.79
1990	10,970	10.10	0.97
2000	14,116	28.68	2.55
2010	14,855	5.24	0.51
2016	14,488	-2.47	-0.42

Table 4-7. Historical Population and Growth Rates for Deming

Source: World Population Review, 2017 — = Not applicable

4.5.1.1 Recent Population Forecasts

In updating the New Mexico regional water plans in 2016 and 2017, population and water use projections were prepared for each of the 16 water planning regions. The projection prepared for the *Southwest New Mexico Regional Water Plan* takes into consideration the variability in population growth the area has experienced by providing a forecast that anticipates a moderately optimistic and a less optimistic growth trend. The regional water plan includes projected population through 2060, based on two scenarios (low- and high-growth), for the planning region (NMISC/NMOSE, 2017). The plan summarized data gathered from local experts about the economic outlook to inform the projections. The 2012 Bureau of Business and Economic Research (BBER, 2012) statewide population projections through 2040 were used for the low population projection and extrapolated through 2060 for Luna County. The high projection is based on the 2012 Luna County comprehensive plan update: 1.0 percent annual growth through 2020 and 1.5 percent annual growth after 2020.

DBS&A evaluated and compared the regional water plan projections, the City's 2017 PER growth rate (0.56 percent annual growth), and historical growth rates for Deming (Figure 4-10). The reviewed datasets included the following (listed in order from largest to smallest growth rates):





- 1990 to 2000 annual growth rate of 2.55 percent
- 1970 to 1980 annual growth rate of 1.79 percent
- Southwest New Mexico Regional Water Plan high-growth estimate (1 to 1.5 percent)
- Southwest New Mexico Regional Water Plan low-growth estimate (0.6 to 1.24 percent)
- 1980 to 1990 annual growth rate of 0.97 percent
- Deming PER annual growth rate of 0.56 percent
- 2000 to 2010 annual growth rate of 0.51 percent
- 2010 to 2016 annual growth rate of -0.42 percent

Based on this information and comparison of the different population forecasts available, DBS&A has selected the high-growth estimate used in the *Southwest New Mexico Regional Water Plan* and the recent 2000 to 2010 annual growth rate (similar to the recent Deming PER projection) to develop the population projections for the City of Deming.

4.5.2 Population Growth Projections for the City of Deming

The selected projected population growth rates (Table 4-8) were applied to the Deming population to project growth through 2060 (Table 4-9, Figure 4-11). The forecasts bracket a range of growth rates that allows the City to plan for a modest but steady growth under the high-growth scenario, as well as a much lower growth rate should the economic downturn continue.

Table 4-8.	Projected Annual Growth Rate
	City of Deming

	Annual Growth Rate (%)						
Projection	2010-2020	2020-2030	2030-2040	2040-2050	2050-2060		
High	1.00	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50		
Low	0.51	0.51	0.51	0.51	0.51		

Table 4-9. Projected Population City of Deming

	City of Deming Population ^a						
Projection	2010 ^b	2020	2030	2040	2050	2060	
High	14,855	16,407	19,042	22,100	25,650	29,769	
Low	14,855	15,633	16,451	17,312	18,219	19,172	

^a Estimated by applying annual growth rates (Table 4-8) to Deming population.

^b Based on 2010 census data.





4.5.3 Future Water Demand

Population projections inform future water demand in most of the water use categories served by the City of Deming. To project future water requirements, current billed water usage amounts for most demand sectors (Section 4.1.1) were projected forward under both a low and high population growth scenario (Section 4.5.2).

The water use shown on Table 4-10 is based on monthly billing and meter records and well production reports. Total future water demand estimates are based on the amount of water the City must divert in order to meet customer demand. During 2016, the City diverted 3,488 ac-ft/yr in order to provide metered use of 3,254 acre-feet of water. Thus, the City must divert 7 percent more water than is delivered (metered or sold) to meet demand.

Table 4-10. Current Water Demand by Sector City of Deming

Year		Total Metered				
	Residential	ICI	Bulk	Route 98 ^a	Total	Production (acre-feet)
2016	1,585	1,149	3	517	3,254	3,488
2016 plus 7% diversion requirement	1,695	1,230	4	554	3,482	

^a = Includes unbilled metered use from City's municipal and irrigation wells

ICI = Industrial, commercial, and institutional

Using the recent water uses by sector shown on Table 4-10 as starting values, future water demands were projected forward using the following assumptions:

- Low and high residential demand projections were developed by multiplying the 2016 billed amount from Table 4-10 by the low and high population annual growth rates shown in Table 4-8.
- Industrial, commercial, and institutional demand was assumed to grow proportionally to population growth, so the low and high annual growth rates from Table 4-8 were



multiplied by the 2016 billed amount in Table 4-10, to develop the low and high projections.

- For bulk sales, the low projection was assumed to remain at 2016 level, and the high projection was assumed to increase with the high annual growth rate of 1 to 1.5 percent. Use in this category is very low and does not have a significant impact on future demands for the City.
- For Route 98, the low projection was assumed to remain at the 2016 use level, and the high projection was assumed to increase at 1 percent per year from the 2017 use level. The increase accounts for possible additional outdoor park watering due to warmer temperatures or to new parks.
- Total projected future diversions were estimated at 7 percent more than the high and low total metered water projections.

The resulting projected demand under the low and high growth scenarios is shown on Figure 4-12 and Table 4-11. The projections indicate that metered water use is expected to range from about 3,300 to 3,400 acre-feet in 2020 and from about 3,900 to 6,000 acre-feet in 2060. Projected groundwater diversions to meet the metered water demand are expected to range from about 3,500 to 3,600 acre-feet in 2020 and from about 4,200 to 6,400 acre-feet in 2060 (Table 4-11).

As discussed previously, there is considerable uncertainty in the water use projections. The City will continue to evaluate its water use in comparison to projected demand and will update projections periodically to account for changed conditions. The range of projections presented is intended to provide a reasonable range of anticipated water needs.



Table 4-11. Projected Water Demand City of Deming

		City of Deming Water Use (ac-ft/yr)				
Demand Sector	Projection	2020	2030	2040	2050	2060
Residential	High	1,649	1,914	2,221	2,578	2,992
	Low	1,617	1,701	1,790	1,884	1,982
Industrial,	High	1,196	1,388	1,611	1,869	2,170
commercial, institutional	Low	1,173	1,234	1,298	1,366	1,437
Bulk	High	4	4	5	6	6
	Low	3	3	3	3	3
Total billed	High	2,848	3,305	3,836	4,453	5,168
	Low	2,793	2,939	3,092	3,253	3,423
Route 98 ^a	High	545	602	665	735	812
(unbilled)	Low	517	517	517	517	517
Total metered	High	3,394	3,908	4,502	5,187	5,979
	Low	3,311	3,456	3,609	3,771	3,940
Total projected	High	3,631	4,181	4,817	5,551	6,398
demand	Low	3,542	3,145	3,862	4,035	4,216

^a Route 98 includes metered use from the City's municipal and irrigation wells. ac-ft/yr = Acre-feet per year

49





5. Water Rights

This section describes the legal framework and administration of water resources in the Deming area and summarizes the water rights currently owned by or in the process of being transferred to the City.

5.1 Current Legal Framework

The Mimbres Underground Water Basin (UWB) was declared on July 29, 1931 under State Engineer Order No. 1. Since that date, the NMOSE has issued seven orders extending the boundaries of the basin.

Guidelines for the Deming-Columbus Administrative Area (DCAA) within the Mimbres UWB were adopted on May 20, 2011. The DCAA guidelines replace the Mimbres Basin Administrative Criteria adopted in 1982. These guidelines do not apply to the permitting of applications filed under NMSA Section 72-12-1.1, 72-12-1.2, and 72-12-1.3. The guidelines apply to applications within the DCAA that propose production from the basin-fill alluvium, which is composed of gravel, sand, clay, silt and interbedded basalt flows. Applications proposing diversion from other geologic units, or outside the boundaries of the DCAA, will be processed on a case-by-case basis.

A critical management area was designated in the Deming area; no new appropriations are allowed in the area.

5.2 Existing Permits

The City of Deming owns a total of 6,363 acre-feet of municipal use water rights in the Mimbres Basin (Table 5-1) and an additional 2,892 acres of land with appurtenant irrigation rights (Table 5-2). Many of the irrigation rights have been purchased in the last few years and have not yet been transferred to municipal use. Some irrigation rights cannot be feasibly transferred to the City due to the remote location. For example, water rights held under files M-514, M-811, and M-971 (Murdock) are appurtenant to 686 acres that are located approximately 16 miles outside the City limits, too far to be piped into the City's municipal service area, and they therefore cannot be used to meet future demand within the City.



52

Daniel B. Stephens & Associates, Inc.

Table 5-1. City of Deming: Municipal Use Water Rights Page 1 of 2

Well or Subfile Number	OSE File Number	Previous Owner / Reference Name	Priority Date(s) ^a	Consumptive Use (ac-ft)	Comments
17	M-34-C	Merrill/Irani	1928	100.8	Converted to municipal use and transferred into M-109.
АМ	M-47 & M-266 Combined A	American Minerals	1927	33.40	Change of ownership filed March 14, 2008. Can divert up to 80 ac-ft at the well, but only consumptively use 33.40 ac-ft. The May 1981 order lists this condition and states that "all diversion in excess of 33.40 acre-feet per annum shall be returned to the underground water basin as seepage and return flow." City cannot transfer this water into municipal system because of OSE administrative criteria, but in the future could use it for irrigation or consumptive use at the current place of use.
17	M-49 et al.	Bilbo	1926	566.34	M-49 et al includes M-49-S, M-109, M109-S, and M-127. Permit approving conversion to municipal use approved October 19, 2005 states, "total quantity of water to be transferred is 380.74 ac-ft."
	M-67 into M-49 acres		1918 1928 1942		M-67 & M-43S into M-49 et al. was approved in 2006, transferring 185.6 into M-49 et al.
14	M-214	Luchsinger	Between 1911 and 1945	477	The original right from this well was for irrigation use on 83.1 acres. Deming converted this to municipal use in 2003 for 132.96 ac-ft. Two additional transfers into M-214 increased the total consumptive use right to 409 ac-ft. The OSE approved the transfer of M-261-B (F. Hervol) for 160 ac-ft in June 2005. The OSE approved the transfer of M-110A and M110B (Ruebush) for 176 ac-ft in July 2005.
15	M-271, M-272, M-273	Peru Hill Mill	1928	441.9	Although originally a mining right, Deming may pump this water in the current place of use and physically move it into the municipal water system.

Note: All water rights in the Mimbres Basin have been adjudicated (see orders issued in Final Decree in Cause No. 6326 entered May 26, 1993 in the Sixth Judicial District Court in Luna County). ac-ft = Acre-feet NA = Not applicable

^a Priority date as described in original right.



Table 5-1. City of Deming: Municipal Use Water Rights Page 2 of 2

Well or Subfile Number	OSE File Number	Previous Owner / Reference Name	Priority Date(s) ^a	Consumptive Use (ac-ft)	Comments
25.9.30C	M-326 into M-272	Scott	1943	159.2	Water rights are commingled with the other water rights in files M-272 and M-273. Permit condition No. 3 states, "The amount of water diverted from Wells M-272 and M-272 under this permit shall not exceed 159.2 acre-feet per annum."
25.9.11B	M-190A into M-272	Bishop	1912, 1941, 1945	100.8	Water rights are commingled with the other water rights in files M-272 and M-273. Permit condition No. 3 states, "The amount of water diverted from Wells M-272 and M-272 under this permit shall not exceed 159.2 acre-feet per annum."
Multiple municipal wells	M-299	City of Deming	1913- 1943	4,415	Original water rights for municipal system for a total of 4340 ac-ft. Various priority dates range from 1913 to 1943. Permit to commingle various water rights into M-299 approved July 31, 1992. Conditions include the following: (1) Maximum diversions from wells 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 10 may not exceed 4,340 ac-ft per year. (2) Maximum diversion from any one well is not to exceed 1,210 ac-ft per year. This July 31, 1992 permit includes M-60-D for 75 ac-ft of municipal rights, bringing the total to 4415 ac-ft.
				28.48	The cemetery right (M-439) is also included on the permit, which states that a consumptive use right of 28.48 will be combined with the 4,415-ac-ft for municipal use, bringing the total consumptive use to 4443.48.
BTRL	M-328 into M-10346	City of Deming	1925 1943	40	For use at the City's Butterfield Trail Regional Landfill.
	Total consumptive use water rights				

Note: All water rights in the Mimbres Basin have been adjudicated (see orders issued in Final Decree in Cause No. 6326 entered May 26th 1993 in the Sixth Judicial District Court in Luna County).

^a Priority date as described in original right.

53

ac-ft = Acre-feet NA = Not applicable



Table 5-2. City of Deming Irrigation Water Rights Page 1 of 4

1						Priority Date(s ^b)		
Subfile	File No.	Acreage Amount	Previous Owner / Reference Name	Diversion	Consumptive Use ^a	Date	Amount (acres)	Comments
25.9.10	M-4	73.64	Yates/Marcak	220.92	117.82	1940 1944	23.62 50.02	In Deming files M-4 (73.64 acres), M-128 (56.5 acres), and M-128A (71.7 acres) are all listed together for the 200.64 acres (referred to as Yates 1). All of this land is in the USDA/FSA Conservation Reserve program (weed control) and is fallow. Deming filed a notice to irrigate specific blocks for 2005. M-4, M-128, M-128A, and M-328 (Yates 1) were all purchased from Yates and are owned by City of Deming.
25.9.6A	M-128	56.5	Yates/Home	169.5	90.4	1938 1944	49.5 7.0	City filed notice to irrigate in 2004 and 2005. Change of Ownership filed in April 2003.
25.9.6B	M-128A	71.7	Yates/Home	215.10	114.72	1938	71.7	Change of Ownership filed in April 2003.
25.9.17	M-143	150.2	Yates/Drip	450.60	240.32	1939	150.2	City filed change of ownership in December 2008. Land is enrolled in USDA/NRCS Conservation Reserve program and is leased to Kevin Penn.
25.9.10	M-328	80.2	Yates/Sunshine	240.6	128.32	1925 1943	45 95.2	Change of ownership filed in June 2002. Permit M-328 into M-1526 moves 16 acre-feet appurtenant to 10 acres transferred for domestic, school use as well as landscape irrigation. Reverts to original place and purpose of use in December 2013.
								Original right was for 105.2 acres with a diversion right of 168.32 acres. In permit M-328 into M-10346, the City has transferred water rights appurtenant to 25 acres (40-acre-foot diversion) to Butterfield Trail Regional Landfill.

Note: All water rights in the Mimbres Basin have been adjudicated (see orders issued in Final Decree in Cause No. 6326 entered May 26th 1993 in the Sixth Judicial District Court in Luna County). ^a Reflects the number of acre-feet the City would obtain if this water right is transferred to municipal use using a duty of 1.6 acrf. per acre. ^b Priority date as described in original right. Since the City did not always buy all the land or water rights adjudicated, the acreage listed may be higher than the amount of land or water right owned by the City.

ac-ft/yr = Acre-feet per year OSE = New Mexico Office of the State Engineer --- = Not available



Table 5-2. City of Deming Irrigation Water Rights

Page	e z	01	4

							Priority	Date(s ^b)	
	Subfile	File No.	Acreage Amount	Previous Owner / Reference Name	Diversion	Consumptive Use ^a	Date	Amount (acres)	Comments
	25.9.19A	M-15	251.95	Marcak	755.85	403.12	1912 1939 1940 1945	45.70 65.08 15.52 125.65	Change of ownership filed in April 2001. Well M-15 T leased to Waterloo farms to irrigate land under M-225. Permit to allow drilling of supplemental well (S-15 T) M-225 approved August 2007, expires December 31, 2016 with a 5-year option to extend the lease to 2021. Diversions at the move-to point may not exceed the M-225 permit amount.
55	25.9.30A	M23-282 Combined	100.6	Wood I	301.8	160.96	1912 1929	60 40.6	Purchased from Wood in 2004. Change of ownership filed by the City in November 2008. Farm is leased to Zach Penn until 2018 with a 5-year renewal option to extend the lease to 2023.
	25.9.30B	M196	100	Wood II	300	160.00	1942 1940	40 71.4	City purchased in 2005, but hasn't filed a change of ownership. Land is leased and enrolled in USDA/NRCS Conservation Reserve program (weed control).
	24.9.20	M-47	136.40	Clary	409.20	218.24	1931 1936 1943	9.0 20.4 107	Change of ownership filed in August 2002. Well was cleaned out in 1997. Land is fallow.
	24.8.7A	M152	147.02	Keeler (Hal)	441.06	235.23	1939 1944	108.8 114.66	Change of ownership to City of Deming filed in February 1993. Construction of pipeline near this farm is planned. The City will then apply to move water from another Keeler farm in Section 18 to one well in Section 7 and then convert to municipal use. Land is irrigated with wastewater as part of the City's land application permit for wastewater.

Note: All water rights in the Mimbres Basin have been adjudicated (see orders issued in Final Decree in Cause No. 6326 entered May 26th 1993 in the Sixth Judicial District Court in Luna County). ^a Reflects the number of acre-feet the City would obtain if this water right is transferred to municipal use using a duty of 1.6 ac-ft per acre. ^b Priority date as described in original right. Since the City did not always buy all the land or water rights adjudicated, the acreage listed may be higher than the amount of land or water right owned by the City.

ac-ft/yr = Acre-feet per year OSE = New Mexico Office of the State Engineer --- = Not available



Table 5-2. City of Deming Irrigation Water Rights Page 3 of 4

[Priority Date(s		Date(s ^b)			
	Subfile	File No.	Acreage Amount	Previous Owner / Reference Name	Diversion	Consumptive Use ^a	Date	Amount (acres)	Comments	
	24.8.7B	M-290	53	Keeler (Hal)	159	84.80	1912 1928 1943 1944	6 12 18 60	Change of ownership filed in 1993. Land is irrigated with wastewater as part of the City's land application permit for wastewater.	
	24.8.18	M-340	95.3	Keeler (Hal)	285.9	152.48	1944	95.3	Change of ownership to Deming filed in 1993, includes grant of right of way or easement to the Keelers dated April 28, 1994. Land is irrigated with wastewater as part of the City's land application permit for wastewater.	
n	24.9.14A	M-157 A	50.05	Seybert	150.15	80.08	1913 1940 1942	9.5 37.1 43.9	Change of ownership from Laharca/Seybert to City of Deming filed in February 2006. Original right appears to have been 49.75 acres and 0.3 acre of reservoir. City bought only the water rights and the well.	
-	25.9.19C	M-225	149.11	Keeler (Waterloo Farms)	447.33	238.57	1902 1939 1942 1945 1947	30.40 11.20 63.40 23.82 20.29	Change of ownership from Waterloo Farms (Keeler) to Deming filed May 7, 2007. Leased to Keeler. Water pumped from M-15-T is also used to irrigate this farm.	
	23.9.31A	M-208	135.40	Diaz	406.2	216.24	1915 1944	94.4 41	Change of ownership filed from Terry to City of Deming in 1998. Irrigated acreage includes reservoirs. The City attempted to transfer these water rights into the municipal system in 2001. Application was protested and withdrawn. City has filed annual applications for extension of time; all have been approved by the State Engineer.	

Note: All water rights in the Mimbres Basin have been adjudicated (see orders issued in Final Decree in Cause No. 6326 entered May 26th 1993 in the Sixth Judicial District Court in Luna County). ^a Reflects the number of acre-feet the City would obtain if this water right is transferred to municipal use using a duty of 1.6 acrt per acre. ^b Priority date as described to noriginal right. Since the City did not always buy all the land or water rights adjudicated, the acreage listed may be higher than the amount of land or water right owned by the City.

ac-ft/yr = Acre-feet per year OSE = New Mexico Office of the State Engineer --- = Not available



Table 5-2. City of Deming Irrigation Water Rights Page 4 of 4

							Priority	Date(s ^b)			
	Subfile	File No.	Acreage Amount	Previous Owner / Reference Name	Diversion	Consumptive Use ^a	Date	Amount (acres)	Comments		
	24.9.29	M-230	78.2	Hervol (Joe)	234.6	125.12	1942	78.2	Water rights and well only were recently purchased by the City. Change of ownership will be filed in February 2009.		
	25.9.19A	M-325	53	Graves	159	84.80	1947	53	City purchased water rights only.		
	24.9.28B	M-333A	76.61	Lehman	229.83	122.58	1944	76.61	Change of ownership for land and water rights filed in April 2002. Land is fallow.		
	24.9.28A and B	M-333B	107.27	Lehman	321.81	171.63	1944	107.27	Change of ownership for land and water rights filed in April 2002. Land is fallow		
57	25.10.13	M-352	160	Sweetser	480	256	1944 1943	153.1 (10.3)	City purchased this farm in 2006. Change of ownership filed in November 2008. The farm is enrolled in USDA/FSA Conservation Reserve program (weed control).		
	25.9.11C	M-388-S	72.12	Montano	216.36	115.39	1930 1945	36.7 35.42	City of Deming purchased the land and water rights in June 2001. Change of ownership was filed in November 2008. Land is fallow.		
	25.6.3B	M-514	305.15	Murdock	915.45	488.24	1950 1952-	450.6 464.7	Change of ownership filed in February 2000. All of this land is located several miles east of town and		
	25.6.3A	M-811	304.4	Murdock	913.2	487.04	1954	304.4	could be developed into an industrial park or used for		
	25.6.15	M-971	76	Murdock	228	121.6	1952	76	industrial or commercial purposes.		
	23.9.34	M-1033	8.0	Luna County	24	12.8	1931	8.0	Purchased from the County in 1998		
		Total	2,891.82	i - i sana ing	8,665.46	4,614.82		a fait of	action list and a list bit that was a list		

Note: All water rights in the Mimbres Basin have been adjudicated (see orders issued in Final Decree in Cause No. 6326 entered May 26th 1993 in the Sixth Judicial District Court in Luna County). ^a Reflects the number of acre-feet the City would obtain if this water right is transferred to municipal use using a duty of 1.6 ac-ft per acre. ^b Priority date as described in original right. Since the City did not always buy all the land or water right adjudicated, the acreage listed may be higher than the amount of land or water right owned by the City.

ac-ft/yr = Acre-feet per year OSE = New Mexico Office of the State Engineer --- = Not available



5.3 Future Water Rights Needs

Based on the future water demand projections shown in Table 4-11, the maximum anticipated demand for water from the City is 6,398 ac-ft/yr, which is only 5 acre-feet more than the City currently has permitted in its municipal wells. The low water demand projection is 4,216 ac-ft/yr. Therefore, the City of Deming has sufficient municipal water rights to meet the high and low demand projections through 2060. Additionally, transfer of the City's irrigation water rights to municipal use would allow the City to meet demand that exceeds the future demand projection.

Transfer of irrigation rights, however, raises two issues that may affect the feasibility of this option:

- It may not be economically feasible to convert some of the irrigation rights located several miles southeast of the City, due to the distance the water would have to be piped.
- The City may encounter difficulty converting irrigation water rights to municipal use due to protests from existing users and to limitations placed by the NMOSE in applying the DCAA Guidelines (administrative criteria).

Therefore, it cannot be assumed that all the City's irrigation water rights will be converted and available for future municipal use.

5.4 Water Use and Conservation

The City of Deming set forth its policy on water use through the *City of Deming Comprehensive Plan Update* (Sites Southwest, 2010) and regulates water use through its City Code.

The current Comprehensive Plan supplemented these policies and also recognizes that a new production source will be required to meet future water demand and provide for growth. Accordingly, the City of Deming has the following water policy goals: (1) ensure that water and wastewater systems are expanded or improved to accommodate future growth, (2) continue to



obtain water rights for future growth, (3) require that subdivisions have an adequate supply of water for each lot for at least 70 years, and (4) enhance the quality of life by providing safe, efficient, affordable, and responsible use of water by encouraging voluntary water conservation and expanding uses of wastewater effluent irrigation.

The Deming City code restricts water use through Section 9-4-7 of the Code. That section includes outdoor water conservation measures (§9-4-7(D)), time of day and day of week watering restrictions (§9-4-7(C)), waste of water prohibition (§9-4-7(E)), and restrictions on water use during water emergencies (§9-4-7(H)). In addition, Section 13-4-5 of the Code requires that subdivisions have an adequate supply of water (§13-4-5).

59



6. Water Supply Priorities and Strategies

The City of Deming will continue to expand and implement several initiatives as part of its longterm water supply strategy. Based on the analysis provided in Sections 2 through 5, DBS&A recommends that the City of Deming consider the actions detailed below.

6.1 Water System

This 40-year water development plan did not include an independent evaluation of water system infrastructure. However, to be prepared to meet future water needs of the community, it is important for the City of Deming to continue with implementation of infrastructure upgrades as recommended in the 2017 PER (DBS&A, 2017):

- Expanding the supervisory control and data acquisition system (SCADA) to 6 wells, 2 tanks, and the Bilbo booster station.
- Rehabilitating 6 wells, including cleaning and acidizing, test pumping, and video surveys
 of existing wells.
- Replacing piping, including aged and failing cast iron and undersized piping that cannot provide fire flow.
- · Installing additional piping to provide fire flow.
- Constructing a new closed-loop booster station at Peru Mill to provide service in the Industrial Park.
- Adding 1.5 million gallons of water storage.

Further recommendations based on the results of the water audit include:

- Establish/revised policies and procedures for data collection.
- Establish ongoing mechanisms for customer meter accuracy testing, active leakage control, and infrastructure monitoring.



- Begin to assemble the economic business case for long-term needs based upon improved data becoming available through the water audit process.
- Establish long-term apparent and real loss reduction goals with at least a 10-year horizon.

The City should also continue to implement infrastructure upgrades recommended in the 2017 Comprehensive Plan (City of Deming, 2017).

6.2 Water Supply and Quality

Recommendations for preserving and enhancing water supply and quality include:

- Continue collecting depth to water measurements to monitor any changes in water levels and available physical supply.
- Evaluate potential locations for future well field development to replace the city's production wells currently located in the critical management area. Consider water quality (source water protection) and infrastructure when evaluating potential locations.
- Continue collecting water quality samples, paying particular attention to the levels of arsenic, fluoride, nitrate, TDS, sulfate, and volatile organic compounds (VOCs) in the Deming drinking water supply.
- Continue implementing the City's source water/wellhead protection program to ensure the future safety of the City's water supply.
- Continue participation in regional source water quality monitoring and watershed protection planning to improve water quality.



6.3 Future Water Demand

To ensure that adequate water supplies for available to meet future demands, the City should review population projections every 5 years to determine if the projections in the current plan are still valid and evaluate whether increases in demand are trending toward the high- or low-water-use projections. Should a higher trend be identified, the City should implement a targeted water rights acquisition program as recommended in Section 6.4.

An updated review of water conservation measures was not included in the scope of this plan. The City of Deming has water conservation ordinances in place to address shortages due to drought or system failure, and the City values conservation and will continue with implementation of the recommendations from its existing Water Conservation Plan (included in the 2009 40-Year Water Development Plan [DBS&A, 2009]) as follows:

- Continue the current water conservation program management and staffing by the Public Works Department.
- Expand the existing public education component to support the City's water conservation goals.
- Make residential water conservation a priority, since the majority of use occurs in this sector and the potential savings are higher than in other sectors.
- Work with the largest users in the commercial and industrial sectors to identify how water can be conserved by those customers.
- Continue tracking water use efficiency by conducting annual AWWA water audits and updating the NMOSE GPCD calculator annually.
- Work with public works and water utility operations staff to better quantify unbilled authorized uses within the water treatment and wastewater treatment plants and public works.
- Continue to maximize opportunities for wastewater reuse for outdoor watering.
- Adopt stricter codes regulating domestic outdoor watering methods and allocated times for watering.



- Continue to implement the customer water meter replacement program.
- Continue to conduct leak detection surveys and standards for water line construction.
- Develop an updated comprehensive conservation plan to improve water use efficiency. An updated plan should include quantitative assessments of water savings from various water conservation measures already implemented, as well as recommendations for additional measures that have the greatest potential for minimizing water use.

6.4 Water Rights

To ensure that the City has sufficient water rights to meet future water demand, the following priorities are recommended:

- Complete necessary paperwork to ensure that water right permit requirements continue to be met. For example, the City may be required to file requests for extensions of time to prove beneficial use and, for certain rights, notices of intent to irrigate. This system should also document which water rights require other paperwork preparation such as change of ownership forms.
- Develop a water rights tracking spreadsheet for all water right offers made to the City. Include evaluation of the water right, (owner, priority, location relative to the critical management areas, price) and the decision whether to purchase. Document water rights that have been evaluated for purchase, even if the City opted not to purchase the water right.
- Implement a program to reserve water rights in trust for certain water rights owners who
 may wish to transfer water rights to the City in the future. Identify opportunities to lease
 these water rights.
- Continue to evaluate agricultural water rights that are offered to the City for purchase, in accordance with the Deming Water Rights Acquisition Policy.



- Evaluate water right permit limitations to determine whether pumping limits on wells will affect total water availability for municipal use.
- Transfer irrigation rights to municipal use as applicable, and complete pending water rights transfers to move irrigation water rights into the municipal system.

64



References

Bureau of Business & Economic Research (BBER). 2012. Projected population, New Mexico Counties, July 1, 2010 to July 1, 2040. University of New Mexico. http://bber.unm.edu/ demo/PopProjTable1.htm. November 2012.

City of Deming. 2009. City of Deming 40-year water plan. July 20, 2009.

- City of Deming. 2013. Tier-2 amended application for wastewater reuse. March 8, 2013. Available at http://www.ose.state.nm.us/Basins/Colorado/AWSA/Tier2/Proposals/Deming/Effluent_Reuse/DemingEffluentReusePropAmended.pdf>.
- City of Deming. 2017. Comprehensive plan. February 2017. Available at http://www.cityofdeming.org/file/City%20of%20Deming%20Approved%20Comprehensive%20Plan%202.13.17.pdf>.
- Cuddy, A.S., and E. Keyes. 2011. Groundwater model of the Mimbres Basin, Luna, Grant, Sierra and Doña Ana Counties, New Mexico. Hydrology Bureau Technical Report 11-1, New Mexico Office of the State Engineer. January 2011.
- DBS&A. 2017. City of Deming preliminary engineering report for water system improvements. Prepared for City of Deming, New Mexico. October 2, 2017.
- Hanson, R.T., J.S. McLean, and R.S. Miller. 1994. Hydrogeologic framework and preliminary simulation of ground-water flow in the Mimbres Basin, Southwestern New Mexico. U.S. Geological Survey Water-Resources Investigations Report 94-4011. Prepared in cooperation with New Mexico SEO.
- Hawley, J.W., B.J. Hibbs, J.F. Kennedy, B.J. Creel, M.D. Remmenga, M. Johnson, M.M. Lee, and P. Dinterman. 2000. *Trans-international boundary aquifers in southwestern New Mexico*. New Mexico Water Resources Research Institute Technical Completion Report, Interagency contract no. X-996350-01-3. Prepared for U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 6 and International Boundary and Water Commission, U.S. Section. March 2000.



- John Shomaker & Associates, Inc. (JSAI). 2006. Report on water treatment system sustainability, Chino Mines Company, DP-1340, Condition 86. February 2006.
- Johnson, M.S., L.M. Logan, and D.H. Rappuhn. 2002. Analysis of effects of ground-water development to meet project demands in Regional Planning District 4, Southwest New Mexico. Draft Hydrology Report 02-X, New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, Hydrology Bureau. March 2002.
- Land, L. 2016. Overview of fresh and brackish water quality in New Mexico. Open-file Report 583, New Mexico Bureau of Geology and Mineral Resources, Aquifer Mapping Program, Socorro, New Mexico. June 2016. Available at https://geoinfo.nmt.edu/publications/ openfile/downloads/500-599/583/OFR-583_NM_BrackishLR.pdf>.
- Longworth, J.W., J.M. Valdez, M.L. Magnuson, and K. Richard. 2013. *New Mexico water use by categories, 2010.* Technical Report 54, New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, October 2013. Available at http://www.ose.state.nm.us/Conservation/PDF/NM%20Water%20Use%20 by%20Categories%20Tech.%20Report%2054.pdf>.
- New Mexico Environmental Public Health Tracking (NMEPHT). 2018. Community systems water quality. https://nmtracking.org/environment/water/CommunityWaterSystems.html Accessed December 2018.
- New Mexico Environment Department (NMED). 2016. Final 2016-2018 State of New Mexico Clean Water Act Section 303(d)/Section 305(b) integrated report. Surface Water Quality Bureau, Santa Fe, New Mexico. September 23, 2016. Available at https://www.env.nm.gov/swqb/303d-305b/2016-2018/documents/EPA-APPROVED2016-2018/R092316.pdf>.
- NMED. 2018a. Liquid Waste Program. https://www.env.nm.gov/liquid_waste/ Accessed December 2018.
- NMED. 2018b. NM drinking water highlights. https://www.env.nm.gov/drinking_water/highlights/> Accessed December 2018.



- NMED Ground Water Quality Bureau (GWQB). 2018. Industrial and domestic groundwater discharge permits. Available through link at https://www.env.nm.gov/gwb/NMED-GWQB-PollutionPrevention.htm> Accessed December 2018.
- NMED Petroleum Storage Tank Bureau (PSTB). 2018. Active leaking and NFA site lists. Available at <https://www.env.nm.gov/petroleum_storage_tank/reports-and-lists/> Accessed December 2018.
- New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission/New Mexico Office of the State Engineer (NMISC/NMOSE). 2017. Southwest New Mexico regional water plan. March 2017.
- New Mexico Office of the State Engineer (NMOSE). 2015. Gallons per capita per day calculator, instruction module, for 2.05 version, final. June 2015. http://www.ose.state.nm.us/WUC/wuc_gcpd.php.
- NMOSE. 2018. OSE points of diversion. http://geospatialdata-ose.opendata.arcgis.com/datasets/ose-points-of-diversion Accessed November 2018.
- New Mexico Water Quality Control Commission (NMWQCC). 2002. Water quality and water pollution control in New Mexico 2002: A report prepared for submission to the Congress of the United States by the State of New Mexico pursuant to Section 305(b) of the Federal Clean Water Act. NMED/SWQ-02/1.
- Rhinehart, A. S. Timmons, B. Felix, and C. Pokorny. 2015. Groundwater level and storage changes – Regions of New Mexico: Technical completion report. New Mexico Bureau of Geology and Mineral Resources, Socorro, New Mexico. June 2015. Available at <https://geoinfo.nmt.edu/resources/water/amp/brochures/Groundwater_level_storage_chan ges-Regions-NM_2015.pdf>.
- Sites Southwest. 2010. City of Deming Comprehensive Plan update. Prepared for the City of Deming. July 2010. Available at http://swnmcog.org/images/demingcomplan-7-10final.pdf>.



- Souder Miller & Associates (SMA). 2013. Preliminary engineering report for proposed effluent reuse expansion, City of Deming. November 2013.
- United States Census Bureau (U.S. Census). 2018. *Population, housing units, area, and density: 2010.* https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productview.xhtml?src=bkmk Accessed December 2018.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA). 2009. National primary drinking water regulations. https://www.epa.gov/sites/production/files/2016-06/documents/npwdr_complete_table.pdf> Accessed December 2018.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 2018a. Search Superfund site information. https://cumulis.epa.gov/supercpad/CurSites/srchsites.cfm Accessed December 2018.
- U.S. EPA. 2018b. Superfund site information: Highway 549 solvents (EPA ID: NM0000605167). <https://cumulis.epa.gov/supercpad/cursites/csitinfo.cfm?id=0605167> Accessed December 2018.
- U.S. Geological Survey (USGS). 2005. Preliminary integrated geologic map databases for the United States: Central states: Montana, Wyoming, Colorado, New Mexico, North Dakota, South Dakota, Nebraska, Kansas, Oklahoma, Texas, Iowa, Missouri, Arkansas, and Louisiana. Open-File Report 2005-1351. Available at ">https://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2005/1351/#NM>.
- USGS. 2018. National Water Information System: Mapper. https://maps.waterdata.usgs.gov/mapper/index.html Accessed December 21, 2018.
- Western Regional Climate Center (WRCC). 2018. New Mexico climate summaries. <https://wrcc.dri.edu/cgi-bin/cliMAIN.pl?nmdemi>. Accessed December 2018.
- World Population Review. 2017. Deming, New Mexico Population 2018. http://worldpopulation review.com/us-cities/deming-nm-population/> Accessed December 5, 2017.

Appendix A

2016 AWWA Audit


Instructions 1



Reporting Worksheet 2



Performance Indicators 3

Sector Contraction of the sector of the sect	User Comments Copyright © 2014. All Rights Reserved.
Use this work	sheet to add comments or notes to explain how an input value was calculated, or to document the sources of the information used.
General Comment:	
Audit Item	Comment
Volume from own sources:	System total production from _Summary Info.2016 Audit working file.xtsx, Monthly 2016 tab. Production volumes from Wells 3 and 12 (irrigation wells physically separated from the municipal water system) are excluded from the total production.
Vol. from own sources: Master meter error adjustment:	Production meters are all turbine meters (McCrometer) installed in 2012 (not replaced until February 2017). Personal communication from Archie Heddleston to Liie Hill, Deming, October 4, 2017. According to the manufacturer info, such meters should be + or - 2%. Per Jennifer Hill (DBS&A, 10/05/17), If they are installed properly (with 5 to 10 pipe diameters straight pipe upstream and 1 to 2 downstream) and sized correctly, they probably actually read with error less than 1%. Site inspection of one well showed that the meter was properly installed.
Water imported:	n/a
Water imported: master meter error adjustment:	n/a
Water exported;	n/a
Water exported: master meter error adjustment:	n/a
Billed metered:	Total billed metered calculated by DBS&A from 2016 City of Deming billings data (Water 2016 with location address.xlsx received April 2017), after corrections made to three erroneously high bills.
Billed unmetered:	n/a
Unbilled metered:	Route 98 consumption for 2016 less water provided by irrigation wells #3 and 12 (Data provided to Liie Hill by Deming October 2017)

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

Comments 4

CITY OF DEMING

~

Audit Item	Comment
Unbilled unmetered:	Default value assumed
Unauthorized consumption:	Default value assumed
Customer metering inaccuracies:	Communicated by Javier Reyes in an email dated 7/26/2017 (less than 1 percent)
Systematic data handling errors;	Default value assumed
Length of mains:	Communicated by Javier Reyes in an email dated 7/26/2017 (no change from 2015)
Number of active AND inactive service connections:	Communicated by Javier Reyes in an email dated 7/26/2017 (no change from 2015)
Average length of customer service	n/a
Average operating pressure:	Communicated by Javier Reyes in an email dated 7/26/2017 (no change from 2015)
Total annual cost of operating water system,	FY16 budget divided by 2 plus FY17 budget divided by 2. Based on total expenditures/expenses (water utility budget for FY17)
Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses)	Line item 340 from water utility budget for FY17. FY16 Line item 340 divided by 2 plus FY17 line item 340 divided by 2. Divided by billed metered
Variable production cost (applied to <u>Real Losses)</u>	Operating costs and supplies for FY16 divided by 2 plus operating costs and supplies for FY17 divided by 2; divided by water supplied.

Comments 5

裔		NA MA	/WA Free Wa	ter Audit Software: <u>Wate</u>	e <mark>r Balance</mark> Amenic	WAS v5.0 an Water Works Association.
	See 1	Wa	ater Audit Report for: Reporting Year: Data Validity Score:	City of Deming (NM3528616) 2016 53	1/2016 - 12/2016	
		Water Exported 0.000			Billed Water Exported	Revenue Water 0.000
				Billed Authorized Consumption	Billed Metered Consumption (water exported is removed) 892.026	Revenue Water
Own Sources (Adjusted for known			Authorized Consumption	892.026	Billed Unmetered Consumption 0.000	892.026
errors)			1,070.246	Unbilled Authorized Consumption	Unbilled Metered Consumption 163.868	Non-Revenue Water (NRW)
1,148.174				178.220	Unbilled Unmetered Consumption 14.352	
1.11	System Input 1,148.174	Water Supplied		Apparent Losses	Unauthorized Consumption 2.870	256.149
		1,148.174		15.766	Customer Metering Inaccuracies 10.666	
			Water Losses	Constraints - St	Systematic Data Handling Errors 2.230	
Water Imported		1702	77.928	Badlassa	Leakage on Transmission and/or Distribution Mains	
0.000				62.162	Leakage and Overflows at Utility's Storage Tanks Not broken down	
					Leakage on Service Connections Not broken down	

Water Balance 6



Dashboard 7

*				AWW	A Free Water Audi	t Software:	Grading Matrix			None Association Cap	WASISD yoght © 2014 All Pupts Reviewed
	The	grading assigned to each au	dit component and the corresp	onding recomm	anded improvements and activ	ons are highlighted	I in yellow. Audit accuracy is like	ely to be improve	d by prioritizing those items shi	own in red	
Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Ling Metersking and		College States 1	NE CONTRACTA LA CONTRACTÓ	22 A R R R R	New AND DECKY AND THE	WATER SUPPLI	ED			CONTRACTOR OF	
Volume from own sources:	Select this grading only if the water utility purchases/imports all of its water resources (i.e. has no sources of its own)	Less than 25% of water production sources are motived, remaining sources are entimated. No regular meter accuracy testing or electronic calibration conducted.	25% - 50% of treated water production sources are matered other sources estimated. No regular mater accuracy testing or electronic cellbration conducted.	Conditions between 2 and 4	SD% - 75% of treated water production sources her metered, offret sources estimated. Occasional meter accuracy testing or electronic calibration conducted.	Conditions between 4 and 6	At least 75% of freated water productor sources are metered, gr at least 50% of the source flow in derived from metered sources. Meter accuracy testing and/or electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually, Leas than 25% of fested meters are found outside of w1-5% accuracy.	Conditions between 6 and 8	100% of freated water production sources are metered, meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually, less than 10% of meters are found subside of +/- 6% accuracy	Conditions between 8 and 10	100% of treated water producto sources are metered, meter acour- testing and electronic calibration- related instrumentation is conduct semi-annually, with less than 10° found outside of +A 31% acourse Procedures are reviewed by a thi- party knowledgeable in the N36 methodology.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Volume from own Sources" component		to quality for 2. Organize and launch efforts to collect data for determining volume from own sources	la qualify for 4. Locate al water production sources field, isunch meter accuracy teating begin to initial meters on unmetere sources and replace any obsolute	on maps and in the for existing meters, d water production idefective meters.	to quality for 5 Formalize annual meter accuracy meters: specify the frequency of installation of meters on unmeter sources and complete replacement meters.	E testing for all source tasting. Complete ed water production of all obsolute/defective	to qualify for 8. Conduct arrund meter accuracy toxil related instrumentation on all meter regular basis. Complete project to in defective existing meters is that entry population is metered. Repair or region e4-81% accuracy.	ng and calibration of r installations on a stall new, or replace re production meter ice meters outside of	to coalify for 10 Maintain annual meter accuracy the related instrumentation for all meter reglace meters outside of +1-354 acc meter technology, plot one or more inneviative meters in attempt to fu accuracy.	L fing and calibration of installations. Repair or uracy, Invistigate new e replacements with their improve instar	to maintain 10 Standardize meter accuracy test frequency to semi-annual, or mor frequent, for all misters, Repair o replace meters outside of +0.3% accuracy. Continually investigately improving metering technology.
Volume from own sources master moter and supply error adjustment	Select n/a only if the water utility fails to have meters on its sources of supply	Viventory information on meters and paper records of measured volumes such tare incomplete and/or in a very crude condition, data error cannot be determined	No automatic datalogging of production volkmes, daily readings are sched on paper records who ar any accountably, conclude. Plane are not balanced association soften and employed on calculatory the volkme for advanced area volkme for any social component and arrived flow data is adjusted only when grassly evident data error accus.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Production meter data is logged automaticably in electronic format and reviewed at least on an worthly basis with necessary contextions implemential. Volume form our sources" Studions include estimate of day, changes in trackationage facilities. Meter data in adjutted when goess data errors occur, or occursul meter testing deems this necessary.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Hourly production meter data kegod automatorally & reviewed on at least a wrinkt basis. Data adjuhret data concert gross error when meterinstrummation exponent mathematic accurs peters mathematic accurs peters continued by metamatoki used continued by metamatoki used calcularga a balanced "Volume tion own sources" component, and data pop in the archived data see corrected on a least a weekly basis.	Conditions between 6 and 8	Continuous production meter data is Bigged automatically & inviewed each busines day. Data is adjusted to connect grave and hend meter meterinarumentation equipment maturation and invisus of meter accuracy testing. Tankhoragy advantatically used to "togitane in on sourcest tabulations and data gas in the actived data are connected on a daily basis.	Conditions between 8 and 10	Computerzed system (BCADA or samilar) automaticały balances filow from ali source and storages, result are newewi a ach business day. Ta sociourialady cencho ensure taki data gaps that occor in the archive flow data are guoly detected an between SCADA and sources met- ensures minimal data transfer enc
Improvements to attain higher state grading for 'Vavier meter and supply error adjustment' component		In charter for 2. Develop a glot to reductive recordingeng system to capture all flow data, set a procedure to reveal flow data on a daty, basis to detect information alloud existing meters by consubrid pit inspections of the system of the inspections of the system of the inspection of the system of the inspection of the system of the inspection of the system of the system of the meters of the system of the system and obtaining manufacture Benature.	Examilytion- Install automatic datagong experi- meters: Complete installation of leve at anawaring a facties and inclu- automatic adaptation particular and completed another mail from completed another mail from completed another the the approximation of the data on detect gross anomalies and	ment on production el instrumentation at betank level data in mouterized system, o spresiditate to volume changes and met the composite ricidon system. Set a monthy basis to I data gaps.	to could for 5 Refine computerized data collection houty production meter data that is weekly bans for local specific data Use daty net storage change to bals "Water Stuppler Volume, horizon white Stuppler Volume, to could entry an explemented on a	and archive to include reviewed at least on a anorrales and gap. nee flows in calculating ary corrections to data a weekly base.	Country to a flow data is collected least in houry base. Al data is more enrors corrected ach business day, vertainers are employed in databatin bugsheld compares. A plaat pack- gress enror and inaccuracy confer	and archived on at eved and detected Tanktorage levels platareed "Wate closs meter data for med by testing.	St spirate for the spirate spi	adity elevation change A countation (SCADA) storng/scored system, neing algorithm and ind source methers. Data h business day.	to manhan 19 Minister meter innovations for development of none accurate and respective flowmeters. Contrust to replace or regime meters at two perform solutids of dealed accurate accurate weather meters and two accurate weather meters and two encounts weathers in storage volume. Keep current with SCAD and data management systems inner and and encome.
Water Imported	Select rvia if the water utility's supply is exclusively from its own water resources (no bulk purchased) imported water)	Less than 25% of imported water sources are metered, remaining sources are estimated. No regular meter accuracy techng.	25% - 50% of imported water sources are metered, other sources estimated. No regular meter accuracy testing.	Conditions between 2 and 4	80% - 75% of imported water sources are metered, other sources estimated. Occasional meter accuracy texting conducted.	Conditions between 4 and 6	At least 75% of imported water sources are metered, meter accuracy testing andise lectoric conducted annually for all meter metalesions. Less than 25% of tested meters are found outside of 4/- 6% accuracy.	Conditions between 6 and 8	100% of imported water sources are matered, mater accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually, less than 10% of meters are found outside of +/- 8% accuracy	Conditions between 8 and 10	100% of imported water sources a meteod, meter accuracy testing an electronic calination of related insymmeration is conducted semi annually for all meter installations, w less than 10% of accuracy tests fou outside of +/- 31% accuracy.

Grading Matrix 8

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	6	6	7	8	9	10
Improvements to attain higher data grading fur "Weet monthel Volume" component (Volne usually the water supplier selling the water supplier selling the weet heigh sudded is it weights with the mechanism the medicing subtailation measuring the imported volume. The utility with the Europer to ensure halo all contains and an accurate measure of the Vitalan measure of the Vitalan imported volume is quantified.]		to audit for 2 Research and a second specific to a variety of a second mathemas at location methods backing research remain method water sources.	To multifund a Locate all months water subscreents back location and services on converter thereonnections and register obed references that means on converter references that an end of the services the services of the services the service the services the services the services the services the service the services the service the servic	on maps and in the providing maters, red imported water istal/detective meters.	Sociality for 2 Formable annual meter ecocary taken maken, planning for 50m te under meter social for 50m te Corina, an entation of meters and water mitracentons and socialite/diffector an else-altered diffector and	eating for all imported gular matter accuracy de instrumentation, unrentered imported replacement of retors.	So analytic at an an equipart to installations, or an all reputate the installations, or conduct satistation of related back annually. Repair or related and accuracy.	obce defective, meter res. Maintain annual ed water meters and divertation at least s outside of +6.6%	Conduct mater accuracy tearing for annullesses, large utile statement annullesses, large utile statement accuracy. Investigate new notel accuracy. Investigate new notel more registererer with investiga- ingener with social ingener methal social	al moters on a semi- cloned at related where curside of 4-3 St chroboby, blot one or meters in attempt to racy.	Sumarian 12 Bacdeloba mére socrasy tea hagus to all meters. Costroues condect calations. Costroues andourcestations on aserel-around subs. Regist en desta many costrouely investigate/sight recomp metering technology.
Water reported master meter and supply error adjustment	Beliect rule if the Imported water supply is unrelated, with Imported water quantities estimated on the billing nunccess sent by the Exponent to the purchasing Utility.	Investoy information on imported metrics and paper records of measured values event to take incomplete and/or in a very stude determined. Weater agreemently with water Exponency are missing or written interpret Engleter concerning meter management and texting.	No automatic datalogging of imported supply volumes, daty reading also acrossed on pages records without any accordibility and the absence of ennors and data gaps in recordsd volumes. Written gapsement requires mater accuracy feating but a vapue on the databa of how and who conducts the finding	Conditions between 2 and 4	Imported supply metered flow data logget dudmancely in electronic format and revewal at least on a month passa by the Experts with necessary described and the necessary described and the necessary described and the metered and the percession data with evaluation of the process to protect both evaluation of the percession data with Writers represent evaluation datas metered accurate sharp and datas metered accurate sharp and data metered accurate sharp and data metered accurate sharp and data	Conditions between 4 and 6	Hourly Imported supply motioned data is togate submoduly & reverse of at least a week basis by the Exposite. Data is adjusted to correct goate and when mathematical is adjusted to correct goate of when adjusted to a submodule and a set detected, and to correct testing. Any data goes in the schwe data are detected and so motion data are detected and so motion testing. Any data goes in the schwe data are detected and so motion protect both the scheng and the gurdhaming UNIPy.	ti Conditions between y & @ and 8 d	Continuous Imported supply metered flow data is logged automatically & reviewed exch business day by the Exporter. Class automatic services meterinaturentation supprent meterinaturentation supprent encodigos are detected and terrested on a daily loss. A data sub the selling and the purchasing UREy.	Conditions between 8 and 10	Computerated system (BCADA or similar) automatically records data which is nervewed each butteres day by the Eguiner, Tryit accountable by the Eguiner, Tryit accountable may account into actived Bow cata an quacky detected and corrected. Technical actives and corrected provisions for mathematical actives by the social every the years.
Ingrovements to attain higher data grading for 'Valer imported master moter and popply error adjustment component		In mathy for 2 Developing a plan for strathwards and four data, set a procedure to inview four data, and a by basis to data of the strathwards of the strathwards and the strathwards of the strathwards and obtaining manufacturer Resture. The strathwards of the process and related instrumentation, and obtaining manufacturer Resture. The strathwards of the purchasers by basis	to coally for 4 hostal automatic distaloging rep- worky meters. Bert a procedure to monthly basis defect gross amon Launch discussions with the Expo terms of the writem agreement re- testing and data management, necessary.	priment on Imported review this data on a nates and data paps, rates to jointly review anding meter accuracy revise the terms as	Excessive for Refine computerized data collector houty hepoted supply metered to a feast on a very dynamic to deter and gaps. Male necessary com- errors on a weekly	E and archive to include w data that is reversed specific data anomalies critors to enrors/data basis.	Encours that all he could be a Encours that all he could used in collected and archivectures a reviewed and encours/bits ages business day.	1 Intered flow clata is bourly basis. All data are consolid each	to coally for 11 Conduct accounts By charts to co supply relatered data in inviving and or day to the Esponse. Results of all in Esponse and the porcharts (UMP), a regular review and updating of the the written agreement between the so Unity, at least every to	Infirm that all imported connected each business der accuracy tests and for sharing between the contractual language in ding and the purchasing in years.	to matching 10 Monto molec providing of development of more accurate and les approxite to have been set of the Experise to have been set of the other set of the set of the other open and markan productive relation Keep the within apprendict own the marks the enging needs of all parties
Water Exported	Select rva if the water utility sells no bulk water to neighboring water utilities (no exported water sales)	Less than 25% of exported water sources are matered, remaining sources are estimated. No regular meter accuracy testing.	2515 - 501% of exported water sources are metered, other sources estimated, No regular meter accuracy testing.	Conditions between 2 and 4	50% - 75% of exported water sources are metered, other sources estimated. Occasional meter accuracy testing conducted.	Conditions between 4 and 6	At least 75% of exported water sources are motored, motor accurac testing and/or electronic calibration conducted annualy. Least than 25% of tested meters are found outside o +/- 5% accuracy.	V Conditions betwee 6 and 8	100% of apported water sources are metered, meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually, less than 10% of meters are found outside of +/-6% accuracy	Conditions between 8 and 10	100% of exported water sources are matered, mater accuracy festing and electronic calbration of related instrumentation is conducted semi- annually for all mater installations, with less than 10% of accuracy fresh four outside of +/-3% accuracy.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Water Exposited Volumi" component. (Note suicida", for water offly being suched sale (Strong) water to a (Strong) water to a (Strong) water to a such a star exponsibility of the utility exporting the water to maintain the meeting paralitation meeting paralitation water uphene adequate meter uphene to a such a such as adequate meter uphene parality exported adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequate adequ		to subtry the 2 Reverse but water sales generative that purchasing waters to confirm requirements for waters of the confirm and analy on resolute different matters as needed.	Ta autor function Locate al expension water courses founds net or accuracy ferring for the relationer in courseling the connections and optime above	4 on maps and in field, deported water dereodefective meters	Ecological Strategy (Constraint) (Constraint	Esting for all exported of matters on unmatere and replacement of matters.	Consider project to and if now, or re or and a good of what a mission of the marker soccesy that to fail anyon Report or implicer markers outloads	plice defective, meter loss. Maintain annual orted water meters of +1- 616 accuracy.	ta solitz her v Varsan anvall network accuracy wat er replace meters outside of 4.5 % involutive meters in stempt to ing	2 g for all maters. Repair accursy, hwestigate none explorements rove meter accuracy.	banaktion 50 Stockodos mate a boursy ver hequero ys service and a stocker of hequero (a service) a stocker of the service (contractive) we can also stocker (contractive) we can also service (contractive) we can also service (contractive) we can also service (contractive) a stocker mercent of the service (contractive) and service mercent of the service (contractive) and service mercent of the service (contractive) and service (contractive) and service (cont

Grading Matrix 9

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Water exported master motor and supply error adjustment	Select ruls only if the water utility takes to have markers on the serviced supply interconnections.	Inventory information on exported meters and paper second of massure inventes exist bas are incomplete and/or in a very crude condrain, data simo carnot be determined. Witten agreement(s) with the utility purchasing the water are massing or witten in vague binguage covering inveter management and testing.	No submatic detailogging of exponde supply volumes, day readings are actived on page- technic and the submatic and an controls to contine data accuracy and the absence of emirs and data gaps in recorded volumes. Written gaps met recorded volumes. Written gaps met recorded volumes. Written gaps met recorded volumes. Written gaps met recorded volumes. The proverse of the conducts the testing took and who conducts the testing.	Conditors between 2 and 4	Explorted interant (bool data is beginned in the second of the second formation of the second of the second monthly back with necessary corrections implementation. Make that is adjudge the utility define that is adjudge the utility define content of data with the the process to protect both me utility appoint my water and the content of data and for the process to protect both me utility appoint my water and the apprecent solution and clearly backs management.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Houry agented agely metered data is toget a durantice & A intervent on at least a week bone by the udity selfs of the water. Data is adjusted to concer groups sime when other and the self of the self of the metered of the self of the self of the metered of the self of the self of the for error found whet adjusted data are disclored and corrected data are data are data are data are data are data are data data are data are data are data are data are data are data data are data are data are data are data are data are data are data data are d	Condficms between 6 and 8	Continuous exponted supply metered flow data is logged automatically & reverse of such baceness day by the Data is adjusted to context press are from districted meterinary meters and supported by meter accused press and context data and data and and context data willing (econting) . Using and the purchasing Using . Using and the purchasing Using	Conditions Between 8 and 10	Computenzed system (BCADA or similar) automatically records data which is revolved ach sources day which is revolved ach sources day which is revolved and concellably control ensure that all enrolds ages that occur in the activities days data sources and the source of the source of the source of the source of the source of the source of the source of the management are reviewed by the self-reg cliding and unchange Ulips lead ance every the years.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Vider expatited master meter and supply terri adjustment" component.		<u>Is coality for 2</u> Develop a plan to restructure recordingeng system to capture at flow data, et al proceedure to invite rout entres. Other more related to the system of the system of the plant entres. Other more related to the system of the system of the relation and the system of the relation and the system of the generation of the water and the purchasing utility.	Is called, for 4 broke automatic is detailing and work where, is detailing and month basis to detect gross aron Launch discussions with the puch- review terns of the wittin agreen accuracy leading and data managain as indolesary.	pment on exported review this data on a dates and data gaps, array utilizes to jointly into regarding meter and, review the terms	Helive computered to a calculation of the computer and a calculation nously exported supply methods the calculation of the second parts. Make processary correlation of a weekly errors on a weekly	E and archive to include data that is reviewed at pector data anomalies inclures to entorsidata basis.	building of the second process of the second process of the second process of the second process of the second sec	data is collected and Al data is reviewed ach business day.	<u>La confiz for 1</u> Constant accountently choices to co- mentered flow data is involved and co- dictory the utility walls; the water, excinany water and eath completions contrast water and eath completions excinance water and eath completions purchasing utilities, at least e	nfem that all exponed rected each business Results of all motor hould be available for purchasing Usley, we and updating of the agreements with the enry five years.	Is maintain 10 Monitor meter involutions for development of more accurate and test opennium Rouments, such with the partnessing utilities are shown to communicate in test with the shown of partnessing utilities open and maintain partnessing utilities open and maintain openanced current with clear and everypoing needs of all parties.
A STATE STATE			a final a second a lay		AUTHORIZED CO	DNSUMPTION	AND ALL DAMAGE	1. 1. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2. 2.	A DEAL AND A STREET AS A DEAL	1-11 1220013	
Diled metared	n's (not applicable), Bielect n's only if the enfaits cubitors and is bield for water and is bield for water and is bield for water and bield for water have been and the source the source on a flat of field the source of the source bield of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the source of the source of the source of the bield of the source of the s	Less than 50% of customes with volume-basis billings from meter readings, filt of final site taking outcomer population customer population	At least 50% of sustainers with voluma & suid blags than meter Manual meter reacting a conductor with less than 60% meter real subclass statistication and the sub- statistication of the subclass statistication matching of the subclass statistication net subtraction with net subtraction.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Al least 75% of customers with water-based, billing from moler mask, the r fined reak blag from mask, the r fined reak blag from mething a conducted with a least 50% mething a conducted with a least 50% mething a conducted with a least 50% mething and a second with a methic cody up, the direct of methics, cody up, the direct of the reak second with a least conducted balance and a second with the other second with a least conductive balance and a second with the other second second second conductive balance and a second conductive of conductive of the second second conductive of the second second second conductive of the second second conductive of the second second second second conductive of the second second second second conductive of the second	Conditions between 4 and 6	All least SN of customers with values based bling tion meter reads, consurption for memory consults as extended. Mead this consurption for accurs with failer tasks, exemption to reads and the consurption for accurs with failer tasks, exemption to reads and the consultation for accurs with failer tasks, exemption accurs and the consultation for accurs within a enducting. Regular registerment, and accurs of the conducting of summary datations conducting by utility personnel.	Conditions between 6 and 8	At load 31% of outstreams each after valuesbased biog team meter madra buckets and an	Conditiona between 8 and 10	Albest 99% of customers exist with value-based table; then more table value-based table; then more table based on access in the Albender based on access and access and based on a second on a second access in the Albender based on a second on a second and table accession accession accession and table accession accession accession and table accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accession accessi
hrprovenents to attain higher data grading for "Billed Metheral Consumption" component.	Ernia la sulected because Dis custome mater population a unmered constare establishing a new poley to mater the customer population and upon metered volumes.	<u>Conduct Interactions or trails of custoriar methods (to salect appropriate methor models (blagger) hivestigativ vidure based water rate structures.</u>	<u>In match for 4</u> Purchase and metal meters own Castleg metal information during Castleg metal information during number of metales to recruises. In billing system	matered accounts, in reading success, mater read wints to rs. Test a minimal astall computerized	Durchas so makes for Elemented reta de admetera ou elemented reta de admetera ou admetera testa de autores a manager admetera vertifiable succesa i ma admetera vertifiable succesa i ma regular meter regiserament organa menual succesa per de admetera de admetera admetera de admetera de admetera admetera de admetera de admetera admetera de admetera admetera de admetera admetera de admetera admetera de admetera admetera admetera de admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera admetera a	i metered accounts, appropriate water real wording moral meter wording moral meter usery leafing. Llanch Launch a program of fices by utility personnel.	Purchase and including the offer so times assess including more than times assess including the source of the assess including the source of the providence more source bit more relationed to assess bit more relationed to assess bit more relationed to assess and the source assessments and more sources by subground and sources to yubground and sources to yubground and sources to be the source assess	thered accounts. If is leas than 97%, do Meter Reading tohan (AMB) watern as achieve organize meter thang program, ipon accuracy test y feating program, ipon accuracy test distalled billing terrent third party her years.	Is analy, for 10 Purchase and test and a source of Anamatic theorem and the source of Phratechore (AM) when total in program, Contras meter account concerns the of theory of the source of program, Contras meter program, Contras meter program, Contras and program, Contras and progra	ned accounts. Launch Advanced Meteling anval meter reading word within a fibeyear yi testing program. C lungs scale meter cycle andykis using ad distable bibling data ct third party auditing at years.	Extension 15 Contrain a moust all retrained in the paint and the amoust all retrained in the paint and the amoust and the second second second tables and the second second second second advanced second second second second advanced second second second second advanced second second second second advanced second second second second reformation names assesses. Plan and second second second second second reformation names assesses, from and second second second second second reformation names assesses. Plan and second second second second reformation names assesses assesses house the south second second second second second second being second second second second being second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second seco

Grading Matrix 10

Billed unmetered	Select nis fit is the policy of the water utily to make all costomer connections and it has been confirmed by deteled autring that all contorners do indeed have a water meter. Le. no intertorally unmatered accounts evisit	Water utility policy dises <u>put</u> require customer metering: their fined the billing is employed. No data is consumption. The only estimates consumption in the only estimates consumption available are derived from data estimation methods using average foture court multiplied by number of connections, or smiller approach.	Wat with poly does and repart cutore method for the deal and the second second second second second phat area to Chart Method and Second second second second second and second second second second second and second second second and second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second secon	Volum online policy policy policy to policy	Water ubly poly gags require entationed exercisions exert for profile of exercisions exert for sublicities developed as the second second second as the Second second second as the Second second second as the Accounts exercision and a unrestered accounts as exclusion in the second accounts as exclusion in the second and accounts as exclusions.	When usity poly garge reuses to continue streams, inserter that than 5 with add accounts returns contractions to account settlement escenarized. The part is to escenarized to the streams of escenarized to the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the streams of escenarized to the streams of the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the streams of the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the streams of the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the streams of the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the streams of the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the streams of the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the escenarized to the streams of the streams	Writer utility policy dega require matering and volume based billing for all outprime accounts. Less than 2% of all outprime accounts. Less than 2% of all outprime accounts and accounts and inderest by university the number to goal exists on minima the number to a second second accounts of a second of consumption and obtained a three accounts via set specific estimation methods.
Ingnovemente to attain higher des grading for Tabled Ummetterd Consumption? component.		to coastify for 2 Conduct research and evaluate coatherants of a new sales (May coatherants of a new sales (May coatherants of the coasting) meeting anglet by installing water neters is not all sample of coatherants meters and sample of coatherants the meters or datalogging the water consumption over one, three, or seven day periods.	<u>Is called to 4</u> Ingliminit a new welk utility color-in-gaining coutomer making Lawar special plan instreme is club (i data for economic assessment of the scient methods data for economic assessment of the scient method plant, savas set with clusters difficult in the dress method scient method cousingfor valuess. Buyon couloner metric matteriors.	Exactly Sec. 1 Before poly and process the to prove subtrane induring particulation of and building emergit accurate. A says additionaccurate to involve adding accord to building emergit particulations and accurate the same second accurate accurate accurate accurate accurate the number of connetimed accounts	<u>Is another of</u> Paint to inside contineer metrics as a full scale basis. Reference on the production is an use to full metres. The special affords to defore hard-sources concrute: highware products to their the an adult concruption called at to the metroproduct work and decount as watery mode readedore.	Example Are 10 Contract contract in etaBolism free provide seven the a partier mark in etaBolism free provide seven the seven parties eccounts with example of phose marks to add in marking of phose water consumption.	In matching 12 Continue to form a strandisk methods for unmatched consumption and applere maans to acabiath metrory, for as many billed remaining unmethod accounts as is economically feasible.
Urelied meterod	select risk f all billing- exempt consumption is unmetered.	Billing practices eventf certain accounts, such as municipal buildings, built within a policis do not evol, and a relable count of unavailable. Mater upkerp and meter reading on these sociolitis meter reading on these sociolitis and the poor recordereing and built to poor recordereing and block of audings, water consumption for all such accounts is purely guestimated.	Billing practices sensed i rectain accounts, such as munopal balangs, to cirk where dates practice. A residue count of united practice. A residue count of united meter reading escurs on a re- rected trans. The sub-sub-site of the second trans. The sub- meter reader that multi- meter reader that the second trans- meter reader that the second trans- meter reader that the second trans- tices and provide second to the consumption trans actively deta destinuit of dates meter second dates and provide second trans- tices and provide second to the consumption trans actively deta destinuit of dates meter second dates and provide second dates and the second dates and th	Data writer prosedvers primt keyn warryste fir sperif acceler such a monicipal primt and a monicipal primt affer specific acceler data service a specific acceler acceler with a sublidate. The total control with a sublidate. The total control and a main acceleration acceleration and a setmod data of all stanuarybon scheral.	When address regardlys bing produce scale but defenses an produce scale but defenses an produce scale but how concerns the under interest accounts and the scale interest accounts accented and register of the scale accented on the scale but scale accented on the scale accented on the scale accented on the scale accented o	Victor poly sentitive to type of account of printile 3 billing reamption Counter and management and event may counter and accounter of matching accounts of a billing reamption matching accounts of a billing reamption acting of printile accounter of a reliable sense of the Discounter and a reliable sense of the Discounter and the Discounter of the Discounter of the Discounter and the Discounter of the Discounter of the Discounter of the Discounter and the Discounter of the Discounter of the Discounter of the Discounter and the Discounter of the Disco	Clearly written policy identifies the types of account given a billing services with implaints or keeping such inter management and meter reading for three accounts given proof proofly and a keeping such account at comparison of three accounts in the second of three accounts in second or meters.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Unbilled Metered Consumption" component.		to sutificior 2 Reasess the water utility's policy all-wing cettan accounts to be granted a billing serregion. This an outine of a new written policyfor billing serregions. With class hutfraster as to why any accounts hutfraster has the with any accounts hutfraster than billing, and with the interior to keep the number of auch accounts to a minimum.	Increasing the second s	Deat a new writer Advised to By advise exercision band opon conserva offers Moving the occurrence stages resources and meter records and Morg records to data or ensue of under metered electrons. Or back records for register metered electrons. On the the modes for register metere reading.	Example to the second s	Example for a second se	In maritan 12 Pessess the utility photophy in althoring any water uses to go "unbilet". Its pessels is inner and bit all accurts, even if the fee charged for water consumers in ideouted on water. Metering and biting all accounts evenues that water consumption is tracked and water water from phathory bakes a diverse and minimized.
Linbilled unmetered		Extent of unbilled, unmethined consumption, survivors, due to unchair policies and point recondereigner, Trobal consumption is quartified based upon a purely subjective estimate.	Clear shert of underd, umraned schumpter of entry as indexity. Under entry and an indexity. Constront before whether of each schumeters, but avail of each schumeters. But of an accurate estimater of the annual indume schumet of the	Extent of includes unmarked processing associated associated associated associated associated restances to this associated associated associated processing associated associated processing associated associated noning multipled by special Bearts multipled by number of events).	Coherent polices even for some forms of under ummelmed consumption control the set of the medium of the control the set of the set of the set of the managed uses each and allow for d and is writerice. But unsupervised uses are guarastimated.	Charpeloes and good recommension of the some uses for a value used provide terring use that uses (or matchesion uses of the use of the use of the the uses of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the use of the use of the use of the the use of the use of the the use of the use of the the use of the use o	Clear policies exist to identify permitted use of water in unblids, unmetered tasten, with the wateries of minimizer to the period sourcement of the and annunghan is spantified us formulae (the running mulgible by typical flow multiple by number of events) or use of temporary maters.

Grading Matrix 11

CITY OF DEMING

Grading >>>

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Ingrovemente to attain hybrid date grading for "Unbled Unnetered Consumption" component		to mathylar 5 Utilise the accepted default value of 1.25% of the volume of water suppled as an water by our to the supplement to the supplement to the supplement to the supplement supplement and supplement to the supplement supplement supplement to the supplement supplement supplement supplement to the supplement supplement supplement to the supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement supplement suppleme	Is useful for 5 URce accepted default value of 13 water supplied as an expedient reasonable gradification is useful for the supplier for departments, contractions to a and/or volume requirements for each	5% of the volume of meets to gain a of this use. Inte that have been or for the hydracts - scartain their enhydracts - scartain their enhydracts.	In could, for 3 Units encepted dehatin value of 1.25% of the values of values signaled as an expedient reasons of all soch uses. This is particularly expression for water utilities who are in the any stage of the value on other components who are on other components who are component components who are the components who are been component, and other take procty.	to couldry for 6 or cetable: Finalize policy and tegin to conduct for checks to better establish and quarty such usage. Proceed f flop-down uset exists and/or a great volume of such use is suspected.	Baselity for 8 Ancers were under policy and pro- umentered under policy and pro- exists and particle services and for use persons out-do a fire videy. Create use and documentation of fire hybri personal. Use services are approach to a undertained were use	edures for versions name that a policy of fee hydrachs by other procedures for othe by weber withy entry types of unbilled, ge.	<u>So coalify for 1</u> Refine written procession by unrealered water are no written by process managed by water uitig parts to determine if some of these use converted to billed and/or n	the all uses of unbilled, structured permitting interesting stores policy have value in being stored status,	Ematchin 10 Contrast to refere policy and procedures with interface of inducing in unabled and involved failure in unabled and involved of failure Any uses that can feasible become belied and which to convented eventually.
ALCONO. T. S. C.		a standard with	No. States	NY 8 44	APPARENT	LOSSES	Mark Street and	100	and the second	- ten te ou	Contraction of the second
Unauthorized consumption		Extent of unsuthorized consumption is unknown due to unkne policies and poor recordecepting. Total unauthorized consumption is guessitmated.	Unauthorzed consumption is a wown occurrence. but is bettern a mytery. There are no requirements to document observed wwret. But periodic faid proto capture born entrase occurrences. Total unauthorused consumption is approximated from the limited data.	conditions between 2 and 4	Procedures west to document some unauthroard consumption such as observed unauthroards fire hyteret gennigs. Use formulae to quarkity this consumption (three numing multiplied typical likerate, multiplied by number of events).	Default value of 0.35% of volume of water supplied is employed	Coherent policies exist for some forms of unsumorzed consumption (more than simply fire hydrant maxue) bot- offeren aveil closer evaluation. Researchade surveitance and reconderinger and for occurrences that talk under the policy. Volumes quantided by releance time these records.	Conditions between 6 and 8	Clear policies and good auditable recordinapping with the certain events (ex. Importing with water maters, bad utber counteries have lended oversight. Total consumption is a contrained of volames from formulae (time x hypical flow) and subjective estimates of unconfirmed consumption.	Condtons between .6 and 10	Clear policies exist to identify all known unaufhartard uses of water. Staff and procedures exist to provide enforcement of policies and detect volations. Each occurrence is recorded and quantified via formulae (estimated there unning mulgible by fytical flow) or smaller methods. All moords and aduations should exist in a form that can be authed by a third party.
Ingrovements to attain togina da grading for Unauforder Consumption Component		ts callful for 5 Use an expected default of 0 25% of volkment of volks spaces. Therewer using spaces are considered unankhritiked, and consider unankhritiked, and consider unankhritiked, and consider volkstag a vord angeweit for so too hydrawit openinge)	<u>to sately for 2</u> Use accepted default of 0 25% of <u>to sately for 2</u> Revenue (the sately sately sately sately sately sample of one such occurring (hydrart opening	ystem input volume at water uses are der tracking a small der unsufheitzed fre)	Is available of Unlaw accepted distant value of 25% of obtained the copyling reasonable quartification of a factor. This is particularly acception and the second second second second obtained of the water suddry process.	to could to for scatters Finalize policy updates to clearly updates to clearly update consumption that are subnitized from those usages that fail outside of the policy and are. performed if the topic reaction clearly are to conduct regular body and a testing to conduct regular body and a testing outside to the subnitized and the subnitized are to subnitized and the subnitized are to subnitized and to subnitized are to the subnitized and the subnitized are to the subnitized and the subnitized are to the subnitized and the subnitized are to the subnitized and the subnitized are to the subnitized and the subnitized are to the subnitized and the subnitized are to the subnitized are to subnitized are to the subnitized are to the subnitized are to subnitized are to to subnitized are to subnitized are t	<u>Superior Inc.</u> Assess with utility policies are construmented of utility policies are and that generative policies way where accurrent and unavanted where accurrent accurrent and and unavanted accurrent accurrent accurrent.	re that all known prior are outleved wearbed. Create documentation of onsumpoon as they	<u>Is mainfut for 1</u> Perfres witting resolution and stage soccurrences of search/older down detect and themat unsubserge detect and themat unsubserge	staff to seek out likely inglian. Explore new chrologies despinal to di consumption.	Euroscent 10 Contracts the file poly of processor to the dense k polytopic unsubmedia consumption. Contracts Is the skylet in a strated, advantation of a strategy dense.
Customer metering inaccuracies	select n's only if the encre customer psysiation is unmaterial is such a case har volkme entered must be zero.	Contonent nature avery boll with introgenitud depertition of in- meters, in nater assurance yearing any size of natil meters. Matering any size of natil meters. Matering in practive management, Loss volume durits aggregate meter inaccusery a guestimated.	Due recollerang and near- neways a recipient day alter with management on sa abilited staff and nutring resources to approve provide inconfusion opported a provide confusion opported a provide confusion accuracy with your customer request.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Redular incodinging scale, and information improving a network are regleted. Where accounts inter a conducted inmutal trans- all number of metal prove has ment to disverting. A lense inter the of metal scale and inter the of metal scale and inter the of metal scale and inter the of the scale and inter the of the scale and inter the of the scale and inter the scale and the scale data.	Conditions between 4 and 6	A relative electronic reconfisiegning statistic for relative scalars, The relative professional scalar and the relative scalar scalar scalars, Routine, but with support accuracy, Routine, but mitigate accuracy, Routine, but mitigate accuracy, Routine, but mitigate accuracy and accuracy and relative accuracy accuracy accuracy values in quantified surg a mixed mitigate accuracy accuracy accuracy mitigate accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy accuracy ac	Conditions between 6 and 8	Orgong neter replacement and scrurery string revue in high control of the series of the series of meters of serving age and scrundated strine of the series of determine optimum replacement time Minimum types of notes.	Cingoing meter insplacement and accuracy testing result soculators accuracy testing result soculators determined seguritaria provides of meters of canducted an samples of meters of accuracities of meters of determine optimum of throughput to determine splacement free for Diese meters.	Good noodby dia active costover memory and the tables as a similar muchemicative, copying metry muchemicative, copying metry metry active as a similar metry active as a similar of the apprend and context and active perplants. New metrory biothogy perplants, New metrory biothogy and endosed tables por addicate perplants. New metrory biothogy a third party investigation in the MS methodology.

Grading Matrix 12

Grading >>>	n/a	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Improvements to attan higher data grading for "Castoner meter inacruracy voltane" companient	If nis is selected because The subtrant matter population is uninten- new policy to mater the customer population and employ water rates based upon metered volumes.	te castity to 2 Carter available moter prochase records. Conduct Sering on a erral number of maters belaved to be the most neuroscala. Revew stafforg needs of the metering group and boget for necessary tessources to series management.	Implement a reliable found internet a reliable focus of kepping meter batorias, preferable viang a hyperady, kineda or part of the out or Customer Information Dystem accuracy testing to a larger gro	system for customer lectronic methods former Billing System 5. Expand meter sup of meters.	<u>to qualty for 6</u> Standardae the procedures for met an electronic hydromation system accuracy testing and meter replace results.	er recordkeeping within Accelerate mater nerts guided by testing	<u>travelitytera</u> Espand annual neter kunste of me Sapada neter rajbuenet poster ti syndiciet nunter ei poor performe	drig to evaluate s ter makerincidels o restore statatically g meters each year.	Is coalify for 3 Continue efforts to manage meter population with related systematic states of meters each systematic number of meters each systematic states as a basis for a target meter relation and the states of the relation and systematic states as a basis for a target meter relation and withing based upon accumulated volume throughout	to quality for 10 Continue efforts to manage meter population with reliable recondecepting, meter testing and replacement. Subable new meter types and install one or more types in 5-10 customer accounts each year in order to plot improving metering technology.	<u>to matching</u> Process the number of meters to study and registered as justified by meter development of new metering takening water Advanced Metering takening water Advanced Metering takening water Advanced Metering takening water Advanced Metering metering of water Box and management of clusterer consumption data
Systematic Data Handling Errors	Note all water utilities incur some amount of this with utilities with unmetered ublies with unmetered satemer populations and fixed rate billing, errors accur in annual billing tabulations. Error a peetive values for the volume and select a grading.	Polices and procedures for activation of new customer water biling accounts are vigoue and tack accountable. Billing data and marchaned on paper records which are not well organized. Not autority and the second second second second and the second second second marchane of customers encode routine billing date to lack of billing process oversight.	Policy and procedures for activation of new customer accounts and oversight of Bally records and too manchand on paper records or numforenty cadele electronic database. Only parced ballycube address south of handlog efficiency. The subarne of unbild of the bally genesis a guides.	Conditions between 2 and 4	Pakey and procedures for new account activation and overraget of universet. Computeriod barry writem work board handcomaily. Promote United mema barry conducts and other dreams durits conducts and processing of the sense of the consumption volumes that to billing types.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Publy and procedure for new account activation and uversign being operations is also paint and realizing system as no as who basis reasoning procession. Any effect of company procession. Any effect of company procession, and the consumption volumes as well understood. Heremat Check of Dilling data areas concluded annually consumption volume basis to Brilling bases in octaneed.	Conditions between 6 and 8	New account activation and billing spentions poly and procedures the Computerized billing system includes an any of responsible to solvine billing data and system functionally. Bigs and seglem functionally conducted with the gainty and conducted with the gainty and reducing year-bypear.	Conditions between 6 and 10	Sound written policy and procedures exits for new account activation and weinight of outprove billing billing system growing weinight net constraints and activation and activation responder activation and the results responder activation activation results and activation activation results and activation activation results and activation activation consumption in both to being bases in information and activations activations.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Bystematic Data Handing Error volume" component		to cuality for 2 Craft writer policy and procedures for activating new writer billing accounts and oversight of billing operations. Investigate and budget for computerbod customer billing system. Conduct intal audio of billing moduls by flow-charing the basic business processes of the customer account/billing function.	<u>b coalty for 4</u> Finable witten polity and procedu management, tinglement a compute system. Conduct that audit of the that process.	res for activation of billing operations rized customer billing ng records as part of	<u>to ceally for if</u> Refine new account activation as procedures and ensure consisten regarding tables, and minimaxe billings. Upgrade or register custo resceled functionally - ensure table compit the value of consumption v internal annual audi;	In billing operations sy with the utility policy oportunity for mixed mer billing settemfor dilling adjustments don't epitames. Proceedurize process.	<u>fa amitri faită</u> Formater regular reven of new acco and generale biling presense. Ernene de computandea dara ystem. Form process to reveal acope of data han periodic timi şianţi, audit to docui al t yean.	unt activation process e reporting capability alize regular subting ding error. Plan for least once every five	to mails for the formation of the second sec	at allow some customer inding errors to exist, utilized, analyzed and that internal and third ance every three years.	to markan 10 Bits planest of custome efformation management developments and innovations. Monter developments and integrate technology to encure th outwarese religions framework we monitored and enrowlapses are at a economic minimum.
(Instrumented)		A The Long Street	Constanting of the	Inclusion in	SYSTEM	DATA	Second and the second	0.000	Network Constraints	Distant Stars	Charles de las
Length of mans		Poorly assembled and mantained paper as-but records of existing water ran installations makes accurate determination of system pipe length impossible. Length of mains is guesstimated.	Paper records in poor or uncertain condition (no annual facting of instatisticos à balandoment). Poor procedures to ensure that new water mans installed by developers are accurately documented.	Conditions between 2 and 4	flound written policy and procedure exist for documenting new sater man instations; but gaps in management result in a unterfain begree of error in tabulation of main Mingth.	Conditions between 4 and 6	Sound written policy and procedures exist for permitting and commissioning new with maxims, Highly accurate paper records with regular field validation, existention: records and asset management system in good condition. Includes system backup	Conditions between 6 and 8	Sound written policy and procedures exist for permiting and commissioning new water mains. Electronic reconderepring such as a Greegingenic Metrimation System (GIS) and asset management system are used to store and manage data.	Conditions between 8 and 10	Sound writen polog weats for rranaging water mans edemisions an replacements. Geographic Informatio System (GIS) data and asset management database gives and random held weatson prover turn o databases. Records of annual field validation should be available for tevers.
Histowinki to attain higher data grading for "Langth of Watter Mains" component		to shall's for 2 Assign personnel to memory compare with customer bling yettern records and highway blans in order to versh poorly documented yetternes, and highway blans documents reparting permitting and documentation of water main builting developers, kierrify gato in documentation of new water main mattations.	to custo for 4 Complete warring of paper record radiations for averally years pro- poley and procedures for com documenting new water ma	ords of water man a sudd year. Review missioning and in installation.	<u>22 quality for</u> Pinable updeleaving procedures for permitting/comments protectures for permitting/commentations. Confirm investory of prior to audit year, correct any 4	2 To written policy and measuring new main records for five years errors or omissions.	<u>to examine the second </u>	, i number of locations in as a Geographic as justfied. Develoj edures.	Lon Geography Microsoft April Line Geography Microsoft April Managements Record field verification informati	2 fem (CBS) and asset edd verification of data, on at least ennually.	Samerinan 10 Contrue with Andreestization and Landon field availation to improve the completeness and accuracy of the system.

Grading Matrix 13

Number of active AND mactive service connections		Vague permiting (of new service connections) policy and poor paper recordseeping of clusteries connections/billings result in suspect discremation of the number of service connections, which may be 10-15% in ereor from actual count.	Denend permiting policy exists but perferences, protectual gaps, and wask overspit result in guardianable lation runder of biometerism, which may wry 5-10s of actual court.	Nome accurate structure prefere and precisione service domainstructure Compositione and oursigning Compositione and oursigning compositione and oursigning compositione accurate tracking of address of the service composition to 5% in error from actual total	Within new second scholars and enabling body body and a single scholars are adopted and exerved periodised, completed attraction management (s Julia & Attraction and audit, Entroin could character d'ancia constraints (s Julia & Constraints) des scholars (s Julia & Attraction and audit, Entroin could character d'ancia constraints)	Policies and procedures for new scorer activation and a visit billing and reverse if the binning. You management system works and rooms periodic test binning with a rooms periodic test binning with Courted on conversion are non- teen test.	Bound written polecy and well managed and audied procedures ensure related management of service convection population. Computeritied rotimization System, and coorganizatio Enformation System (2016) information agrees nais validation process study of databases. Count of connections recorded as being in error is least than 11% of the entire population.
Improvements to attain higher deta grading for "Number of Active and hardive Bervice Connections" component	Note: The number of Service Connections does <u>not</u> include fire hydrant lead silines connecting the hydrant to the water main	to south for 2 Craft new policy and procedures for new account activation and overal billing operations. Research and collect paper records of realitations & abandonments for several years prior to audit year.	In coalty for d Refine policy and procedures for new account actuatio and ownal biling operations. Research computerized recordered and the second second second second Coatomic and the second second second second format for service connections.	<u>to usably for 8</u> Refine procedures to the account on and over all being poly, to enterblack may be corrections or decommission setting corrections before process or decommission setting corrections the poor process of the set of the set for years poor to accit year.	Encuelty for 8 Encuelty for 8 Formalize regular relation of new account activation and overall being contributes policies and procedures. Launch methods much and acceler acceleration Develop receives and acceleration accelerations acceleration management system.	<u>to availty to: 10</u> Close any procedual loopholes that allow invalations to go undeximetrical. Link computered a formation system with despite the Names System (CB) and to make half inspection and information system subtry processes. Commission of new interview of choices and before comparison and system system.	<u>is maintain 10</u> Continue with standardization and random field wideation to improve knowledge of system.
	Note il custorrer water	Gradings 1-9 apply if customer pr these cases the average distance	operties are unmetered, if customer meters exist and are between the curb stop or boundary separating utility/custo	cated inside the customer building premises, or if the water u mer responsibility for service connection piping, and the typica means to quartify this value. (See the "Service Connec	Lify owns and is responsible for the entire service connector if its point of use (ex: faucet) or the customer meter must be too Diagram" worksheet)	pping from the water main to the customer building. In any of quartified. Gradings of 1-2 are used to grade the validity of the	Ether of two conditions can be met for
Average length of customer service line	meters are located outside of the outsource building net to the outsource building net to the outsource responsibility, then the responsibility, then the responsibility, then the responsibility of the Reporting Versibility and the Reporting Versibility and Reporting Versibility and the Reporting Versibility and the Reporting Versibility and Reporting Versibility and the Reporting Versibility a	Vigue poley exists to defer the defeation of water utility exercisely terroris convectoring pany. Cuto terroris convectoring pany. Cuto assignment to these have not been well-instrumed or documentario. Facility visues advantary that documentario sectory was well-been well-been facility visues terrorises and pany.	Pulsy represent that the cash step- tions as the indexistion period. The state is a state of the state is a state of the	Operatively requires that the cust transmission of the source customer executively of the source provide readers executive of provide readers executive of an analysis of the source and the source provide readers executive of an analysis of the source source and the source of source and the source of source of the source of source of the source of the source source of the source of the source of source of the source of the source of source of the source of the	Clair within policy costs to during address of the second second second second second within matching appoint of tables within matching appoint of tables within matching appoint second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second	Obtaly-woodd poly standardow the bottlow of using work index Accord and standardow the standard standardow the standard standardow second res, scharting and the standard standardow the standard standardow the standard standardow the standard standardow the standard standardow the standard standardow the standard standardow standard standard standard standard standard standard standard standard standard standard standard standar	Counter Lange 13 of culture Lange 14 picture 15 min Lange 15 min Lange Sphortaberre regarding the same sphortaberre regarding the same 15 min Lange 14 min Lange 14 bit Lange 14 min Lange 14 min Lange 14 bit Lange
Ingrovements to attain higher data grading for "Average Length of Cuatomer Service Line" component		to qualify for 2 Research and collect paper records of service line installations. Inspect several stars in the field using pipe locators to locate curb estops. Obtains the length of this small sample of connections in this manner.	Established and some state of the second sec	Entables colorer products to a comparison of the second se	to calify for 8 by an external of the sectors of th	la autificitier 10 Leis custome information management system and Desgrephic information system (2015), standardize process for fast vertication of stats.	to maptain 13 Continue with standardization and random field validation to improve knowledge of service connections configurations and customer mater locations.
Average operating pressure		Avaibable records are poorly assembled and mantaned poer records of wagely pump assembled and mantaned poer records of wagely pump conditions. Average pressure alternation and ground elevitions information and ground elevition information and ground elevition information and ground elevition information and ground elevition information pressure address pressure address the visibility of the energy pressure calculation.	Links at large type the second and t	Effective pressure controls separate effective pressure controls to perform effective pressure control models of the second second second second pressure control and second second second pressure control and second second second effective pressure and second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se	Related persona zonce sub expenses difficit persona zonce, sub expenses concernent ages on usawa and zonce. Well-concerned believes the sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub- gence on each tops and sub- gence on each tops and sub- gence of a sub-sub-sub-sub- pressure registrate was and surge pressure registrate was and surge using believes and sub-sub-sub- pressure registrate was and surge using believes and sub-sub-sub- st sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub- st sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub- st sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub- s sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-sub-	Vice encoded control prevail prevent functions of prevent prevent functions as control to mode to not all adaptions to prevent reading all recentration the second second second second the second second second second the second second second second tables modifying system data.	Webmanaged pressure data bitcome SCADA & strem and hydrade model exits by every precise previous data access the water additional or strema access the water additional or strema bitcome construction of the strema access regorded on an annual basis as a minimum.

Grading Matrix 14

CITY OF DEMING

Grading >>>

or a and a							
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Average Operating Pressure" component		In calify Siz 2 Employ pressure grouping and/or datalogging exploment to obtain pressure massurements from fee hysteris. Loade accurate boggraphical maps of excise area noder to confirm ground elevations. Research pump data should be down pressure/like characteristics	In math to 4 Forestates proceedings to generate the augmentional space of the space of the presence augmention and the space of the presence and the data of dented this regiment. Such that we have a space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space data from the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space data from the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space of the space o	Expand the use of previous gauging/statiog exponents to gather scattered previous data representative set of sizes based upon pressure renas. Unleg preprises and state to be supply haid entering sature previous and the Control any budy pressure control previous the control any budy pressure control previous entering the configured pressure across. Use pressure based from these scattered by prenature works everage pressure.	And a state a specie of control and control experiments with the species of control and control experiments with the parameters and control experiments in the species of t	CCDA Annually, others a system-side service pressure value for space. The system-side detablishing system set the service assistant or in dial measurements must be detablished assistant or in dial measurements must be detablished assistant or in dial measurements must be detablished assistant or in dial measurements must be detablished of the service of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the detablished of the deta	Is marclain 10 Contruys to refine the hybraulic model of the distribution system and consider Inking it with SCADA System for real- time pressure data calibration, and seeraging.
STREET, STREET		1912-1915-1/151	The Association and the Association of the Associat	COST DATA	A STREET AND A STREET	State of the Contract of the State	A CONTRACT SALES AND
Total annual cost of operating water system:		Incomplete paper records and lack of financial accounting documentation on many operating functions makes cabulation of water system operating costs a pure guessitmate	Reasonably maintained, but noorsplate, space or electronic accounting provides data to estimate the major portion of water system operating poets.	Electronic industry-standard cost accounting system in place. However, gaps in data are known to conducted but not a whochined financial audit.	Relate electronic industry-standard coal accounting system in place, with obleves algorithment water system operating constructed. Data autoretical periodically by utility personnel but not a Centred Public Accountant (CPA)	Retails electrons, industry-standard ad porterior water system operating an output profile address annually fully pressured at lever annually fully pressured as the baset once with the system party CPA.	Relative electronic, industry-intanded cost accounting system in place, with all pertinent water system operating costs tracked. Data audite denually by utility personnell and annually also by third-party CPA.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for Trotal Annual Cost of Operating the Water System" component		to qualify for 2 Gather available records, institute new financial accounting procedures to regularly collect and audit basis cost data of most important operations functions.	to mailty for 4 Implement an electronic cost accounting system, structured according to accounting standards for water utilizes	to quelify for 0 Establish process for periodic internat audit of wat operating cash, serving road and appear and in procedures for tracking these cultalanding or	Standardize the process to conduct routine finance torize which is a structure to the structure of the structure finance records at least once every three years.	al audit (15:10) Standardbe the process to constant a third-party financial audit by a CPA on an annual basis.	to mantain 10 Martain program, stay abreast of expenses subject to enstic cost changes and long-term coat trend, and budget/track costs proactively
Customer retail unt cast (applied to Apparent Losses)	Customer population urmetered, and/or only a fixed tea's charged for consumption.	Antiquated, combensione water rate structure is used, with periodic hystoric amendments that user poorly documented and reglemented, estuding in classes of outcomers being billed inconsistent charges. The actual composets being rate likely offens significantly from the published instant rate structure, but a bick of auditory leaves this degree of entrol indetermate.	Dated, currenziane water rate whorder, nd always endelsyst constant/in autil alling spensions. The actual congress delevers water texturbuse and reasonably accurate stimated of the alling of error is declimated. Being and risk advanced alling of error is declimated.	Bragninhoward water rate structure rune: but not updated in several vers. Billing operations reliably compared billing and several total a single cutture as south as resolutional outstrate as counts, registrating and an and an and an and registration and an an an and an and rates tim wayng sudomer abases.	Clarky writen, spot-odia waker ras shuthar in inforce and a spoted nelletty in tilfing sentrorin. Compose counter and a sectorial and university within in sectorial and university when	Effective velicit roles horubuse is in force and a speler reliefly in killing centroles. Composed exother mini- ality of the speler relief in the speler balance is a speler relief in the speler when choices reserved. Composing in the specific relief in the speler determined in cash of a choice spelere in the speler relief in the speler determined in control of the specific relief.	Current, effective water rate structure in in force and applied reliably in Billing operations. The rate structure and calculations of composite rate + which induces resoluting, commercial induction, instructured (20), and other distinct culturent classies - are distinct culturent classies - are knowledgetable in the 30.5 methodology at least once every five years.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Customer Retail Unit Cost" component.		to qualify for 2 Formalize the process to implement when rates, including a secure documentation procedure. Create a current, formal water rate document and gain approval from al statisticiders.	to could visc 4 Review the water rate structure and update/formatize as needed. Assess billing operations to ensure that actual billing operations incorporate the actualished water rate structure.	to qualify for d Evaluate valume of water used in each usege bock by residential users. Multiply valumes by full rate structure.	rt to fuely abstract. Evaluate volume of water used in set usage ties a Radid abstract of user. Nulley volumes by ful abstract set.	to yait Conduct a periodic tradge of yait of mater used in each usepe block by at classification of users. Multiply volumee by full rate structure.	to maintain 10 Keep water rate shouthar current in addressing the water utility's revenue needs, Update the calculation of the coatonet win rate as new rate components, coatoner classes, or other components are modified.
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses):	Note if the water utility purchases/imports in entre water supply, then entre the unit purchase cost of the buck water supply in the Reporting Worksheet with a grading of 10	Incomplete paper records and lack of documentation on primary operating function (electric pose- and trailment costs most importanty) marks calculation of variable production costs a pure generational	Reservably meritained but recomptly pages of electrons admits the basis (periodic time) admits the basis (periodic time) admits of the basis (periodic time) admits of the basis (periodic time) admits of the basis (periodic time) weakle production cost.	Electronic industry inflanded cost accounting system in place. Electro pour and traditionation costs are emploted actidation of unit water amplified actidation of unit water and the system of the system of the biologic system of the system of the ones are authorit internally on a particular base.	Relate decrease industry-antendate read accountry system on place, with all periodic and register and all periodic and register and entering the system of the system with or production before in many production. If the system register are not place to an all explanes in column of the sist and explanes in column of the sist and explanes in the sist as autoreal all beat annuals by utily personnel.	Rabble destronce industry-standard sear accounting system in place, and a parmers privally out accounting the search of the search of the search of the search of the search of the search of the search of the search of the accounting search of the search of the method allow.	Ether of two condenses can be melt to obtain a granger of 10 11 Three party CPA acust of tal perman- primary and according vanishes productors and water imported prototese (<i>magnetic</i>) and according outcome (<i>magnetic</i>) according to a coldwarder modertal, and the unit of 2) Water supply setting) purchased as coldwarder modertal, and the unit margenia larger years and margenia larger years a system of 10 Smoot ggl to substrate.
Improvements to attain higher data grading for "Variable Production Cost" component		to cualify for 2 Gather available records, institute new procedures to regularly collect and wuldt basic cost data and most important operations functions.	to availar, for 4 Implement an electronic cost accounting system, structured according to accounting standards for water utilities	to could' Cró S Formales process for regular internal audits of p costs. Assess whether additional costs (bably, management, equipment was: impending rinks expansion) should be included to calculare a representative variable production cost.	eduction Formables the accounting process to include drive sectuals components (power, traitment) as well as indire components (power, traitment) as well as indire components (power, traitment) to conduct audets by a straitment well of to conduct audets by a straitment well of one every three years.	it evel ficed Arrange Standardize the procees to conduct a third-party financial sould by a CPA on an annual basis.	<u>to mainten 10</u> Maintan program, stay abreast of expenses subject to erratic cost changes and budget/tack costs proactively

Grading Matrix 15

		Water Loss Cor	tral Dianning Cuir	de .	
		Water Loss Cor	Audit Data Validity Level	/ Score	
Functional Focus Area	Level I (0-25)	Level II (26-50)	Level III (51-70)	Level IV (71-90)	Level V (91-100)
Audit Data Collection	Launch auditing and loss control team; address production metering deficiencies	Analyze business process for customer metering and billing functions and water supply operations. Identify data gaps.	Establish/revise policies and procedures for data collection	Refine data collection practices and establish as routine business process	Annual water audit is a reliable gauge of year-to-year water efficiency standing
Short-term loss control	Research information on leak detection programs. Begin flowcharting analysis of customer billing system	Conduct loss assessment investigations on a sample portion of the system: customer meter testing, leak survey, unauthorized consumption, etc.	Establish ongoing mechanisms for customer meter accuracy testing, active leakage control and infrastructure monitoring	Refine, enhance or expand ongoing programs based upon economic justification	Stay abreast of improvements i metering, meter reading, billing leakage management and infrastructure rehabilitation
Long-term loss control		Begin to assess long-term needs requiring large expenditure: customer meter replacement, water main replacement program, new customer billing system or Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) system.	Begin to assemble economic business case for long-term needs based upon improved data becoming available through the water audit process.	Conduct detailed planning, budgeting and launch of comprehensive improvements for metering, billing or infrastructure management	Continue incremental improvements in short-term an long-term loss control interventions
Target-setting			Establish long-term apparent and real loss reduction goals (+10 year horizon)	Establish mid-range (5 year horizon) apparent and real loss reduction goals	Evaluate and refine loss contro goals on a yearly basis
Benchmarking	Nervenini.		Preliminary Comparisons - can begin to rely upon the Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) for performance comparisons for real losses (see below table)	Performance Benchmarking - ILI is meaningful in comparing real loss standing	Identify Best Practices/ Best ir class - the ILI is very reliable as real loss performance indicato for best in class service

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

Loss Control Planning 16

CITY OF DEMING

Once data have been entered into the Reporting Worksheet, the performance indicators are automatically calculated. How does a water utility operator know
how well his or her system is performing? The AWWA Water Loss Control Committee provided the following table to assist water utilities is gauging an
approximate Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) that is appropriate for their water system and local conditions. The lower the amount of leakage and real losses
that exist in the system, then the lower the ILI value will be.
Note this table offers an experimente sublative for lealence and ution terret action. The best means of actions such terrets include performing on economic

Note: this table offers an approximate guideline for leakage reduction target-setting. The best means of setting such targets include performing an economic assessment of various loss control methods. However, this table is useful if such an assessment is not possible.

(without doing a full economic analysis of leakage control options)				
Target ILI Range	Financial Considerations	Operational Considerations	Water Resources Considerations	
1.0 - 3.0	Water resources are costly to develop or purchase; ability to increase revenues via water rates is greatly limited because of regulation or low ratepayer affordability.	Operating with system leakage above this level would require expansion of existing infrastructure and/or additional water resources to meet the demand.	Available resources are greatly limited and are very difficult and/or environmentally unsound to develop.	
>3.0 -5.0	Water resources can be developed or purchased at reasonable expense; periodic water rate increases can be feasibly imposed and are tolerated by the customer population.	Existing water supply infrastructure capability is sufficient to meet long-term demand as long as reasonable leakage management controls are in place.	Water resources are believed to be sufficient to meet long-term needs, but demand management interventions (leakage management, water conservation) are included in the long-term	
>5.0 - 8.0	Cost to purchase or obtain/treat water is low, as are rates charged to customers.	Superior reliability, capacity and integrity of the water supply infrastructure make it relatively immune to supply shortages.	Water resources are plentiful, reliable, and easily extracted.	
Greater than 8.0	Although operational and financial considerations may allow a long-term ILI greater than 8.0, such a level of leakage is not an effective utilization of wate as a resource. Setting a target level greater than 8.0 - other than as an incremental goal to a smaller long-term target - is discouraged.			
Less than 1.0	If the calculated Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) levels in a class with the top worldwide performers understated. This is likely if you calculate a low ILI beneficial to validate the data by performing field m potential sources of error in the data.	value for your system is 1.0 or less, two possibilities in leakage control, b) A portion of your data may by value but do not employ extensive leakage control easurements to confirm the accuracy of production	s exist. a) you are maintaining your leakage at low e flawed, causing your losses to be greatly practices in your operations. In such cases it is and customer meters, or to identify any other	

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0

Loss Control Planning 17

AWWA Free Water Audit Software Grading Matrix

		Volume from own sources
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a		Select this grading only if the water utility purchases/imports all of its water resources (i.e. has no sources of its own)
4	122.6	Less than 25% of water production sources are metered, remaining sources are estimated.
- Same	~	No regular meter accuracy testing or electronic calibration conducted.
0	~	25% - 50% of treated water production sources are metered; other sources estimated.
2	~	No regular meter accuracy testing or electronic calibration conducted.
3	~	Conditions between 2 and 4
4	~	50% - 75% of treated water production sources are metered, other sources estimated.
4		Occasional meter accuracy testing or electronic calibration conducted
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
6	~	At least 75% of treated water production sources are metered, or at least 90% of the source flow is derived from metered sources.
0		Meter accuracy testing and/or electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually.
		Less than 25% of tested meters are found outside of +/- 6% accuracy.
7	12	Conditions between 6 and 8
	~	100% of treated water production sources are metered,
8		Meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually,
		Less than 10% of meters are found outside of +/- 6% accuracy
9	A BER	Conditions between 8 and 10
		100% of treated water production sources are metered,
10		Meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted semi-annually, with less than 10% found outside of +/- 3% accuracy.
		Procedures are reviewed by a third party knowledgeable in the M36 methodology

City of Deming grading for 2016 audit

. . .

	Vo	lume from own sources master meter and supply error adjustment
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a		Select n/a only if the water utility fails to have meters on its sources of supply
1	1	Inventory information on meters and paper records of measured volumes exist but are incomplete and/or in a very crude condition; data error cannot be determined
	×	No automatic datalogging of production volumes; daily readings are scribed on paper records without any accountability controls.
2	×	Flows are not balanced across the water distribution system: tank/storage elevation changes are not employed in calculating the "Volume from own sources" component and
	 Image: A start of the start of	Archived flow data is adjusted only when grossly evident data error occurs.
3		Conditions between 2 and 4
		Production meter data is logged automatically in electronic format and reviewed at least on a monthly basis with necessary corrections implemented.
4		"Volume from own sources" tabulations include estimate of daily changes in tanks/storage facilities.
		Meter data is adjusted when gross data errors occur, or occasional meter testing deems this necessary.
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
		Hourly production meter data logged automatically & reviewed on at least a weekly basis.
0		Data is adjusted to correct gross error when meter/instrumentation equipment malfunction is detected; and/or error is confirmed by meter accuracy testing.
6		Tank/storage facility elevation changes are automatically used in calculating a balanced "Volume from own sources" component, and
		Data gaps in the archived data are corrected on at least a weekly basis.
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
		Continuous production meter data is logged automatically & reviewed each business day.
8		Data is adjusted to correct gross error from detected meter/instrumentation equipment malfunction and/or results of meter accuracy testing.
		Tank/storage facility elevation changes are automatically used in "Volume from own sources" tabulations and
		data gaps in the archived data are corrected on a daily basis.
9		Conditions between 8 and 10
		Computerized system (SCADA or similar) automatically balances flows from all sources and storages;
		Results are reviewed each business day.
10		Tight accountability controls ensure that all data gaps that occur in the archived flow data are quickly detected and corrected.
		Regular calibrations between SCADA and sources meters ensures minimal data transfer error.

		Water Imported
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a	~	Select n/a if the water utility's supply is exclusively from its own water resources (no bulk purchased/ imported water)
1		Less than 25% of imported water sources are metered, remaining sources are estimated.
「「「」」「「」」	0.88	No regular meter accuracy testing
2		25% - 50% of imported water sources are metered; other sources estimated.
2		No regular meter accuracy testing
3	CHANGE ST	Conditions between 2 and 4
4		50% - 75% of imported water sources are metered, other sources estimated.
4		Occasional meter accuracy testing conducted
5	784,823	Conditions between 4 and 6
	-	At least 75% of imported water sources are metered,
6		Meter accuracy testing and/or electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually for all meter installations.
		Less than 25% of tested meters are found outside of +/- 6% accuracy
7	12.71	Conditions between 6 and 8
		100% of imported water sources are metered,
8		meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually,
		less than 10% of meters are found outside of +/- 6% accuracy
9	121/12	Conditions between 8 and 10
	1.1	100% of imported water sources are metered,
10		Meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted semi-annually for all meter installations,
		Less than 10% of accuracy tests found outside of +/- 3% accuracy.

		water imported master meter and supply enor adjustment
GRADE	~	DESCRIPTION
n/a	✓	Select n/a if the Imported water supply is unmetered,
Tira	✓	with Imported water quantities estimated on the billing invoices sent by the Exporter to the purchasing Utility
		Inventory information on imported meters and paper records of measured volumes exist but are incomplete and/or in a very crude condition;
1	100	data error cannot be determined
		Written agreement(s) with water Exporter(s) are missing or written in vague language concerning meter management and testing.
		No automatic datalogging of imported supply volumes;
2		Daily readings are scribed on paper records without any accountability controls to confirm data accuracy and the absence of errors and data gaps in recorded volumes.
		Written agreement requires meter accuracy testing but is vague on the details of how and who conducts the testing
3		Conditions between 2 and 4
		Imported supply metered flow data is logged automatically in electronic format and reviewed at least on a monthly basis by the Exporter with necessary corrections implemented.
4		Meter data is adjusted by the Exporter when gross data errors are detected.
		A coherent data trail exists for this process to protect both the selling and the purchasing Utility.
		Written agreement exists and clearly states requirements and roles for meter accuracy testing & data management.
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
		Hourly Imported supply metered data is logged automatically & reviewed on at least a weekly basis by the Exporter.
6		Data is adjusted to correct gross error when meter/instrumentation equipment malfunction is detected; and to correct for error confirmed by meter accuracy testing.
		Any data gaps in the archived data are detected and corrected during the weekly review.
		A coherent data trail exists for this process to protect both the selling and the purchasing Utility
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
		Continuous Imported supply metered flow data is logged automatically & reviewed each business day by the Exporter.
0		Data is adjusted to correct gross error from detected meter/instrumentation equipment malfunction and/or results of meter
0		Any data arrors/lans are detected and corrected on a daily basis
		A data enorsigaps are detected and contected on a damy basis.
9		Conditions between 8 and 10
3	-	Computerized system (SCADA/similar) automatically records data & is reviewed each husiness day by the Exporter
10		Tight accountability controls ensure that all error/data gaps that occur in the archived flow data are quickly detected and corrected
		A reliable data trail exists and contract provisions for meter testing and data management are reviewed by the selling and purchasing Utility at least once every five years.

CITY OF DEMING

		Water Exported
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a	 Image: A start of the start of	Select n/a if the water utility sells no bulk water to neighboring water utilities (no exported water sales)
1	223	Less than 25% of exported water sources are metered, remaining sources are estimated.
- instruction	1.24	No regular meter accuracy testing.
2		25% - 50% of exported water sources are metered; other sources estimated.
2		No regular meter accuracy testing.
3	regent	Conditions between 2 and 4
4		50% - 75% of exported water sources are metered, other sources estimated.
		Occasional meter accuracy testing conducted.
5	1. 20	Conditions between 4 and 6
		At least 75% of exported water sources are metered,
6		Meter accuracy testing and/or electronic calibration conducted annually.
		Less than 25% of tested meters are found outside of +/- 6% accuracy.
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
		100% of exported water sources are metered,
8		meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted annually,
		less than 10% of meters are found outside of +/- 6% accuracy
9	1.16	Conditions between 8 and 10
		100% of exported water sources are metered,.
10		meter accuracy testing and electronic calibration of related instrumentation is conducted semi-annually for all meter installations,
		with less than 10% of accuracy tests found outside of +/- 3% accuracy

		Water exported master meter and supply error adjustment
GRADE	~	DESCRIPTION
n/a	~	Select n/a only if the water utility fails to have meters on its exported supply interconnections.
-	1	Inventory information on exported meters and paper records of measured volumes exist but are incomplete and/or in a very crude condition;
1		data error cannot be determined
		Written agreement(s) with the utility purchasing the water are missing or written in vague language concerning meter management and testing
		No automatic datalogging of exported supply volumes;
2		Daily readings are scribed on paper records without any accountability controls to confirm data accuracy and the absence of errors and data gaps in recorded volumes.
		Written agreement requires meter accuracy testing but is vague on the details of how and who conducts the testing.
3		Conditions between 2 and 4
		Exported metered flow data is logged automatically in electronic format and reviewed at least on a monthly basis, with necessary corrections implemented.
4		Meter data is adjusted by the utility selling (exporting) the water when gross data errors are detected.
		A coherent data trail exists for this process to protect both the utility exporting the water and the purchasing Utility.
		Written agreement exists and clearly states requirements and roles for meter accuracy testing & data management.
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
		Hourly exported supply metered data is logged automatically & reviewed on at least a weekly basis by the utility selling the water.
6		Data is adjusted to correct gross error when meter/instrumentation equipment malfunction is detected; and to correct for error found by meter accuracy testing.
		Any data gaps in the archived data are detected and corrected during the weekly review.
		A coherent data trail exists for this process to protect both the selling (exporting) utility and the purchasing Utility.
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
		Continuous exported supply metered flow data is logged automatically & reviewed each business day by the utility selling (exporting) the water.
8		Data is adjusted to correct gross error from detected meter/instrumentation equipment malfunction and any error confirmed by meter accuracy testing.
		Any data errors/gaps are detected and corrected on a daily basis.
· · · · · · ·		A data trail exists for the process to protect both the selling (exporting) Utility and the purchasing Utility.
9		Conditions between 8 and 10
		Computerized system (SCADA or similar) automatically records data which is reviewed each business day by the utility selling (exporting) the water.
10		Tight accountability controls ensure that all error/data gaps that occur in the archived flow data are quickly detected and corrected.
		A reliable data trail exists and contract provisions for meter testing and data management are reviewed by the selling Utility and purchasing Utility at least once every five years.

		Billed Metered
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a		n/a (not applicable). Select n/a only if the entire customer population is not metered and is billed for water service on a flat or fixed rate basis. In such a case the volume entered must be zero.
-1	-	Less than 50% of customers with volume-based billings from meter readings; flat or fixed rate billing exists for the majority of the customer population
		At least 50% of customers with volume-based billing from meter reads; flat rate billing for others.
2		Manual meter reading is conducted, with less than 50% meter read success rate, remaining accounts' consumption is estimated.
		Limited meter records, no regular meter testing or replacement.
		Billing data maintained on paper records, with no auditing.
3	None	Conditions between 2 and 4
		At least 75% of customers with volume-based, billing from meter reads; flat or fixed rate billing for remaining accounts.
		Manual meter reading is conducted with at least 50% meter read success rate; consumption for accounts with failed reads is estimated.
4		Purchase records verify age of customer meters; only very limited meter accuracy testing is conducted.
		Customer meters are replaced only upon complete failure.
		Computerized billing records exist, but only sporadic internal auditing conducted.
5	1955	Conditions between 4 and 6
		At least 90% of customers with volume-based billing from meter reads; consumption for remaining accounts is estimated.
0		Manual customer meter reading gives at least 80% customer meter reading success rate; consumption for accounts with failed reads is estimated.
0		Good customer meter records exist, but only limited meter accuracy testing is conducted.
		Regular replacement is conducted for the oldest meters.
		Computerized billing records exist with annual auditing of summary statistics conducting by utility personnel.
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
		At least 97% of customers exist with volume-based billing from meter reads.
		At least 90% customer meter reading success rate; or at least 80% read success rate with planning and budgeting for trials of Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) or Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) in one or more pilot areas.
8		Good customer meter records.
		Regular meter accuracy testing guides replacement of statistically significant number of meters each year.
		Routine auditing of computerized billing records for global and detailed statistics occurs annually by utility personnel, and is verified by third party at least once every five years.
9	1 (A) (E)	Conditions between 8 and 10
	~	At least 99% of customers exist with volume-based billing from meter reads.
	~	At least 95% customer meter reading success rate; or minimum 80% meter reading success rate, with Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) or Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) trials underway.
10	~	Statistically significant customer meter testing and replacement program in place on a continuous basis
	√	Computerized billing with routine, detailed auditing, including field investigation of representative sample of accounts undertaken annually by utility personnel. Audit is conducted by third party auditors at least once every three years

	Billed Unmetered		
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION	
n/a	 ✓ 	Select n/a if it is the policy of the water utility to meter all customer connections and it has been confirmed by detailed auditing that all customers do indeed have a water meter; i.e. no intentionally unmetered accounts exist	
	100	Water utility policy does not require customer metering; flat or fixed fee billing is employed.	
1		No data is collected on customer consumption.	
		The only estimates of customer population consumption available are derived from data estimation methods using average fixture count multiplied by number of connections, or similar approach.	
		Water utility policy does not require customer metering; flat or fixed fee billing is employed.	
2		Some metered accounts exist in parts of the system (pilot areas or District Metered Areas) with consumption read periodically or recorded on portable dataloggers over one, three, or seven day periods.	
		Data from these sample meters are used to infer consumption for the total customer population.	
		Site specific estimation methods are used for unusual buildings/water uses.	
3		Conditions between 2 and 4	
4		Water utility policy does require metering and volume based billing in general. However, a liberal amount of exemptions and a lack of clearly written and communicated procedures result in up to 20% of billed accounts believed to be unmetered by exemption; or the water utility is in transition to becoming fully metered, and a large number of customers remain unmetered.	
		A rough estimate of the annual consumption for all unmetered accounts is included in the annual water audit, with no inspection of individual unmetered accounts.	
5		Conditions between 4 and 6	
		Water utility policy does require metering and volume based billing but established exemptions exist for a portion of accounts such as municipal buildings.	
6		As many as 15% of billed accounts are unmetered due to this exemption or meter installation difficulties.	
		Only a group estimate of annual consumption for all unmetered accounts is included in the annual water audit, with no inspection of individual unmetered accounts.	
7		Conditions between 6 and 8	
0		Water utility policy does require metering and volume based billing for all customer accounts. However, less than 5% of billed accounts remain unmetered because meter installation is hindered by unusual circumstances.	
8		The goal is to minimize the number of unmetered accounts.	
		Reliable estimates of consumption are obtained for these unmetered accounts via site specific estimation methods.	
9		Conditions between 8 and 10	
		Water utility policy does require metering and volume based billing for all customer accounts.	
10		Less than 2% of billed accounts are unmetered and exist because meter installation is hindered by unusual circumstances.	
10		The goal exists to minimize the number of unmetered accounts to the extent that is economical.	
		Reliable estimates of consumption are obtained at these accounts via site specific estimation methods.	

Г

		Unbilled metered:
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a		Select n/a if all billing-exempt consumption is unmetered.
		Billing practices exempt certain accounts, such as municipal buildings, but written policies do not exist; and a reliable count of unbilled metered accounts is unavailable.
In notes	1946	Meter upkeep and meter reading on these accounts is rare and not considered a priority.
	1.21.11	Due to poor recordkeeping and lack of auditing, water consumption for all such accounts is purely guesstimated.
	~	Billing practices exempt certain accounts, such as municipal buildings, but only scattered, dated written directives exist to justify this practice.
0	1	A reliable count of unbilled metered accounts is unavailable.
2		Sporadic meter replacement and meter reading occurs on an as-needed basis.
		The total annual water consumption for all unbilled, metered accounts is estimated based upon approximating the number of accounts and assigning consumption from actively billed accounts of same meter size.
3	1	Conditions between 2 and 4
		Dated written procedures permit billing exemption for specific accounts, such as municipal properties, but are unclear regarding certain other types of accounts.
4		Meter reading is given low priority and is sporadic.
		Consumption is quantified from meter readings where available.
		The total number of unbilled, unmetered accounts must be estimated along with consumption volumes.
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
		Written policies regarding billing exemptions exist but adherence in practice is questionable.
		Metering and meter reading for municipal buildings is reliable but sporadic for other unbilled metered accounts.
6		Periodic auditing of such accounts is conducted.
		Water consumption is quantified directly from meter readings where available, but the majority of the consumption is estimated.
7	1	Conditions between 6 and 8
		Written policy identifies the types of accounts granted a billing exemption.
8		Customer meter management and meter reading are considered secondary priorities, but meter reading is conducted at least annually to obtain consumption volumes for the annual water audit.
		High level auditing of billing records ensures that a reliable census of such accounts exists.
9	~	Conditions between 8 and 10
		Clearly written policy identifies the types of accounts given a billing exemption, with emphasis on keeping such accounts to a minimum.
10	~	Customer meter management and meter reading for these accounts is given proper priority and is reliably conducted.
	1	Regular auditing confirms this.
	1	Total water consumption for these accounts is taken from reliable readings from accurate meters.

		Unbilled Unmetered
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
4	1.000	Extent of unbilled, unmetered consumption is unknown due to unclear policies and poor recordkeeping.
	1.4	Total consumption is quantified based upon a purely subjective estimate.
2		Clear extent of unbilled, unmetered consumption is unknown, but a number of events are randomly documented each year, confirming existence of such consumption, but without sufficient documentation to quantify an accurate estimate of the annual volume consumed.
3	21.1	Conditions between 2 and 4
4		Extent of unbilled, unmetered consumption is partially known, and procedures exist to document certain events such as miscellaneous fire hydrant uses.
4		Formulae is used to quantify the consumption from such events (time running multiplied by typical flowrate, multiplied by number of events).
5	 Image: A start of the start of	Default value of 1.25% of system input volume is employed
		Coherent policies exist for some forms of unbilled, unmetered consumption but others await closer evaluation.
6		Reasonable recordkeeping for the managed uses exists and allows for annual volumes to be quantified by inference, but unsupervised uses are guesstimated.
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
8		Clear policies and good recordkeeping exist for some uses (ex: water used in periodic testing of unmetered fire connections), but other uses (ex: miscellaneous uses of fire hydrants) have limited oversight. Total consumption is a mix of well quantified use such as from formulae (time running multiplied by typical flow, multiplied by number of events) or temporary meters, and relatively subjective estimates of less regulated use.
9		Conditions between 8 and 10
10		Clear policies exist to identify permitted use of water in unbilled, unmetered fashion, with the intention of minimizing this type of consumption.
10		Good records document each occurrence and consumption is quantified via formulae (time running multiplied by typical flow, multiplied by number of events) or use of temporary meters.

		Unauthorized Consumption
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
1		Extent of unauthorized consumption is unknown due to unclear policies and poor recordkeeping. Total unauthorized consumption is guesstimated.
2		Unauthorized consumption is a known occurrence, but its extent is a mystery. There are no requirements to document observed events, but periodic field reports capture some of these occurrences. Total unauthorized consumption is approximated from this limited data.
3	·公本的	Conditions between 2 and 4
4		Procedures exist to document some unauthorized consumption such as observed unauthorized fire hydrant openings. Use formulae to quantify this consumption (time running multiplied typical flowrate, multiplied by number of events).
5	1.00	Default value of 0.25% of volume of water supplied is employed
6		Coherent policies exist for some forms of unauthorized consumption (more than simply fire hydrant misuse) but others await closer evaluation. Reasonable surveillance and recordkeeping exist for occurrences that fall under the policy. Volumes quantified by inference from these records.
7	×	Conditions between 6 and 8
8		Clear policies and good auditable recordkeeping exist for certain events (ex: tampering with water meters, illegal bypasses of customer meters); but other occurrences have limited oversight. Total consumption is a combination of volumes from formulae (time x typical flow) and subjective estimates of unconfirmed consumption.
9	L'IQ!	Conditions between 8 and 10
10		Clear policies exist to identify all known unauthorized uses of water. Staff and procedures exist to provide enforcement of policies and detect violations. Each occurrence is recorded and quantified via formulae (estimated time running multiplied by typical flow) or similar methods. All records and calculations should exist in a form that can be audited by a third party.

		Customer metering inaccuracies:
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a		Select n/a only if the entire customer population is unmetered. In such a case the volume entered must be zero.
		Customer meters exist, but with unorganized paper records on meters; no meter accuracy testing or meter replacement program for any size of retail meter.
1	1	Metering workflow is driven chaotically with no proactive management. Loss volume due to aggregate meter inaccuracy is guesstimated.
2		Poor recordkeeping and meter oversight is recognized by water utility management who has allotted staff and funding resources to organize improved recordkeeping and start meter accuracy testing.
Z	1	Existing paper records gathered and organized to provide cursory disposition of meter population.
	1	Customer meters are tested for accuracy only upon customer request.
3	1	Conditions between 2 and 4
	~	Reliable recordkeeping exists; meter information is improving as meters are replaced.
4		Meter accuracy testing is conducted annually for a small number of meters (more than just customer requests, but less than 1% of inventory).
	1	A limited number of the oldest meters are replaced each year.
	1	Inaccuracy volume is largely an estimate, but refined based upon limited testing data.
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
	1	A reliable electronic recordkeeping system for meters exists.
c	~	The meter population includes a mix of new high performing meters and dated meters with suspect accuracy.
0		Routine, but limited, meter accuracy testing and meter replacement occur.
		Inaccuracy volume is quantified using a mix of reliable and less certain data.
7	 Image: A start of the start of	Conditions between 6 and 8
	1	Ongoing meter replacement and accuracy testing result in highly accurate customer meter population.
8	~	Testing is conducted on samples of meters of varying age and accumulated volume of throughput to determine optimum replacement time for various types of meters.
		Ongoing meter replacement and accuracy testing result in highly accurate customer meter population.
0		Statistically significant number of meters are tested in audit year.
9		This testing is conducted on samples of meters of varying age and accumulated volume of throughput to determine optimum replacement time for these meters.
		Good records of all active customer meters exist and include as a minimum: meter number, account number/location, type, size and manufacturer.
		Ongoing meter replacement occurs according to a targeted and justified basis.
10		Regular meter accuracy testing gives a reliable measure of composite inaccuracy volume for the customer meter population.
		New metering technology is embraced to keep overall accuracy improving.
		Procedures are reviewed by a third party knowledgeable in the M36 methodology.

Г

٦

		Systematic Data Handling Errors:
GRADE	~	DESCRIPTION
n/a		Note: all water utilities incur some amount of this error. Even in water utilities with unmetered customer populations & fixed rate billing, errors occur in annual billing tabulations. Enter a positive value for the volume & select a grading.
	122-10	Policies and procedures for activation of new customer water billing accounts are vague and lack accountability.
1	11-11-12-	Billing data is maintained on paper records which are not well organized.
1.1	25126	No auditing is conducted to confirm billing data handling efficiency.
Sister-1	145	An unknown number of customers escape routine billing due to lack of billing process oversight.
	~	Policy & procedures for activation of new customer accounts & oversight of billing records exist but need refinement
0	~	Billing data is maintained on paper records or insufficiently capable electronic database.
2	~	Only periodic unstructured auditing work is conducted to confirm billing data handling efficiency.
	~	The volume of unbilled water due to billing lapses is a guess.
3	1	Conditions between 2 and 4
	~	Policy and procedures for new account activation and oversight of billing operations exist but needs refinement.
	~	Computerized billing system exists, but is dated or lacks needed functionality.
4		Periodic, limited internal audits conducted and confirm with approximate accuracy the consumption volumes lost to billing lapses.
5	111115	Conditions between 4 and 6
	 Image: A start of the start of	Policy & procedures for new account activation and oversight of billing operations is adequate & reviewed periodical
	 Image: A start of the start of	Computerized billing system is in use with basic reporting available.
6	×	Any effect of billing adjustments on measured consumption volumes is well understood.
		Internal checks of billing data error conducted annually.
		Reasonably accurate guantification of consumption volume lost to billing lapses is obtained.
7	22.9 2	Conditions between 6 and 8
		New account activation and billing operations policy and procedures are reviewed at least biannually.
		Computerized billing system includes an array of reports to confirm billing data and system functionality.
		Checks are conducted routinely to flag and explain zero consumption accounts.
8		Annual internal checks conducted with third party audit conducted at least once every five years.
		Accountability checks flag billing lapses.
		Consumption lost to billing lapses is well quantified and reducing year-by-year.
9		Conditions between 8 and 10
		Sound written policy and procedures exist for new account activation and oversight of customer billing operations.
10		Robust computerized billing system gives high functionality and reporting capabilities which are utilized, analyzed ar the results reported each billing cycle.
		Assessment of policy and data handling errors are conducted internally and audited by third party at least once ever three years, ansuring consumption last to billing lasses is minimized and detacted as it accurs

Length of Mains		
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
1	ne.	Poorly assembled and maintained paper as-built records of existing water main installations makes accurate determination of system pipe length impossible. Length of mains is guesstimated.
2		Paper records in poor or uncertain condition (no annual tracking of installations & abandonments).
2		Poor procedures to ensure that new water mains installed by developers are accurately documented.
3		Conditions between 2 and 4
4		Sound written policy and procedures exist for documenting new water main installations, but gaps in management result in an uncertain degree of error in tabulation of mains length.
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
		Sound written policy and procedures exist for permitting and commissioning new water mains.
6		Highly accurate paper records with regular field validation; or electronic records and asset management system in good condition.
		Includes system backup.
7	1000	Conditions between 6 and 8
	1	Sound written policy and procedures exist for permitting and commissioning new water mains.
8	1	Electronic recordkeeping such as a Geographical Information System (GIS) and asset management system are used to store and manage data.
9	 Image: A start of the start of	Conditions between 8 and 10
	1	Sound written policy exists for managing water mains extensions and replacements.
10	~	Geographic Information System (GIS) data and asset management database agree and random field validation proves truth of databases.
		Records of annual field validation should be available for review

		Number of active AND inactive service connections
Note: TI	he nu	mber of Service Connections does not include fire hydrant leads/lines connecting the hydrant to the water main
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
1 and refer	in al	Vague permitting (of new service connections) policy and poor paper recordkeeping of customer connections/billings result in suspect determination of the number of service connections, which may be 10-15% in error from actual count
2		General permitting policy exists but paper records, procedural gaps, and weak oversight result in questionable tota for number of connections, which may vary 5-10% of actual count.
3		Conditions between 2 and 4
		Written account activation policy and procedures exist, but with some gaps in performance and oversight.
4	1.0	Computerized information management system is being brought online to replace dated paper recordkeeping system.
		Reasonably accurate tracking of service connection installations & abandonments; but count can be up to 5% in error from actual total.
5	2	Conditions between 4 and 6
		Written new account activation and overall billing policies and procedures are adequate and reviewed periodically.
G		Computerized information management system is in use with annual installations & abandonments totaled.
0		Very limited field verifications and audits.
		Error in count of number of service connections is believed to be no more than 3%.
7	S. S.	Conditions between 6 and 8
	~	Policies and procedures for new account activation and overall billing operations are written, well-structured and reviewed at least biannually.
8	~	Well-managed computerized information management system exists and routine, periodic field checks and internative system audits are conducted.
	1	Counts of connections are no more than 2% in error.
9	1	Conditions between 8 and 10
	1	Sound written policy and well managed and audited procedures ensure reliable management of service connection population.
10		Computerized information management system, Customer Billing System, and Geographic Information System (GIS) information agree; field validation proves truth of databases.
		Count of connections recorded as being in error is less than 1% of the entire population.

	Average length of customer service line:
Gradings 1-9 a owns and is re- between the cu customer mete worksheet)	oply if customer properties are unmetered, if customer meters exist and are located inside the customer building premises, or if the water utility ponsible for the entire service connection piping from the water main to the customer building. In any of these cases the average distance rb stop or boundary separating utility/customer responsibility for service connection piping, and the typical first point of use (ex: faucet) or the r must be quantified. Gradings of 1-9 are used to grade the validity of the means to quantify this value. (See the "Service Connection Diagram"
GRADE	✓ DESCRIPTION
Note: if custom auditor should of 10(a) will be of this distance	er water meters are located outside of the customer building next to the curb stop or boundary separating utility/customer responsibility, then the answer "Yes" to the question on the Reporting Worksheet asking about this. If the answer is Yes, the grading description listed under the Grading followed, with a value of zero automatically entered at a Grading of 10. See the Service Connection Diagram worksheet for a visual presentation.
	Vague policy exists to define the delineation of water utility ownership and customer ownership of the service connection piping.
1	Curb stops are perceived as the breakpoint but these have not been well-maintained or documented. Most are buried or obscured. Their location varies widely from site-to-site, and estimating this distance is arbitrary due to the unknown location of many curb stops.
	Policy requires that the curb stop serves as the delineation point between water utility ownership and customer ownership of the service connection piping.
2	The piping from the water main to the curb stop is the property of the water utility; and the piping from the curb stop to the customer building is owned by the customer.
	Curb stop locations are not well documented and the average distance is based upon a limited number of locations measured in the field.
3	Conditions between 2 and 4
	Good policy requires that the curb stop serves as the delineation point between water utility ownership and customer ownership of the service connection piping.
4	Curb stops are generally installed as needed and are reasonably documented.
	Their location varies widely from site-to-site, and an estimate of this distance is hindered by the availability of paper records of limited accuracy.
5	Conditions between 4 and 6
	Clear written policy exists to define utility/customer responsibility for service connection piping.
6	Accurate, well-maintained paper or basic electronic recordkeeping system exists.
	Periodic field checks confirm piping lengths for a sample of customer properties.
7	Conditions between 6 and 8
	Clearly worded policy standardizes the location of curb stops and meters, which are inspected upon installation.
8	Accurate and well maintained electronic records exist with periodic field checks to confirm locations of service lines, curb stops and customer meter pits.
	An accurate number of customer properties from the customer billing system allows for reliable averaging of this length.
9	Conditions between 8 and 10
	 Either of two conditions can be met for a grading of 10:
10	 a) Customer water meters exist outside of customer buildings next to the curb stop or boundary separating utility/customer responsibility for service connection piping. If so, answer "Yes" to the question on the Reporting Working asking about this condition. A value of zero and a Grading of 10 are automatically entered in the Reporting Worksheet
	b). Meters exist inside customer buildings, or properties are unmetered. In either case, answer "No" to the Reporting Worksheet question on meter location, and enter a distance determined by the auditor. For a Grading of 10 this value must be a very reliable number from a Geographic Information System (GIS) and confirmed by a statistically valid number of field checks.

		Average operating pressure
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
	200	Available records are poorly assembled and maintained paper records of supply pump characteristics and water distribution system operating conditions.
1		Average pressure is guesstimated based upon this information and ground elevations from crude topographical maps. Widely varying distribution system pressures due to undulating terrain, high system head loss and weak/erratic pressure controls further compress the validity of the average pressure calculation.
6	~	Limited telemetry monitoring of scattered pumping station and water storage tank sites provides some static pressure data, which is recorded in handwritten logbooks.
2	1	Pressure data is gathered at individual sites only when low pressure complaints arise.
	~	Average pressure is determined by averaging relatively crude data, and is affected by significant variation in ground elevations, system head loss and gaps in pressure controls in the distribution system.
3	1.85	Conditions between 2 and 4
	✓	Effective pressure controls separate different pressure zones; moderate pressure variation across the system, occasional open boundary valves are discovered that breech pressure zones.
	√	Basic telemetry monitoring of the distribution system logs pressure data electronically.
4		Pressure data gathered by gauges or dataloggers at fire hydrants or buildings when low pressure complaints arise, and during fire flow tests and system flushing.
	 Image: A start of the start of	Reliable topographical data exists.
	 Image: A start of the start of	Average pressure is calculated using this mix of data.
5	1000	Conditions between 4 and 6
		Reliable pressure controls separate distinct pressure zones; only very occasional open boundary valves are encountered that breech pressure zones.
6		Well-covered telemetry monitoring of the distribution system (not just pumping at source treatment plants or wells) logs extensive pressure data electronically.
		Pressure gathered by gauges/dataloggers at fire hydrants and buildings when low pressure complaints arise, and during fire flow tests and system flushing.
		Average pressure is determined by using this mix of reliable data.
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
		Well-managed, discrete pressure zones exist with generally predictable pressure fluctuations.
8		A current full-scale SCADA System or similar realtime monitoring system exists to monitor the water distribution system and collect data, including real time pressure readings at representative sites across the system.
		The average system pressure is determined from reliable monitoring system data.
9		Conditions between 8 and 10
10		Well-managed pressure districts/zones, SCADA System and hydraulic model exist to give very precise pressure data across the water distribution system.
10		Average system pressure is reliably calculated from extensive, reliable, and cross-checked data.
		Calculations are reported on an annual basis as a minimum

	I otal annual cost of operating water system		
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION	
1		Incomplete paper records and lack of financial accounting documentation on many operating functions makes calculation of water system operating costs a pure guesstimate	
2		Reasonably maintained, but incomplete, paper or electronic accounting provides data to estimate the major portion of water system operating costs.	
3		Conditions between 2 and 4	
	1	Electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place.	
4	~	However, gaps in data are known to exist, periodic internal reviews are conducted but not a structured financial audit.	
5	 Image: A start of the start of	Conditions between 4 and 6	
6	~	Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place, with all pertinent water system operating costs tracked.	
		Data audited periodically by utility personnel, but not a Certified Public Accountant (CPA).	
7		Conditions between 6 and 8	
8		Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place, with all pertinent water system operating costs tracked.	
		Data audited at least annually by utility personnel, and at least once every three years by third-party CPA.	
9		Conditions between 8 and 10	
10		Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place, with all pertinent water system operating costs tracked.	
		Data audited annually by utility personnel and annually also by third-party CPA.	

		Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses):
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
n/a		Customer population unmetered, and/or only a fixed fee is charged for consumption.
	主國	Antiquated, cumbersome water rate structure is used, with periodic historic amendments that were poorly documented and implemented; resulting in classes of customers being billed inconsistent charges.
SENGLIN	Total	The actual composite billing rate likely differs significantly from the published water rate structure, but a lack of auditing leaves the degree of error indeterminate.
		Dated, cumbersome water rate structure, not always employed consistently in actual billing operations.
2		The actual composite billing rate is known to differ from the published water rate structure, and a reasonably accurate estimate of the degree of error is determined, allowing a composite billing rate to be quantified.
3	9321	Conditions between 2 and 4
	1	Straight-forward water rate structure in use, but not updated in several years.
4	~	Billing operations reliably employ the rate structure.
7	~	The composite billing rate is derived from a single customer class such as residential customer accounts, neglecting the effect of different rates from varying customer classes.
5	~	Conditions between 4 and 6
	1	Clearly written, up-to-date water rate structure is in force and is applied reliably in billing operations.
6		Composite customer rate is determined using a weighted average residential rate using volumes of water in each rate block.
7	Really.	Conditions between 6 and 8
		Effective water rate structure is in force and is applied reliably in billing operations.
8	1	Composite customer rate is determined using a weighted average composite consumption rate, which includes residential, commercial, industrial, institutional (CII), and any other distinct customer classes within the water rate structure.
9	100-	Conditions between 8 and 10
		Current, effective water rate structure is in force and applied reliably in billing operations.
10		The rate structure and calculations of composite rate - which includes residential, commercial, industrial, institutional (CII), and other distinct customer classes - are reviewed by a third party knowledgeable in the M36 methodology at least once every 5 years.
		Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses):
-----------------------------	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
GRADE	1	DESCRIPTION
Note: if the Reporting V	water /orks	utility purchases/imports its entire water supply, then enter the unit purchase cost of the bulk water supply in the heet with a grading of 10
1		Incomplete paper records and lack of documentation on primary operating functions (electric power and treatment costs most importantly) makes calculation of variable production costs a pure guesstimate
2	~	Reasonably maintained, but incomplete, paper or electronic accounting provides data to roughly estimate the basic operations costs (pumping power costs and treatment costs) and calculate a unit variable production cost.
3	 Image: A start of the start of	Conditions between 2 and 4
	~	Electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place.
4	~	Electric power and treatment costs are reliably tracked and allow accurate weighted calculation of unit variable production costs based on these two inputs and water imported purchase costs (if applicable).
		All costs are audited internally on a periodic basis.
5		Conditions between 4 and 6
		Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place, with all pertinent water system operating costs tracked.
6		Pertinent additional costs beyond power, treatment and water imported purchase costs (if applicable) such as liability, residuals management, wear and tear on equipment, impending expansion of supply, are included in the unit variable production cost, as applicable.
		The data is audited at least annually by utility personnel.
7		Conditions between 6 and 8
0		Reliable electronic, industry-standard cost accounting system in place, with all pertinent primary and secondary variable production and water imported purchase (if applicable) costs tracked.
8		The data is audited at least annually by utility personnel, and at least once every three years by a third-party knowledgeable in the M36 methodology.
9		Conditions between 8 and 10
		Either of two conditions can be met to obtain a grading of 10:
10		 Third party CPA audit of all pertinent primary and secondary variable production and water imported purchase (il applicable) costs on an annual basis.or:
10		2) Water supply is entirely purchased as bulk water imported, and the unit purchase cost - including all applicable marginal supply costs - serves as the variable production cost. If all applicable marginal supply costs are not included in this figure, a grade of 10 should not be selected.

Appendix B

GPCD Calculator

sheets. Sheets can be accessed u	using the tabs towards the bottom of the screen, or by clicking the buttons on the left below. Descriptions of each sheet are also given below.
	Id be noted that all the recorded data should be from actual metered results and should not include any estimates.
	Value to be entered by user
E FOLLOWING KEY APPLIES THROUGHOUT:	Dropdown box, pick from list Look for the following boxes that provide ac Value calculated based on input data Instructions No longer available for input
ease begin by pro	oviding the following information, then proceed through each sheet:
WHE OF CITI ON OTHERT.	
REPORTING YEARS:	Enter the most recent 2016 Data can be entered back to: 2010
NAME OF CONTACT DEPRON.	
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: massengill@cilyoideming.org TELEPHONE: 575-546-8648 Ext. TS FOR VOLUME DATA: Gallons (US) For unit converter click here:
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: massengill@cilyoideming.org TELEPHONE: 575-546-9848 Ext. CTS FOR VOLUME DATA: Gallons (US) For unit converter click here: Converter This sheet
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityoIdeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-9849 Ext:
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI SELECT THE REPORTING UNI Select the Reporting Unity Consus Data Single-Family	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityofdeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8849 Ext. Ext. Its FOR VOLUME DATA: Gallons (US) For unit converter click here: Converter This sheet Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website Single-Family residential gallons and population Single-Family residential gallons and population
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI SELECT THE REPORTING UNI Census Data Single-Family <u>Multi-Family</u>	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityofdeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8849 Ext: Ext: Ext: This sheet Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website Single-Family residential gallons and population Multi-Family residential gallons and population Multi-Family residential gallons and population
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI SELECT THE REPORTING UNI Census Data Single-Family Multi-Family ICI & Other Metered	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityofdeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8848 ETS FOR VOLUME DATA: Gallons (US) For unit converter click here: This sheet Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website Single-Family residential gallons and population Multi-Family residential gallons and population Other data including Commercial, Industrial and Institutional [1.3] and Other metered [1.4] categories
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI SELECT THE REPORTING UNI Census Data Single-Family Multi-Family ICI & Other Metered Reuse	Jim Massengill E-HAIL: [massengill@cityoiddeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8849 Ext. Ext. Its sheet Converter click here: Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website Single-Family residential gallons and population Multi-Family residential gallons and population Other data including Commercial, Industrial and Institutional [1.3] and Other metered [1.4] categories Data related to water reuse projects
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI SELECT THE REPORTING UNI Census Data Single-Family Multi-Family ICI & Other Metered Reuse Total Diverted	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityoiddeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8848 Ext:
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI SELECT THE REPORTING UNI Census Data Single-Family Multi-Family ICI & Other Metered Reuse Total Diverted Reported Data	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityoiddeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8849 Ext: Ext: Ext: ITS FOR VOLUME DATA: Gallons (US) For unit converter click here: Converter This sheet Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website Single-Family residential gallons and population Nulti-Family residential gallons and population Other data including Commercial, Industrial and Institutional (1.3] and Other metered [1.4] categories Data related to water reuse projects Total Production and Diverted Water The calculated data graphical review of most common performance indicators
Annual Performance	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityoiddeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8848 Ext: Ext: Ext: This sheet Converter click here: Converter Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website Single-Family residential gallons and population Multi-Family residential gallons and population Other data including Commercial, Industrial and Institutional [1,3] and Other metered [1.4] categories Data related to water reuse projects Total Production and Diverted Water The calculated data graphical review of most common performance indicators The calculated data graphical review of annual performance indicators
SELECT THE REPORTING UNI SELECT THE REPORTING UNI Census Data Single-Family Multi-Family ICI & Other Metered Reuse Total Diverted Reported Data Annual Performance Monthly Parformance	Jim Massengill E-MAIL: [massengill@cityoiddeming.org TELEPHONE: [375-546-8848 ETS FOR VOLUME DATA: Gallons (US) For unit converter click here: Converter This sheet Census data and the portal to get the data from the Census website Single-Family residential gallons and population Multi-Family residential gallons and population Other data including Commercial, Industrial and Institutional [1.3] and Other metered [1.4] categories Data related to water reuse projects Total Production and Diverted Water The calculated data graphical review of most common performance indicators The calculated data graphical review of mostly performance indicators The calculated data graphical review of mostly performance indicators The calculated data graphical review of mostly performance indicators The calculated data graphical review of mostly performance indicators

CITY OF DEMING

1

P-1 Profile of General Population and Housing Characteristics Census Year 2010 ubject	US Census Table	Description		INPUT	
bjbjet optimized bjlationship In group quarters Total 549 susing Occupancy Total housing units Total 5,226 Occupied housing units 5,582 5,582 ouseholds by Type Average household size Total 644 Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number of Housing Units 2,56	DP-1	Profile of General Population and Housing Characteristics	Census Year	2010	
plationship In group quarters Total 549 pusing Occupancy Total housing units 6,226 Occupied housing units 6,562 Vacant housing units 644 puseholds by Type Average household size Total Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number of Housing Units	Subject				
Dusing Occupancy Total housing units Grad 6,226 Occupied housing units 5,582 Vacant housing units 644 Duseholds by Type Average household size Total 2.56	Relationship	In group quarters	Total	549	
Occupied housing units 5,582 Vacant housing units 644 buseholds by Type Average household size Total 2,56 Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number of Housing Units	Housing Occupancy	/ Total housing units	Total	6,226	
Vacant housing units 644 ouseholds by Type Average household size Total 2.56 Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number of Housing Units Population / Total Number of Housing Units Population / Total Number of Housing Units		Occupied housing units		5,582	
Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number of Housing Units	Use a balle barrow	Vacant housing units	T-1-1	644	
Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number of Housing Units	Households by Type	e Average nousenoid size	lotal	2.56	
Vacancy Rate % 10.3%		Formula: Household Size = Total Population / Total Number	of Housing Unit	s 10.3%	







CITY OF DEMING

NMOSE GPCD Calculator v2.02











CITY OF DEMING

C122

Appendix D Groundwater Model of the Mimbres Basin

GROUNDWATER MODEL OF THE MIMBRES BASIN, LUNA, GRANT, SIERRA AND DOÑA ANA COUNTIES, NEW MEXICO



By

Alan S. Cuddy Eric Keyes Hydrology Bureau



New Mexico Office of the State Engineer Hydrology Bureau Technical Report 11-1

January 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
1.	INTRODUCTION	1
2.	HYDROGEOLOGY	1
2.1.	Geology	2
2.2.	Hydrology	3
2.3.	Groundwater	4
2.3.1.	Aquifer Properties	
2.3.2.	Water Levels	6
2.4.	Groundwater Use	6
2.4.1.	Agricultural Irrigation	6
2.4.2.	Municipal/Industrial Pumping	7
2.4.3.	Trends in Groundwater Use	7
3.	GROUNDWATER MODEL	
3.1.	Model Description	
3.1.1.	Model Dimensions	
3.1.2.	Boundary Conditions	9
3.1.3.	Calibrated Aquifer Properties	10
3.1.4.	Calibration Results	11
4.	REFERENCES	

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1	Average Monthly Precipitation and Temperatures in the Mimbres Basin
2	Streamflows along the Mimbres River
3	Summary of Aquifer Test Results
4	Estimated Consumption of Groundwater for Irrigation
5	Irrigated Acreages by Crop and Consumptive Irrigation Requirement

6	Summary of Periods of Available Pumping Records
7	Municipal and Industrial Pumping
8A	Steady State Model Budget Components
8B	Model Year 2005 Budget Components

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1	Location of the Mimbres Basin
2	The Extent and Thickness of the Basin-Fill Alluvium in the Mimbres Basin
3	Predevelopment Water Elevations in the Mimbres Basin
4	Location and Extent of the Mimbres Model Grid
5	Model Cross-Section through the City of Deming (Model Row 97)
6	Mountain Front and Stream Recharge Cells in the Mimbres Model
7	Pumping Cells in the Mimbres Model
8	Hydraulic Conductivity in Model Layer 1
9	Hydraulic Conductivity in Model Layer 2
10	Hydraulic Conductivity in Model Layer 3
11	Specific Yield in the Model
12	Steady State Water Elevation and Residuals in the Mimbres Model
13	The Locations of Active Evapotranspiration in the Steady State Mimbres Model
14	Steady State and Transient Flow Budget Components in the Mimbres Model
15	Simulated Drawdown from Predevelopment to the Year 2005 in the Mimbres Model
16	Comparison of Observed and Simulated Hydrographs in the Mimbres Model

1. INTRODUCTION

A three-dimensional groundwater flow model of the Mimbres Basin has been developed to be used as a tool in water-use management and administration. This model is to be used to evaluate the availability of water and the effects of proposed water rights appropriations on existing groundwater rights.

The New Mexico Office of the State Engineer (OSE) has been using a numerical model developed by the OSE in the late 1970s for water rights administration in the Mimbres Basin. A subsequent model of the basin was developed by the U. S. Geological Survey (USGS) in 1994 but was never adopted by the OSE for use in water rights administration, primarily because of uncertainties in the historical pumping inputs to that model.

The model described in this report was developed to improve on several aspects of the existing model. These include:

- Basin geometry. Better basin geometry is available as a result of geophysical surveys conducted in the basin. The geophysical surveys provide a much more detailed configuration of the basin than was previously available.
- Basin geology. Recent work on alluvial basins in New Mexico has produced improved geological maps and cross sections of the basin-fill material which could be incorporated in a new model.
- Pumping history. Pumping rates from 1975 to 2005 were developed using Landsat imagery to estimate irrigated acreage from which pumping rates were calculated. This methodology provided pumping rates which are believed to be more accurate and span a longer period than the estimates provided by other records and thus enable a better calibration of the new model.
- Model accuracy. Faster computers and better software have enabled the construction of a new model with a finer grid, better calibration, and incorporation of available electronic data such as topography, rivers, geology, well locations and water levels.

2. HYDROGEOLOGY

The hydrogeology of the Mimbres Basin has been described by Hansen (1994) and the New Mexico Water Resources Research Institute (WRRI) et al. (2000). Trauger (1972) provided a detailed description of the geology and water resources of Grant County, New Mexico.

The basin, shown on Figure 1, is defined primarily as a surface water basin and covers parts of Luna, Grant, Sierra and Doña Ana counties in southwestern New Mexico and

extends south into Mexico. The groundwater model extent corresponds to the watershed boundary. The OSE has defined an administrative basin, also shown on Figure 1, which corresponds closely with the watershed boundary except for an area on the east side of the basin towards Las Cruces. This area is not explicitly covered by the model presented in this report because it is outside the area of saturated basin-fill alluvium. The OSE administrative basin does not extend into Mexico, whereas the surface water and model boundaries do.

Reeds Peak is the northern-most and highest point in the basin. Southeast of Reeds Peak, the basin boundary passes through the Black Range and Mimbres Mountains to the Goodsight Mountains. The boundary extends northeast to the Sierra de las Uvas, then south to the West Potrillo Mountains. The basin extends into Mexico and includes the Los Muertos Basin. On the southwest, the basin is bounded by Sierra Alta, the Carrizalillo Hills and the Cedar Mountains. The boundary follows the Continental Divide northward across the Antelope Plains, the Big Burro Mountains and northeast through the Pinos Altos Range back to Reeds Peak. In all, the basin encompasses approximately 5,140 square miles, 4,410 of which are in New Mexico.

2.1. Geology

Figure 2 shows the area of basin-fill alluvium within the Mimbres Basin. The northern part of the basin contains a series of north northwesterly-trending mountains, including the Big Burro Mountains, the Pinos Altos Range, the Black Range, the Mimbres Mountains and the Cooke Range. These mountains consist of Precambrian intrusive and metamorphic rocks, Paleozoic sediments, and Cretaceous-Tertiary intrusive, volcanic and sedimentary rocks.

The southern part of the basin contains isolated exposures of the basin bedrock in the Cedar, Victorio, Black, Florida and Tres Hermanas Mountains. These mountains consist of Precambrian intrusive and metamorphic rocks, Paleozoic sediments, and Cretaceous-Tertiary intrusive, volcanic and sedimentary rocks. Some areas in the southern part of the basin, particularly in the West Potrillo Mountains and the area south of the Tres Hermanas Mountains are dominated at the surface by late Tertiary or Quaternary basalt flows which are interbedded with basin-fill alluvium.

The basin itself consists of a number of sub-basins filled with deposits of various geologic units, which in this report are collectively referred to as basin-fill alluvium. Figure 2 shows thickness contours of the basin-fill alluvium. The basin configuration shown on Figure 2 was largely derived by interpretations performed by Heywood (2002) using gravity surveys. The basin configuration was modified based on surface geologic mapping, cross-sections presented in WRRI et al. (2000) and lithologic logs from deep drill holes available from the New Mexico Oil Conservation Division. The basin fill has a maximum thickness of slightly over 4,000 feet near Deming. Other areas with significant thickness greater than 2,000 feet are southeast and southwest of the Florida Mountains and beneath the San Vicente Arroyo between Silver City and Deming.

For the purposes of this groundwater model, the basin-fill alluvium was divided into two units, an upper unit and a lower unit. The source of the upper and lower demarcation is from a technical completion report from the New Mexico Water Resources Research Institute (2000). The upper unit corresponds to sediments classified as Upper Gila Group, which is also referred to as the Upper Santa Fe Group, and various surface alluvial and fluvial deposits. The lower unit corresponds to sediments classified as Lower to Middle Gila Group also called the Lower to Middle Santa Fe Group. The primary difference between the upper and lower units is that the lower unit is more indurated than the upper unit.

2.2. Hydrology

<u>Precipitation</u>. Precipitation ranges from about 9 inches annually at the lower elevations (Deming and Columbus) to about 25 inches in the higher elevations of the Black Range. Table 1 presents average monthly temperatures and precipitation amounts for Columbus, Deming and Fort Bayard, near Silver City. Data in Table 1 were obtained from the Western Regional Climate Center website.

<u>Surface Water.</u> The only major perennial stream in the basin is the upper reach of the Mimbres River. The river starts in the Black and Pinos Altos ranges and flows south to Faywood at which point it emerges from the bedrock of the mountains and flows out onto the basin-fill alluvium. The river channel passes Black Mountain and ends about 10 miles east of Deming. The river is a losing stream after it passes Faywood and only rarely flows past Deming. After Faywood, losses from the stream to the aquifer occur by infiltration through unsaturated sediments. There is not a direct connection of the stream to the aquifer. The USGS maintained three stream gaging stations on the Mimbres River between October 1, 1963 and September 30, 1968. The locations of the gaging stations are shown on Figure 1. Flows during this period are summarized in Table 2.

Infiltration and recharge to groundwater in the basin fill takes place in the Mimbres River channel downstream from Faywood. The decrease in flows between Faywood and Spalding is a measure of the amount of recharge from the river to the groundwater in the basin-fill alluvium. The recharge between Faywood and Spalding is approximately 3,932 acre-feet/year or 394 acre-feet/year/mile given the distance between the two points of 9.98 miles. Between 1963 and 1968, flows were observed at Faywood on approximately 99.4% of the days and at Spalding on approximately 19.1% of the days.

The decrease in flows between Spalding and the Wamel Canal is also a result of infiltration of the river flows. However, the flows measured at Wamel Canal also include an additional contribution from flows in the San Vicente Arroyo which enter the Mimbres River during times of high surface water flows. More recharge is taking place between Spalding and the Wamel Canal than that indicated by the difference between the flows at Spalding and the Wamel Canal. The minimum amount of recharge between Spalding and the Wamel Canal. The minimum amount of recharge between Spalding and the Wamel Canal is the difference between the two adjusted flows or 3,501 acre-feet/year. An estimated maximum recharge can be obtained by assuming that recharge takes place at the same rate downstream from Spalding as it does upstream from

Spalding (394 acre-feet/year/mile as calculated above). The distance from Spalding to the Wamel Canal is approximately 14.6 miles and a maximum recharge amount is approximately 5,752 acre-feet/year.

The flows measured at the Wamel Canal are a measure of the amount of recharge taking place in the Mimbres River channel downstream from the Wamel Canal because there are no major tributaries entering the river below the Wamel Canal. Flows measured at the Wamel Canal infiltrate over the reach of the river channel extending approximately 10 miles east of Deming. The recharge below Wamel Canal is approximately 2,794 acrefeet/year, or about 279 acrefeet/year/mile. Flows were measured at the Wamel Canal on approximately 8% of the days between 1963 and 1968.

The Mimbres River upstream from Faywood flows through a relatively narrow valley bounded by bedrock. Flow in the river is sustained by snowmelt and rainfall runoff and by inflows of groundwater. The river is believed to be in good hydraulic communication with the alluvium in the valley. No attempt was made to model groundwater in the alluvium upstream from Faywood due to the relatively small scale of the river valley and because this portion of the river, being bounded by bedrock, does not interact with the main portion of the Mimbres Basin. The net effects of the contributions by the Mimbres River on recharge to the main portion of the Mimbres Basin are combined in the streamflow measurements at the Faywood gage.

San Vicente Arroyo is the major drainage in the northwestern portion of the basin. The arroyo is an ephemeral stream for most of its length. The USGS maintains a stream flow gage on the arroyo near Silver City but has never had a gage near the confluence of San Vicente Arroyo and the Mimbres River. There are numerous tributaries to San Vicente Arroyo between the USGS gage and the confluence with the Mimbres River. As a result, no good measurements are available to estimate the amount of recharge to the groundwater system made by San Vicente Arroyo and its tributaries.

<u>Evaporation</u>. Net lake evaporation in the Mimbres Basin ranges from a maximum rate of 60 to 70 inches per year at the lower elevations to a minimum of 10 to 20 inches per year at the higher elevations (NM Interstate Stream Commission and OSE, 2002). Net lake evaporation is defined as gross lake evaporation minus annual precipitation.

2.3. Groundwater

In general, prior to development of the basin, groundwater in the Mimbres Basin was recharged by mountain-front recharge and recharge from the Mimbres River primarily in the northern portion of the basin. Groundwater flowed to the south. The basin was considered to be closed and groundwater losses from the basin occurred by evapotranspiration.

Figure 3 shows a predevelopment water level map of the basin indicating the generally southerly flow of groundwater. Water levels on Figure 3 were obtained from data presented in Darton (1916) and from the U.S. Geological Survey's Ground Water Site

Inventory database. The predevelopment water level map is based on water level measurements in wells completed in the upper 200 feet of the saturated zone. Water levels presented on Figure 3 were those measured prior to 1916, from Darton (1916), or were judged to represent water levels in an area prior to significant development.

Deflections in the predevelopment water level contours indicate that significant areas of mountain-front recharge are present on both sides of the San Vicente Arroyo, around the Cooke Range, around the Florida Mountains, and along the West Potrillo Mountains. Additional recharge takes place in the upper portion of White Rock Canyon on the western side of the basin.

Natural evapotranspiration takes place where groundwater levels are close to land surface, generally less than 40 to 50 feet. Prior to development of the basin, large areas of shallow groundwater were present south of Deming. The maximum rate of evapotranspiration in the basin equals the maximum net lake evaporation of 60 to 70 inches per year.

2.3.1. Aquifer Properties

A summary of aquifer tests of wells in basin-fill alluvium is presented in Table 3. These tests were performed as constant discharge tests of varying duration, primarily on production wells. Horizontal hydraulic conductivities were calculated from the transmissivities generally using the entire saturated thickness of alluvium observed at the well. The hydraulic conductivities were distributed approximately log-normally and the geometric mean of the conductivities was approximately 11 feet/day. The mean conductivity is probably significantly biased towards a high value relative to the true conductivity of the alluvium because:

- nearly all of the tests were performed on production wells which were installed preferentially in areas of high hydraulic conductivity,
- wells are screened only in zones of high productivity (although this factor was offset by using the entire saturated thickness to calculate conductivity from transmissivity), and
- wells were generally drilled only as deep as needed to obtain sufficient productivity.

As a result, the average of 11 feet/day probably represents an upper value of the conductivity of the basin fill. Kernodle (1992) suggests that typical basin-fill conductivities are in the range of 2 to 10 feet/day in closed-drainage basins, such as the Mimbres Basin.

No data were available regarding vertical hydraulic conductivities in the basin. Kernodle (1992) suggests that horizontal to vertical conductivity ratios vary from 200:1 to 1000:1.

An estimate of specific yield of 0.14 was provided by Hanson (1994) who estimated the consumptive use of water pumped between 1910 and 1970 and divided by the total volume of aquifer dewatered in that period.

2.3.2. Water Levels

Water levels measured in the Mimbres Basin were obtained from the U.S. Geological Survey's Ground Water Site Inventory. Water levels were used from wells which had sufficient construction information to assign them to a model layer. A database of water level measurements containing nearly 16,000 measurements from over 1400 wells was assembled. Measurements were collected between 1910 and 2006.

2.4. Groundwater Use

Groundwater pumped in the Mimbres Basin is used for agricultural irrigation, municipal and industrial uses and domestic water supplies. No attempt was made to quantify domestic pumping within the basin. Pumping in Mexico was quantified only for agricultural irrigation based on satellite imagery; no records were available for municipal, industrial or domestic uses.

2.4.1. Agricultural Irrigation

Irrigation began in the Mimbres Basin in the early 1900s. Significant expansion of the irrigated acreage occurred in the mid-1930s. Except for some occasional flood waters in the Mimbres River, all of the irrigation water in the main portion of the basin comes from groundwater pumping. Irrigation along the upper Mimbres River, upstream of Faywood, is primarily from surface water in the Mimbres River; however, the net effect of this water use is measured by the surface water gage at Faywood.

Table 4 presents estimated water consumption for irrigation between 1933 and 2005. The acreages in Table 4 for 1933, 1936 and 1940 came from maps published by White (1934), Theis (1939) and Conover and Akin (1942), respectively. Hydrographic survey maps from 1975 to 1982 provided the irrigated acreage for those years. The irrigated acreages were also estimated from satellite imagery analysis from 1975 to 2005. Irrigation pumping was determined from the irrigated areas identified by the Normalized Difference Vegetation Index (Bohannan Huston, 2006) and assumes that irrigation water was not pumped significant distances to the fields being irrigated. Satellite imagery was interpreted in conjunction with hydrographic survey maps that served to limit the potential areas evaluated for irrigation.

The consumptive irrigation requirements (CIRs) were calculated using software developed by the Office of the State Engineer (OSE) and documented by Wilson (1992). The program is based on the Soil Conservation Service modifications to the Blaney-Criddle method. Climate data used in the CIR calculations were based on the average of

the Columbus and Deming data presented in Table 1. Additional climate data included the spring and fall days in which minimum temperatures were reached. These were based on data presented in Wilson (1992) for Deming.

The growing season information was input from file GS29 provided with the CIR program, corresponding to the Mimbres Basin in Luna County.

The percent daylight hours used in the CIR program is based on the latitude of the location for which CIRs are being calculated. A latitude of 32° 16' corresponding to Deming was input to the program.

Individual crop acreages were obtained from the series of reports published by the Agricultural Experiment Station at New Mexico State University concerning irrigation water sources and cropland acreages (New Mexico State University, 1981). These acreages and the CIRs for years between 1939 and 2001 are presented in Table 5. The CIR used for administration is 1.6 acre-feet/acre, falling within the range of values given in Table 5. Two Farm Delivery Requirements (FDR) are used within the basin. From Township 18 South and north, the FDR is 2.7 acre-feet/acre; from Township 19 South and south, the FDR is 3.0 acre-feet/acre.

2.4.2. Municipal/Industrial Pumping

Municipal and industrial pumping was compiled from records maintained by the OSE-Deming office and, for the mines near Silver City, from a modeling report prepared by Hargis and Montgomery (1983). Municipal pumping records were obtained for Bayard, Columbus, Deming, Santa Clara, Silver City and Tyrone. The periods for which pumping records were available are summarized in Table 6. Generally, in earlier years, only total pumping from wellfields was available. In later years, meter readings for individual wells were available. Total pumping for municipal wellfield is summarized at five-year intervals in Table 7.

Industrial pumping is related to mining near Silver City. Pumping at individual wellfields is summarized at five-year intervals in Table 7.

2.4.3. Trends in Groundwater Use

As seen in Table 4, agricultural water use reached a maximum in the late 1970s and is currently only about 40 percent of its 1979 peak. Municipal and industrial use, shown in Table 7, increased until about 1990 and has remained relatively constant since then. Agricultural use has always exceeded municipal and industrial use. However, the gap has closed significantly due, primarily, to the decrease in agricultural use.

3. GROUNDWATER MODEL

The Mimbres Basin groundwater model was designed and run using Groundwater Vistas Version 5 developed by Environmental Simulations, Inc. Groundwater Vistas runs the U.S. Geological Survey MODFLOW 2000 code (Harbaugh et al., 2000).

3.1. Model Description

3.1.1. Model Dimensions

The extent of the model grid is shown on Figure 4. The north-south oriented grid contains 242 rows, 214 columns and three layers. The model cells are each 2,000 feet by 2,000 feet. The southwest corner of the grid is positioned at x=177,495.64 meters and y=3,483,603.78 meters in the NAD1983 UTM Zone 13N coordinate system and the Transverse Mercator projection.

The simulation runs through 16 stress periods. The first stress period, represents a predevelopment steady state. The subsequent 15 stress periods are each 5 years in length and represent a calibration period from January 1, 1931 through December 31, 2005.

The three layers of the model each vary in thickness. Layers have thicknesses greater than 0 only in areas where basin-fill alluvium is present. Bedrock is assigned as no-flow cells and is not simulated in the model. The total thickness of the model is based on the configuration previously shown on Figure 2.

The top of Layer 1 was defined as the land surface elevation. The bottom of Layer 1 was defined as 200 feet below the predevelopment water table. In areas where the saturated alluvium was less than 200 feet thick, Layer 1 included the full thickness of the saturated alluvium. The total thickness of the combined saturated and unsaturated portions of Layer 1 ranged from 5 feet to 954 feet. Because Layer 1 was defined based on the location of the predevelopment water table, it crosses geologic contacts and included both the upper and lower units of the basin-fill alluvium. As described earlier, the upper unit of the basin-fill alluvium corresponds to sediments classified as Upper Gila Group, Upper Santa Fe Group, and various surface alluvial and fluvial deposits. The lower unit corresponds to sediments classified as Lower to Middle Gila Group or Lower to Middle Santa Fe Group.

The bottom of Layer 2 was defined as the deeper of:

- The bottom of the upper alluvium, or
- 200 feet below Layer 1 but not extending into the underlying bedrock.

Layer 2 ranged in thickness from 5 feet to 550 feet.

Layer 3, the bottom layer, included all the basin-fill alluvium below Layer 2. Because the bottom of Layer 2 was defined as including all the upper alluvium, if present, Layer 3 consisted entirely of lower alluvium. The thickness of Layer 3 ranged from 5 feet to 3,330 feet.

Figure 5 shows an east-west cross section along model row 97 through the City of Deming showing geologic units and model layers.

3.1.2. Boundary Conditions

Boundary conditions in the model included no-flow boundaries, mountain-front recharge, stream recharge, evapotranspiration and pumping wells.

<u>No-Flow Boundaries</u>. Model cells consisting of bedrock were assigned as no-flow cells. The basin is closed and is completely surrounded by no-flow cells. Additional no-flow cells were placed internally in the basin to simulate bedrock highs and mountains within the basin boundaries.

Mountain-Front Recharge

Locations of mountain-front recharge cells are shown, for Layer 1, in Figure 6. Mountain front recharge was simulated as constant flux cells using the recharge package. Recharge cells were located near the edges of the mountains in model Layer 1. In general, recharge cells were not placed immediately next to the mountain-front (no-flow cells) because the saturated thickness in these areas was small and the cells had a tendency to dry up during the model runs. This would lead to the recharge cells becoming inactive and prevent simulated recharge from taking place at that location.

Most mountain-front recharge takes place in the northern part of the basin. Flow rates for mountain-front recharge were initially obtained by calibrating a steady-state model to predevelopment water levels. These flow rates were revised after performing the transient calibration. Annual mountain-front recharge volumes are shown in Figure 6. The annual total simulated mountain-front recharge volume is 21,146 acre-feet.

Mimbres River Recharge

Locations of Mimbres River recharge cells are shown in Figure 6. Mimbres River recharge was simulated as recharge cells and only acted on Layer 1. Recharge rates were estimated based on the USGS stream gaging data described earlier in Section 2.2. The river was divided into four reaches:

- 1) from Faywood to Spalding,
- 2) from Spalding to Black Mountain
- 3) from Black Mountain to the Wamel Canal, and
- 4) from the Wamel Canal to about 10 miles east of Deming.

9

The annual simulated recharge volume from the Mimbres River to the basin-fill alluvium (downstream from Faywood) is 9,967 acre-feet.

The total model recharge of 31,113 acre-feet/year is about 1% of the average basin-wide precipitation. Recharge remains constant in the steady state and transient simulations.

Evapotranspiration

The potential for evapotranspiration was assigned to all active cells in Layer 1. Model cells with a simulated depth to water less than the assigned extinction depth of 40 feet could produce up to the maximum assigned evapotranspiration rate of 5 feet/year. This maximum evapotranspiration rate was based on the net lake evaporation rate determined by the New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission and the OSE (2002).

Pumping Wells

Agricultural irrigation, municipal and industrial pumping determined in section 2.4 of this report was assigned to model cells. Figure 7 shows groundwater pumping centers and simulated rates over the calibrated period of the model. Peak model pumping of 74,859 acre-feet/year occurs in 1976.

Irrigation pumping was assigned to model cells underlying the irrigated areas. The amount of pumping assigned to a cell was the product of the irrigated acreage within the cell and the CIR applicable to a particular stress period.

Municipal pumping was assigned to the model cells in which the production wells lay.

3.1.3. Calibrated Aquifer Properties

Figures 8 through 10 show the values of hydraulic conductivity assigned to the three layers of the calibrated model. The lower alluvium is assigned a single horizontal hydraulic conductivity of 1 feet/day. In most areas, the upper alluvium is assigned a horizontal hydraulic conductivity of 5 feet/day. A zone of hydraulic conductivity of 2 feet/day is assigned to the upper alluvium in an area northeast of the village of Columbus.

Hydraulic conductivities in the x-direction equaled those in the y-direction. The ratio of horizontal to vertical hydraulic conductivity was assigned a value of 200:1 based on the recommendation given in Kernodle (1992).

The calibrated zonation of the specific yield is shown in Figure 11. A specific yield of 0.10 is assigned for all of the lower alluvium. A large area of the upper alluvium is assigned a specific yield of 0.14. During model calibration, specific yield zones of 0.05 and 0.01 west and south of Deming were specified. A semi-confined storage of 0.001 is assigned east of the Village of Columbus. This area has been delineated as lacustrine in

Hanson and others (1994). A single specific storage of $1 \ge 10^{-6}$ ft⁻¹ was assigned to the upper and lower alluvium.

3.1.4 Calibration Results

Figure 12 summarizes the steady state calibrated fit of simulated to observed water elevations. Calibration targets were largely taken from Darton (1916) and supplemented by water levels from the U.S. Geological Survey's Ground Water Site Inventory measured primarily in the 1950s. Some measurements in locations away from pumping areas were measured as recently as 1970. The model is generally well calibrated to steady state water elevations. Water elevations are better estimated away from the no-flow boundaries of the model.

Figure 13 shows the model cells with active evapotranspiration in the steady state simulation. In predevelopment, 31,113 acre-feet/year leaves the model area as evapotranspiration. Over the historical simulation, the areal extent and the rate of the evapotranspiration decrease. In 2005 the rate of evapotranspiration from the model is 12,911 acre-feet/year. Tables 8A and 8B summarize the model budget components for the steady state and the year 2005 simulation periods. Figure 14 shows the steady state and transient model flow components over the entire calibrated period.

Figure 15 shows the simulated depression of water levels from predevelopment in the year 1931 through the historical pumping period in 2005. In 2005 the depression has a depth of 120 feet in an area located 10 miles south of Deming.

Figure 16 shows the goodness of fit between observed and simulated water elevation hydrographs for selected wells. Calibration data for the transient simulation is from the U.S. Geological Survey's Ground Water Site Inventory. The priority of the transient calibration was simulating to the observed drawdown trends. This was coupled with a statistical evaluation of water elevations. For the 9949 observed transient water elevations, 50 % of the simulated values are within 20 feet of the observations and 89% are within 50 feet of the observations.

The model reasonably simulates the observed rate of drawdown in most areas of the model. There is some local variability. In a long-term well hydrograph 5 miles southwest of Deming, 24S.10W.12.341HRNA, drawdown is over-predicted in the simulation. Drawdown in other nearby wells is accurately simulated. Similarly, in the semi-confined area just west of Columbus, wells showing moderate rates of drawdown are interspersed with wells showing rapid rates of drawdown. The model is calibrated to the larger observed rates of drawdown.

The sensitivity of the calibration when model parameters are varied was examined. The most sensitive parameters are storage of the upper alluvial zone and recharge. Variations in these parameters by 20% change the average residual mean of the transient water elevations by 2 to 3 feet.

4. REFERENCES

Akin, D., 1942. Report on Testing of Water-Supply Wells for Deming Airfield, Deming, New Mexico. New Mexico State Engineer Office, 14th and 15th Biennial Reports, 1938 – 1942, p. 381-417.

Blandford, T. and J. Wilson, 1987. Large Scale Parameter Estimation through the Inverse Procedure and Uncertainty Propagation in the Columbus Basin, New Mexico. New Mexico Water Resources Research Institute Report No. 226.

Bohannan Huston, Inc., 2006. Mimbres Basin Remote Sensing and NDVI Classification. Consultant's Report dated November 22, 2006.

Conover, C., 1952. Effect of Development of Ground Water West of Red Mountain, New Mexico. U.S. Geological Survey draft report dated November 1952.

Conover, C and P. Akin, 1942. Progress Report on the Ground-Water Supply of Mimbres Valley, New Mexico 1938-1941. 14th and 15th Biennial Reports of the State Engineer of New Mexico 1938 – 1942, p. 235-282.

Darton, N., 1916. Geology and Underground Water of Luna County, New Mexico. U. S. Geological Survey Bulletin 618.

Finch, S., 2005. Assessment of Warm Springs Well Field, Chino Mines Company, Hurley, New Mexico. John Shomaker & Associates, Inc, October 2005.

Geohydrology Associates, Inc., 1980. Water-Resources Appraisal for East-Central Grant County, New Mexico, Consultant's Report dated 1/1/1980.

Hanson, R. and McLean, J. and Miller, R., 1994. Hydrogeologic Framework and Preliminary Simulation of Ground-Water Flow in the Mimbres Basin, Southwestern New Mexico. U.S. Geological Survey Water-Resources Investigations Report 94-4011.

Harbaugh, A, E. Banta, M. Hill and M. McDonald, 2000. MODFLOW-2000, The U.S. Geological Survey Modular Ground-Water Model – User Guide to Modularization Concepts and the Ground-Water Flow Process. U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report 00-92, 121 p.

Hargis & Montgomery, Inc., 1983. Regional Groundwater flow Model, San Vicente Basin, Grant and Luna Counties, New Mexico. Consultant's Report, July 1983.

Heywood, C., 2002. Estimation of Alluvial-Fill Thickness in the Mimbres Ground-Water Basin, New Mexico, from Interpretation of Isostatic Residual Gravity Anomalies. U.S. Geological Survey Water-Resources Investigations Report 02-4007. Kernodle, J., 1992. Summary of U.S. Geological Survey Ground-Water Flow Models of Basin-Fill Aquifers in the Southwestern Alluvial Basins Region, Colorado, New Mexico, and Texas. U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report 90-361.

Murray, C., 1942. Preliminary Report on Completion of the New Mexico State Engineer Deming Test Well. New Mexico State Engineer Office, 14^{th} and 15^{th} Biennial Reports, 1938 – 1942, p. 181 – 218.

New Mexico Interstate Stream Commission and the New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, 2002. Framework for Public Input to a State Water Plan: New Mexico Water Resource Atlas.

New Mexico State University, 1981. Sources of Irrigation Water and Irrigated and Dry Cropland Acreages in New Mexico, by County, 1975-1980. Agricultural Experiment Station Research Report 454.

Spiegel, Z., 1956. Progress Report on the Hydrology of the Lewis Flats – Eastern Extension Area, Luna County, New Mexico. State Engineer Office, January 1956.

Theis, C., 1939. Progress Report on the Ground-Water Supply of the Mimbres Valley, New Mexico. 12^{th} and 13^{th} Biennial Reports of the State Engineer of New Mexico 1934 -1938, p. 135-153.

Trauger, F., 1972. Water Resources and General Geology of Grant County, New Mexico. New Mexico State Bureau of Mines and Mineral Resources Hydrology Report 2.

Water Resources Associates, Inc., 1981. Letter to Gene Gray, New Mexico State Engineer dated February 5, 1981.

Water Resources Research Institute, New Mexico State University and California State University, Los Angeles, 2000. Trans-International Boundary Aquifers in Southwestern New Mexico. New Mexico Water Resources Research Institute Technical Completion Report prepared for the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency – Region 6 and the International Boundary and Water Commission – U.S. Section.

Western Regional Climate Center. http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/index.html

White, W., 1934. Progress Report on the Ground Water Supply of the Mimbres Valley, New Mexico. 11th Biennial Report of the State Engineer of New Mexico 1932 – 1934, p. 109-125.

White, W. and W. Guyton, 1951. Ground Water in the Mimbres Valley, New Mexico. Consultant's Report, May 1951.

Wilson, B., 1992. The Original and SCS Modified Blaney-Criddle Method – Computer Software for the PC Age. New Mexico State Engineer Office Interoffice Training Manual, August 1992.

Wilson & Company, 2001. Canyon Country Estates Subdivision. Consultant's Report dated July 2001.

14

TABLES

			Matanalaat				
	Colu (292 1/1/1925 -	mbus 2024) 12/31/2005	Meteorologi Dem (292- 1/1/1914 - 1	ing 436) 12/31/2005	Ft. Bayard (293265) 2/1/1897 - 12/31/2005		
Month	Precipitation (inches)	Temperature (°F)	Precipitation (inches)	Temperature (°F)	Precipitation (inches)	Temperature (°F)	
January	0.48	43.7	0.44	41.8	0.87	38.7	
February	0.44	48.0	0.53	46.2	0.87	41.5	
March	0.38	54.3	0.38	51.5	0.70	46.0	
April	0.24	62.2	0.23	59.0	0.39	53.1	
May	0.22	70.7	0.25	67.5	0.47	61.0	
June	0.44	79.9	0.45	76.8	0.78	70.3	
July	2.00	81.5	1.78	79.7	3.20	72.5	
August	1.85	79.1	1.96	77.6	3.30	70.8	
September	1.31	73.9	1.25	72.0	2.05	66.0	
October	0.89	63.5	0.88	61.5	1.25	56.6	
November	0.50	51.2	0.48	49.4	0.76	46.0	
December	0.64	43.7	0.73	42.1	1.04	39.2	
	Total	Average	Total	Average	Total	Average	
	9.39	62.6	9.36	60.4	15.68	55.1	

Table 1. Average Monthly Precipitation and Temperatures in the Mimbres Basin

Table 2. Streamflows Along the Mimbres River

Station (USGS Station Number)	Measured Average Annual Flows 10/01/1963 – 9/30/1968 (acre-feet/year)	Adjusted Average Annual Flows ¹ (acre-feet/year)			
Faywood					
(8477500)	15,163	10,227			
Spalding					
(8477530)	9,333	6,295			
Wamel Canal					
$(08478300 + 08478400^2)$	4,143	2,794			

¹ The long-term average flow at Faywood, measured from October 1930 to September 1955 and October 1963 to September 1968 (30 years), was 10,227 afy. Flows at Spalding and Wamel Canal were adjusted proportionally downward by 10,227/15,163 to compensate for the high flows that occurred during the 1963-1968 period.

² Flows measured in the Wamel Canal and the Mimbres River below the Wamel Canal were combined to yield an estimated total flow in the Mimbres River prior to any development.

Test Date	Well Location ^I	Duration of Pumping (hours)	Pumping Rate (gallons per minute)	Drawdown (feef)	Well Depth (feet)	Static Water Level (feet below land surface)	Transmissivity (feet ² /day)	Hydraulic Conductivity (feet/day) ¹¹	Source
1222	18S.14W.12.313	4	11	89	320	167	5.7	0.04	Wilson & Company (2001)
May-79	198.10W.27.234b	19	140	4	234	12	10,700	48	Geohydrology Associates (1979)
Oct-79	198.14W.35.3	48	615	27	590	377	9,500	45	Water Resources Associates (1981)
Jan-05	208.11W.7.334	2	830	26	255	65	17,900	94	Finch (2005)
Jul-05	20S.11W.7.413	8	165	12	294	84	14,600	70	Finch (2005)
Jul-05	208.12W.12.134	17	150	41	400	52	700	2	Finch (2005)
Oct-80	20S.14W.1.1	24	700	26	1020	315	10,000	14	Water Resources Associates (1981)
Nov-51	248.11W.11.211	48	280	50	202	108	670	7	Conover (1952)
Dec-51	248.11W.12.324	48	374	21	200	102	4,300	44	Conover (1952)
Feb-51	248.7W.4.421a	4	470	63	398	56	940	3	White and Guyton (1951)
Feb-51	248.7W.9.241a	48	797	90	375	59	1,700	5	White and Guyton (1951)
Jun-42	24S.8W.6.11	24	450	7	235	48	14,000	75	Akin (1942)
Jun-42	248.9W.1.21	24	400	8	235	54	15,600	86	Akin (1942)
May-42	248.9W.1.22	24	365	81	234	49	1,500	8	Akin (1942)
May-41	248.9W.6.431	14	465	43	1000	55	2,800	4 ⁱⁱⁱ	Murray (1942)
Feb-53	258.6W.5.311	48	540	65	230	74	1,900	12	Spiegel (1956)
Jan-54	258.6W.8.112	48	650	95	1000	2	1,000	3 101	Spiegel (1956)
	278.8W.8.311				413	34	7,900	21	Blandford and Wilson (1987)

Table 3. Summary of Aquifer Test Results

³Given as Township.Range.Section.1/4.1/4.1/4

⁸Calculated using a saturated thickness of well depth minus static water level. ⁸¹Calculated using a saturated thickness of alluvium of 790 feet.

^{sni}Calculated using a saturated thickness based on a screened interval of 375 feet. --- = Unknown

		Consumptive	A Each of
		Irrigation	Acre-Feet of
10024	Acres Irrigated by	Requirement	Groundwater
Year	Groundwater	(feet)	Consumed
1933	5,894	1.59	9,371
1936	9,158	1.59	14,561
1940	12,295	1.59	19,549
1953	26,747	1.71	45,737
1975	41,123	1.64	67,442
1979	41,557	1.75	72,725
1986	22,676	1.75	39,683
1989	22,732	1.84	41,827
1995	23,319	1.82	42,441
2000	18,676	1.80	33,617
2005	15,650	1.80	28,170

Table 4. Estimated Consumption of Groundwater for Irrigation

						Year					
Crop	1939	1949	1954	1965	1970	1975	1980	1985	1990	1995	2001
Beans	4,600	2,937	6,211	1,000	350	2,200	1,180	360	0	0	784
Corn	400	170	1,186	500	1,500	3,000	4,400	1,500	900	2,500	1,920
Sorghum	2,300	1,219	3,404	12,700	18,000	26,000	9,400	5,600	2,500	2,100	2,297
Wheat	0	0	0	30	400	2,500	2,250	950	1,200	4,000	3,459
Spring Small Grains	150	330	344	2,050	3,600	4,500	1,870	2,200	1,400	1,180	1,110
Cotton	1,800	16,680	13,815	14,150	14,460	9,310	22,100	10,910	8,700	4,890	6,153
Vineyards	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1,500	600	500	275
Planted Pasture	500	1,063	389	2,200	1,100	1,300	1,300	390	400	700	306
Onions	0	0	0	0	200	440	180	300	2,650	3,800	2,832
Chile	0	0	0	0	0	800	1,390	4,400	11,000	8,200	6,752
Misc Veges	750	30	205	130	1,950	150	50	350	700	1,900	3,574
Orchards	0	44	42	0	250	700	750	970	1,100	1,255	867
Alfalfa	0	315	1,272	1,400	1,800	2,200	1,600	1,700	2,300	2,700	1,888
Native Pasture	0	0	0	0	6,700	8,880	10,350	10,350	10,350	10,350	11,216
Total Acreage	10,500	22,788	26,868	34,160	50,310	61,980	56,820	41,480	43,800	44,075	43,433
Consumptive Irrigation											
Requirement (feet)	1.59	1.79	1.71	1.71	1.68	1.64	1.75	1.75	1.84	1.82	1.80

Table 5. Irrigated Acreages by Crop and Consumptive Irrigation Requirement
N	· · · · 1 D		
Town	Period of Record		
Bayard	1983 - 2004 ¹		
Columbus	$1982 - 2004^{-1}$		
Deming	1985 - 2005 ¹		
Santa Clara	1978 - 2004 2		
Silver City	1958 - 2004 1		
Tyrone	1989 - 2004 1		
M Wellfield	ine Pumping Period of Record		
Anacha	$1052 1086^2 1080 2004^1$		
Apache	1952 - 1980, $1989 - 2004$		
Baker	1932 - 1986 , 1989 - 2004		
Bolton	1952 - 1986 ⁻ , 1989 - 2004 ⁻		
Cron Ranch	$1976 - 1983^2$, $1993 - 2003^2$		
Lower Whitewater	1952 - 1986 ² , 1989 - 2004 ¹		
McCauley	$1952 - 1986^2$, 1989 - 2004 ¹		
McCauley 8	$1983 - 1986^2$, 1988 - 2004 ¹		
Moody	1979 - 1987 2 , 1988 - 2004 1		
Stark	1952 - 1986 2 , 1989 - 2004 1		
Warm Springs	1983 - 1986 ² , 1989 - 2004 ¹		
Warm Springs 12	1983 - 1986 ² , 1989 - 2004 ¹		
Yates	$1988 - 2004^1$		
1			
¹ Meter records ava	ilable for individual wells		
² Records available for total wellfield only			

Table 6. Summary of Periods of Available Pumping Records

		Municipal Wel	ifields Annu	al Pumping	(acre feet)		9	8 3	8 8	Mine Wel	Ifields Annual	Pumping (acre	feet)	8	2	st) - 2	s	
				Santa	Silver					Cron	Lower		McCauley			Warm	Warm		
Year	Bayard	Columbus	Deming	Clara	City	Tyrone	Apache	Baker	Bolton	Ranch	Whitewater	McCaulcy	8	Moody	Stark	Springs	Springs 12	Yates	Total
1935									1										
1940																1			
1945																			
1950																			
1955	186.00			42.00		Cost of Art I Store V	1,680.84		1,832.99						1,079.51				6.776.33
1960					622.37		1,977.89		2,369.12						652.05				7.581.42
1965	236.00			70.00	598.46	362.00	224.60	0.00	1,905.44						2,253.20	1			7,614.69
1970					1,122.78	368.00	1,992.38	470.93	2,274.93		0.00	0.00			1,912.68				10,111.69
1975	275.00				1,530.10	281.00	572.36	1,485.23	1,456.25		318.78	1,876.46		0.00	1,499.72				11.269.88
1980	275.00		27.12.9480.9794	238.01	1,486.19		710.01	1,188.18	1,238.90	199.62	391.23	1,506.96	Lessoners constant	1.028.79	1.036.04	8.000 69 100 THE R			11.278.92
198.*	347.59	113.09	3,195.51	142.20	1,384.07		478.00	2,149.00	892.00		362.00	795.00	902.00	144.56	1,641.00	2,922.00	196.00		17,649.02
1990	305.37	125.75	3,282.27	241.74	1.881.53	2.050.11	1,135.64	1,150.98	1,122.53		338.78	1,644.92	3,257.43	1.923.97	1,109.57	2.719.76	118.15	705.16	25.103.66
1995	371.13	163.84	4,061.55	282.90	2,505.06	1.828.80	685.31	2,596.18	936.88	19.20	339.81	1,414.67	2.387.02	1.454.09	963.20	1.341.92	1.58	859.38	24.207.52
2000	356.69	213.76	4,101.67	245.17	2,020.11	1,438.15	787.41	1,305.18	623.96	16.68	274.54	2,387.80	2,186.92	1,518.65	1,151.86	2,119.15	472.79	862.21	21,083.30
2005	1		4,541.84																

Table 7. Municipal and Industrial Pumping

Table 8A. Steady State Model Budget Components

Model In	Rate (acre-feet/year)
Mountain Front Recharge	21,146
Tributary Recharge	9,967
Total In	31,113
Model Out	Rate (acre-feet/year)
Evapotranspiration	31,113

Table 8B. Model Year 2005 Budget Components

Model In	Rate (acre-feet/year)
Mountain Front Recharge	21,146
Tributary Recharge	9,967
Storage Drawdown	23,371
m - 1 I	54 484
lotal in	04,404
Model Out	Rate (acre-feet/year)
Model Out Pumping (CIR)	Rate (acre-feet/year) 33.916
Nodel Out Pumping (CIR) Evapotranspiration	Rate (acre-feet/year) 33,916 12,911
Iotal In Model Out Pumping (CIR) Evapotranspiration Storage Buildup	Rate (acre-feet/year) 33,916 12,911 7,677

FIGURES







CITY OF DEMING WATER CONSERVATION PLAN

Appendix D





row97_cross2.xlsx Chart2 1/11/2011 2:28 PM eik



















budget.xlsx Chart1 ejk 1/11/2011 4:51 PM





Appendix E Guidelines for the Deming-Columbus Administrative Area

GUIDELINES FOR THE DEMING-COLUMBUS ADMINISTRATIVE AREA

FOR REVIEW OF WATER RIGHT APPLICATIONS

OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER



JOHN R. D'ANTONIO, JR., P.E. STATE ENGINEER

May 20, 2011

DEMING-COLUMBUS ADMINISTRATIVE AREA GUIDELINES FOR REVIEW OF WATER RIGHT APPLICATIONS

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this document is to provide guidelines to Office of the State Engineer (OSE) personnel on the procedures for processing water rights applications filed within the Deming-Columbus Administrative Area (DCAA) within the Mimbres Underground Water Basin. The DCAA is located in Luna County in southwestern New Mexico (Figure 1). The Mimbres Basin was declared on July 29, 1931 by State Engineer Order 1. Since that date there have been 7 orders extending the boundaries of the basin. These guidelines replace the Mimbres Basin Administrative Criteria adopted in 1982 (NMOSE, 1982).

The OSE has developed administrative guidelines in order to promote the orderly development of water resources in the DCAA while meeting statutory obligations regarding impairment, conservation of water within the state, and public welfare of the state. Applications filed on or after the adoption date of the guidelines shall be evaluated using these guidelines. All pending applications submitted prior to this date shall be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. These guidelines do not apply to the permitting of applications filed under NMSA Section 72-12-1.1, 72-12-1.2 and 72-12-1.3. The guidelines apply to applications within the DCAA proposing production from the basin-fill alluvium, which is composed of gravel, sand, clay, silt and interbedded basalt flows. Applications proposing diversion from other geologic units, or outside of the boundaries of the DCAA, will be processed on a case-by-case basis.

Block administration and local assessment methods are applied to limit drawdowns caused by pending and future applications. The regional groundwater flow model developed by Cuddy and Keyes (2011) is available for block administration and may also be applied to assess local drawdown if the Theis equation is unsuitable. The model grid is shown in Figure 2. Each groundwater model cell is 2,000 feet by 2,000 feet in size and represents an administrative block. A 40-year planning period ending in year 2050 has been selected for block administration.

A block administrative drawdown limit of 2.50 feet per year was adopted for the 1982 basin

criteria to protect irrigation and other non-domestic wells from excessive drawdown. This limit was evaluated and deemed appropriate for the administration of the DCAA. Domestic wells were also assessed to determine whether the 2.50 limit was appropriate to prevent excessive drawdown. The average domestic water column in the DCAA is about 140 feet based on WATERS using wells which were completed after January 1, 2000. If the allowable drawdown within DCAA is assumed to be about 70 percent of the average water column, a drawdown limit of about 100 feet is obtained which is equivalent to a rate of decline of 2.50 feet per year over the 40-year planning period.

Modeling studies predict portions of the aquifer in the DCAA will experience an average annual water level decline of more than 2.50 feet per year over the planning period due to the full exercise of existing permits and declarations. To protect water availability for existing rights over the planning period these areas require a greater level of restriction compared to other areas and are designated Critical Management Areas (CMAs). Inaddition to these areas, areas previously closed to new appropriations by order of the State Engineer shall remain closed. The boundaries of the CMAs and closed areas are shown in Figure 3 and 4, respectively.

Figure 3 and 4 provide a general representation of the boundaries at a basin scale. However, because the model grid and boundaries do not align everywhere with PLSS sections, it may not be possible to accurately determine whether a given application is located within an area using Figure 3 and 4 alone. The boundaries are defined by the geographic information systems (GIS) layer (based on the model grid) that was used to produce Figure 3 and 4. The OSE Hydrology Bureau will maintain and provide both the model and the GIS layer of the boundaries for use by OSE and the public.

No unappropriated water exists within the CMAs and areas closed by OSE order. For this reason, and to protect against impairment of existing rights located in the CMAs and closed areas, all new applications filed under NMSA Section 72-12-3 to appropriate water from the CMA and closed areas shall be denied. Inaddition, changes in point of diversion from the areas outside of a CMA into the CMA will be denied and changes in point of diversion from the areas outside of a closed area into a closed area shall be denied.

Preventing any level of new impact within a CMA is impractical, as this would result in the denial of applications causing relatively small impacts. Drawdown allowances have been selected to define the relatively small impacts that may be allowed to occur on CMA cells by year 2050. Applications may be allowed to induce drawdowns on CMAs up to 0.10 feet per year times the

number of years in the simulation period. The drawdown allowance selected is comparable to the values used for other basins and was applied in the 1982 basin criteria. The simulation period starts January 1 of the calendar year in which the calculations are performed and ends January 1, 2050.

Insummary, a groundwater model was used to estimate the drawdowns in year 2050 due to the exercise of existing permits and declarations. If the average rate of decline exceeds 2.50 feet per year in any model block, that block will be classified as a CMA and the allowable impacts thereafter on that block from any application should not exceed 0.10 feet per year. For blocks which have not been designated as a CMA at the time of application review, an application, in conjunction with existing rights, may cause declines to reach a rate up to 2.50 feet per year, and the application may be allowed to induce an additional 0.10 feet per year (total decline of 2.6 ft/yr). If ablock is classified as a CMA at the time the application is being acted upon, all future applications for new appropriations under NMSA Section 72-12-3 will be denied if they are located within that block. Ingeneral, water rights may be moved within a CMA, or supplemental wells may be proposed, if the net effect on any CMA block does not exceed 0.10 feet per year and other statutory requirements have been met. However, water rights may not be transferred from outside of a CMA to within a CMA.

In addition to the block administration guidelines described above, applications are also evaluated to assess local impacts to nearby wells. Well completions and other site-specific information are considered to assess local impacts.

The more restrictive provisions of the guidelines may provide the basis for decision making; however nothing in these guidelines shall limit the State Engineer's authority to take alternative or additional actions relating to the management of the water resources of the DCAA as provided by New Mexico statutes, orders of the court, or Rules and Regulations of the Office of the State Engineer. Basin guidelines are to be applied on a case-by-case basis and alternative guidelines may be used, as recommended by the District Chief and approved by the Director of Water Rights. A glossary is also provided at the end of this document.

4

BASIN GUIDELINES

I. GENERAL GUIDELINES

A. New Appropriations: Applications filed under NMSA Section 72-12-3 to appropriate water from the CMA shall be denied if they were filed on or after the adoption date of these guidelines. Pending applications submitted before this date shall be assessed on a case-by-case basis.

B. Closed Areas: Areas closed to new appropriations under NMSA Section 72-12-3 by State Engineer order shall remain closed. Changes in point of diversion from the areas outside of a closed area into a closed area will be denied. Closed areas are shown in Figure 4.

C. Critical Management Area (CMA): Model cells have been designated a CMA if predicted drawdowns exceed an average annual decline of 2.50 feet per year over the planning period. The designation of CMA cells is based on the assumption that existing declarations and permits are exercised to their full extent. Designated CMA cells at the date of guideline approval are shown in Figure 3. The OSE has the sole responsibility to determine the boundaries of the CMAs and may modify these as applications are processed or as new data become available. Additional CMAs may be designated if predicted drawdowns exceed an average annual decline of 2.50 feet per year over the simulation period, which extends from the year calculations are performed to 2050.

D. Declaration and Permit Limits: For declarations of water rights other than those that meet the provisions of NMSA Section 72-1-9 (Water Development Plans), the OSE determination of the amount of ground water placed to consumptive beneficial use shall be the limit of any subsequent permit. For permitted water rights, that quantity of water applied to consumptive beneficial use is available for transfer provided the permit is in good standing. The inability to apply water to beneficial use for reasons beyond the owner's control may be taken into consideration.

E. Water Right Transfers: Applications may be accompanied with proof of the amount of water consumptively used. A farm delivery requirement (FDR) and consumptive irrigation requirement (CIR) of 3.00 and 1.6 acre-feet per acre per annum will be applied, respectively. The following limits shall apply unless the other values are recommended by the District Chief and approved by the Director of Water Rights:

1. For applications proposing to change the purpose of use of irrigation rights, diversions will be

limited to the CIR times the irrigated acreage of the existing right placed to beneficial use.

- For applications to change purpose of use of spread or stacked irrigation rights, diversions will be limited to the CIR times the irrigated acreage of the original water right placed to beneficial use.
- 3. For applications proposing to change the place of use of irrigation rights, other than spread or stacked water rights, diversions will be limited to the FDR times the irrigated acreage of the existing right.
- 4. For applications proposing to change the place of use of irrigation rights, where water will be spread, diversions will be limited to the CIR acre-feet per acre per year times the irrigated acreage of the existing right placed to beneficial use.
- 5. For applications proposing to change place of use of irrigation rights, where water will be stacked, diversions will be limited to the combined diversion amount.
- 6. For applications proposing to change the purpose of use from non-irrigation to irrigation, diversions will be limited to the amount placed to consumptive beneficial use, unless Section I.E.7 applies.
- Non-irrigation water rights placed to consumptive beneficial use which originated as irrigation water rights may be transferred back to irrigation use at the same diversion rate associated with the original water right.
- 8. For applications proposing the transfer of rights placed in conservation reserve program, in accordance with NMSA Section 72-12-8, diversions will be limited to the amount placed to beneficial use prior to the date the water right was placed in the program.
- Applications to change place or purpose of use (without changing the point of diversion) will be considered throughout the basin regardless of CMA designation.

F. Water Quality: Groundwater quality assessments may be performed when necessary and shall consider groundwater capture and migration patterns. The evaluation technique to assess potential water quality degradation shall be selected on a case-by-case basis.

G. Metering Requirements: Meters may be required for wells permitted under NMSA Section 72-12-1.1, 72-12-1.2, and 72-12-1.3, in accordance with OSE rules and regulations. All other wells permitted after the adoption of these guidelines shall be metered. Permits issued for supplemental

wells, or other points of diversion shall be conditioned to require metering of each point of diversion (existing and new) covered under the permit.

H. Conservation of Water: Applications shall be reviewed to ensure that the highest and best technology practically available and economically feasible for the intended purpose is used. The applicant may be required to provide information to support this review.

I. Supplemental Wells: When applying for a well (an additional point of diversion) that will be used in conjunction with other wells associated with the permit, the applicant should submit a pumping schedule with the application for the proposed and existing wells. If the applicant does not submit a schedule, the OSE may return the application for additional information or assume a worst case pumping distribution. The maximum combined diversion from all authorized points of diversion shall be the permitted diversion limit for a permit in good standing or the amount placed to beneficial use for a declared water right.

J. Return Flow Plan: A permit is required in order to increase a diversion based on return flow credit. If an application for return flow credit is filed, it shall include a return flow plan containing meter readings demonstrating flows directly to the source aquifer. Return flow credit will not be considered or granted for leakage or seepage occurring from irrigation or dairy operations, ponds, or any flows from onsite wastewater dispersal (septic) systems, or other constructed works not specifically designed to return water directly to the underground source.

K. Eastern Extension Area Restrictions: In accordance with State Engineer Order 46, wells shall not exceed 230 feet in depth except in instances where the formation at the 230 foot depth is sand and gravel not sufficiently stable to afford a satisfactory casing seat. In those instances the driller may, with the consent and under the supervision of the District Chief, proceed with the drilling to the top of the first clay strata next encountered below the 230 foot depth. The boundaries of the Eastern Extension Area are shown in Figure 4.

- L. Calculation Methods: General methods include:
 - Drawdowns due to a change in point of diversion shall be estimated by finding the water level decline difference (net drawdown) between pumping the move-from and move-to wells. Drawdowns due to supplemental wells shall be computed by finding the net drawdown between the existing and proposed pumping configurations.

- 2. Calculations shall be made by assuming full production of the requested diversion amount unless the applicant has filed a pumping schedule acceptable to the OSE. If a reasonable pumping schedule has been proposed for the application and existing associated permits under the control of the applicant, analyses shall be performed in accordance with the schedule. If approved, the pennit shall be conditioned to limit pumping in accordance with the schedule or as the OSE otherwise determines necessary.
- For drawdown calculation purposes only, the diversion amount will be considered to be fully consumed unless the State Engineer has approved a return flow plan.
- Drawdowns due to the full exercise of existing water rights shall be estimated using the model developed by Cuddy and Keyes (2011) or other models accepted by the OSE.
- 5. References to CMAs and non-CMAs in this document pertain to model cells within the Cuddy and Keyes (2011) numerical model. The non-CMA or CMA designation assigned to any model cell extends vertically through all layers of the model. CMA designations pertain to the estimated conditions at year 2050 prior to the review of an application.
- 6. Local assessments shall be performed using the Theis equation or a numerical model.
- 7. Applications involving dry model cells shall be assessed on a case-by-case basis.

II. REGIONAL ASSESSMENTS

A. Restrictions for Wells to be Located Outside of a CMA: lfa proposed well is outside of a CMA, the more restrictive of the following shall apply.

- 1. An application, in conjunction with the full exercise of existing wells, may be pennitted to induce drawdowns up to the rate of 2.50 feet per year on any cell outside of the CMA.
- 2. Ifdrawdowns reach 2.50 feet per year, an application may be permitted to induce a drawdown allowance of 0.10 feet times the number of years in the simulation period. The simulation period starts January 1 of the calendar year in which the calculations are performed and ends January 1, 2050.
- 3. For CMA cells existing prior to application evaluation, an application may be permitted provided the rate of drawdown on these cells does not exceed 0.10 feet per year times the number of years in the simulation period, unless the cumulative effects become excessive.

 Applications to change point of diversion from a CMA to an area outside of the CMA will be considered.

B. Restrictions for Wells to be Located Within a CMA: For applications where the proposed well is within the CMA, the more restrictive of the following will apply:

- Applications filed under NMSA Section 72-12-3, on or after the adoption date of these guidelines shall be denied. All pending applications filed before the adoption date shall be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.
- Applications to move a point of diversion into the CMA from outside of the CMA will generally be denied but the District Chief may recommend to the Director of Water Rights that special circumstances be considered.
- 3. Applications to change point of diversion within a CMA are generally limited to transfers within contiguous CMA cells but the District Chief may recommend to the Director of Water Rights that special circumstances be considered. An application may be allowed to induce a net drawdown in a CMA up to 0.10 feet per year; times the number of years in the simulation period, unless the cumulative effects become excessive. Section II.A.1 and II.A.2 shall also apply.
- 4. If a permittee owns a primary or supplemental well within the area outside of the CMA, which abuts a CMA, an application for a supplemental well within that CMA may be considered.

C. Administrative Model: Applications may be evaluated using the Cuddy – Keyes Model (2011), or other subsequent model version selected by the OSE. The input files will be immediately updated following application approval for applications other than those filed under NMSA Section 72-12-1.1, 72-12-1.2, and 72-12-1.3. Model input files will be made available to the public upon request. Applications located in areas where the model is deemed inappropriate by the OSE shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis by applying the Theis equation or other method. Observed field conditions may be incorporated.

- D. Calculations: The following methods shall apply:
 - The diversion from any individual well shall be simulated from a single model cell and shall not be divided among more than one cell unless the vertical distribution into more than one layer is appropriate. If the applied-for location creates uncertainty as to which model cell the

well could be located in, the most realistic scenario resulting in the greater impact will be used.

- For a multi-layer stack of cells, the maximum drawdown in any layer shall be the value used to apply the guidelines. Ifany layer cell becomes a CMA, the other layers within the stack will also be considered a CMA.
- Calculations shall be performed by assuming diversions begin in January of the calendar year the calculations are performed to January 2050, unless an alternative schedule has been proposed by the applicant and accepted by the OSE.
- The rate of drawdown shall be computed by dividing the net drawdown by the number of years between the year the calculations are performed and year 2050.
- 5. Effects due to existing permits and declarations shall be made by assuming full production of the permitted and declared rights up to year 2050. If the OSE modifies the amount permitted or found valid, these modifications may be incorporated to update baseline estimates. An updated inventory of water rights will be maintained by the OSE following the approval of any application other than those filed under NMSA Section 72-12-1.1, 72-12-1.2, and 72-12-1.3.

III. LOCAL AREA ASSESSMENTS

A. Water Level Decline Restrictions: Local area assessments shall evaluate 40-year impacts on nearby wells of other ownership using the following guidelines:

- 1. Applications to appropriate water, in conjunction with the full exercise of existing rights, may be permitted to reduce water levels at existing well sites as follows:
 - a. Up to 70 percent of the current water column.
 - b. For domestic well sites, the water column may be reduced to 20.0 feet, unless the 70 percent guideline is more restrictive.
 - For non-domestic well sites, the allowable drawdown will be assessed on a case-bycase basis using the procedures presented in Morrison (2006), or other appropriate method.
 - d. Other limits as deemed appropriate.
- 2. If the limits in 111.A.1 are reached due to the use of existing rights alone, or in conjunction

with the application, the application may be permitted to induce a drawdown up to 0.10 feet per year times 40 years.

- 3. Applications to replace an existing well within 100 feet of the existing well location may be allowed to impact junior users by any amount. The State Engineer assumption, which may be confirmed by calculation, is that pumping from a new well within 100-feet of the old well will cause no impairment to existing water rights.
- 4. Decisions pertaining to local impairment shall be made on a case-by-case basis. Failure to meet any limit may be sufficient for rendering a negative decision. Upon recommendation by the District Chief, the Director of Water Rights may also consider:
 - a. Validity of the water right of the affected well(s).
 - b. Age of the affected well(s).
 - c. Well yield.
 - d. Water level decline and saturated thickness data.
 - e. Whether the affected well(s) may be deepened and were constructed to secure a 40year minimum supply.
 - f. Conditional approval for an amount lower than requested to meet drawdown limits.
 - g. Conditional approval based on the submittal of an acceptable monitoring and mitigation plan.
 - h. Other appropriate considerations.
- B. Calculations: The following methods shall apply:
 - Applications shall be evaluated on a case-by-case basis to assess impacts to nearby water supply wells of other ownership, including those permitted under NMSA 72-12-1.1, 72-12-1.2, and 72-12-1.3.
 - Local assessments may be performed using the Theis equation or appropriate numerical model. A numerical model may be used to estimate the 40-year impacts due to the full use of existing water rights.
 - 3. Aquifer parameters used to calculate drawdowns on nearby wells may be obtained from accepted groundwater flow models or from reasonable site-specific information.
 - 4. Calculations shall be computed for a 40-year period beginning at the start of the calendar year the calculations are being performed.

Adopted this twentieth day of May 2011.

-" John R. D'Antonio, Jr., P.E. State Engineer



12

CITY OF DEMING

REFERENCES

Cuddy, Alan, and Keyes, Eric, 2011, Groundwater Model of the Mimbres Basin, Luna, Grant, Sierra and Dona Ana Counties, New Mexico: New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, Hydrology Bureau Technical Report 11-1.

Morrison, Tom, 2006, Guidelines for the Assessment of Drawdown Estimates: New Mexico Office of the State Engineer, Hydrology Bureau Report 06-01.

New Mexico Office of the State Engineer (NMOSE), 1982, Mimbres Basin Administrative Criteria. Prepared by New Mexico State Engineer Office, August 1982.

GLOSSARY

Acre-foot: Quantity of water that will cover one acre of and to a depth of one foot; 43,560 cubic feet or 325,851 gallons of water.

Aquifer: A saturated underground geologic formation of permeable materials capable of storing water and transmitting usable amounts of water to wells.

Basin-fill alluvium: The primary water supply source in the Mimbres Basin consisting of sand, gravel, clay and silt.

Beneficial use: All uses not defined by court decisions, statute, or the OSE as being wasteful. All beneficial uses are equal under New Mexico law.

Block administration: A procedure used in many areas of the state to administer water rights on a regional scale. An underground basin is divided into blocks or cells ofland and guidelines are applied as a way of determining which applications should be approved or denied. For the DCAA, an administrative block is 2,000 by 2,000 feet in size and is represented by a groundwater model cell.

Cell: A unit used in a numerical groundwater flow model that simulates part of an aquifer system. Aquifer properties, water levels and flows may vary from cell to cell, but are assumed to be uniform within a cell. Groundwater diversions and aquifer properties are assigned to each cell. Drawdowns are computed for each saturated cell and this information is compared to the guideline restrictions. Cells are used to represent administrative blocks.

Closed area: An area in which new appropriations under NMSA Section 72-12-3 are prohibited.

Consumptive beneficial use: The consumptive beneficial use for irrigation rights does not include incidental depletions. Consumptive beneficial use for non-irrigation rights is the diversion amount

less any return flow accepted by the OSE.

Critical management area (CMA): Model cells within the regional model boundaries requiring a greater degree of water level decline restriction compared to other areas. CMA limits are the threshold drawdowns that result in a non-CMA becoming a CMA.

Declared underground water basin: An area designated by the state engineer as requiring management to prevent impairment to existing water rights and to ensure the orderly development of water rights. Following the declaration of a basin by the OSE, applications must be filed to appropriate groundwater or to make changes to an existing water right.

Declared water right: A right established prior to the State Engineer's declaration of an underground water basin.

Diversion: The amount of ground water withdrawn by wells.

Domestic wells: Wells permitted under NMSA Section 72-12-1.1.

Drawdown: The decline in the water level over a given time caused by well diversions.

Ground water: Water located below the surface of the earth that is stored in pores of geologic sediments (sands and gravels), cracks and crevices of rocks (fractures) and solution cavities in limestone.

Groundwater-flow model: A series of mathematical equations representing the aquifers in the area that are solved using a computer. Models are used to estimate the water level declines due to the use of wells.

Guidelines: A statement of general procedure to be applied in a specific area by OSE personnel to any application to ensure a consistent set of guiding principles is used to evaluate all applications. Due to the wide variety of physical conditions that may be encountered, guidelines should be applied on a case-by-case basis.

Hydrogeologic: Characteristics that enable geologic units to store and transmit water.

Impairment (underground water): A finding by the state engineer of negative impact based on water level decline, remaining saturated thickness, available water columns and other relevant factors or facts.

Licensed water right: A water right in which a license has been issued by the State Engineer that defines the extent of the water right.

Local assessment: The determination and assessment of water level decline on water supply wells in the vicinity of a proposed well.

14

Move-from well: The well from which the water rights will be transferred.

Move-to well: The well to which water rights are being transferred.

New appropriation: A groundwater diversion permitted under NMSA Section 72-12-3.

NMSA: New Mexico Statutes Annotated.

Non-CMA: Areas within the regional model boundaries that are not designated a Critical Management Area. Restrictions are placed on non-CMAs that are less severe relative to those placed on CMAs.

Pending application: Any application that was filed with the OSE but has not been acted upon.

Permit: Is an application that has been approved by the state engineer for a specific purpose, such as changing point of diversion, drilling a supplemental or replacement well, changing place or purpose of use, etc.

Permitted right: The right to use water as provided for by permit. A water right is established by exercising a permit and by putting water to continuous beneficial use.

Primary well: The well that was originally permitted or declared.

Pumping schedule: May include a changing diversion rate with time for a given well, or the diversion rate for multiple wells.

Regional groundwater flow model: Is typically a basin-wide numerical model that allows the estimation of impacts due to existing wells and proposed appropriations.

Return flow credit: Is that amount of water directly returned to the same immediate underground source from which it was appropriated, after the water has been applied to beneficial use. Return flow credit will not be considered or granted for incidental leakage or seepage occurring from irrigation use, constructed works, or ponds, or for any flows from onsite dispersal (septic) systems.

Return flow plan: Is a report based on factual and acceptable scientific measurements demonstrating return flow credit.

Saturated thickness: The underground zone in which the void spaces in the rocks and soils are filled with water. As water levels decline, the saturated thickness also declines.

Section 72-1-9: The statute which allows municipalities, counties, state universities and public utilities supplying water to municipalities or counties to acquire water rights pursuant to a water development plan for reasonably projected water needs that will occur within 40 years.

Section 72-12-1.1: The statute that regulates wells required for relatively small amounts of water for
single or multiple households, including drinking and sanitary uses in conjunction with a commercial operation.

Section 72-12-1.2: The statute that regulates livestock wells.

Section 72-12-1.3: The statute that regulates wells used for a period not to exceed one-year for specifically listed purposes of use.

Section 72-12-3: The statute that regulates wells for new appropriation other than those applications filed under Section 72-12-1. Section 72-12-3 applications generally seek to obtain quantities of water greater than allowed by the OSE for Section 72-12-1 wells.

Spread irrigation water rights: Irrigation water rights on an acre of land that are less than the amount of water per irrigated acre associated with the average basin-wide cropping pattern.

Stacked water rights: Irrigation rights on an acre of land that exceed the amount of water per irrigated acre associated with the average basin basin-wide cropping pattern.

Statutory: Regulated by law.

Supplemental well: An alternate point of diversion to supplement the supply of an existing water right.

Theis equation: An analytical method that calculates water level declines using one set of aquifer parameters .

Transfer: Is a general term that is not defined in the statutes but is used to indicate a change in point of diversion or change of place or purpose of use of a water right.

Water column: Is the length of the column of water in a well that is potentially available for production. It is generally calculated by subtracting the non pumping water level from the well depth for wells that have screens extending to the bottom of the well. As water levels decline due to pumping, water columns and well yields also decline.

Water right: The amount of water that can be legally placed to beneficial use by the water right owner.

Well completion: The specific well construction information provided in a well record, such as the depth of a well, perforated interval, casing materials, surface seals, or other relevant data.

16



Appendix E



Appendix E





Appendix F 2009 Water Conservation Plan (From 2009 40-Year Water Plan)



4. Water Conservation Plan

The City of Deming recognizes that water is a limited resource in New Mexico As the City continues to grow and water demand increases, water conservation can play an important role in ensuring that the available supplies will meet future demand. The City passed its current water conservation ordinance in 2004, recognizing that water conservation can prevent or delay the need for expensive capital expenditures to develop new water supplies and acquire additional water rights. The water conservation plan presented herein is an important part of the City's water supply management strategy and will allow for efficient use of and conservation of existing resources.

This document, along with the City's existing conservation ordinances, addresses the conservation requirements under the New Mexico 40-year water planning statute as well as Section 72-14-3.2 of NMSA 1978, which calls for conservation planning as a prerequisite for funding from key state funding agencies. Specifically, "any public supply system with diversions of at least 500 acre-feet annually for domestic, commercial, industrial, or government customers for other than agricultural purposes, may develop, adopt and submit to the State Engineer, by December 31, 2005, a comprehensive water conservation plan, including a drought management plan, and that after December 31, 2005, neither the Water Trust Board nor the New Mexico Finance Authority shall accept an application from a covered entity for financial assistance in the construction of any water diversion, storage, conveyance, water treatment or wastewater treatment facility unless the covered entity includes a copy of its water conservation plan." The City has submitted its existing conservation ordinances (including the drought management plan [ordinance 9-4-8]) with its applications for funding.

Water conservation is an important component of the City's water planning because the OSE evaluates water rights transactions (including changes in point of diversion or place or purpose of use, as well as new permit applications) with respect to whether the transaction will impair existing water rights and whether it is consistent with public welfare and conservation. For example, water suppliers with large losses in their system, high per capita water use rates, or other indicators of high water use may be required to address these issues before the OSE will approve an application to appropriate additional water. This requirement is part of an overall

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc

83



strategy by the State to ensure that water is being used wisely before additional water rights are permitted.

4.1 Existing Conservation Practices

The City of Deming implemented comprehensive water conservation and drought management ordinances in 2004 (Appendix A). Likewise, the City has already implemented a number of water conservation-related activities, including an increasing block water rate structure, automated billing system, customer water meter replacement, production management using a system control and data acquisition (SCADA) system, leak surveys and standards for water line construction and wastewater reuse. Sections 4.1.1 through 4.1.7 summarize the City's existing programs.

4.1.1 Water Rates

City water rates were last updated by an Ordinance No. 1185, passed April 16, 2009 (City of Deming, 2009). The updated water rates have an increasing block rate structure; that is, as water consumption increases, so does the cost to the customer, thus creating an incentive to reduce consumption. In addition, water rates are higher from May 15 to October 15 of each year.

Deming water rates were compared to the water rates in other New Mexico communities of similar size. An analysis of 2006 water rates by the NMED Construction Programs Bureau indicates that the charge for 6,000 gallons of water in the residential sector ranged from a minimum of \$6.75 (Artesia) to a maximum of \$50.00 (San Ysidro). Average and median residential water rates for New Mexico communities of similar size to Deming (Table 29) were \$13.51 and 14.08, respectively, per 6,000 gallons in 2006; Deming's summer rate was \$11.16 per 6,000 gallons. Under the new residential rates, the cost for 6,000 gallons is \$12.26 for 2009, \$13.42 for 2010, and \$14.84 for 2011.

The charge for 6,000 gallons of water in the commercial sector ranged from a minimum of \$8.50 (Tatum) to a maximum of \$140.79 (Albuquerque Bernalillo County Water Utility Authority) for the 101 New Mexico municipalities that were included in the survey. New Mexico communities of

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPln.7-09\DemingPln_720_TF.doc



similar size to Deming had average and median commercial water rates of \$17.45 and 14.61, respectively, per 6,000 gallons in 2006. Under the new commercial rates for Deming, the cost for 6,000 gallons is \$18.32 for 2009, \$21.56 for 2010, and \$25.76 for 2011.

	Residential		Commercial	
Municipality	Number of Connections	Monthly Charge for 6,000 Gallons (\$)	Number of Connections	Monthly Charge for 6,000 Gallons (\$)
Artesia	3,979	6.75	551	13.50
Carlsbad	9,195	10.53	1,480	12.46
Deming	5,730	12.26 ^a	596	18.32 ^a
Gallup	5,977	20.92	1,257	33.72
Hobbs	9,320	11.03	1,463	11.03
Portales	3,995	14.41	731	14.41
Raton	3,591	15.55	570	20.56
Silver City	5,603	14.80	575	14.80
Socorro	3,345	14.23	361	14.23
Sunland Park	4,002	13.92	345	20.32
Average		13.44		17.34
Median		14.08		14.61

Table 29. Municipal Water Rates in Comparable New Mexico Municipalities

Source: NMED, 2007a, unless otherwise noted

^a Current summer rate

4.1.2 Automated Billing System

The City of Deming uses the Itron system for billing its customers, and billing is done twice a month (Jenkins, 2008). The Itron billing system is an electronic read system in which data are collected by meter readers using handheld units. Data are automatically entered and downloaded from the handheld units into the billing system (Jenkins, 2008). The system flags accounts when the current reading is out of range for historical readings, and the meter reader gets an error signal and is immediately asked to re-read the meter if use is extremely high or low. If the repeat reading is correct, it is followed up with a field check (Jenkins, 2009).

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc

85



4.1.3 Customer Water Meter Replacement Program

The City of Deming has a 10-year customer water meter replacement program (Jenkins, 2009).

4.1.4 Production Management

In July 2007, the City installed a SCADA system, which is being used to control the four largest production wells. Additional wells will be added over time. This system controls when each well is being pumped, helping the City to keep the optimal amount of water in storage and preventing overflows (Jenkins, 2008). The system limits are set to trigger increased production whenever the storage tanks are less than half full and to shut off all pumps when the storage tanks are three-quarters full. Having the SCADA system in place allows the system to respond more efficiently to fluctuations in demand (Jenkins, 2009).

In 2009 the City brought online a 3,000,000-gallon ground-level water storage tank. Five 600-gpm booster pumps are SCADA-controlled to supply water from this new tank to the distribution system. The pumps are controlled by the level of water in the two overhead water storage tanks (Section 3.1) to maintain a much more constant level in the overhead tanks.

4.1.5 Leak Surveys and Standards for Water Line Construction

The City of Deming follows American Water Works Association (AWWA) water line construction standards and performs leak surveys every five years as required. Leak detection companies are hired to perform these surveys, and the City decides when a survey is necessary based on the volume of non-revenue water for the year. In 2008, non-revenue water accounted for 4 percent of total production (Jenkins, 2009).

Meter readers are trained to look for leaks, and when leaks are apparent, meter reading staff attempt to inform the customer and may turn off the water if no one is home (Jenkins, 2008). The City also often receives phone calls reporting wet spots or water leaks that result in field surveys and leak repair (Jenkins, 2008). The Public Works and Utilities Department analyzes the previous year of water use data by account each January and, based on this review, investigates individual accounts with higher than normal use (Jenkins, 2008).

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc



4.1.6 Wastewater Reuse

The wastewater treatment plant treats an average of approximately 1 to 1.3 million gallons of wastewater per day (Jenkins, 2008). During December, January, and February, treated wastewater is stored in lined lagoons at the treatment plant, where the City has 130,000,000 gallons storage capacity. This stored effluent is currently used for irrigation from March through the fall (Jenkins, 2008); however, since early 2008, approximately 300,000 gallons of treated effluent has been contracted for use by Luna Energy. This reuse of city effluent reduces diversions from the Mimbres groundwater basin by an equivalent amount. The remaining 1 million gallons of treated effluent are commingled with water from the City system to supplement irrigation of the municipal cemetery and golf course, reducing system diversions by 336 ac-ft/yr (Jenkins, 2008). The balance of municipal wastewater not used to directly offset these system diversions is applied as irrigation to City-owned farms, increasing return flow to the aquifer by up to 1,120 ac-ft/yr.

4.1.7 Outdoor Water Conservation Ordinance

The City of Deming passed its water conservation ordinance effective June 2004 (Deming Municipal Code 9-4-8). The ordinance mandates turf and landscape irrigation conservation measures, including irrigation day restrictions (even-numbered addresses may irrigate on Mondays, Wednesdays, Fridays, and Sundays; odd-numbered addresses may irrigate on Tuesdays, Thursdays, Saturdays, and Sundays) and time of day irrigation restrictions (all outdoor irrigation is prohibited between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. from April 1 through September 30) (D.M.C. 9-4-8 C). The outdoor water conservation provisions restrict nonessential water use and require that all home and/or automobile washing be done using a handheld bucket or handheld hose with a shutoff nozzle (D.M.C. 9-4-8(D)).

The ordinance prohibits water waste, defined as follows:

- Causing water to discharge onto any street, alley, gutter, ditch, drain, or public right of way
- · Failing to repair a leak in a system within 10 days of discovery

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc

87



- Washing any outdoor impervious surface, except in emergencies or where mandated by federal, state, or local law
- Serving drinking water in local restaurants except on request

The code also mandates that any swimming pools constructed after the effective date of the outdoor conservation code be equipped with filtration, pumping, and recirculation systems (D.M.C. 9-4-8(E)).

Requests for variances from the requirements set out by conservation ordinance are reviewed by the planning and zoning commission on the basis of hardship or special cases, and the commission makes recommendations to the city council if it feels a variance should be approved. Inconvenience and/or the potential for damages to landscaping do not justify a request for a variance (D.M.C. 9-4-8 (F)). Exceptions to enforcement include water used for firefighting purposes, inspection and pressure testing of fire hydrants, street sweeping, sewer maintenance, or other established utility and public works practices, and water used to establish newly seeded or sodded turf grass and landscaping (D.M.C. 9-4-8 (G)).

To implement additional water use restrictions, the Deming City Council has the authority to declare a water emergency, on the advice of the city administrator and/or director of public works. The city council may, by resolution, restrict or prohibit use of water for irrigation, residential home and/or car washing, swimming pool filling and refilling, operation of ornamental fountains, or any other use deemed unappropriate given the circumstances (D.M.C. 9-4-8 (H)). Variances may not be issued during this time. The maximum penalty for violation of any of the outdoor water conservation code provisions is a fine of \$500, imprisonment for up to 90 days, or both (D.M.C. 9-4-8 (I)).

4.1.8 Landscape Requirements for New Development

In addition to its water conservation ordinance, the City of Deming has passed landscape standards to encourage water conservation by preserving native vegetation and encouraging the use of low-water-use and drought-tolerant plants (D.M.C 12-18-2). General design standards mandate the use of low-water-use plants and limit the amount of surface area that

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc

88



may be planted in turf for single family and multifamily dwellings and for commercial sites (D.M.C. 12-18-2 (D), (E), and (F)). Modifications may be allowed if a compelling case can be made before the City Council. Financial hardship is not a basis for granting a modification request (D.M.C. 12-18-2).

4.2 Conservation Goals and Measures

Improving customer and public awareness of the need to conserve water is one of the main goals of this water conservation planning document (Jenkins, 2008). Continued implementation and future expansion of a public education program that focuses both on water waste and indoor and outdoor water use in all sectors is a priority, in addition to continued implementation of the City's existing programs. Continued promotion of xeriscaping, landscape requirements for new development, and an indoor water conservation ordinance are measures under consideration.

4.2.1 Conservation Goals

Conservation activities are generally implemented either by the water supplier or the water customer, and improvement in customer and public awareness is likely to lead to the implementation of conservation measures by customers. Important components of the City of Deming water conservation public education program include:

- Providing the rationale for conservation and demonstrating that the City is already addressing water conservation in its system management before asking customers to change how they use water. Customers will be more willing to voluntarily change their behaviors/habits that lead to excess water use if they understand why it's important and if they know that all water users are also doing the same.
- Addressing the obvious forms of water waste first, targeting the most wasteful practices before asking individual users to change the ways that they use water.
- Educating customers about what they can do to reduce their use.

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc

89



The most common types of water waste are over watering (applying more water than is needed to keep landscapes green), which results in higher outdoor water use due to increased evaporation and evapotranspiration, and fugitive water, which can be seen in the form of runoff. Fugitive water is not a large problem in Deming. As described in Section 4.1.7, the City can assess fines for water waste, although the issuance of warnings along with public education has resolved all water waste issues to date (Jenkins, 2008). Water waste fines go through the municipal courts, as do fines for any code violation (Jenkins, 2008).

4.2.2 Conservation Measures

The Department of Public Works and Utilities has an existing public education program, which involves speaking to several different groups each year (Jenkins, 2008). The City of Deming has an outdoor water conservation code that went into effect in June 2004, setting watering days and times and prohibiting water waste (Section 4.1.7). The City does not currently offer rebates for the removal or replacement of high-water-use plants, nor does it have a rebate program for the replacement of high-water-use appliances (Jenkins, 2008).

The measures that the City of Deming plans to implement to continue to meet its conservation goals are outlined in Sections 4.2.2.1 through 4.2.2.3.

4.2.2.1 Public Education Program for Residential and Commercial Users

A number of tools can be used to share water conservation tips with customers and the general public, including bill inserts, feature articles and announcements in the news media, workshops, booklets, posters, and bumper stickers. Public school education is also an important means for instilling water conservation awareness.

The City of Deming's public education efforts already include speaking to different groups each year, and the number of presentations made will be increased to reach more members of the general public (Jenkins, 2009). In addition, the City will include water conservation materials in customer mailings and make water conservation literature available online and at public locations. The City will also contact Deming Public Schools to begin bringing water conservation lessons to the classroom. Children who learn about conservation in the classroom will take that information home and educate their own families.

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc

90



4.2.2.2 Evaluation of Rebate Programs for Replacement of High-Water-Use Appliances The City will evaluate implementing a rebate program for replacing high-water-use appliances with approved lower-water-use models, similar to existing programs in many other New Mexico communities. Such a program can reduce indoor and per capita demand.

4.2.3 Evaluation of Existing Use and Implementation of Conservation Measures

Potential savings from implementation of conservation measures are discussed in Sections 4.2.3.1 and 4.2.3.2. Figure 29 shows the net and residential per capita water demands for Deming from 2000 to 2008. While the net rate has varied, the residential per capita demand has steadily declined, from 137 gpcd in 2000 to 97 gpcd in 2008, a 29.5 percent reduction. Some of the decline is likely a result of the conservation efforts initiated by the City of Deming.

4.2.3.1 Residential Sector

Residential sector demand reductions can be achieved through improving efficiency of indoor plumbing and reducing use for outdoor irrigation. In 2008, residents of the City of Deming (including the transient population) used 97 gpcd for residential use (use by all sectors brought the total per capita demand to 194 gpcd). The amount of indoor residential use was estimated by multiplying the average monthly winter use, when outdoor watering is at a minimum, times 12 months to obtain an annual indoor use. This amount does not include the water used by evaporative coolers over the warmer months. Of the 97 gpcd, approximately 61 percent (59 gpcd) was used indoors in 2008, while the remaining 38 percent (37 gpcd) is estimated to have been used for outdoor irrigation and/or evaporative coolers. Average evaporative cooler demand is estimated to be 14.4 gpcd (39 gallons per day per house or 66 gallons per day over the 214-day cooling season) (Vickers, 2001). With 2.68 people per household in Deming in 2000 (U.S. Census, 2000), the overall annual indoor use can be estimated at 73.4 gpcd.

An indoor water use of 73.4 gpcd is less than the 1999 national average of 94.3 gpcd (Vickers, 2001) for non-conserving homes with evaporative coolers (Table 30). Vickers (2001) estimates that homes with low-water-use fixtures and with non-circulating evaporative coolers can reduce indoor demand to 70.5 gpcd. A reduction of this magnitude would be a 4 percent reduction in indoor demand. A 5 percent reduction in the residential sector's 2008 water demand, from 97 to 92 gpcd, would result in an overall 3 percent reduction in the total Deming water sales.

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc



Table 30. Indoor Water Demand Estimates

Scenario	Per Capita Indoor Demand (gpcd)
City of Deming indoor use, including 14.4 gpcd for evaporative coolers	73.4
National average for non-conserving household with evaporative cooler in 1999 ^a	94.3
Water-conserving households with evaporative coolers ^a	70.5

^a Vickers, 2001 gpcd = Gallons per capita per day

Average outdoor residential water demand was estimated to be 23 gpcd in Deming in 2008 and averaged 30 gpcd from 2000 to 2008. Table 31 shows the estimated outdoor water demand in Deming for different landscaping types and irrigation methods, assuming an average landscaped area (Wilson, 1996). If each household were to irrigate an 800-square-foot (ft²) lawn of Kentucky bluegrass, 1,000 ft² of trees and 200 ft² of garden by conventional methods, annual water demand would be 78,040 gallons per household.

Outdoor Use	Irrigation Requirement (gal/ft²/yr) ^a	Area (ft²)	Demand (gal/yr)
Kentucky bluegrass ^b	53.42	800	42,736
Bermuda grass ^b	40.59	800	32,472
Buffalo grass ^b	28.60	800	22,880
Trees ^b	30.06	1,000	30,060
Horticultural plants (herbs and gardens) ^b	26.22	200	5,244
Trees ^c	17.68	1,000	17,680
Horticultural plants (herbs and gardens) ^c	15.42	200	3.084

Table 31. Potential Demand for Outdoor Use

Source: Wilson, 1996 gal/ft²/yr = Gallons per square foot per year gal/yr = Gallons per year

^a Luna County irrigation requirement ^b Sprinkler or flood irrigation

^c Drip irrigation

Average City of Deming house size was 2.68 people in 2000 (U.S. Census, 2000), so a household use of 78,040 gallons per year would yield an outdoor per capita demand of 80 gallons. If buffalo grass were used for lawn, and trees and gardens were irrigated using drip irrigation, outdoor demand would be 43,644 gallons, or 44.6 gpcd. Both of these examples are



more than the average City of Deming resident uses for outdoor watering, suggesting that outdoor water use is already at reasonable levels.

Top users in the residential sector included golf course and the Country Club Garden Mobile Home Park accounts (Table 14), which accounted for almost 3 percent of total Deming water sales in 2006. Other top users included individual, apartment, church, and public school accounts.

4.2.3.2 Commercial and Industrial Sectors

Use in the commercial and industrial sectors accounted for about 28 percent of the total water sales by the City of Deming in 2008.

- The top commercial users in 2006 included highway, hotel and motel, manufacturing, and restaurant and bar accounts. Use by these top commercial users collectively accounted for about 12 percent of total water sales in 2006.
- Top users in the industrial sector include food and drink manufacturers (Border Foods, Deming Coca Cola, Mimbres Valley Produce, and Joseph's Lite Cookies), energy/oil, construction, and wastewater and septic tank manufacturing accounts. Border Foods is the single top industrial user and accounted for almost 12 percent of total water sales in 2006. Use by the top industrial users collectively accounted for approximately 13 percent of total sales in 2006.

Vickers (2001) cites typical conservation savings in the commercial sector as ranging from 15 to 35 percent. A 15 percent reduction in the commercial sector's 2008 water demand would result in an overall 2.4 percent reduction in total Deming water sales, reducing the per capita use of 194 gallons for all sectors to 190 gpcd. A 15 percent reduction in the industrial sector's 2008 water demand would result in an overall 1.7 percent reduction in total Deming water sales, from 194 gpcd for all sectors to 191 gpcd. Reducing the commercial and industrial demands by 15 percent each in 2008 would result in an overall 4.2 percent reduction in total Deming water sales, from 194 gpcd to 186 gpcd.

P:_WR09-067\40-YrWtrPIn.7-09\DemingPIn_720_TF.doc



4.2.4 Summary of Conservation Potential

The City of Deming has already significantly reduced per capita demand in the residential sector; however, if all residents implement indoor conservation efforts, the residential indoor demand can be further reduced. Conservation efforts by commercial and industrial users must be investigated on an individual basis, but a goal of 15 percent reduction is reasonable for these sectors. If the efforts outlined in Sections 4.2.1 through 4.2.3 are realized, an overall demand reduction of 7 percent could be achieved. Figure 30 shows the reduction in predicted future water demand if the overall demand can be reduced by 10 percent.

4.2.5 Funding and Implementation of Deming's Water Conservation Plan

The City of Deming can increase its water conservation efforts using existing staff and funding. However, to implement all phases of the conservation effort and to continually monitor demand data and improve conservation efforts, the City will need to obtain and dedicate additional sources of funding. In addition to potential grant funding (e.g., federal drought programs, community development block grants), technical assistance may be available from state or federal agencies.

95

